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CORPORATE PROFILE
T E/E N

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (the “Group”; SEHK stock code: 1929) was listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong in December 2011. The Group’s vision is to
become the most trusted jewellery group in the world.

Founded in 1929, the Group's iconic brand “CHOW TAI FOOK" is widely recognised for its
trustworthiness and authenticity, and is renowned for its product design, quality and value. A long-
standing commitment to innovation and craftsmanship has contributed to the Group's success,
along with that of its iconic retail brand, and has been embodied in its rich heritage. Underpinning
this success are our long-held core values of “Sincerity ® Eternity”.

The Group's differentiation strategy continues to make inroads into diverse customer segments
by catering to a bespoke experience for different lifestyles and personalities, as well as customers’
different life stages. Offering a wide variety of products, services and channels, the Group’s brand
portfolio comprises the CHOW TAI FOOK flagship brand with curated retail experiences, and other
individual brands including HEARTS ON FIRE, ENZO, SOINLOVE and MONOLOGUE.

The Group’s commitment to sustainable growth is anchored in its customer-centric focus and
strategies, which are in place to promote long-term innovation in business, in people and in
culture. Another asset underpinning sustainable growth is a sophisticated and agile business
model. This supports the Group by fostering excellence and extending opportunities along the
entire value chain to communities and industry partners across the world.

With an extensive retail network in China, Japan, Korea, Southeast Asia, the United States and
Canada, as well as a fast-growing smart retail business, the Group is implementing effective
online-to-offline (“O20") strategies to succeed in today's omni-channel retail environment.
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We value feedback from our stakeholders as it is important for us to ensure continuous improvement

of our reporting

quality. We invite you to share your views by email to ir@chowtaifook.com.
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ANNUAL RESULTS AT A GLANCE
FEXEHNE

KEY HIGHLIGHTS

° The pandemic in Mainland China (the “Mainland”) had affected all businesses, ours inclusive, particularly in 3QFY2023.
Our steady expansion of the retail network, combined with the recovery post the shift in pandemic-control measures
in 4QFY2023, helped mitigating majority of the impact during the financial year. Revenue for FY2023 remained resilient
with a decline of 4.3% year-on-year to HK$94,684 million

o The Group's commitment to disciplined cost management and pricing strategy optimisation yielded resilient underlying
performance in FY2023 and sequential improvement in profitability in 2HFY2023. The enhancement in retail like-for-like
gross profit margin mitigated the impact of increased gold and wholesale revenue contribution in the financial year.
Adjusted gross profit margin improved 30 basis points to 23.7% during the year while core operating profit margin
remained stable at 10.0%

° In FY2023, the Wonderful Life Collection, a perfect blend of exquisite gold craftsmanship and T MARK diamonds, was
successfully launched in the Mainland and its sales performance exceeded our expectation

° As at 31 March 2023, we had a total of 7,269 CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY POS in the Mainland, surpassing the 7,000
target for FY2025. Our future growth plan will focus on quality expansion, enhancing store productivity of existing retail
network and delivering exceptional customer experience

° The Group is committed to building business resilience by taking a proactive and responsive approach. During FY2023,
the Board initiated and endorsed the five strategic priorities. Each priority has outlined workplans and actions items
serving to strengthen our competitiveness, enhance quality of earnings and drive sustainable long-term stakeholder
value creation. These priorities include targeted brand positioning, product optimisation, operational efficiency,
comprehensive talent cultivation, and accelerated digitalisation
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For the year ended 31 March 2023

BE2023F3A31ALFE

Revenue Core operating profit Earnings per share
BEH EEEEHRAO BREF

HK$ million BE&#&T HK$ million BE&#&T HK$ &7t

954,684 5,439
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Net gearing ratio As at 31 March Dividend per share for the year @
FEAXBELE 38318 BREERE®
100% .
2023 2022 ‘ HKS 383t 92-.9 %
90%
g (@] 82.7%
\27.6 /D 285 /O \1.22 go% 765% ~® 74.5%
¢ 0
— 70% \ /
Net assets per share As at 31 March Full year dividend payout ratio ®
BREEFH M3B31A (Special dividend excluded) 60% 66.4%
- 2EREBE (FREHIRKRE)
HK$ %t o
2023 2022 L [=
40%
3 3 3 5 92 9% 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

(1) Core operating profit, a non-IFRS measure, being the aggregate of gross profit and other income,
less selling and distribution costs, general and administrative expenses and unrealised loss (gain)
on gold loans, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more complete understanding of
its operational performance and the underlying trend of its businesses

Being a total of full year dividend of HK$0.50 per share and special dividend of HK$0.72 per share.
The proposed final and special dividends of HK$1.00 per share are subject to the approval of
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting
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Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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As at 31 March 2023
7#2023%F3H318

CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY retail network and performance

BAXEHETERERTR
FY2023
ame 1,269 13.1%
PEAR , a 1,631 v 1 /0
POS® Net movement SSSG
TEH FEE BEHEER
-
( —
FY2023
85 18.3%
Macau of China 7 O
. N v A
hE &S R P ER : N
POS Net movement SSSG
ZEH FEE EEHEER
\
(
Other markets 5 D
A8 a9
POS Net movement
ZEH FRE
S

©®  CTF WATCH POS excluded

Chow Tai Fook employees

AXEET

28,9500+

Total number of employees
BTAY

Number of employees by reportable segment

RU2RSBASHEIHE

83.3Cyo x%nplqaild China

16.7%

Hong Kong & Macau of China and
other markets

HEEE  PERPIREMTE

Annual Report 2023
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Chow Tai Fook membership programme

BAXEESE

~6,369,000

Total number of members

BEAY

Members' repeat purchase as a % of respective RSV

EERHEGHEMTEEZES T

FY2023

32.3%

HERHE

Mainland China

48 80/ Hong Kong & Macau of China
O70 0 pmEEsReERe

Annual Results at a Glance
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FINANCIAL AND
OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

B REERE

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
For the year ended 31 March HBZE3A3MALEE BEART BHEER BHEER BEER BEERT
Revenue BT 66,661 56,751 70,164 98,938 94,684
Gross profit EH 18,602 16,096 20,075 22,340 21,172
Core operating profit™ FELKERMND 6,972 5,687 8,630 10,002 9,439
Profit for the year EEHEF 4,684 2,983 6,176 6,880 5,490
Profit attributable to shareholders R &) P B A 4,577 2,901 6,026 6,712 5,384
of the Company
Earnings per share (HK$) BRAEF (FBT) 0.46 0.29 0.60 0.67 0.54
Dividend per share (HK$) BRARE (&)
Full year dividend (HK$) 2FERE (BT 0.35 0.24 0.40 0.50 0.50
Special dividend (HK$) BRI S (BIT) 0.30 - - - 0.72
Gross profit margin EF = 27.9% 28.4% 28.6% 22.6% 22.4%
Adjusted gross profit margin® ERABENERE 27.9% 29.6% 28.2% 23.4% 23.7%
Core operating profit margin® FELE RO 10.5% 10.0% 12.3% 10.1% 10.0%
Net profit margin o A E 7.0% 5.3% 8.8% 7.0% 5.8%
Full year dividend payout ratio® 2FREEO 76.5% 82.7% 66.4% 74.5% 92.9%

[

) Core operating profit and the corresponding margin, a non-IFRS measure, being the aggregate of
adjusted gross profit and other income, less selling and distribution costs and general and
administrative expenses, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more complete
understanding of its operational performance and the underlying trend of its businesses

Adjusted gross profit margin, a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of unrealised loss (gain) on
gold loans, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more complete understanding of its

operational performance and the underlying trend of its businesses

(3) Special dividend excluded

(1)

2)

()

TREEEF RABRENE GHRRBR M B RE LR E) - BERABRY

ENREMEKEN AT

CRBEE R BRARAR R RITRAX - ARTF

EREHEHREEYEEMTRALERAREBOERES

SRR ENEANRGHRBERMEREENE) MR TESEENRE

HEE ()

IHE AAREEHBEANEER T RELERRARE

BHERBS
TERERHES

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

As at 31 March A3HA31H BEAERT BEET BEAET BEER BEAET
Non-current assets FERBEE 8,459 10,038 9,065 9,612 10,074
Current assets RENEE 53,778 55,205 55,243 78,126 77,267
Current liabilities nBEE 27,471 35,627 29,142 49,629 51,022
Net current assets MEVEE S 26,307 19,579 26,101 28,496 26,245
Non-current liabilities EREBEE 3,363 2,626 3,698 3,653 2,959
Net assets BEFE 31,403 26,991 31,568 34,555 33,360
Total assets BERE 62,237 65,243 64,308 87,737 87,341
Inventories FE 39,486 42,538 43,011 57,254 59,290
Bank deposits and cash equivalents®” $R171E 7 MIR & SEY @ 7,641 7,219 6,032 14,942 11,734
Bank borrowings RITER 10,057 11,431 6,418 9,065 5,855
Gold loans HefBE 8,012 11,280 5,725 15,721 15,086
Net debt® BIEFE® 10,428 15,492 6,111 9,844 9,207
Net assets per share (HK$) BREEFEGET) 3.1 2.7 3.2 3.5 3.3
Net gearing ratio® FEARBELERO 33.2% 57.4% 19.4% 28.5% 27.6%
Inventory turnover period (day)” FERSEH(XKE) 299 381 312 272 294
Return on equity® % 7K @] 3R =R @© 14.9% 11.1% 19.6% 19.9% 16.5%

(4) Bank balances and cash and short-term bank deposits included (4) BERTEHRRESREHRTER

)

) Aggregate of bank borrowings and gold loans, net of bank deposits and cash equivalents

) Aggregate of bank borrowings and gold loans, net of bank deposits and cash equivalents, divided by
total equity

(7) Being inventory balances, excluding packaging materials, at the end of the reporting period divided

by cost of goods sold for the year, multiplied by 365 or 366

(8) Being profit for the year divided by total equity at the end of the year

Overview
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2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
For the year ended 31 March HBZE3A3MALEE BEART BHEER HEER BEER BEAR
Operating cash flows before LEEASEERILE 7,774 9,912 11,672 11,984 11,619
movements in working capital Bean=E
Net cash from KERDMGRTIFHE 8,431 8,364 10,476 13,938 10,066
operating activities
Net cash used in BEFRSMAR S FE (1,222) (1,025) (693) (1,458) (1,782)
investing activities
Net cash used in MEEZBARSFHE (7,212) (7,653) (11,188) (3,793) (10,705)
financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in BeMhIRESEED (3) (314) (1,404) 8,688 (2,421)
cash and cash equivalents AN GRLA ) FEE
Capital expenditure BEAMAX (1,392) (973) (839) (1,531) (1,982)
Pro forma free cash flows® HEEHBES RO 4,100 5,208 6,646 10,901 6,174
(9) Net cash from (used in) operating activities less leases paid, purchase of jewellery collectibles, (9) WEEHRE(FIARSIEACHEES HEUTRHE E4AHIRE
capital expenditure and net movements for gold loans SEEFEY
For the year ended 31 March HE3ABMBLEE 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Mainland China ] A it
SSSG REEER R 3.4% (15.1)% 31.9% 11.1% (13.1)%
SSS volume growth RIEHEER (3.3)% (24.0)% 8.2% 7.6% (18.1)%
Hong Kong & Macau of China B & B & BR Y
SSSG FEHEEE 8.7% (38.7)% (41.3)% 24.7% 18.3%
SSS volume growth A HEE R 1.3% (43.5)% (42.9)% 51.0% (12.1)%
Retail sales volume (unit) HE (H8)
Mainland China B At 14,518,000 12,699,000 15,893,000 22,118,000 21,988,000
Hong Kong & Macau of Chinaand  FE&E®  #EEF R 3,390,000 2,392,000 1,189,000 1,674,000 1,494,000
other markets Himis
As at 31 March ®3A31A 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
POS distribution!" ZEH SO
Mainland China B 3,116 3,835 4,604 5,943M 7,519
Hong Kong, China R E S 82 87 82 76 66
Macau, China AR P 19 18 18 19 20
Taiwan, China FEEE 22 18 18 20 20
Cambodia SR 1 1 1 1 1
Canada mEXR - - - - 1
Japan SN 3 3 1 1 2
Korea B2 9 9 7 7 7
Malaysia BRAE R 4 4 4 5 6
Philippines JERE - 1 1 1 2
Singapore Nk 2 4 4 5 6
Thailand el - 1 1 1 2
United States ESE 3 2 1 1 1
Vietnam i 1 1 1 1 2
Total st 3,262 3,984 4,743 6,081 7,655
(10) SIS and CIS excluded TRIEEFERENEE

(11) Restated to reflect the split of CTF ® HUA exclusive zones as standalone stores in FY2023

Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences

Annual Report 2023
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MAJOR AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS
TERERRE

GOVERNANCE
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B/

Institutional Investor 2022 All-Asia Executive Team Rankings — Asia (ex-Mainland China) — Consumer/ Discretionary
Institutional Investor 2022 £ All-Asia Executive Team BET#5 - TR E bt & (BRPBIKE) - XL FEHERER

Most Honored Company — 1%t place

Best CEO — Combined — Kent Wong — 15t place

Best CFO — Combined — Hamilton Cheng — 1%t place
Best IR Professional — Combined — Danita On — 15t place
Best IR Program — Combined — 1%t place

Best ESG — Combined — 1%t place

Best IR Team — Combined — 2" place

HKIRA 8t Investor Relations Awards
ENEEBREEBHEAR

Best IR by Chairman/ CEO - Kent Wong
Best IR by CFO — Hamilton Cheng

Best IRO — Danita On

Best Annual Report
REREEBER(EF/THEAH) - S8R
SEREEBR (M) - BIRER
REREEWREES - RRRK

REFR

hkiE

IR Awards
NG IW‘EMTIU

Investour Relations /' w

QIZ%/“E%W&; I3
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BRRERME -F—F
RETHER -6 -BRE-F—4%
REBFEVBEE -HF8 -BRE-5—%
RERBEWREE -6 -ZRHR-F—4F
RERBEWRAR-HFE -F—4
RERE HEREA-HE-F—%

REREEREER - K6 -F -4

2022 HKMA Best Annual Reports Awards
BEEREENG2022FREFHREE

Excellence Report Award

Best Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Award (Retail)
BEF®RE

BERE - HERERAEHBRER(TE)

The International Annual Report Design Awards 2022
2022 EFF F R AT AR

Silver Award (Overall Presentation: Sustainability Report)
Honors Award (Overall Presentation: Annual Report)

R (REER - AISEEERS)

BEZ(FEER  F1W)

ARC Awards 2022
ARC K #2022

Bronze Award (Traditional Annual Report: Jewelry)

M (ERFR : HKE)

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AREBHREEEER DA



GOVERNANCE
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LACP 2021 Vision Awards Annual Report Competition
LACP 2021 RERFIHAE

e Platinum Award

e Top 100 Reports Worldwide

e Top 50 Chinese Reports

e Top 80 Reports (Asia-Pacific Region)

o PRI

o BRHEREI100ARRE

o BEBOARRXRE

o T AMEHEBOARRE

Best Corporate Governance and ESG Awards 2022
RELEEARRESG K5 2022

e Special Mention for Corporate Governance — Non-Hang Seng

Index (Large Market Capitalization) Category

o EERE - FEEKOBART (KTE) BRI FHZ=F

Listed Company Awards of Excellence 2022
EmAR S AL 2022

e Main Board (Large-Cap)

o FiR(KMME)

v/ W\ TN
(S rpaain2022 |

LISTED COMPESY AWARDS OF EXCELLENCE

2

Annual Report 2023
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LACP 2021 Vision Awards Sustainability Report Competition
LACP 2021 RERAFERRBMEAE

e Platinum Award

e Top 100 Reports Worldwide

e Top 50 Chinese Reports

e Top 80 Reports (Asia-Pacific Region)

o HEHE

o RREZEI100AKHRE

o BESOARFXRE

o DAMIEZKEBORRE

ESG Achievement Awards 2021/ 2022
RIE - B REEERM R K 2021/ 2022
e ESG Benchmark Awards — Gold Award

o R HE CEBEREERNE-&H

Quam IR Awards 2021
EESMIREERBRKIE2021
e Main Board Category

o ERFAR

The 10" Top 100 Hong Kong Listed Companies Awards
E+EER 10058

e Top 100 Hong Kong Listed Companies

o RAEN10058

Major Awards and Recognitions

TRBANGEA
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HKRMA Quality Service Programme 2022

EEREEEEHSEEREE 2022

e Excellence Service Retailer of the Year — Chain Stores

e Smart Transformation & Innovation Award — Bronze Award

e My Favorite Outstanding Service Retail Brand (Top 10 by
public voting)

o FHRBTER - EHE

o ERLHEAIRAIME - R

¢ RHEFTAGERBZERE

@HKRMA 20221 awzpps ppESEHI- (IO

ANN
EESBEENRTEAEA

2022 SRS D ER - EHE

o B

CHOW TAI FOOK

CORPORATE AND BRANDING

HKRMA Service Talent Award 2022

ERTEEEH M LR E 2022

e Qutstanding Flagship Service Store (Top 10)

e The Best Team Award (Team Award) — Gold Award

e The Best Training Award (Team Award) — Silver Award

e Individual Award Winner — Supervisory Level (Watch &
Jewellery Category) — Gold Award & Bronze Award

e [ndividual Award Winner — Junior Frontline Level (Watch &
Jewellery Category) — Gold Award & Outstanding
Performance Award

e Excellent Service Star

o TRGLER RIS

o ZEZERM(BRE) - o8

o HEHII(EKRE) - iR

o BENIKEEMAR - FEMMAL - RN

o BHRNKEEMAR - EERAAK - SRREBRIBRE

s BERBZE

ok P20

The 3 Greater Bay Area Navigation Award

FZEEBRRNEEBAR

e The Greater Bay Area Navigation Award — Award for
Outstanding Contribution (Enterprise)

o EMEBEBBRNEBEMEHERMBEE

The BrandLaureate BestBrands Award 2021-2022

The BrandLaureate BestBrands K #€ 2021-2022

e Brand of the Year — Lifestyle Premium Jewellery Brand
o FEMRME - SHKERME

Overview
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2022 Top Influential Brands Awards

2022 HAHE @

e Most Trustworthy Brand — Premium Jewellery
° SRKRER - REFEEME

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AREBHREEEER DA



CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
HEEESHE

CHO Appreciation Awards 2022
BEREEE RE K 2022

e Top 10 Happiest Company to Work For Award
e CHO Do Good Awards

o TARREMDEXLE

o HFERETE [Do Good| REKHE

PEOPLE AND CULTURE

WWEF Hong Kong: Low Carbon Manufacturing Programme
HREA(EB)ESE  EKRBEE
e Platinum Label

s AR

Hong Kong Volunteer Award 2022
BBHETI2022
e Qutstanding Collaboration Project

o HHHIERE

Hong Kong Green Awards 2022

BRBELERE 2022

e Environmental, Health and Safety Award (Large Corporation)
— Silver

o HMERRLEEEME(KAME) - R

AFE3E

Learning Enterprise Award 2021

2021 EEB BRI PER

o yareviy -
TRAIASRN R

2021 5 R R A EAE A AT SLAE

Learning Enterprise Award Ceremony 2021

AXE%RRRER/RLE

)

1Lg/8 3 u B

S ¢e 9% o}
AR ,_‘.;,,/é %G o i 2

Annual Report 2023
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ACCA Enterprise Excellence Award for Training Innovation
ACCA BFERIFENEE

15

= )
e 2

i 2

Visit our Group website for

more awards and recognitions

BESEBYTE
EZEBEREN

e
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Major Awards and Recognitions
FERIENFEAT
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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

As we look back on the year, 2022 continued to be a time of
navigating the effects of the pandemic amid heightened
geopolitical tensions and economic disruptions. Despite a shift in
pandemic-control measures globally, our performance projections
were challenged by an ever-evolving landscape characterised by
persisting macro externalities and uncertainties beyond our control.

We are committed to quality expansion and building long-term
business resilience by taking a proactive and responsive approach
to our operations. We continue to stay vigilant and nimble to the
situation across our extensive network in order to calibrate our
resources and operations accordingly. This approach is
underpinned by our five strategic priorities, which include targeted
brand positioning, product optimisation, operational efficiency
enhancement, comprehensive talent cultivation and accelerated
digitalisation. These priorities serve to strengthen our
competitiveness, enhance the quality of our earnings and drive
sustainable long-term stakeholder value creation, as well as
ensuring the continuity of our brand legacy and business success.

WORKING TOWARDS SUSTAINABLE
GROWTH

During FY2023, the Group’s revenue dropped by 4.3% year-on-
year to HK$94,684 million, while its core operating profit decreased
5.6% to HK$9,439 million year-on-year. Profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company decreased by 19.8% to HK$5,384
million, while earnings per share was HK$0.54. The Board has
proposed a final dividend and a special dividend of HK$0.28 and
HK$0.72 per share respectively, bringing the dividend per share for
the year to HK$1.22. The full year payout ratio in FY2023, excluding
special dividend, was approximately 92.9%.

Although the pandemic impact persisted in 2022, Mainland China's
(the “Mainland”) economy remained resilient. The Central
Government announced a GDP growth target of around 5% for
2023 in its 2023 Government Work Report. The government’s
focus on rebuilding business will be a positive catalyst to drive
retail and economic activity in the Mainland, as well as in Hong
Kong and Macau, boosting our confidence in the market's gradual
economic recovery and its positive impact on the jewellery market.
In Hong Kong and Macau, we observed a rebound in sales with the
resumption of international travel and pent-up consumption. We
look forward to sustained improvements in consumer sentiment
and overall growth.
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AMPLIFYING THE VALUES OF CHINESE
HERITAGE AND NURTURING FUTURE
TALENT

At Chow Tai Fook, we pride ourselves on being a Chinese jeweller
with a global mindset. Our passion for creating jewellery reflecting
our Chinese heritage not only conserves a cultural legacy for
generations to come, but also showcases Chinese craftsmanship
through our extensive global retail network.

Our core capabilities have been instrumental to preserving and
passing on the art of Chinese jewellery-making to future
generations. Through the expert guidance of our Master Studio at
Chow Tai Fook and the Design Residency Programme at Loupe —
our incubation space for design and craftsmanship — we provide a
variety of training opportunities to aspiring artisans globally who
are passionate about refining their skills for success in the
jewellery industry. Additionally, we are dedicated to encouraging
academic research on traditional artistry and cultural heritage
through initiatives such as the “Ancient Chinese Gold Techniques”
research project and exhibition series with the Chinese University
of Hong Kong.

Besides celebrating and promoting Chinese culture, we are
committed to educating and empowering our future generations.
To that end, we have supported a number of youth programmes
and initiatives to deepen their understanding of China's
development and help them gain global perspectives. Through
these activities, we seek to drive positive social impact in the

communities we serve.

Lastly, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our
shareholders, investors, business partners, and customers, as well
as my fellow Board members, the management team, and all our
staff for their trust and unwavering support. We will remain
steadfast in adhering to responsible business practices to generate
long-term, sustainable value for our communities and the

environment.

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
Chairman
Hong Kong, China, 8 June 2023

Chairman’s Statement

IRMEE

shizPERBEHXIL EFHA

FARERFERRATNPEKRER - REAAM B -
SERERY - AELATEERFENIRE G4
BUBNXCRERF & - AR HFUBRERAN
ERTERE  BATPRERTEANEY -

EENZOENRRE REAPEKE TEMRBEAM
fro RMBBARNBAMIIEENEEEI - UK
ERETE B T Loupe MR ATEIEHETEl - A2ERT
FiREZmFIlge  BEBETE  F£HRET
EuR s o o SEBBREATFAER - flg
BEARXREEERY [REERESTE] HERER
MREZRY - BURCESIENEL XEEBSH
BT o

B TEA RGBS BB RASIES
Ktee - BT —RBEEEBR - Bl ROAIIFHZ
BEFEEREH EAEPDSFAIRT FERE
EREBEAREEE RMAXBREELEIREEME
Wt ERRIER  FEOHEZE

& AARMZMLKER  REE  EBBHAEE

URFEESEERE EEERZBEIBURLH
BORUSMEEENEERIS SESHEETK
BEANEBEER RUBRRBREGRAFENR
HEE -

E1

BRAEL

FEIEE - 202356 A8H

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
BAXEHREEEER QA



STRATEGIC REPORT




MARKET REVIEW
3% [o] B8

The financial year 2023 was characterised by ongoing geopolitical
tensions and economic headwinds compounded by impact of the
pandemic. Nonetheless, we have continued to take a proactive and
responsive approach informed by our extensive experience and
deep insight into the jewellery market. In the face of macro
uncertainties and externalities beyond our control, we aim to
strengthen business resilience through agile, data-driven, and
forward-looking decision-making, underpinned by our five strategic
priorities.

MAINLAND CHINA

e Mainland China’s economy has demonstrated resilience amid
lingering pandemic-related disruptions and a complex macro
environment, achieving steady GDP growth of 3% in 2022.

e According to the National Bureau of Statistics of China, total
retail sales of consumer goods in 2022 experienced a slight
decline of 0.2% year-on-year, with retail sales of gold, silver,
and jewellery dropping by 1.1%. However, there was a
significant improvement in the January to March 2023, with
total retail sales of consumer goods increasing by 5.8% year-on-
year and retail sales of gold, silver, and jewellery was up by
13.6%.

e For 2023, the Central Government set a GDP growth target of
around 5%. Since the Mainland adjusted its response to the
pandemic, the Chinese market has begun to show significant
signs of recovery. In addition to vast government investment in
infrastructure and technological advancements, macro-economic
policies such as job creation and consumption stimulus
measures have further contributed to market recovery.

e According to the Ministry of Culture and Tourism, the number of
domestic trips during the 2023 Lunar New Year period were
close to 90% of 2019 levels, indicating that the impact of the
pandemic outbreak has eased.

e These encouraging signs are supported by a report published by
Bain & Company in February 2023, which noted that “the
fundamentals of consumption in China are intact” and China
remains the growth engine of the global luxury market.
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https://www.bain.com/insights/setting-a-new-pace-for-personal-luxury-growth-in-china/

HONG KONG & MACAU OF CHINA AND
OTHER MARKETS

In Hong Kong and Macau, the resumption of travel with the
Mainland in late 2022 drove in-bound visits by Chinese tourists.

The Hong Kong Census and Statistics Department recorded a
88.0% year-on-year increase in retail sales of jewellery, watches
and clocks, and valuable gifts in January to March 2023.

According to its luxury market insights report published in
February 2023, PwC has a positive outlook for Hong Kong's
consumer markets in 2023, forecasting retail sales to increase
by 13% year-on-year.

Despite a sharp downturn in consumption in 2022, Macau
regained its footing with the resumption of quarantine-free
travel and a promotional campaign encouraging visitors to book
extended stays and increase their spending. The number of
visitor arrivals surged by over 270% year-on-year in March 2023.
A sustained flow of in-bound travellers will support the growth
of Macau'’s retail market.

The Central Government is committed to advancing Hainan
Province’s spending repatriation agenda, leveraging its
advantage as a free trade port. The number of shoppers for
offshore duty-free products in Hainan during the Lunar New
Year holiday rose by 9.5% compared to the same period last
year, with each shopper spending an average of nearly

RMB10,000, according to Haikou Customs.

Hainan will strive to boost consumer demand and grow offshore
duty-free sales to more than RMB8O0 billion in 2023, according

to the province'’s government work report.

Asian cities have been the first to benefit from rising traveller
numbers, with an uptick in travel retail sales in the first quarter
of 2023 (January to March). Boosted by a revival in tourism,
retail sales in Singapore and Malaysia respectively increased by
5.5% and 19.7% year-on-year during the quarter.

GDP growth in Asian economies is likely to be supported by

continued recovery in domestic and tourism demand.
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BRANDS AND PRODUCTS

In response to the heightened appreciation for culture and
aesthetics among younger customers, Chow Tai Fook hopes to
emphasise not only the intrinsic value of gold but also the
spiritual and cultural associations of gold jewellery. To this end,
we created a new series titled Art of Himalaya ¢ HUA which
falls under the CTF ¢ HUA Collection and expresses the unique
beauty of Tibet by reinterpreting elements of regional
architecture, patterns, colour palettes and texts. This new series
received an overwhelming response in the Mainland, while the
CTF e HUA Collection overall contributed around 40% of the
retail sales value of gold products in this market during FY2023.

Our innovative and exquisite craftsmanship is showcased in the
Wonderful Life Collection, featuring T MARK diamonds
unconventionally set in gold. We are heartened by the continued
demand for the collection since its launch in July 2022. The
Collection’s average selling price was higher than that of gem-
set products in Mainland China.

In FY2023, revenue for HEARTS ON FIRE went up by 0.5%
despite the macro challenges. In North America, which accounts
for 52.9% of the brand's total revenue, there was a 11.4%
decrease year-on-year due to weaker domestic demand against
a backdrop of higher inflation. The brand’s performance was
strongest in Hong Kong, where sales rose by 51.3% compared
to the same period last year. This was driven by a robust
recovery in local demand from the end of the third quarter and
an upturn in tourist numbers from the fourth quarter onwards.
New designs for the Aerial and Lorelei Collections were
released during the year with excellent results. During the
launch period, sales of each collection grew significantly
year-on-year, with Aerial Collection sales up 207.3% globally
and Lorelei Collection sales up 84.5% in China.

Strategic Report
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e To capture the growth in bridal jewellery demand resulting from o MEEMERHIN2022FFRNE - RPN EBE

eased pandemic restrictions in late 2022, we organised “The 2 N EE B [ The Walk of Romance] » &
Walk of Romance”, an immersive promotional event in Hong NEAXBEZRZRY) - AHRIEEE T KM -
Kong showcasing the Chow Tai Fook Wedding Collection. With E%?@J EREEAARESFANZERKEME
a versatile aesthetic that embodies both Eastern and Western LA O TR 5 5t S P R ey e et o

traditions, the collection dazzles with meticulous craftsmanship
and contemporary designs.

MAINLAND CHINA oh [ 9 3th

Overall Performance EFBHR

e The shift in pandemic-control measures was followed by an o BEMBEHEMFAE  RMAMCAFEANMHEHER
increase in foot traffic at our stores in Mainland China. MEBFTIEMN - 2022 FFE - £ REATE N R
Consumer sentiment improved towards the end of 2022 PEER  BARRKREEERAOIET - ANHH
alongside government efforts to spur business recovery, BESTE . At EETEHNREHEBKER
domestic demand, and economic growth. As a result, the BNEEABENES 6% ME=FEHLIEL
decline in same store sales at our self-operated POS narrowed HBiE30% °

significantly to 5.6% in the fourth quarter, compared to a decline
of over 30% in the third quarter.

e Digital customer engagement, is an integral part of our omni- e BRIBRIYEETHLALERAEURETRIENE
channel initiatives, which aims to drive both public and private nE BRRMERBHEERBP DA —IR -
domain traffic as well as footfall at our physical stores. We are BN EEAARKREYaREHRBEBRER
consistently utilising social media platforms and communities to EEBR RARBEARMOBESH - RBEVTH
maintain strong connections with our existing clientele while B BMARARNEERRS|ERT A SHEES -
also expanding our customer base. During the Lunar New Year, FREREIE1.A4EBIX -

we ran a Douyin challenge in connection with our CTF ¢ HUA
Collection, generating more than 140 million hits.

e Our e-commerce business contributed around 4.7% in RSV and o 20238 FE  EFEBEFERMOLTNNEE
around 12% in volume during FY2023. BERE12% HEE -

e As traditional festivals resonate strongly with young Chinese e BEFPHFEHEEEURAUEREHHAMNER

consumers, we executed marketing campaigns with specific B BMHERENER S/ ERTEINESEHE
themes corresponding to the most widely celebrated occasions, HEBMLHES -

such as Lunar New Year and Chinese Valentine's Day.

Annual Report 2023 Business Review ’I 9
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Retail Network

e We had 1,631 net store openings during FY2023. As of
31 March 2023, there are a total of 7,269 CHOW TAI FOOK
JEWELLERY POS in Mainland China. Our calibrated strategy,
coupled with the support from our franchise partners, puts us
two years ahead of our schedule to reach and exceed the 7,000
CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY POS milestone in the Mainland,
which positions us favourably to capture post-pandemic
recovery and growth.

e \We have continued to partner with franchisees that have a
proven track record of success in order to execute our quality
expansion plan and deliver exceptional customer service across

all stores.

HONG KONG & MACAU OF CHINA AND
OTHER MARKETS

Overall Performance

e Hong Kong and Macau have shown early signs of recovery in
general mobility and retail activity since the full reopening of
borders with Mainland China, although business has yet to
return to pre-pandemic levels.

e Average daily footfall at stores in Hong Kong and Macau
increased by about 40% year-on-year in 4QFY2023. This
improvement in customer traffic is largely attributed to visitors
from Mainland China, particularly southern or other nearby
regions.

e The pent-up demand of bridal jewellery was further unleashed
in 2HFY2023 and the related RSV growth was over 170% in
Hong Kong and Macau in the fourth quarter.
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Other markets continued to benefit from an increase in cross-
border mobility and rising local demand. \We witnessed a strong
sales recovery in Asian countries including Singapore, Malaysia,
Japan, and Korea.

Our Hainan offshore duty-free business rebounded significantly
due to a tourism boom in 4QFY2023 after pandemic-control

measures were relaxed.

The resumption of quarantine-free travel is expected to facilitate
business recovery and continued improvement in consumer
sentiment. We will closely monitor such developments to
capture emerging opportunities while remaining disciplined in

cost management.

Retail Network

We closed a net of nine POS in Hong Kong and Macau to
enhance operational efficiency. We have 85 POS in Hong Kong
and Macau as of 31 March 2023.

We believe that the current retail network is sufficient to
support our growth. We will continue to closely analyse data on
store performance, leasing terms, and pace of visitation
recovery to identify any emerging opportunities and adjust our
plan as needed.

We opened new POS in Canada, Singapore, Malaysia, Thailand,
Vietnam and the Philippines respectively during the financial
year. Globally, we will keep focusing on markets with strong
retail growth potential.
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OPERATIONS
People & Culture

We are making enhancements in talent development and
corporate culture grooming, with a focus on providing a positive
experience to our employees while fostering their growth.
During the year, we made some improvements in strengthening
out talent management functions, including refining our talent
acquisition strategy, optimising goal-setting management,
improving onboarding processes, and upgrading rewards and
benefits programmes.

We have strong commitment in improving our employees’ well-
being. In FY2023, we transformed some of our office space into
a hybrid environment, which blends modern design and cutting-
edge technology. We believe the setup encourages flexibility
and boost creativity, enabling our employees to unleash their
full potentials.

In FY2024, we shall focus on the following near term priorities
namely attracting the right talent, promoting strong
performance, stewarding our corporate culture and enhancing
our training and development programme.

Production and Logistics Management

In FY2023, we continued to leverage cutting-edge solutions to
advance the automation of our supply chain to enhance
efficiency, productivity, and quality throughout our business. We
incorporated the latest technology into our production lines
which enable faster and more precise quality inspection of
minute details, such as ring size and gold colour saturation. This
relieves jewellery artisans from repetitive procedures, allowing
them to focus on higher value-added work that requires artistry,

precision, and innovation.

Located in Shunde, China, the second phase of our Automated
Logistics and Distribution Centre is set to start operations. It is a
ground-breaking facility designed to shorten the replenishment
cycle at our stores and improve inventory management. With
the commencement of the new Centre, we have the capability
to not just automate the delivery of gold products, but also
support the automated delivery of gem-set jewellery products
that require individual handling process.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK AND STRATEGIES

EHREHERE

The Group demonstrated great resilience during FY2023 as we
weathered ongoing market disruptions and macro-economic
challenges. The Government’s focus on getting businesses back in
the Mainland will be a positive catalyst to drive retail and economic
activity in both the Mainland and Hong Kong and Macau and is
supportive of our FY2024 performance. We are encouraged by the
gradual resumption of business in our key markets, and expect
FY2024 to be a year of recovery and normality with SSS to resume
growth in the Mainland, Hong Kong and Macau.

In the Mainland, the Government’s supportive policies will continue
to drive retail and economic activity in the near term. The Two
Sessions in early March 2023 signalled a clear shift towards
growth, with stimulus measures reiterating the importance of
stimulating domestic consumption as well as higher aims for the
creation of urban jobs and a GDP growth target of around 5%.
While we expect recovery in the Mainland may be gradual amid
uncertain global economic conditions, we are confident in the mid-
to long-term growth prospects of the Mainland jewellery market

and economy.

The return of Mainland Chinese tourist spending will catalyse
further recovery of our business in Hong Kong and Macau. With
the expected uptick in foot traffic, we expect to benefit from
operating leverage in these markets. In Hong Kong, the issuance of
consumption vouchers from Budget 2023-24 should also support
the recovery in retail activity and traffic.

In other markets, the increased mobility of travellers from the
Mainland is projected to stimulate tourism expenditure. The
jewellery market in Asian countries is expected to be supported by
travel consumption and robust local demand due to the recovering
economy. We will explore opportunities in jewellery markets with
strong retail demand.
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The Group is committed to staying vigilant and nimble to the

situation across our extensive network in order to calibrate our

resources and operations. Guided by our five strategic priorities,

we are dedicated to future-proofing our business by strengthening

our competitiveness, enhancing the quality of our earnings, and

achieving sustainable value creation for all stakeholders in the long

run. To support the realisation of our key goals, we have formulated

five strategic priorities in FY2023. The priorities are:

(1) Elevating brand positioning to increase brand desirability and

build revenue resilience

Brand relaunch to enhance brand identity and equity, with
gradual roll-out of new store image, display, packaging
and revamped service

Revamp loyalty programme to enhance customer
experience and loyalty

Centralise marketing strategy to improve consistency and
maximise impact

(2)  Strengthening product differentiation, optimising product

portfolios while reducing inventory levels and turnover days

Rationalisation of SKU to focus on core assortments and
signature collections

Optimise product planning process

New signature diamond collections to drive gem-set
sales growth

(3) Promoting data-driven culture and accelerating digital

transformation to optimise business performance

Optimise omni-channel customer experience

Enrich online exclusive collections and service offerings
Empower sales enhancement tools and devices
Synchronise enterprise database to enhance
analytics capabilities
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(4)  Enhancing operational efficiency and resilience
e Strengthen franchise management
e Enhance production efficiency and improve self-
production ratio
e Streamline raw material workflow

e Optimise cost structure

(5)  Nurturing a people-first culture and strengthening talent
development in support of business growth
e Optimise performance management programme for
better goals alignment
e Strengthen training programme to upskill current
talent pool

e Review incentive programme for frontline staff

We will continue to pursue a sustainable approach that balances
strict cost management with targeted initiatives that optimise our
products and practices. This gives us a competitive edge and
positions us for sustainable growth in the years ahead.
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PERFORMANCE REVIEW
7= 17 [o] A

OVERVIEW

FY2023 was a year with uncertainty hanging over geopolitical
tensions, the pandemic and macro-economic headwinds. Yet, our
operating markets regained footing approaching year end following
the shift in pandemic-control measures around the globe. Business
in Hong Kong, in particular, was in a better place than last year.

The signs of recovery were evidenced from both our first-hand
operational data and the general industry data. According to figures
from the National Bureau of Statistics of China, retail sales of gold,
silver and jewellery resumed to a positive growth of 13.6% year-
on-year in the first quarter of 2023, compared to a single-digit
decline in the previous quarter. In Hong Kong, the Census and
Statistics Department figure also showed a bouyant 88.0% year-
on-year increase in retail sales of jewellery, watches and clocks,
and valuable gifts in the first quarter of 2023, versus a largely flat

number in the last quarter.

Meanwhile, our store opening momentum in Mainland China (the
“"Mainland”) stayed steady and positive during the financial year,
thanks to the support from our franchisees. We opened a net of
1,631 CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY POS in the Mainland during
the financial year. On products, gold jewellery and products
demonstrated strength and outperformed other product categories
in FY2023.

Our efforts in adopting disciplined cost management and pricing
strategy optimisation yielded resilient underlying performance in
FY2023 and sequential improvement in profitability in second half
of the financial year. The enhancement in retail like-for-like gross
profit margin mitigated the impact of increased gold and wholesale
revenue contribution in the financial year. As a result, the Group’s
adjusted gross profit margin improved by 30 basis points year-on-
year to 23.7% in the financial year while core operating profit
margin was stable at 10.0%. The Group’s core operating profit
declined by 5.6% year-on-year in the financial year.

Profit attributable to shareholders decreased by 19.8% during the
financial year, mainly attributable to the decline in core operating
profit, an increase in unrealised loss on gold loans amid gold price
volatility in 2HFY2023 and a net foreign exchange loss resulted
from the weakness in RMB.
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Revenue

Revenue by reportable segment RTI2H S EBEISHEELE
For the year ended 31 March ##Z3A31H L FE
(HK$ million B&BT)

YoY change
El4 414
100,000 98,938 94,684 v 4.3%
80,000
66,661 70,164
60,000 56,751
87.9% 86.2% v 6.1%
63.7%
40,000 85.1%
71.8% —
Mainland China F Bt
20,000 o )
Hong Kong & Macau of China
36.3%
28.2% 149, 1919, 1389, 8.8% and other markets N
0 e . e amern PEEE - REIRMREMH S
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
1HFY 2HFY
YoY change YoY change
HBFE HBRFE
E¥EF T¥EF
Revenue (HK$ million) EEE(EBERD) 1HFY2022 2HFY2022 1HFY2023 2HFY2023 E1:4:- %4 E1:4:- %4
Mainland China A B A 3 38,650 48,382 40,927 40,696 462% w15.9%
Hong Kong & Macau of FEEE - PEIRMP K 5,636 6,370 5,608 7,453 v 05% a17.0%
China and other markets HAbmi5
Overall ®ee 44,186 54,752 46,535 48,149 a53% w12.1%

e The Group's revenue fell 4.3% to HK$94,684 million in FY2023. °
The pandemic in the Mainland had affected all businesses, ours
inclusive, particularly in 3QFY2023. Our steady expansion of the
retail network there, combined with the recovery post the shift
in pandemic-control measures in 4QFY2023, helped mitigate
majority of the impact for FY2023.

e Revenue from the Mainland was down by 6.1% in the financial o
year. Share of our Mainland business to the Group's revenue
amounted to 86.2% in FY2023.

In Hong Kong, Macau and other markets, revenue of the
segment rose by 8.8% for the financial year. The segment
started to benefit from Mainland’'s border reopening since
4QFY2023. Meanwhile, pent-up bridal demand was supported
by the relaxation of social distancing measures in Hong Kong
during 2HFY2023. As such, revenue of the reportable segment
in 4QFY2023 was back to more than 70% of the corresponding
FY2019 levels.

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERERWED T

20283 MEE AEEMEXETRIZNE
94.684EBE BT EAM - TRATEHIREIBY
& RPNEBIRTO - EERN 20238 B F
EE=FE&/BHE - A RAEALIBLSER
TEME - N L2023 BFEEENEEHNRE
MR HEEIIE - A BRI E RS H 2023 # K
FENREBOTE -

M B 2 R BARBFE TE6.1% © 2023 B
FE - NHMEBEREEZEENS6.2% -

HEEE R REMETS  APBRFEENDBEE
FAIER8.8% - H2023MBFEENEERL  EH
BEABEERAMBIROFEER - AR BEKRE
M AZ BB REHE E S R B HD BV AE 5 B A B SR 2023 7
BEETHFERER - it - 2023 BFEHM
FRAUZHDMNEXBMEZ 2019 BHFEEE
70% HI7KF ©

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AXBHEEERRAA



Revenue by product (excluding jewellery trading and service income from franchisees)
RERESNEEH(TOEKREE 5 RRE MEMBRISKN)
For the year ended 31 March #iZ3A31H L FE

(HK$ million B&iBT)

YoY change
El=4-14
100,000 97,799 93,729 v 4.2%
20.4% o 9
80,000 I 17.8% v 16.1%
65,966 69,289
60,000 56,250 %
I — 24.1% —
l 27.4% Gem-set, Platinum and
40,000 73.7% 76.9% a 0.0% K-gold jewellery
HREER - S RKSEEH
. 68.2% —
20,000 o 66.5% Gold jewellery and products
HEEHRER
|
5.5% 6.1% 7.7% 6.0% 5.3% v 15.3% Watches $85%
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
% of Revenue B 1HFY2022 2HFY2022 1HFY2023 2HFY2023
Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery TREER A RKEEH 22.6% 18.6% 19.1% 16.6%
Gold jewellery and products ELEHNE SR 70.7% 76.1% 75.6% 78.2%
Watches fik 6.8% 5.3% 5.4% 5.2%

Despite gold price volatility, we observed a strong demand for
gold jewellery and products in FY2023. CTF e HUA Collection, a
successful collection recognised for its heritage craftsmanship,
remained popular among our customers. Revenue of gold
jewellery and products stayed flat during the financial year.
While its contribution to the Group's revenue went up by 320
basis points to 76.9% in the financial year.

Revenue of both the gem-set, platinum and k-gold jewellery and
watches shrank during the financial year as such spending was
weakened due to the macro-economic volatility. However, we
were encouraged by the performance of the Wonderful Life
Collection, which blended perfectly our exquisite gold
craftsmanship and T MARK diamonds, demonstrating the
healthy progress we have made in meeting customer desires
for gem-set jewellery.
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SSSG
SSSG by major market REETHHESHAEHEER

110.4%
[ J
\57.7“
42.8% °

[ 23.0% )

FEHEE R

O~ _ -11.3% 6.4 ° -7.8%
10.7% o —o o~ io ot
[ ] ® s ./5-6%

-21.9% -19.3%
-33.1%
—.—
Mainland China Bl ith
——
10 20 3Q 4Q 10 2Q 3Q 4Q Hong Kong & Macau of China
FY2022 FY2023 REEER T ERF
FY2022 FY2023
SSS volume SSS volume
SSSG growth SSSG growth
FAEHERR RAEHEER FAEHEER FEHEER
Mainland China B i A11.1% Aa76% w13.1% w18.1%
Hong Kong & Macau of China B &S N A R Y Aa247% ab51.0% 4183% w12.1%

SSS in the Mainland dropped 13.1% in FY2023. Separately,
sales of franchised POS calculated on same store basis declined
11.2% during the financial year.

On top of the macro-economic volatility, business in the
Mainland was further impacted by the pandemic in the financial
year, especially in the third quarter. However, the market
showed signs of recovery in the last quarter following the

government’'s pandemic-control measures shift.

In Hong Kong and Macau, the return of the Mainland tourists
and bridal demand, coupled with the low base effect, saw a
promising SSSG of 96.5% in 4QFY2023. This resulted in a
18.3% SSSG in Hong Kong and Macau for the full year.

SSS in Hong Kong leaped by 36.6% in FY2023. In Macau, SSS
fell 17.8% in the financial year given its business being
dependent on Mainland tourist spending. Yet, Macau's SSS
resumed positive growth in the fourth quarter.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Profitability

Group %£H
For the year ended 31 March ##Z3A31H L FE

28.2%
[ ]
\23_4% 23.7%
° [
16.9%

0\14-1% 14.5%

('Y [ ]
o\

12.3% °

[ ]
10.1% 10.0%
2021 2022 2023

st

BFIgEN

—_——

Adjusted gross profit margin'" & FHEE K E IR
—_——

Selling and distribution costs and general and
administrative expenses ("SG&A”) as a % to revenue
HERDHHMAUR —RRTBEX ([HERTHEX )
FHEEXEEIL

—.—

Core operating profit margin®@ FZE4L& H A=

Core operating profit? by reportable segment XA 2R FEHEIFEIEBEEHH @

For the year ended 31 March Z3A31HLLFE
(HK$ million B&BT)

YoY Change
12,000 B L1t
10,002
10,000 9,439 v 5.6%
8,630
8,000
6,000
95.8% 93.1% v 83%
95.3%
4,000
2,000
0 4.7% 4.2% A 55.9%
2021 2022 2023

(1) Adjusted gross profit and the corresponding margin, a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of
unrealised loss (gain) on gold loans, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more
complete understanding of its operational performance and the underlying trend of its businesses
Core operating profit and the corresponding margin, a non-IFRS measure, being the aggregate of
adjusted gross profit and other income, less SG&A, which the Company believes is useful in
gaining a more complete understanding of its operational performance and the underlying trend of
its businesses

(2
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1HFY 2HFY
YoY change YoY change

BREE BREE

L¥E T¥E

(HK$ million) (BB#ERT) 1HFY2022 2HFY2022  1HFY2023  2HFY2023 B4 314 B4 X[
Revenue =3 44,186 54,752 46,535 48,149 4 53% v 12.1%
Adjusted gross profit RABEHEF 10,394 12,779 10,436 11,965 a 0.4% v 6.4%
Adjusted gross profit margin AR 1B B FE TR 23.5% 23.3% 22.4% 24.9% w 1.1% pts a 1.6% pts
1B 5 7 & BE7E

Other income HA A 270 523 353 381 A 30.6% v 27.2%
SG&A HERITHFAX (6,192) (7,772) (6,440) (7,256) A 4.0% v 6.6%
SG&A as a % to revenue HE R TTH G S ATl 14.0% 14.2% 13.8% 15.1% w 0.2% pts a 0.9% pts
EREASI 185 7 & B8 7%

Core operating profit 4,472 5,530 4,349 5,090 v 2.7% v 8.0%
Core operating profit margin 10.1% 10.1% 9.3% 10.6% w 0.8% pts a 0.5% pts
=P 188 7%

Between the two segments, the Mainland continued to be our
main profit contributor and accounted for over 90% of the
Group's core operating profit in FY2023.

The Group's core operating profit decreased by 5.6% year-on-
year to HK$9,439 million, with the corresponding margin stable
at 10.0% in FY2023. On a constant exchange rate basis,
core operating profit slightly dropped by 0.5% during the

financial year.

Profit attributable to shareholders decreased by 19.8% in
FY2023, mainly attributable to the decline in core operating
profit, an increase in unrealised loss on gold loans amid gold
price volatility in 2HFY2023 and the depreciation of RMB which
led to a net foreign exchange loss of HK$328 million in the
financial year (FY2022: a net gain of HK$138 million).

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Adjusted gross profit margin EREENERNE

e We use adjusted gross profit margin, a non-IFRS measure, for o BPIAKRABRENEREGERERM KR EEL

analysis. It represents gross profit margin generated from the HE)ESN  MERBEBASNENENRS
business after eliminating the effect of unrealised loss (gain) on SEENREIRER (RS WEE  RMEELE
gold loans. We believe that this measure better reflects the BERRUEBRNKERBERE THEBNE
operational performance of the Group and is useful for the BB -

understanding of the underlying trend of its businesses.

Unrealised loss (gain) REIREE (WE)

For the year ended 31 March HE3IAZMBLEE 2021 2022 2023

Gross profit margin E A= 28.6% 22.6% 22.4%

Unrealised loss (gain) on gold loans ECEBEEREEEBE(KE) (0.4)% 0.8% 1.3%

Adjusted gross profit margin LR B 1% H) I R 28.2% 23.4% 23.7%

e \We use gold loans (short position in gold) for economic hedge e BAMAFESEE(ZESRE)BEERKBEN - U
purpose to mitigate the financial impact of the gold price REEeFE(BEe R BREBNMBETE - &
fluctuations in our gold inventories (long position). The long-term SURENRGEFEEPEeEHEEeFERE
effect of long and short positions in gold is expected to offset BT HHREHRNBTERIMS  EELE
each other through the sales of gold inventories. However, CEMREE  c RREHR KREENESEES
when we take a snapshot position, a short-term timing e TIEERETER.  MBIEEBRBERR
difference may arise. The unsettled gold loan contracts are ALK A ENESFEN TS EITER

revalued at market price at the end of the reporting period,
while the gold inventories are not revalued as it is measured at

weighted average cost, unless an impairment indicator exists.

e As at 31 March 2023, an unrealised loss of HK$1,230 million o MN2023F3A31H  HEBHNEREEELENKRE
arose from such timing difference. WEEAE1,2308EB T -
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Movements in adjusted gross profit margin EFBEMENREE
For the year ended 31 March HZ3A318 Lt FE

25.0%

24.0% 1.5%
23.4%

23.0% 0.2% 0.2%

22.0% 0.8%

21.0%

20.0%

23.7%

2022

e At group level, adjusted gross profit margin increased by 30
basis points to 23.7% during FY2023, mainly attributable to an
improved like-for-like margin on gold jewellery and products
amid gold price surge in 2HFY2023. This offset the impact from
a higher sales contribution from our gold jewellery and products
and wholesale business.

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERERWED T
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Changes in Mainland China,

Hong Kong & Macau of China and
other markets mix

FEIRM - PEIEE - HEDRM
REMTSHEHEEH

Impact from wholesale business

HEEBHE

Changes in product mix
EmASEE

Changes in gross profit margin
by product in retail business

TEXBRERBINENREE

REBEE - 2023 HRFELFBENEMNE L7
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London gold price fRE&E
(US$ per ounce =55 )

2,100
1,900
1,700
1,500
1,300

1,100 -

London gold price

RAEE

Average of T-150 days'
T-150 K FHED

1.4.2021 1.4.2022

(1) Average of T-150 refers to the average gold price of previous 150 days on rolling basis, being a
proxy of the average price of our hedged inventories. Average of T-150 days was used for FY2023
and FY2022

FY2023 Closing price YoY change
W ER LML

London gold price 0

RBEE A 1 ' g /0
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(1) T-150 RFHERBEFEIOANESHE  RIERRAMEEIESF
EHTFERE o 2023 B BUFE & 2022 B BUF E 196 A T-150 X FHE

Average price YoY change
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SG&A

SG&A by reportable segment ZTTE2RFBEIFIHERITHRHAZ
For the year ended 31 March BiZ3A31HLLFE
(HK$ million B&#&t)

14,000

12,000

10,000

8,000

6,000

4,000

2,000

13,964 13,696
11,849
80.1% 78.9%
75.2%
24.8% 19.9% 21.1%
2021 2022 2023

SG&A to revenue ratio SHERITBFXIGEERILE
For the year ended 31 March BiZ3A31HLFE
(HK$ million B&%&t)

16,000

14,000

12,000

10,000

8,000

6,000

4,000

2,000

0

16.9%
.NL'I% 14.5%
®o—0
13,964 13,696
11,849
5.4% 5.6%
6.6%
2.4% 2.0%
2.8% - 1.3% 1.3%
£ 19% 1.1% 1.3%
[ 1.4% 0.8% 0.9%
85% 1.3% 1.1%
8%
2.5% 2.0% 2.2%
2021 2022 2023

YoY change
B4 44

v 1.9%

v 3.4%

A 3.9%

YoY change
El:4-314

v 1.9%

v 0.6%

v 20.6%

v 25%
a 16.3%
a 13.0%
v 12.9%

A 8.6%

(1) Other SG&A mainly represented bank charges incurred for sales transactions settlement, royalty
fees for the sales of licensed products, certificate expenses and utilities

36 Management Discussion and Analysis
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Hong Kong & Macau of China and other markets
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As a % of revenue FTEEEEEE DL

|

Staff costs and related expenses 8 T4 &% A8RR

I

Concessionaire fees E{f5 R

I

Rental expenses A&

I

Depreciation and amortisation (Right-of-use assets, “ROUA")
EREE (FRAEEE)

I

Depreciation and amortisation (Property, plant and equipment)
BRI (W% - BEREE)

L ____ |

Advertising and promotion expenses &% Kk SERI %

L}

Packaging materials &2 9%

|

Other SG&A" HAgHERITHBIX™M

(1) EMBEERTRRAXIEREHEXIBREELNRITTAE  HERR
ERNENER FEERKER

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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e With disciplined cost management strategy, the Group closely o AHBFE SEEETEREMNKAEHER &Y
managed SG&A expenses during the financial year, as a result ZHISHE RITHAX - $HE RITHA X AR
SG&A expenses decreased by 1.9% to HK$13,696 million. 1.9% % 13,696 BEBHETT ©

e SGR&A ratio slightly up by 40 basis points to 14.5% due to o ANTHAEEET  HERITHRAI LR L

unfavourable operating leverage. Fixed in nature expenses FA0ME 2 F214.5% 2023 B F E - BEF
contributed approximately 50% to SG&A expenses in FY2023 ERZMIHE RITHAZA50% (2022 M FE :
(FY2022: approximately 45%). #45%) °

e Analyses of the major SG&A components, including staff costs e EHAMERTHAZETZMAKNBEE(BEEINR

and related expenses, concessionaire fees and lease-related LAY S K LEEBBRAS) O TH
expenses are provided on p.42 - 43 and p.54 - 55 of this report. MARRESF 425 43B K b4EB5H ©
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10,000

MAINLAND CHINA

Revenue

Revenue by operation model RZEEXE|FHIBLEE
For the year ended 31 March #iZ3A31H L FE
(HK$ million B&iBT)

100,000
90,000

40,000
30,000

oh [ Py it
—f 3

In Mainland China, our retail revenue represents sales from self-
operated POS, e-commerce and other direct channels, while
wholesale revenue mainly represents sales to franchisees and

provision of services to franchisees.

Revenue in the Mainland decreased by 6.1% to HK$81,623
million in FY2023. On a constant exchange rate basis, revenue
slightly declined by 0.6% during the financial year.

Wholesale revenue rose by 2.9% during the financial year,
supported by the new openings of franchised POS. Its
revenue contribution expanded 480 basis points to 54.4% in
the financial year.

As at 31 March 2023, we had 5,560 franchised CHOW TAI FOOK
JEWELLERY POS. For the majority of these POS, we retain
inventory ownership until sales transactions are completed with
the retail customers, upon which wholesale revenue is
recognised. These franchised POS contributed approximately
63% of the wholesale revenue in the Mainland.

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERERWED T

YoY change
El=2-114
86,932
81,623 v 6.1%
80,000
70,000
59,698 50.4% v 15.0%
60,000
50,000 42,432 40,763
! 59.8%
71.7% 65.7%
0
20,000 49.6% A 29% —
40.2% Retail &
28.3% 34.3% -
0 Wholesale #t2%
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

KRB RMNTELETERREELETE
BoOETAGSLREGERRENHEERE MitEe
FHEANETERRMAFHHEEE @ LA MNEFRER
TEENUA

2023 FE - NHEEFE TEE6.1% 281,623
BEEBT - RAREXRGFE  AWMRFEHNEER
HIMTER0.6% °

RAEMBTERAI  HBEEXERNAYBEF
EEF29%  RMBHFE  HBEEBHEEEN
LEHE N 480 &% % 54.4% ©

120233 A31 H * #1745 5,660 A AEHKE
MBEZEH - RAMOAARAKENETER &
PMETEHEETKHERIAREFTEHFE
FRHTEME  ASERMBELER - WHANBET
EHMNEERNNH B EEFI63% -

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AXBHEEERRAA



SSSG FIESHEER
SSSG of major products FEERFEEHEER
Same Store ASP
FEFHER
65.5% PV
[ )
» Gem-set HK$
48.9% jewellery
J s/ J(]()
B /
(FY2022": HK$7,400)
23.3%
[/ Gold HK$
9.4% jewellery
2.7% o () and 5 4 O O
° -0.4% / \ products )
— ‘\ ° ° HEEHM  (FY2022": HK$5,200)
.%.A \ 717.0(/ ° 2.0% RES
8.0% 89% '\A./.ms% o
-13.3% . . —_——
-17.2% -31.8% -19.3% Gem-set, Platinum and
() K-gold jewellery
735'_'80,0 HRERR - HERKESEHH
——
1Q 20 3Q 4Q 10 20 3Q 4Q Gold jewellery and products
FY2022 FY2023 HEEMRER

FY2023
SSS volume
SSSG growth
FEHERE R/EHEER
Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery KEZER A RKESEH v 19.2% v 26.6%
Gold jewellery and products HEeEMRER v 10.9% v 15.2%
Watches ik v 14.4% v 27.8%
Overall g v 13.1% v 18.1%

(1) Same Store ASP on FY2023 Same Store basis

In Mainland China, a broad SSS decline was recorded across all
product categories in FY2023. Nevertheless, ASP continued a
resilient upward trajectory during the financial year, thanks to
our differentiated product offerings and pricing strategy
optimisation. Besides, SSSG began to regaining traction in
4QFY2023.

In FY2023, SSS of gold jewellery and products dropped 10.9%
year-on-year. ASP of the product category increased to about
HK$5,400 during the financial year (FY2022: HK$5,200).

SSS of gem-set, platinum and k-gold jewellery reduced by
19.2% during the financial year. Gem-set jewellery ASP went up
to approximately HK$7,900 (FY2022: HK$7,400), supported
partly by the healthy progress in sales of the Wonderful
Life Collection.

Annual Report 2023
2023 F#§

(1)

TR F 4945 B 1A 2023 BF R 57 2 WO L 1R R 2

2023 BEE - hEIRMATEERER R EHE
BERTRE- - GENL  SERRMANZER(CESR
HAELBLEBRE FHEERAMBFEMLE
REFBELTBE -t o FIEHEL K1 2023
MRFEFMFEHRBIRES T -

20230 BEE BB RERNREHERFE T
F£10.9% ° b IR R & F 15 & B R AN B B E 35
F 495,400 7T (2022 AL FE : 5,200 7T) ©

KEER A RKEEHORIEHEERNTBF
ETR192% KEBMAMNFHEELEY
7,90078 7T (2022 B W F & : 7,40087T) » Uy
REbD B AR RIS R AT SH -
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Profitability BFIgEN

Mainland China ERiit
For the year ended 31 March ##Z3A31H L FE

28.0%
°
\23_1% 23.3%
° °
14.9%
° 12.9% 13.2%
OQ. o
13.8% ° ° —o—
11.0% 10.8% Adjusted gross profit margin & ENER =R
_._
SG&A as a % to revenue SHERTHHAX MG EEBEE I
_._
Core operating profit margin E E2&ZHEF =
2021 2022 2023
1HFY 2HFY
YoY change YoY change
MBEE BBEE
ExE T
(HK$ million) (B8ER) 1HFY2022 2HFY2022 1HFY2023 2HFY2023 El:4-2(4 Eil=4-14
Revenue TR 38,550 48,382 40,927 40,696 a 6.2% w 15.9%
Adjusted gross profit TRBBHER 8,957 11,133 9,070 9,970 a 1.3% v 10.4%
Adjusted gross profit margin AR R FEFIR 23.2% 23.0% 22.2% 245% w 1.0%pts a 1.5% pts
BB B &7
Other income HAb g A 214 469 256 303 A 19.8% w 35.4%
SG&A SHE RITHRX (4,889) (6,300) (5,111) (5,701) A 45% v 9.5%
SG&A as a % to revenue HERITEES AT 12.7% 13.0% 12.5% 14.0% w 0.2% pts a 1.0% pts
EREHS B3 % BE 7%
Core operating profit FELE T 4,282 5,302 4,215 4,572 v 1.6% v 13.8%
Core operating profit margin FEEE RFIE 11.1% 11.0% 10.3% 11.2% v 0.8% pts a 0.2% pts
1885 % B85 %

40 ‘ Management Discussion and Analysis Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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e Adjusted gross profit margin expanded by 20 basis points in

FY2023, mainly due to the gold price surge in 2HFY2023 and
our pricing strategy optimisation which offset the impact from a
higher sales contribution from wholesale business and gold
jewellery and products.

In general, the wholesale business has a lower gross profit
margin than the retail business. An increase of wholesale mix in
FY2023 led to a drop of 60 basis points in adjusted gross profit
margin. Revenue mix of gold jewellery and products also surged
to 77.8% (FY2022: 74.6%) due to strong demand for gold
jewellery, which resulted in a decline of 70 basis points in
adjusted gross profit margin. On the other hand, the surge of
gold prices and our pricing strategy optimisation brought a
benefit of 150 basis points to adjusted gross profit margin.

SG&A ratio stood at 13.2% for the period ended 31 March
2023. Fixed in nature expenses contributed around 45% to
SG&A expenses in FY2023 (FY2022: approximately 40%).

Core operating profit margin was fairly stable at 10.8%
in FY2023.

Annual Report 2023
2023 F ik

BFRREOEFNER2023F B FE L IN20ESET -

ZHN2023H BFE T HF2BEMIT AR
MECEERE  HETHEXR  URESEH
RERNHEEEM ETHRE

—RMmE  EEEXBHENTERTEER - 2023
PBFE  #HEASEINGBEHBRNEMNET
BEEOEE T - ANELEMNFZRRY S EH
NESRNZEEBEATMITET7.8% (2022 M K F
B :74.6%)  BEUEFHBIRHENKTRET0EE
FoB—HE LEMRTUREMAECEERRE
ARG AR EFR KSR 150 EREFH) LT -

BL=202343 A31HILAMH - HERITHRMAXL
EJ318.2% ° 2023 IRFE - [EE M E B A5 14
ERITHFRZ A 45% (2022 B EE - 8940%) ©

FERLHEMNER 2023 HFREBERTE
7£10.8% °

2
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SG&A

SG&A to revenue ratio SHERITERIGEEELE
For the year ended 31 March BZ3A31HLFE
(HK$ million B&%&t)

14.9%

° 12.9% 13.2%
— °
12,000 11,190
11,000 10,812
10,000
8,910
9,000 4.7% 4.8%
8,000
7,000 5.8%
6,000 2.7% 2.3%
2099 3.3% 0% 0.7%
4,000 1.0% 1.2%
]
3,000 - ?-?Zj‘; 0.7% 0.9%
0.8% 1.4% 1.3%
2,000 98% 0
1,000 2.1% 1.6% 2.0%
0
2021 2022 2023

Staff costs and related expenses ETIRARAEFHFER
For the year ended 31 March Z3A31HLLFE
(HK$ million B&iBT)

5.8% 4.7% 4.8%
.\. °

4,500

4113
4,000 3,938

3,500
3,000
2,500
2,000
1,500
1,000

500

2021 2022 2023

(1) Employees in production function excluded

YoY change
Eil=4-314

v 3.4%

v 4.3%

v 20.8%

v 1.6%
a 20.8%
a 16.2%
v 13.2%

a 12.2%

YoY change
El>4-314

v 4.3%

v 16.4%

A 47%

a 15.0%

(2) Other staff related expenses mainly included staff messing, medical care, educational expenses, etc.

e Staff costs and related expenses were down 4.3% in FY2023.

e Fixed component increased 4.7% year-on-year, in-line with the

increase in head count given an increase in store openings. The

16.4% decrease in variable component was in-line with the

retail revenue decline.

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERERWED T

HERTHAX

—_——

As a % of respective revenue FTHGHBEX£EE L

|

Staff costs and related expenses 8 T K24~ &% A8EE5

|

Concessionaire fees SHED K

L

Rental expenses €5 %

|

Depreciation and amortisation (Right-of-use assets, “ROUA")
EREE (ERAEEE)

|

Depreciation and amortisation (Property, plant and equipment)
EREE (W% - BERSEE)

L ____|

Advertising and promotion expenses &% Kk SE[ %

——

Packaging materials &2 9%

-—
Other SG&A HAhHERITHBI X

FY2023

20,330 .31%

Average number of YoY change
employees(" Gil24 54
FEHETHE
—.—
As a % of respective revenue FiEBBIE £5EA S LL
|
Variable staff costs SZ&) 8 T A4
|
Fixed staff costs EE & T A
I

Other staff related expenses®? Hfth & TiHRIRI @

(1) TeEEERFMET
(2) HETHMRALEIZEEETEREN BRENASERS

° 20230 HFE  EIXARIBMEFAZTREAL3% °
RFEEEE L7 BEERKBERRFE LT4.7%

TABER - - ¥HEKIAE TEK16.4% -
HTELRERL B

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AREBHREEEER DA



Concessionaire fees and lease-related expenses'" Hif5 B RH SRz
For the year ended 31 March #iZ3A31H L FE
(HK$ million B&iBT)

8.0% 7.9% 7.9%
° ° °
) /0
4% e 4.4%
4.0% YoY change
3,500 A
3,000 3,003
2,528 2,506 v 16.6%
2,500
——
2,000 Concessionaire fees as a % of respective revenue
78.8% EED ARG EBEE ST
1,500 78.7% 74.8% v 20.8% e
Lease-related expenses as a % of respective revenue
1,000 HERBER XML ERE (BRI
L}
500 Concessionaire fees 1B 5 i
21.3% 21.2% 25.2% v 1.0% —
0 Lease-related expenses" HE @R
2021 2022 2023
e Concessionaire fees decreased by 16.6% due to the decline in e HNTELEXBITHRUREEEAEEROKLEER
retail revenue and a shift of sales mix towards gold jewellery BEHECEHMRER  FEEIKTET 16.6% - &
and products that is generally subject to lower rates as BOKLEBEET.9% °

compared with other product types. Concessionaire fees ratio
was stable at 7.9%.

e |ease-related expenses ratio edged up slightly by 40 basis o AHMHBFEAN - AEMBMZ L REH EF40

points during the financial year. EEF -

(1) Under IFRS 16 - leases, depreciation and amortisation (ROUA) and finance costs on leases replace (1) RBERPBRELRE 16 5 - HE  WERBIFE(EHREEE) KSR
the majority of rental expenses and therefore we combined these elements for the analysis of BERARRKEBHESHASL - RO EEBIER A0 LUETHEER
lease-related expenses X 25
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POS network TEALR

POS movement by store brand™ — Mainland China REH#RREISNTEIEH - hEKAM

During FY2023

31.3.2021 31.3.2022 2023 EFE 31.3.2023
Total Total Addition Reduction Net Total
As at iy - hy - hy #m D IR Foba
CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY? RFE A @IHKE @ 4,250% 5,638 1,853 (222) 1,631 7,269
CTF WATCH IERNEE 473 128 136 7 (14) (7) 129
HEARTS ON FIRE HEARTS ON FIRE 1 1 - - - 1
ENZO ENZO 75 54 1 (25) (24) 30
SOINLOVE SOINLOVE 66 39 1 (19) (18) 21
MONOLOGUE MONOLOGUE 77 68 14 (22) (8) 60
(1) SIS and CIS excluded (1) TBIEEFERENEE
(2) CTF WATCH POS excluded 2) TRERABEETEY
(3) Restated to reflect the split of CTF ® HUA exclusive zones as standalone stores in FY2023 (3) BREEEIARKR2023VREES FEFRRIERAEBPIE
RSV analysis FEEST
RSV by product RESSIPHTEE
RSV YoY change
FY2022 FY2023 SEERLEL
| [ | Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery v 7.6%
KREEZER  HERKESEH
Gold jewellery and products & 4 & & &2 & @ A 7.9%
[ | Watches $£8% v 13.2%
Overall &2 4 3.7%

RSV of gem-set, platinum and K-gold jewellery ¥H&EZEi# - HERKSHMHHBEHE

% of RSV ZEAEMGE FY2022 FY2023
Diamond jewellery EAEH 62.3% 60.5%
Other gem-set jewellery HEMHKEEREH 18.6% 20.8%
Platinum and K-gold jewellery ek KeEh 19.1% 18.7%
44 Management Discussion and Analysis Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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RSV of gold jewellery and products &£ EHMHiREZHTEE

% of RSV SEEMKR FY2022 FY2023
Weight-based gold products FEESEM 85.8% 85.0%
Fixed price gold products EEETEM 7.3% 7.0%
Bullion ESH Sl 6.9% 8.0%
RSV by channel ZHEERELSHWTEHE
4.7%
RSV YoY change
FY2022 FY2023 ZEERLEL
[ | [ | CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY A X@EHKE a54%
Other store brands™ H 4 J5 45 G kg v 14.4%
[ | E-commerce®? & ¥ 552 v 6.4%
Overall #8& 4 3.7%
(1) CTF WATCH, HEARTS ON FIRE, ENZO, SOINLOVE and MONOLOGUE included (1) ®4EEAIEEE - HEARTS ON FIRE - ENZO - SOINLOVE % MONOLOGUE
(2) Major platforms included Chow Tai Fook eShop, Tmall, JD.com, Douyin and Vipshop (2) FEFARERARNBBEEELS X# 2R HERERE

e Physical retail continued to be a dominant part of jewellery o KEBEWINNERTEERETE - 20238 K

shopping. In FY2023, it accounted for approximately 95% of our FE - AR ETEEL5% c EEEE  NEE
RSV in the Mainland. Meanwhile the e-commerce channel, 365 EEAREHRETRELSETEIAL <
coupled with our smart retail tools such as CloudSales 365, BMEmmakiE—SRABRRTER KthEeE
Cloud Kiosk and Smart Tray, enable us to complement and ETERR T HERENES -

further enhance customer journey, so as to drive sales at
physical stores in an omni-channel environment.

e RSV of our e-commerce channel in the Mainland declined by o 2023BIHFE HMEANMMEHEENTEET

6.4% in FY2023, mainly attributable to a decline in sales volume. [6.4%  FERBHNHEETHMAE - EHNMET
Its share to the RSV in the Mainland was relatively steady at EBELLEFERN4T%  SEEMS  HATED
about 4.7%. In terms of retail sales volume, its share was about BHRI12% RAVBFE HFHEBHNA
12%. Its ASP was approximately HK$1,870 during the financial 1,870 7T (2022 W 4FE : 1,800 7T) °

year (FY2022: HK$1,800).
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The following analyses focus on CHOW TAl FOOK JEWELLERY ARXEHRETEHETEANMTEERBIO% - AT
POS which contributed over 90% of the RSV in Mainland China: SRR ZERIEDT

CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY POS AXEHKETEL
RSV and POS by tier of cities!" ERBHRINEFPHETEERTERD

FY2023
% of POS % of RSV RSV YoY change Net POS movement
SEMELE TEEME ZEERLR{L ZENFRY
[ | [ | Tier | cities — 4T v 0.8% a 218
[ | Tier |l cities — 4RI T A 45% a 704
[ | Tier Il cities = &3 A 7.3% a 302
| Tier IV cities and others A 11.7% a 407
PO AR T I Bt
(1) As an initiative to better reflect the economic development and strategic significance of cities in (1) AEEEMREAENMETOEEERNBEES  RIRAE )
Mainland China, we adopt the city-tier ranking published by Yicai Global. New first-tier cities were BT ERER - T BRATRBEMOD TR BEAZRET - &
grouped under Tier |l cities in our analysis. Please refer to the ranking released on 1 June 2022 2012022 F6 A1 BAHBBEEE
RSV and POS by operation model RZERXEINTEERTEY
il FY2023
’ % of POS % of RSV RSV YoY change Net POS movement
TEIEE TEEKGH ZEERBLZL ZENFEY
[ | [ | Self-operated B & ¥ 10.1% A 169
[ | Franchised i & a 15.6% a 1,462
66.2%
RSV and POS by store format REHENESNTEERTED
FY2023
% of POS % of RSV RSV YoY change Net POS movement
TEHEL TEEMGE ZEERL R ZEHRFRY
27.6%
[ | [ | Shopping mall & #79 L» A 79% A 648
[ | Department store B &2 &) v 8.0% a 354
[ | Others Eftb 4 30.3% a 629
6 Management Discussion and Analysis Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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In FY2023, we opened a net of 1,631 CHOW TAlI FOOK
JEWELLERY POS in the Mainland.

Tier lll, IV and other cities delivered a relatively stronger RSV
growth in the financial year, primarily due to new openings and
the impact of the pandemic in few key higher tier cities during
the financial year.

By operation model, approximately 90% of the net openings
were franchised POS during the financial year. While the
openings of franchised POS were mainly located in shopping
malls and street-faced levels, new self-operated POS were
primarily situated in shopping malls in higher tier cities.

As at 31 March 2023, franchised POS comprised approximately
77% of our store count in the Mainland. RSV of franchised POS
in the Mainland rose by 15.6% year-on-year during the financial
year, outperforming self-operated POS in RSV growth as driven
by new openings.

Around 56% of franchised POS had a store age of less than two
years, showing a higher proportion compared to self-operated
POS. Thus, the average sales per store of franchised POS was
generally lower than that of the self-operated POS in same-tier
cities during the financial year.

Annual Report 2023
2023 F ik

2023 RFE - HAEAMFFR 1,631 fEE K%
KETEH -

RAMRFE =4 OKREEMRTHEEEIE
RRARY  TERBRHMAERETEE— =
BRETREATRFEARRELEMK -

REEEAE D APBRFERNFHIRNEZEHT
#AEN% SMBTER - HARNMBATER TR
CREEYTORERH MAELETERNETEUR
— o ZREWEOBYTRL -

BL=202343A31H MBATEHERMAME
HEENTT% AMBEER - N NBETER
TEERFER15.6%  ENHETDH THETEME
BEXRRENELTEH -

#WE56% MBETEHNERINMF  BREET
EHMBRAL - Hit - NP BEFEEARER W
Al MBETEHNFHEEHEREERRE

ETEH -
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RSV per store by store age REHREITHBETER

140.0%

130.7%
120.0% 112.4%
93.7%
100.0% a
FY2023 RSV per same store:
. 75.4% HK$18.3 million®: @
80.0% 2023 BFERIEEHTEME ¢
18.3B 8B
60.0% 56.2%
40.0%
20.0%
0.0%
Less than 2 years!" 2-4 years 4-6 years 6-8 years 8years or more
DR2FM 22 4%F 4ZE6F 6ZE8F SERU L
3/2015
POS opening date BiJ& B & 4/2021-3/2023 4/2019-3/2021 4/2017-3/2019 4/2016-3/2017 or before Total
3/20153% LA Al st
POS T&EEh 3,509 1,472 746 341 1,201 7,269
% of POS TEEHELL 48.3% 20.3% 10.3% 4.7% 16.5% 100.0%
— (1) For POS of age less than 1 year, RSV is adjusted on an annualised basis
Ratio of annual RSV per store to RSV per Same Store ERTARIENTED Y TEMIRE(L LR
BEFETEEEREEYTEAZLH (2)  Value-added tax ("VAT") included
BIEEER

(3)  Self-operated and franchised POS included for same store calculation
FEt e EEE RMBETES

e Though the average sales per store in the Mainland was o BE2023HMBFEANMPIENFIHERIENES

affected by the pandemic in FY2023, the ramp up of our T2 BRMOPIERRBEE F— AR BEE AR
stores was generally similar to the previous financial year, BEL BRTEMPIESZEDENBTE M

demonstrating resilience and stability of our store operations.

48 Management Discussion and Analysis Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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Average quarterly sales™

FHYFEHER

(HK$ million B&8T)

33.0%
28.7% °
32.4%
1 24.2% :
21.0% °
o— ——°
22.3%
20.5% ®
17.9%
35 34

FY2022 average quarterly SSS
2022 EEFHIEEREHE
—

FY2023 average quarterly SSS
2023 R EEFHEEREHE
——

FY2022 quarterly SSS
contribution to annual SSS
20228 N E R R SHERRE
FEREHEHENER

——

FY2023 quarterly SSS
contribution to annual SSS
202381 E R [E) 5 SHERR
FEREHEEN SR

5.6 53
4.7
38 4.1
II I Iz.9
10 20 3Q 4Q

(1) Self-operated and franchised POS included for same store calculation; (1)
FY2022 data on FY2023 same store basis

e The pandemic in the Mainland weighed on the quarterly SSS °
contribution for FY2023, particularly during 3QFY2023.

e The fourth quarter, our peak season as driven by festive o

occasions such as Lunar New Year and Valentine's Day usually

accounts for the highest quarterly SSS contribution in the year.
The SSS contribution for 4QFY2023 was 32.4%, lower than the
normal levels as business was still on a recovering track.

e As aresult, average SSS contribution in 2HFY2023 amounted to o

approximately 50% of full year SSS, lower than our seasonality

under the normal course of business.

Annual Report 2023
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FETEREEE RNBTES : 2022 B RFZ 85 A 2023 M
FEREEESE

20230 RFENFEREHERIMIAMEE
Te SRR 20230BMFEE=FF -

ENFEEERBENFLBAGSHER T WS
BHMWERET  TEREHEEMBEREFR
= o AW AREBDENRED - 2023 BFE
ENFENREHEER R32.4% - BREFEKT -

F bt - 2023 FIBFE T F a9 T RS 84 S BB
ER2FREHSEELNL0%  ERRMEEEL T
FEMEIKF o
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HONG KONG & MACAU OF CHINA AND PEEE - PEIRFIRE IS

OTHER MARKETS

Revenue Z

Revenue by operation model ZZEEXEIFHIEEE
For the year ended 31 March BZ3A31H L FE
(HK$ million B&#&t)

g 5

YoY change
30,000 [ b 84t
25,000 24,229
20,000
15,988
15,000 o
o5 20, 12,006 13,061 a 8.8%
: 10,466
10,000
93.0% " o
9 88.5 a143
87.2% 8a.2% ’ ’ —
5,000 Retail &
0 11.5% 20.9% o
4.8% 7.0% 12.8% 15.8% o ToenEn Wholesale #t2%
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

e |n Hong Kong, Macau and other markets, our retail revenue o
represents sales from self-operated POS, e-commerce and other
direct channels, while wholesale revenue represents sales to
franchisees, sales to retailers and sales from jewellery trading.

e Retail revenue grew 14.3% in FY2023, supported largely by the o
recovering business in Hong Kong. Wholesale revenue shrank
by 20.9%, mainly due to the pandemic which weighted on our
duty-free business in Hainan Province.

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERERWED T

BARER RFARHEMTENTELEERES
TEH ETEBLREMCERRENIHEER  Mit
BEXBAEANERHEEER ATEHHEES
mEKEURELESWIEESR -

EEREBRENE 2023V BFEETELER
BR143% - HBEEHETRD209%  FTEHNE
BEETRMAESEENRIETR
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SSSG

FEHEE R

SSSG of major products FEERFEEHEER

163.7%
°
116.5%
106.2% °
@ °
65.1% 99.2%
® 46.9%
°
15.4% y 10.5%
1.0%
'~ -8.0% o———80 '2'9°/;
\ No—— 745.6%/0 -
° ° ,
11.4%
-19.4%\.//—18.4%
-43.4%
10 20 30 40 10 20 30 20

FY2022

FY2023

Same Store ASP
FEFEHEE
FY2023

Gem-set HK$
jewellery
& 16,500
=] /
(FY2022"": HK$15,500)

Gold HK$

jewellery

= 5,900
products )

HEEHM  (FY2022": HK$4,900)
RES

——
Gem-set, Platinum and
K-gold jewellery

HRERR - HERKESEHH
——

Gold jewellery and products

ESEHMRER

FY2023
SSS volume
SSSG growth
FEEHENE REHENER
Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery TREEH - HE RKEHEH A 12.6% v 11.4%
Gold jewellery and products HoEHMRER a 23.9% v 12.5%
Watches fig3 4 31% A21%
Overall = A 18.3% v 12.1%

(1) Same Store ASP on FY2023 Same Store basis
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(1) RS P9 EIA 2023 B LA E H) [R5 fE 5L
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In Hong Kong and Macau, all product categories witnessed a
positive SSSG in FY2023, growth was particularly strong in
4QFY2023 post the Mainland's border reopening and with the
low base effect.

SSS of gold jewellery and products climbed 23.9% in FY2023,
outperformed other product categories. ASP of the product
category reached HK$6,900 during the financial year, mainly
attributable to an increased share of the gold products sold by
weight, which generally had a higher ASP than the fixed price
gold products. In SSS volume, gold products sold by weight
delivered a remarkable growth, while that of fixed price gold
products experienced a high base resulted from the marketing
campaign launched in the second half of the last financial year.

Meanwhile, gem-set, platinum and k-gold jewellery registered a
SSSG of 12.6% in FY2023. ASP of gem-set jewellery also
leaped to HK$16,500 during the financial year.

Profitability

For the year ended 31 March #iZ3A31H L FE

REB IR - 20230 BFE @ A E MBI R
EHENSBELER - AEROEERREEH
BIET - 2023 FEENFEHIERERRT) -

Bo B REMN 20238 BUEFE K E E 5 S 27T
£239% RBEERHMERER - ZERERIW
FIHEBRAMKFEEZESG69008T TEHR
RESHENTESEMGLLIEM  EFHEE—R
EREEESER - RAEHSTE  KESHED
EeEmBERT MEBRESERMNAL—EH
BEENTHFHEELHTDEHEHRS °

UbSh - KRB - e R KEEHN 2023 M BFE
BIRIEHESRT12.6% KL K - AP RFEANRE
B A T EE TR E 16,5008 T °

BAREN
Hong Kong & Macau of China and other markets FEE#  PEEFIRHE IS

29.4%
[ ]
o\ﬁj% 25.7%
zs.w\‘ °
° °
23.1% 22.1%
—_——
Adjusted gross profit margin &AZENERE
3.9% 5.0% o= o .
. 3-5/-0/_. SG&A as a % to revenue SHERITHAX MGERET L
[}
—_——
Core operating profit margin  ZE&HF R
2021 2022 2023

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERENWEST
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1HFY 2HFY
YoY change YoY change

BREE BREE

F¥zE TuE

(HK$ million) (E8ER) 1HFY2022 2HFY2022 1HFY2023 2HFY2023 El:4 3 B34
Revenue TR 5,636 6,370 5,608 7,453 v 0.5% 4 17.0%
Adjusted gross profit RAREHER 1,437 1,646 1,367 1,995 v 4.9% A 21.2%
Adjusted gross profit margin AR R FEFIR 25.5% 25.8% 24.4% 26.8% v 1.1%pts = 1.0% pts
BE 5% BE5 %

Other income =N 56 54 96 78 A 71.7% 4 43.5%
SG&A SHE RITHAX (1,303) (1,472) (1,329) (1,555) A 2.0% 4 57%
SG&A as a % to revenue HE RITEE S Bk 23.1% 23.1% 23.7% 20.9% 4~ 0.6% pts w 2.2 pts
e =R 185 5 % B85 %

Core operating profit FEE R 190 228 134 518 v 29.3% 4~127.1%
Core operating profit margin FELEFFER 3.4% 3.6% 2.4% 6.9% ¥ 1.0%pts = 3.3% pts
1885 % 1BE 5%

e In FY2023, adjusted gross profit margin stayed at 25.7%, mainly o 2023WBFE - KFBEHNENERREFE25.7%

due to an improved like-for-like margin offset the impact from a

higher sales contribution from gold jewellery and products.

e SG&A ratio decreased by 100 basis points to 22.1% due to °

favourable operating leveraging. Fixed in nature expenses

contributed approximately 65% to SG&A expenses in FY2023
(FY2022: approximately 65%).

e Core operating profit of HK$652 million was recorded in FY2023. °

Its corresponding margin was up 150 basis points to 5.0%, as a

result of an improved SG&A ratio.

Annual Report 2023
2023 F 5

TEAREMENERZFEHETHSEMRERD
HEERBMNTE -

P&y

S

HERGE

HERITRF L E T 1008
22.1% < 20238 B E - B E M E A

& M 1T BB X 4965% (20228 B F & ¢ 4

R2023 R FESIS T EL L EN662A8ET -
EEREERITHRAZ L ENNE - AR X
EF 150 EEFZES.0% ©
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SG&A

SG&A to revenue ratio SHERITERIGEEELE
For the year ended 31 March BZ3A31HLFE
(HK$ million B&#&t)

28.1%
°
N;J% 22.1%
—
4,000
3,000 2,938 2775 2,884
11.3% 9.9% 10.2%
2,000
0.1% 0.1%
§5.2% 4.6%
1,000 :
1.7% 1.5%
1.2% 1.1%
0.5% 0.4%
4.4% 4.0%
0
2022 2023

Hong Kong and Macau of China

Staff costs and related expenses BEIRARERMR

For the year ended 31 March BZ3A318LFE
(HK$ million B&#7t)

11.8% )
0\10.9% 11.2%
o——©
1,500
1,190
1,048 1,050
1,000
35.2%
31.8% 38.3%
500
56.9%
61.3% 54.7%
0 L 6.9% N 71% 7.8%
2021 2022 2023

(1) Employees in production function excluded

YoY change
El:43(4

a 3.9%

YoY change
B354

A 13.3%

A 4.4%

A 18.0%

A 25.2%

(2) Other staff related expenses mainly included staff messing, medical care, educational expenses, etc.

e \We reviewed and revised the salary structure during the

financial year to attract and retain talent. Overall staff costs and

related expenses was up by 13.3%, in-line with the year-on-year

change of retail revenue in the segment.

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERERWED T

HERTHAX

—_—
As a % of respective revenue FTEHHRIE £EEBE S Lt

|

Staff costs and related expenses & T AR AR X

|

Concessionaire fees EAES B

I

Rental expenses &R

|

Depreciation and amortisation (Right-of-use assets, “ROUA")
MERBE (FRAEEE)

I

Depreciation and amortisation (Property, plant and equipment)
RS (W% - BEREE)

L ____ |

Advertising and promotion expenses &% & SER %

I

Packaging materials &2 ¥1%

|
Other SGRA Hfth$4E R ITHEEX

oh B & R R ER P
FY2023

2,620 <+61%

Average number of YoY change
employees!" EIELEE
FHEIHEH

——

As a % of respective revenue Fi{EiHREE 2R S LtE

|

Variable staff costs &) 8 T4
—

Fixed staff costs EE8 T4

I
Other staff related expenses®? Hfth & TiHRIRIZ @

(1) TERELESFINET
(2) EfETHBMYIZBRETREREMN BRENASKES

o HPMNAFMERFEANEMMERTHSEE - LR
MBEBAS - BEEIRAMBERNX A
13.3% @ BOATELXBNRLESH 2 -

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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Lease-related expenses FHEHEAHER™
For the year ended 31 March HZ3A318 Lt FE
(HK$ million B&iBT)

8.3%
°
NB% 5.1%
.\. YoY change
1,000 EE%:24
774
16.6%
597 574 v 3.9%
500 32.6% 30.1%
80.1%
64.8% 67.4%
o 3.3% 2.6% 2.6%
2021 2022 2023

(1) Under IFRS 16 - leases, depreciation and amortisation (ROUA) and finance costs on leases replace
the majority of rental expenses and therefore we combined these three elements for the analysis
of lease-related expenses

e The lease-related expenses dropped by 3.9% during FY2023.
Effect from rental renewal reduction was offset by the low
based ROUA depreciation in FY2022 resulted from the ROUA
impairment made in FY2021. Lease-related expenses ratio
reduced by 70 basis points to 5.1% during the financial year.

e During FY2023, rent concession of HK$33 million was
recognised in other gains.

Annual Report 2023
2023 F#§

—.—
As a % of respective revenue Fi{L AL £EH L

Rental expenses &R %

Depreciation and amortisation (ROUA) &R ##s (EAEEE)

Finance costs on leases A& RIE KA

(1)

REERMBMEENE 16 5% - HE  MERBH(EAREE) KBS
ERADKRRBARLHAZ - RO K =EEE &6 LOETTREMER
[E=ri

2023 FE - HEMBMAX TR3.9% © 2021
VBFENEREEERE 20220 BHFEN
EREEEFERMEKRT - HETEBEES TH
VB APRFEAN - HERBRXLERTET0
fE2F%25.1% °

2023 MFE - HEEERIBABET  CHR
A E A o
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POS network TEIRER
POS movement by store brand" - Hong Kong & Macau of China and other markets

RERRRASHETEREH " - PREE PERMARE DTS

During FY2023

31.3.2021 31.3.2022 2023 BB E 31.3.2023
Total Total Addition Reduction Net Total
As at ® Mgt by #2m e R by
CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY  EXEBHKE 134 133 1 (9) 2 135
Hong Kong, China FEES 79 74 - (8) (8) 66
Macau, China AR 18 18 1 - 1 19
Other markets Hih s 37 41 10 (1) 9 50
HEARTS ON FIRE HEARTS ON FIRE 8 10 - - - 10
SOINLOVE SOINLOVE 1 1 - (1) (1) =
MONOLOGUE MONOLOGUE 3 1 - (1) (1) -
(1) SIS and CIS excluded (1) TRIEEFERENEE
RSV analysis FTEERW
Hong Kong & Macau of China and other markets hEEE - PEIRFREMG TS
RSV by product RESEIPHTEE
8.2%
‘ RSV YoY change
FY2022 FY2023 ZEERL#L
9.4%
[ | [ | Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery 4 57%
KREEZER HERKEEH
Gold jewellery and products & 4 & & & & @ A 18.0%
[ | Watches $#8% v 2.7%
Overall #8& A 12.9%

RSV of gem-set, platinum and K-gold jewellery & - $HERKSHMHTEHE

% of RSV ZEEMGR FY2022 FY2023
Diamond jewellery BAEH 68.4% 71.0%
Other gem-set jewellery EMIREEIR H 14.3% 15.5%
Platinum and K-gold jewellery e kKeE 17.3% 13.5%
56 ‘ Management Discussion and Analysis Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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RSV of gold jewellery and products Z&£EHiREIHNTERE

% of RSV SEEMKR FY2022 FY2023

Weight-based gold products EESEM 68.7% 78.6%

Fixed price gold products EEETEM 19.0% 11.1%

Bullion ESH Sl 12.3% 10.3%
RSV and POS by geography E#EZSTHNTEERTED

10.9%
’ 69.4% FY2023

’ % of POS % of RSV RSV YoY change Net POS movement

BENEL FEEGL FEERLDE BEUFLD

] Hong Kong, China # B &5 A 24.4% v 10

Macau, China /1 B89 v 13.0% al

[ | Other markets E 45 a7.2% a9

e RSV in Hong Kong, Macau and other markets rose by 12.9% in
FY2023, boosted mainly by the recovering business in Hong
Kong. As a result, share of RSV from Hong Kong lifted to almost
70% from 62.8% a year ago.

e Customer traffic at POS in Hong Kong and Macau improved
by 3.3% year-on-year in the financial year, in particular during
the fourth quarter post the Mainland’'s pandemic-control
measures shift.

e |In Hong Kong and Macau, we closed a net of nine POS in
FY2023, primarily in tourist areas such as Tsim Sha Tsui and
Causeway Bay. In other markets, we net opened nine stores,
mainly in Southeast Asia, in order to tap the emerging
opportunities from the retail market growth there.

Annual Report 2023
2023 F#§

2023 FE - BE  RFAREMTISNTEEEY
£129% TERBFBEBEEMTY - Bt &
BOTEENEREFN62.8% LA EELT0% -

BRT BT E R AN BEERE FF3.3% -
K H R R R R B -

2023 BEFE - HELBPVFHMOETER - =
BURRADERIAREEERTE - RM0T5%FHER
OfEIFYE  FEMNREE  WIEBEHTETS
R KA TS o
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Hong Kong and Macau of China

T R EEO

Average quarterly sales!"
(HK$ million B&%ET)

PEEERPEIRM

|

FY2022 average quarterly SSS
2022 EEFHEEREHE
|

FY2023 average quarterly SSS
2023 BFEFHEERIEHE
——

FY2022 quarterly SSS
contribution to annual SSS
202281 U E R [E) 5 SRR
FEREHEFHENER

——

FY2023 quarterly SSS
contribution to annual SSS
20238 E R [E) R SHERR
FEREHEEN SR

31.7 335313
27.8
I275 IZS.1 I I II
10 20 30

Self-operated and franchised POS included for same store calculation;
FY2022 data on FY2023 same store basis

4Q

(1 (1

e The third quarter, being the peak season for the industry as °
driven by Christmas and usually accounted for the highest
quarterly SSS contribution in the year for the Hong Kong and
Macau market.

e Nevertheless, seasonality in both FY2023 and FY2022 deviated °
from the normal course of business. 4QFY2023 SSS
contribution was driven up by the return of Mainland visitation
and bridal demand amid pandemic-control measures shift. While
the new wave of pandemic negatively impacted our business in
4QFY2022 which resulted in a lower quarterly SSS contribution.

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERERWED T

RS ERIEEE RINBTER : 2022 84 Z 85 A 2023 #H
FEREEEGE

E=FEEEERH  BENERES  HEHM
EERBFATSENFTEREHEEHNATRZ

Fim °

ST - 2023 MR E M 2022 IR E R HE BN
RBET RMERXBNTEHMER - 2023HBFE
ENFEREHEEMENZEREET TR
IRE B MAEEFE LTS o M — SRS S A
K202 BRFEENFENEFTRABEEZE -
BERFEREHETHEE -

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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OTHER FINANCIAL REVIEW
H i1 Bt %5 [0l BR

OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES Hab W - Hfth W zs B 8548 LU R H fth

AND OTHER EXPENSES X
2021 2022 2023
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million YoY change
For the year ended 31 March HBE3A3MALEE BEART BEART BEER El:4-314
Other income Ha g A 692 793 733 v 7.6%
Other gains and losses Hib s RIS E 431 171 (318) N/A ~EHA
Other expenses HiFA (664) (95) (88) v 7.5%

e Other income mainly arose from the government grants o HMWATFTERENFPEANMEESESHBET/H
received in Mainland China and Hong Kong, commission B @MW A - EEMBEEE MU A & E AR
income, other income received from franchisees and other BULA o
interest income.

e Other gains and losses mainly represented a net foreign o HiEREEIBREEAREBEZEMESNEN

exchange loss of HK$328 million (FY2022: a net gain HK$138 SEEIB328 E BT (2022 LEE - SF 5138
million) due to the depreciation of RMB and pandemic-related BEBT)REEEENASERIZEEET(2022
rent concession of HK$33 million (FY2022: HK$61 million). BIREE 61 HEESIT) o

e Other expenses mainly represented donation of HK$48 million o HMHYTFE ABRISEE LT (20228 MFE

(FY2022: HK$55 million) and the amortisation of other intangible 55B &E L) R HMER EEHIEA0E 88 (2022
assets of HK$40 million (FY2022: HK$40 million). HRFEE 40EEBL) ©
Annual Report 2023 Other Financial Review ‘ 59
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INTEREST INCOME, FINANCE COSTS AND FIBWA - MERARHIE

TAXATION
2021 2022 2023

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million YoY change
For the year ended 31 March BZ3A3MALEE BEET BEET BEER E1:4-X(4
Interest income from banks AT B A 82 70 228 a 226.4%
Finance costs on bank borrowings IRITE KRB E AR (132) (68) (294) 4 335.4%
Finance costs on gold loans =S EEMEKAE (197) (234) (252) a7.7%
Finance costs on lease liabilities HEEBERmEKRK (48) (36) (39) a 8.3%
Taxation FR1E (2,219) (2,103) (1,957) v 6.9%

e |nterest income from banks increased by 226.4%, mainly due to o 2023BHIFE - TEHNEHERMHFHRITFER
a relatively higher average bank deposit balance and interest EER R - BERITRI S AL IN226.4% -
rate during FY2023.

e Finance costs on bank borrowings increased by 335.4%, mainly o 2023BHKFE TZHMNBHBRSHNTHRITER
due to a relatively higher average bank borrowing interest rate = BERITE KRB E K AIZ N 335.4% ©
during FY2023.

60 ‘ Management Discussion and Analysis
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RETURN ON EQUITY

generating profits from each unit of shareholder equity.

BRAERE

e \We use return on equity (“ROE") to measure the efficiency of o BMEARAEREE QTR TR ER T

BRI -

e Net profit margin decreased to 5.8%. ROE was down by 340 o FHEMEREES5.8% o B[R K T & 340 & 24

basis points to 16.5% while the equity multiplier increased.

ROE
BRAERZE

0.8%

Net profit margin FiaAl=
(FY2022: 7.0%)

/F

Net profit %7l

Net profit i%ii&F]

Total equity #4828

Revenue & %35

Annual Report 2023
2023 F#§

16.5%

1 11 times &

Assets turnover & & JF#
(FY2022: 1.1 times )

q\

Revenue %35

Total assets & E

T£216.5% -

if 25 (BRI BT -

¥ 3.4% pts EEH D2
(FY2022: 19.9%)

2 ' 6 times &

Equity multiplier #E&ZSfZ
(FY2022: 2.5 times 1)

q\

Total assets & & &
Total equity 284858

Other Financial Review
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INVENTORY BALANCES AND TURNOVER

PERIOD
Inventory balances by product” REZEISHEFEELEY
As at 31 March W3A31H
(HK$ million B&&T)
59,172

60,000 57,073

50,000

42,792 .
40,000 52.2% s
30,000 56.2%

20,000
43.5%
10,000
% 2.9% 2.8%
0 - 419 | o
2021 2022 2023

(4]

Packaging materials excluded

YoY change
El>%-214

A 3.7%

A 6.6%

a 0.5%

v 0.2%

Inventory turnover period by category®? {RiERIE| S HIHE EER

For

the year ended 31 March §Z3A318LLFE

(Day X&)

450

400

350

300

250

200

150

100

50

312
294
272

234 221
213

73

2021 2022 2023

YoY change
[Eil:4-5(4

a 22 days X

a 8days X

a 14 days X

(2) Being inventory balances, excluding packaging materials, at the end of the reporting period divided

by cost of goods sold for the year, multiplied by 365 or 366

Inventory balances, excluding packaging materials, increased by
3.7% and reached HK$59,172 million as at 31 March 2023.

Inventory turnover period prolonged by 22 days when compared

to that of FY2022.

e As at 31 March 2023, approximately HK$15,570 million or
26.3% of our total inventory balances were held by franchised
POS (31 March 2022: approximately HK$13,310 million or

23.3% were held by franchised POS).

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERERWED T

EFEERREEH

L ____ |

Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery
KREER  HERKSEE

|

Gold jewellery and products E€ iR EmR
|

Watches &k

(1) TREBEMH

L ____ |
Finished goods 6 F

|
Raw materials R#1%}

(2) BUREMATEER (TRERRY)RIAFNHERA - BILA3653366

o MN2023F3A31H  FEEK(TEBHEEEDH)
FH37%%E59,17288ET °

o FHEAHEHR2022VMFELER22K -

o M2023F3A31E  MBZEHFARMEFE
#ER#15,670 B & B T3 26.3% (20224 3 A 31
B: MMEZTEHSANIZI0E EETRH
23.3%) °

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AREBHREEEER DA



e |f the inventory balances held by franchisees were excluded,

inventory turnover period in FY2023 would have reduced to 216

days (FY2022: 209 days).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

WEMBREFAENFTERS 20230 RFENTE
FEEAE THE216 K (2022 IMFE : 209K) °

BAXRE

Increase

% to % to (decrease)
31.3.2022 total equity 31.3.2023 total equity i1 (K<) Denominated Interest rate
HK$ million  {H#EZ %  HKS$ million {EEZFMAE  HKS million currency!” structure!”
As at iy HEBT Bk HEBT BAL HEBT FHEEED AMERLEHO
Non-current assets  JERENEE 9,612 27.8% 10,074 30.2% 462 N/ANEA  NATEA
Inventories S 57,254 165.7% 59,290 177.7% 2,036 N/AT@EA NATEA
Bank deposits and  $R{TFH LIRS 14,942 43.2% 11,734 35.2% (3,208) Mainly Mainly
cash equivalents?  Z(E¥©@ HKD, RMB variable
and USD interest
FER rate
I FER
ARB R BRI

ETT

Total borrowings®  #EzH© 24,786 71.7% 20,941 62.8% (3,845)
Bank borrowings RITER 9,065 26.2% 5,855 17.6% (3,210)  HKD # 7T Variable
interest
rate
R EDFI
Gold loans =EEEE 15,721 455% 15,086 45.2% (635)  RMB and Fixed
usD interest
AREBR rate
EP & 7 A &
Net debt® FE1EFEEW 9,844 28.5% 9,207 27.6% (637) N/ATEA  N/ATEA
Working capital® BEES O 28,496 82.5% 26,245 78.7% (2,251) N/ATEAE NATERA
Total equity B 34,555 100.0% 33,360 100.0% (1,195) N/ATEAE NAT@EA

(1) Information about denominated currency and interest rate structure related to the condition as at

31 March 2023
(2) Bank balances and cash and short-term bank deposits included

(3) As at 31 March 2023, bank borrowings amounted to HK$4,367 million and all the gold loans would
be matured within 12 months while bank borrowings amounted to HK$188 million would be
matured in more than 1 year but not exceeding 2 years and HK$1,300 million would be matured in

more than 2 years but not exceeding 5 years

E

(5) Being net current assets

Annual Report 2023
2023 F 5

Aggregate of bank borrowings, gold loans, net of bank deposits and cash equivalents

BRFEES AR EEBNERR2023F3 731 HNER

BIERITESRR

Re RERRITIER

M2023%F3A31R 4367 ABBLHRITEALMEESEERR 1218
AREE - M1s8BBETMRITEFBRBB I FERZR 2FREHR
1,300 BEAETHREB 2 FETZRN6FANEIH

RITEFK  ®@S

REBREFE

EEZEBERBITERRRSEED)
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e \We principally meet our working capital and other liquidity

requirements through a combination of capital contributions,
including cash flows from operations, bank borrowings and gold
loans. Gold loans are also used for economic hedge purpose to
mitigate the financial impact of the price fluctuations in the
Group's gold inventories.

The Group's daily operation was mainly financed by operating
cash flows, and mainly relied on short-term borrowings to satisfy
inventory financing needs during peak seasons, working capital
for future expansion plans and unexpected needs. The Group has
not experienced any difficulties in repaying its borrowings.

e The Group's income and expenditure were mostly denominated

in HKD and RMB, while its assets and liabilities were mostly
denominated in HKD, RMB and USD. No hedging instrument is
deployed against RMB fluctuation as most of the daily receipts
and payments for our Mainland China operations are both made
in RMB, which do not pose a substantive currency exposure to

our business.

It is our treasury policy to maintain high liquidity in response to
the requirement of operating cash flows; and to maintain
financial prudence by not engaging in highly leveraged or
speculative derivative products.

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERENWEST

BMEEEERELLHERE ROTEFEES
EEMNEARRENZEESREMRDESTH
Ko B EETBELERRBNWIVREREEE
SHEEBRNINTBTE

AEBAEXEBHFTECTIERALERERE -
NeXTBAEHEERREERNTFEESHR
ARBERABAFLEES NIEFZIOFTFR - A
SEREEER EIL B ERRE -

AEBZWARAZETEUNETRAREKIE @
EERBEREENET ARBRETHE- H
REMPERNBAERBEEENRIAZUAARE
BE S HRMANEBTEBREANEERR
MABHHARE KD BERMEHTA -

BMNEBBREERFBRSNRBES - UEN
LERSREBNEFSR ANETRENMBERE
BRPRhEERRIEEUEITEER
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ARAEHREEEERAR



EFFECT OF RMB FLUCTUATION

As part of our business operation is in Mainland China, the
fluctuation in RMB would have some impact on our performance.

Transactions entered by the Hong Kong entities but
denominated in RMB, including the inter-group transactions
with the Mainland China subsidiaries, are converted into HKD,
the functional currency of the Group, initially using the spot rate
at the date of transaction and the unsettled transactions are
retranslated at closing exchange rate at the balance sheet date.
Such translation differences between the spot rate and closing
exchange rate are recognised in profit or loss, negatively
affecting our profit for the year when RMB depreciated.

Exchange difference also arises when i) incomes and expenses
of the Mainland China segment are translated into HKD, the
presentation currency of the Group, at the average exchange
rate, while the corresponding assets and liabilities are translated
at closing exchange rate and ii) the change in closing exchange
rates at the current financial year of the net assets of the
Mainland China segment from the closing rates at the previous
financial year. Such differences are recognised in the translation
reserve in equity.

The table below illustrates the fluctuation of RMB and the

impact on our financial performance:

FY2023 Closing exchange rate YoY change
Wi EERF LML

RMB to HKD (0)

ARERET v 7- 4 /0

AR

R E
MR G H D R T B A - AR
DURMORABRETHE -

FERERAAARBHENR S (S5 E P B R K
BARETHEEERS) @R HGERNREEE
EHBET  AREENNEEE  MAREED
RHUANGNETETREERNSHHE - REEX
ST E Ry E 2 RNE EEEEPE%W AR
RESHRMNFRENERXEETZE

Ubsh - B IR 1) o B A 3 B A0 M SR T 19
[ERB|ELET NAKEENEE  MEENE
ERBERETERBE  Li) PEABS EHNE

BB A B IR 6 2 9 A T B R 8L M B B R Y
WHEXERES - EUEZRRNERTNREFEE
RIERBAE

ROBIGNRARE RIS AR EEH M B KRR

==
2

Average exchange rate YoY change

EHERRE L

v 9.9%

2022 2023
Constant Constant
exchange exchange
As reported rate basis As reported rate basis
®ZEE ®ZEE
For the year ended 31 March HZEZ3HAMHLEE T2 ERTHE T2 ERTE
Revenue YoY change BEEAE LR a410% a337% v 4.3% a 0.5%
Core operating profit YoY change FTELEHFE L& a 15.9% A93% v 5.6% v 0.5%
Changes in inventory balances FEEBEL a331% a300% a 3.6% a 8.7%
Changes in bank deposits and cash equivalents $R171FEZ MRS ZEME L Aal1477% a143.7% w215% w156%
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CASH FLOWS AND OTHERS

Cash flows

He

mERHA
Beng

2021 2022 2023
HK$ million HK$ million HKS$ million
For the year ended 31 March HE3IAZMBLEE BEAT BHEAT BHEABT
Operating cash flows before movements BEEBSEBHCKERERE 11,572 11,984 11,619
in working capital
Leases paid™ EfEgE® (1,182) (1,017) (953)
Net cash used in inventories? FERABSFRA (4,669) (4,163) (6,304)
Net cash from other operating Hih & & RS IR & F5 1,764 5,628 3,794
activities
Capital expenditure BRI (839) (1,531) (1,982)
Pro forma free cash flows BEERRESRE 6,646 10,901 6,174
Net change in bank borrowings SRITERFE (5,016) 2,641 (3,216)
Dividends paid BRRE (2,853) (4,689) (5,079)
Other movements Hih 36 57 (1,126)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and RERBASEZEYIEMORD) FHE (1,187) 8,910 (3,247)
cash equivalents
Major cash flows items for FY2023 2023 EEXEREFEIER
(HK$ million B&87T)
Pro forma free cash flows fZHHREHE Operating ca_sh flow_s beforf-:
movements in working capital
46,174 EEESRHRI2LERERE
|
Leases paid" BAFHEN
30,000 e . .
11,619 Net cash used in inventories?
FEFARSEE?
26,000 oo 3794 8 #
22,000 .‘ Net cash from other
1,982 ' operating activities
18,000 6.304 Hitt Q& EFB SRR
14,942 ! 3,216 . — .
14,000 11,685 Capital expenditure B3Iz
10,000 5,079 1,126 Net decrease in bank borrowings
6,000 RITERRR D
|
2,000 Dividends paid BATRE
o Other movements Hfth 5 &)
As at R As at A
31.3.2022 31.3.2023
(1) With adoption of IFRS 16, leases paid was included in financing activities (1) HOEBTBRELENSE165%%  CHEEFAREED
(2) Net cash used in inventories included net change in inventories and repayment of gold loans (2) FEMBRBRSFHEBEFESZYREREGEE

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERERWED T

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

e The Group's capital expenditure incurred during FY2023
amounted to HK$1,982 million (FY2022: HK$1,531 million).

Capital expenditure by nature ¥&MHEEIFHEREXZ
For the year ended 31 March BZ3A31HLFE
(HK$ million B&#&t)

2000 1,982
1,600 1,631
1,200 74.8%
839
800 89.5%
o
400 88.0%
21.0%
0 i 4.8% . 3.8% 4.1%
2021 2022 2023

Capital expenditure by function EDIEEEIS B REX
For the year ended 31 March Z3A31HILFE
(HK$ million B&i&7t)

2,000 1982
21.3%
1,600 1,531
I 8.3%
1,200
839 60.4%
800 - 8.1%
400
2.9% 4.8%
2.3% 19.3% 13.5%
0 15.5%
2021 2022 2023

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

e The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at
31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

e Details of the Group's capital commitment as at 31 March 2023
and 31 March 2022 are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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o AEEN2023FHRFENEAMZH1,982HEE
(2022 BAX4FE - 1,631 A&ETT) ©

I

Furniture, fixtures and equipment and leasehold improvements
HH - £BRBENEEYERE

|

Land and buildings and construction in progress

T REFMERTR

——

Plant and machinery and motor vehicles

PR R HeBR A=

L ____ |
Projects THH

|

POS ZEH
|
Productions £ &
I

Offices A E

HAER

o AREEM2023F3HA31H &20224F3 831 BT &(E
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEAE@/MN

Executive Directors $i{TE$E

Responsibilities B

1 Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry*, GBM, GBS
(Chairman)
HR46E 1 (GBM, GBS)(EF)

-

2 Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy* (Vice-chairman) @ @
B IE St R E )

3 Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia* (Vice-chairman)
BEZLZTHEIER)

rcscfsrc

4 Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent (Managing Director)
HERELE(ESRLIE)

oD

5 Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian*, JP
EERIE L (UP)

6 Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson*

ERSRIR S Y

7 Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton @
EPIRER e 4

8 Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter
REmiE

9 Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby
BiRBEE

sc)

Strategic direction and overall performance of the Group
REFERRE G 3 RBRRE

Strategic direction, performance and corporate transformation of
the Group
REBEERT I - RERPERE

Strategic direction, performance and corporate transformation of
the Group
REBXRBGH  RERDEHRE

Overall corporate management, strategy and operations of
the Group

REBEERMEEE  BEKEEE

Strategic investment and smart retail

RERENESETE

Bank and landlord relationship management
RITMETHRER

Financial management

B E I

Business in Hong Kong and Macau of China and other markets
REEE - PEDRFIRE M5 E

Development of individual brands, including ENZO, SOINLOVE
and MONOLOGUE
A @EERE - BIEENZO - SOINLOVE MMONOLOGUE

Independent Non-executive Directors I FEHITES

Responsibilities Bi&

Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon
BRI

11 Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey, GBS, JP
MigEE %A (GBS, JP)

@ )
*®

Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED”, or “INEDs”
in the plural) serve a significant role in the Board to bring
independent judgment on the performance, development
and risk management of the Group. As chairmen or members
of the Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee,

12 Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond, SBS, JP @ Audit Committee and/ or Sustainability Committee, they also
fliE B E 1 (SBS, JP) undertake detailed governance work under the respective
o terms of reference of the committees.
13 Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily @ @
HrELL BUNNTEEREFENREEERE  RAKENRE BB
T et A = ° 4 18 S5 & . SE & . =
14 Mr. Chia Pun-Kok. Herbert o RERERGTHIER - (FARAEAR HWZA® FHE
o gk XAHBEERZEGNIFERINE AT REZEES
MHENBEETABNERTIE-
15 Ms. Fung Wing-Yee, Sabrina @
HBkER L
NC = Nomination Committee member RC = Remuneration Committee member AC = Audit Committee member
REEEGKE FHESEKE EREEGKE
SC = Sustainability Committee member STC = Strategy and Transformation Committee member * Committee Chairman
ARERREEEKE AR EEEERE ZEEEE
# Five of our directors are family members related to the Company’s major shareholders. Apart from them, all other directors of the Company are not related to each other.

REEERAXRATERREBORERE - Rt 2o ARRMAEMEE 2 MLREE -

Governance
BA

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, GBM, GBS

Aged 76, joined the Group in 1971, was appointed as Chairman
and an executive Director in July 2011. He is also a member of the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Strategy and Transformation Committee of the Company.
Dr. Henry Cheng is responsible for the strategic direction and overall
performance of the Group.

Dr. Cheng is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. He is
also a director of several substantial shareholders of the Company,
including Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited, Cheng Yu Tung
Family (Holdings Il) Limited and Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited.

In addition, Dr. Cheng is chairman and an executive director of
New World Development Company Limited and NWS Holdings
Limited, and also chairman and a non-executive director of FSE
Lifestyle Services Limited and i-CABLE Communications Limited,
all of which are listed public companies in Hong Kong.

He was a non-executive director of DTXS Silk Road Investment
Holdings Company Limited until his resignation on 19 March 2021;
and chairman and a non-executive director of New World
Department Store China Limited until his resignation with effect
from 13 May 2021, both of which are listed public companies in
Hong Kong.

Dr. Cheng is chairman of the Advisory Council for The Better Hong
Kong Foundation. He was a Standing Committee Member of the
Twelfth Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference.

Dr. Henry Cheng is the father of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian and
Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia, an uncle of Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy
and a cousin of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson.
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R4 1E L (GBM, GBS)

BETOH - R197T1F MAKLE 201147 AHE
ERERRAGTES - LERAAAREEAS  F
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HETARNEEETHBARES - MbERAARZE
FZ %% Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited -
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings Il) Limited
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited FiE =

o BELEERUERERARARTRMEIEZEE
ERAFEBHFATES  URERETFRBERL
ANEREEBAERARIERIFNTES  ZF
REGREE LT RARAF -

b BEERNEOEMHBEREERBRAFENTE
= HEE2021F3A190EE : RttABETEHEA
RABEFEFRIFNITESE - EE2021F6H13HFHE
MELDREE LT RRAF -
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VICE CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy

Aged 45, joined the Group in 2007, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011 and became Vice-chairman and executive
Director in June 2022. Mr. Conroy Cheng is responsible for
strategic direction, performance and corporate transformation of
the Group. He is co-chairman of the Sustainability Committee and
a member of the Nomination Committee and the Strategy and
Transformation Committee of the Company. Mr. Cheng is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Cheng has been in the jewellery industry for about 15 years,
with extensive knowledge of the global diamond market. He is
currently a member of the executive committee of the Diamond
Federation of Hong Kong, China and a board member of the World
Diamond Council.

Mr. Cheng is a non-executive director (re-designated from
executive director with effect from 1 December 2022) of New
World Development Company Limited, a listed public company in
Hong Kong.

Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from The
Western University (formerly known as The University of Western
Ontario). Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cheng worked at a Hong
Kong-based investment management company as a corporate

finance executive.

Mr. Conroy Cheng is a nephew of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry and
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson, and a cousin of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian
and Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia.

Governance
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BEA55 0 12007 F MAKEE - 201147 AEE
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HITEF(HATEEFRE 820225128101
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Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia

Aged 42, joined the Group in April 2019 as a non-executive
Director, re-designated as an executive Director in April 2021, and
became Vice-chairman and executive Director in June 2022.
Ms. Cheng is responsible for strategic direction, performance and
corporate transformation of the Group. She is also co-chairman of
the Sustainability Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Strategy and Transformation Committee of
the Company.

Ms. Sonia Cheng is the chief executive officer of Rosewood Hotel
Group and an executive director of New World Development
Company Limited, a listed public company in Hong Kong. She is
also an independent non-executive director of The Hongkong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, and an independent director
of Primavera Capital Acquisition Corporation, a company listed on
the New York Stock Exchange.

Ms. Cheng serves as a member of the Hong Kong Tourism Board
and chairman of its Marketing and Business Development
Committee. She is a council member of The Chinese University of
Hong Kong and chairman of the advisory committee of the School
of Hotel and Tourism Management at The Chinese University of
Hong Kong. Ms. Cheng is a member of Human Resources Planning
Commission and member of The Standing Committee on
Disciplined Services Salaries and Conditions of Service of the
HKSAR. She is also a member of the board of director of Mother's
Choice, a director of Jing Yuan Charity Foundation Ltd., a member
of the Y. Elites Association, and a member of the Hong Kong
United Youth Association. Furthermore, Ms. Cheng is a member of
the Fourteenth Guangzhou Municipal Committee of The Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference of the People’s Republic
of China.

Before joining New World Development Company Limited,
Ms. Cheng worked in a major international investment bank and a
global US private equity firm specialising in real estate investments.
She holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Applied Mathematics with
a concentration in Economics from Harvard University.

Ms. Cheng is the daughter of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, the sister of
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian, a cousin of Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy
and a niece of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent

Aged 67, joined the Group in 1977, was appointed as Managing
Director of the Company in July 2011. He is responsible for the
Group's overall corporate management, strategy and operations.
He is a member of the Sustainability Committee and the Strategy
and Transformation Committee of the Company. Mr. Wong is also

a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Wong has over 45 years’ diverse experience in the jewellery
industry with a proven track record in business development in
China as well as in corporate operations and management. He
has been feted with the highest accolade of the JNA Awards
2020, the “Lifetime Achievement Award”, for his outstanding
lifetime achievements and contributions to the global jewellery
community. Mr. Wong was also awarded Director of The Year
Awards 2015 by The Hong Kong Institute of Directors in
December 2015. He was ranked the 1st place as the “Best
CEO" by Institutional Investors 2022 All-Asia Executive Team
Rankings, in Asia (ex-Mainland China) in the Consumer/
Discretionary sector, combined vote type; was recognised Best
IR by Chairman/ CEO by Hong Kong Investor Relations
Association in 2022; and has also been named as “Asia’s Best
CEO (Investor Relations)” by Corporate Governance Asia, an
authoritative regional journal on corporate governance, at its
Asian Excellence Awards for five consecutive years from 2017
to 2021.

Mr. Wong is dedicated to giving back to the community and the
industry through his participation in public or non-profit
organisations. He serves as a member of the 2023 Fair
Organising Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development
Council for its Hong Kong International Jewellery Show and
Hong Kong International Diamond, Gem and Pearl Show, a
council member of The Hong Kong Management Association,
chairman of the Jewellers’ and Goldsmiths’ Association of Hong
Kong, chairman of the supervising committee of the Hong Kong
& Kowloon Jewellers" & Goldsmiths' Employees’ Association, a
permanent honorary president of the Kowloon Gold Silver and
Jewel Merchants’ Staff Association, a board member of
Diamonds Do Good, and a board member of CIBJO, the World
Jewellery Confederation. He is also president of the executive
committee 2022/2024 of Youth Outreach.

Mr. Wong is also an independent non-executive director of Crystal
International Group Limited, which is a listed public company in
Hong Kong.

Governance
E /Cl

PITESE

HRERE

RE6TwE MI977FMAKXEE - 20N F7AEZ
TARRRESRLRE E§a$%l%§‘%ﬁ¥%@ .
HEEALSE MEARAAIFEEEZESRERR
fﬂﬁﬁlié,\aﬂiﬁ";ﬁfjﬁﬂiﬁjm$%. BT /8§
AIMES -

HAEERKEBTERBAISFETLER  EHEME
BHBREGCELEENERAAHELEARNE - thiE
2020 F EEEEINAKREEN [ EH R E] 2K
E txi'%%ﬁrﬁlﬁtﬂﬁiiﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂB?—é%%%ﬁ{’ﬁﬁ
WER - BEAEME2016F 12 AKBAEBESE
HEMI2010FEHRLEEFE] - ’r!ﬂ%‘tlnstltutlonal
Investor 2022 4 [ All-Asia Executive Team #E 171
TN E A3t @ (Brrp B KRR ) U TR IEE M RIERE T
B BRT A [ RETHEE ] SIEEERE— 12022
FREERREEBERR SRR [ REREERR
(EF/TBEH) ] REBEMEEGEBMERCEMN
BEER)N2017FE2021 FRP M TN B oA LE
F S ELFRERAIDMNEETRAER(RES
BAR) ] -

BEALEBRSSENHSFLFAKES B D
BHENER - MWRETEEEIZIERBEBHE
ERERZSERERL BOLRKEN2023FEHE
E2LE AFEREEMSEESELE  ABKE
BHEESTIRE BAKEEMHEXECESEE N
REEMEXEEXKERES R Diamonds Do Good
BEERE  URERKREEMHASECIBJOEFS
KB o T RIHE1L2022/2024FEHTEEEE R

BERLCRREBEREEERARBIIFNTES

FZRFIREE LT RRAF -

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
ARAEHREEEERAR



Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian, SBS, JP

Aged 43, joined the Group in 2007, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011. Dr. Adrian Cheng is responsible for the
strategic investment and smart retail of the Group. He is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Dr. Cheng is an executive vice-chairman and chief executive officer
of New World Development Company Limited, overseeing the
strategic direction for its property development and investment
activities. He is also an executive director of NWS Holdings
Limited, chairman and a non-executive director of New World
Department Store China Limited, chairman and a non-executive
director of Arta TechFin Corporation Limited, and a non-executive
director and a co-chairman of Meta Media Holdings Limited
(appointed on 16 February 2023), all of which are listed public
companies in Hong Kong. He was a non-executive director of New
Century Healthcare Holding Co. Limited and Giordano International
Limited, both of which are public companies in Hong Kong, until
his resignation on 1 June 2022 and 1 December 2022, respectively.

Dr. Cheng serves as a member of the 14th National Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of The
People’s Republic of China, a vice-president of All-China General
Chamber of Industry and Commerce, the chairman of the Mega
Arts and Cultural Events Committee, a board member of the Hong
Kong Financial Services Development Council and a non-official
member of the Task Force on Promoting and Branding Hong Kong.
He is the chairman of New World Group Charity Foundation
Limited, the vice chairman and group chief executive officer of CTF
Education Group, the honorary chairman of K11 Art Foundation, the
founder of The WEMP Foundation, and the chairman of China
Young Leaders Foundation. He was acknowledged by Fortune as
one of “40 Under 40" global business stars and a “Young Global
Leader” by the World Economic Forum in 2012. Dr. Cheng is a
Justice of Peace appointed by the Government of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region since 2016 and was awarded the
Silver Bauhinia Star in 2022. He was made an "“Officier de I'Ordre
des Arts et des Lettres” by the French Government in 2017, and
an "Officier de I'Ordre National du Mérite" in 2022.

Dr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree (cum laude) from
Harvard University and received the Honorary Doctorate of
Humanities by the Savannah College of Art and Design in 2014. He
was conferred an Honorary Fellowship by Lingnan University in
2014, and an Honorary University Fellowship by the University of
Hong Kong in 2022. Dr. Cheng worked in a major international bank
from September 2003 to April 2006 prior to joining the Group, and
has substantial experience in corporate finance.

Dr. Adrian Cheng is the son of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, the brother
of Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia, a cousin of Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy
and a nephew of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson.
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Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson

Aged 64, joined the Group in 1979, was appointed as a
non-executive Director in July 2011 and re-designated as an executive
Director in April 2019. Mr. Wilson Cheng is responsible for the
Group's bank and landlord relationship management. He is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Cheng is chairman of the Supervisory Committee of The Chinese
Gold and Silver Exchange Society. He has over 40 years' experience
in administration and finance in jewellery retail business. He holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from the University of Hawaii,
Honolulu.

Mr. Wilson Cheng is a cousin of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, and
an uncle of Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy, Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong,
Adrian and Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia.
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Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton

Aged 48, joined the Group in 2004, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011. Mr. Hamilton Cheng is the Chief Financial
Officer responsible for the Group's financial management,
corporate governance and investor relations. Mr. Cheng is a
member of the Strategy and Transformation Committee of the
Company. He also serves as a joint company secretary of the
Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree in
Professional Accountancy from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. He is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a Fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a Chartered Financial Analyst. He completed The
Prince of Wales's Business & Sustainability Programme designed
by the University of Cambridge Institute for Sustainability
Leadership and obtained Executive Diploma in Corporate
Governance and Sustainability Directorship from The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors in 2018.

Mr. Cheng is currently a council member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Directors and a member of the Financial Reporting Review Panel
of the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council in Hong Kong.

Mr. Cheng was ranked the 1% place in the “Best CFO" category in
Institutional Investor’'s 2022 All-Asia Executive Team rankings, the
Rest of Asia, Consumer/ Discretionary sector, combined vote type.
He was recognised Best IR by CFO by Hong Kong Investor
Relations Association in 2022. Mr. Cheng was also awarded
Director of The Year Awards 2015 by The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors in December 2015. He has also been named as “Asia’s
Best CFO (Investor Relations)” by Corporate Governance Asia, an
authoritative regional journal on corporate governance, at its Asian

Excellence Awards for five consecutive years from 2017 to 2021.
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Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter

Aged 58, joined the Group in 1985, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011. Mr. Peter Suen is responsible for the Group's
business in Hong Kong and Macau of China and other markets. He
is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Suen has been in the jewellery industry for 38 years. He is a
member of the executive committee of The Jewellers’ And
Goldsmiths” Association of Hong Kong, the executive committee
of the Hong Kong Retail Management Association, Hong Kong
Qualifications Framework Jewellery Industry Training Advisory
Committee and the executive committee of Youth Outreach.
Mr. Suen holds an Executive Master's degree in Business
Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby

Aged 48, joined the Group in 1999, was appointed as an executive
Director in January 2016. Mr. Bobby Liu is responsible for the
development of individual brands of the Group, including ENZO,
SOINLOVE and MONOLOGUE, as well as that of the Group's
watch business in Mainland China. He is also a member of the
Sustainability Committee. Mr. Liu is a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Liu has over 20 years of experience in retail business and
operational management. He is a member of the Yantian District
Committee of The Chinese People's Political Consultative
Conference in Shenzhen, vice chairman of the Federation of
Industry and Commerce of Yantian District, Shenzhen Municipal,
vice chairman of the council of Shenzhen Performance Excellence
Management Foundation, and a member's representative of SEE
Foundation.

Mr. Liu holds a Master of Business Administration degree from
The Western University (formerly known as The University of
Western Ontario) and a Bachelor of Science degree in Computer
Mathematics from Carleton University.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon

Aged 73, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in November 2011 and is chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Gordon Kwong is a Fellow member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Kwong was a Partner
of PriceWaterhouse from 1984 to 1998, an independent member
of the Council of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange from 1992 to
1997, during which, he had acted as convener of both the
Compliance Committee and the Listing Committee.

Mr. Kwong is an independent non-executive director of Agile Group
Holdings Limited, Henderson Investment Limited, Henderson Land
Development Company Limited, FSE Lifestyle Services Limited
and COSCO Shipping International (Hong Kong) Company Limited,
all of which are listed public companies in Hong Kong. He is also an
independent non-executive director of Piraeus Port Authority SA (a
company listed on the Athens Stock Exchange) and Shanghai
Commercial Bank Limited. Mr. Kwong was an independent non-
executive director of China Power International Development
Limited and NWS Holdings Limited, until his retirement on 3 June
2021 and 21 November 2022, respectively.
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Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey, GBS, JP

Aged 71, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in November 2011 and is chairman of the Nomination Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee and the Audit
Committee of the Company.

Mr. Jeffrey Lam is an executive director of Hong Kong Aerospace
Technology Group Limited, and an independent non-executive
director of C C Land Holdings Limited, China Overseas Grand
Oceans Group Limited, Wynn Macau, Limited, CWT International
Limited, i-CABLE Communications Limited, Wing Tai Properties
Limited, Analogue Holdings Limited, and CSC Holdings Limited
(formerly known as China Strategic Holdings Limited), all of which
are listed public companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. Lam is a non-official member of the Executive Council of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and a member of the
Legislative Council in Hong Kong. He also holds several other public
and community service positions, including being a general committee
member of the Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce, an
honorary member of the Court of The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University, and a director of the board of Heifer Hong Kong.
Mr. Lam was a member of the National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, and a director of Hong
Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited (until June 2022).

Mr. Lam holds a Bachelor Degree in mechanical engineering from
Tufts University in the United States. He has over 40 years of
experience in the toy industry and is currently the managing
director of Forward Winsome Industries Limited, which is engaged
in toy manufacturing.
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Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond, SBS, JP

Aged 73, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in November 2011 and is chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee and Audit
Committee of the Company.

Dr. Raymond Or is also chairman and a non-executive director
of CSC Holdings Limited (formerly known as China Strategic
Holdings Limited), and an independent non-executive director of
Regina Miracle International (Holdings) Limited and Playmates
Holdings Limited, all of which are listed public companies in Hong
Kong. He is also an independent non-executive director of Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited.

Dr. Or was a non-executive chairman and a non-executive director
of Esprit Holdings Limited until his resignation on 1 January 2021,
a listed public company in Hong Kong.

Dr. Or holds a bachelor of social sciences degree in economics and
psychology from the University of Hong Kong and was awarded
Honorary University Fellow from The University of Hong Kong in
2009. Dr. Or was awarded an Honorary Doctor of Social Science
from the City University of Hong Kong in 2014 and was conferred
Honorary Fellowship by Hang Seng University of Hong Kong
(formerly known as Hang Seng Management College) in May 2017.
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Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily

Aged 44, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in April 2019 and is a member of the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Sustainability Committee of the

Company.

Ms. Lily Cheng has served in the technology and internet industry
for over 20 years, both as an entrepreneur and as a corporate
executive. She is the founder and an executive director of Hubel
Labs Limited, a software lab developing Al-powered edtech games
and applications. She served as the President of TripAdvisor, APAC
from 2014 to 2016 and held various management roles at
TripAdvisor, Inc. and Expedia, Inc. from 2008 to 2016. She was a
management consultant with The Boston Consulting Group from
2006 to 2008.

Ms. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Engineering and a
Master of Engineering degree from the University of Cambridge and a
Graduate Certificate in Artificial Intelligence from Stanford University.

Ms. Cheng is an independent non-executive director of Swire
Properties Limited and Sunevision Holdings Limited, both of which
are listed public companies in Hong Kong. She is also an
independent non-executive director of Octopus Cards Limited, a
board observer and advisor to HotelBeds Group and a non-
executive member of the Global Council of Herbert Smith
Freehills, LLC..
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Mr. Chia Pun-Kok, Herbert, JP

Aged 57, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in April 2021 and is a member of the Nomination Committee, the
Audit Committee and the Sustainability Committee of the
Company.

Mr. Chia is a Venture Partner of Sequoia Capital China. He has over
ten years of practical experience in big data strategy and application
with unique insights into the future trends of e-commerce. He
joined Alibaba in 2010 and served as the Vice President of Alibaba
(China) Co., Ltd. and the President of Data Committee. During his
tenure with Alibaba, the data team of Alibaba was awarded “China
Excellent IT Team” in the "Excellent Chinese CIO" selection in
2014. Mr. Herbert Chia was rated as “China Top 10 Most
Influential Big Data Entrepreneurs” by the State Information Center
of China in 2017 and also garnered Outstanding Achievement
Award in 2021 Al Golden Goose Awards of China.

Mr. Chia has been making significant contributions in helping to
bring China’s big data industry to a new level and has actively
promoted Hong Kong to become the big data pilot city in The China
Great Bay Area and The Belt and Road. He is currently a member
of Big Data Advisory Group of Beijing Government. In Hong Kong,
he serves as a co-opted member of the Information Technology
Services Committee of the Hospital Authority of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region, board of director of Hong Kong
Science and Technology Parks Corporation, a non-official member
of the Governance Committee of Hong Kong Growth Portfolio, the
Education Commission, the Digital Economy Development
Committee and Vice Chairman of GBA Int'l Info Tech Industry
Association.

Mr. Chia is the Adjunct Professor of the School of Management of
Zhejiang University and the Alibaba Business School, and the
Adjunct Associate Professor of The University of Hong Kong
(Institute for China Business). He is also the author of various best-
selling books including The Big Data and The Nature of Big Data.
He holds an Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA)
degree from Tsinghua University and an EMBA degree from the
Institut Européen d" Administration des Affaires (INSEAD).
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Ms. Fung Wing-Yee, Sabrina

Aged 51, has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director and a member of the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company with effect from 1
December 2022.

Ms. Fung is the group managing director of Fung Retailing Group,
a non-executive director of Convenience Retail Asia Limited,
a listed public company in Hong Kong, and the chief executive
officer of Asia Retail Company Limited, a company with the Fung
Group (a Hong Kong-based multinational group which comprises
major operating groups engaging in trading, logistics, distribution
and retailing) focusing on supporting and growing international
brands in Asia. She also serves as the chair of Wellness Med
Limited, a company under the Fung Group that serves the growing
global health and wellness market.

Ms. Fung is also the investment director of Fung Investment
Management Limited. She started working at the private
investment arm of the Fung Group in 2000 as investment manager
running the family's investments. Prior to joining the Fung Group,
Ms. Fung worked for Brown Brothers Harriman & Co in New York
and Hong Kong until 1999. Ms. Fung is experienced in the retail
industry and holding positions in marketing and public relations for
Salvatore Ferragamo Asia, as well as in merchandising, sourcing
and branding for Li & Fung group in Hong Kong and the USA. She
was named in the Business of Fashion 500 in 2016, and Women's
Wear Daily 10 of Tomorrow in 2017.

In Hong Kong, Ms. Fung is a member of the Major Sports Events
Committee of HKSAR, a member on the board of Alibaba Hong
Kong Entrepreneurs Fund, the advisor on Retailing and Fashion for
NBA Greater China, and a member of the University Court of The
University of Hong Kong (HKU) and the Executive Committee of the
International Advisory Council of the Faculty of Business and
Economics of HKU, the Advisory Committee of the Roger King
Center for Asian Family Business and Family Office at Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology Business School, the advisory
panel of IBM Collaborative Innovative Program, the Advisory
Committee of the Hong Kong-Europe Business Council and the
Hong Kong-France Business Council of Hong Kong Trade
Development Council. Internationally, Ms. Fung is a member of
MecLaren Advisory Group, Harvard Global Advisory Council, the board
of trustees of The Carnegie Hall Corporation in New York, and the
co-chair of St. Paul’s School Asia Council in New Hampshire, USA.

Ms. Fung graduated from Harvard University, with a Bachelor of
Arts degree in Economics. She attended Harvard Business
School’s Program for Global Leadership and its Business of
Entertainment, Media and Sports program afterwards.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton

Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton is an executive Director and Joint
Company Secretary. His profile is set out on p.77 of this annual
report under the sub-section of “Executive Director”.

Mr. Lai Sau-Cheong, Simon

Aged 62, joined the Group in 2017, is Group General Counsel and
Joint Company Secretary. Mr. Simon Lai is also the Chief Legal Officer
of Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited, a subsidiary of a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Lai is admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong, England and Wales,
and New South Wales, Australia and has over 30 years of
experience in corporate, commercial and related regulatory
practice. He was a long standing partner and later on, consultant,
of a leading law firm before joining the Group and has extensive
experience on corporate finance matters. Mr. Lai has also served
on a number of public appointments.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Annie Wong

Aged 59, joined the Group in 2023, is the Chief Operating Officer
responsible for the Group’'s commercial and business strategies,
the development of end-to-end value chain efficiencies and
integration of demand/supply management and fulfillment.
Ms. Wong has over 30 years of experience in luxury retail operations,
and an impressive range of expertise in management consulting,
operations, and executive leadership. She holds an Executive
Master’s degree in Business Administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. She is also a Graduate Diamonds
Gemologist of the Gemological Institute of America.

Mr. Chan Yee-Pong, Alan

Aged 51, joined the Group in 2010, is the Chief Brand Officer
responsible for the branding and marketing functions of the Group.
Mr. Chan has over 25 years of experience in luxury brand

management and marketing.

Ms. Lui Yin-Ming, Theresa

Aged 51, joined the Group in 2022, is the Chief People Officer
responsible for the strategic direction of the Group’'s human
resources function, to ensure that right people strategies are in
place to support the long-term development of the Group. Ms. Lui
is a seasoned HR veteran in the retail industry and has over 25
years of experience.

Mr. Cheung Wang-Kwong, Patrick

Aged 34, joined the Group in 2022, is the Chief Digital Officer
responsible for technology delivery and eCommerce functions of
the Group, steering the enhancement of digital experience and
enterprise systems to drive sales growth and maximise efficiency
for the Group's development. Mr. Cheung has extensive
experience in deriving transformation roadmap, devising digital
transformation strategies and driving operational excellence across

China and globally.
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Ms. Danita On

Aged 46, joined the Group in 2012, is the senior director of Investor
Relations and Corporate Communications of the Group, responsible
for maintaining effective communications with investors and
media. Ms. On has over 20 years of experiences in auditing,
management consulting, equity research, asset management and
investor relations. She is a member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a Chartered Financial Analyst.

Mr. Wong Kim-Ming, Mark

Aged 61, joined the Group in 1986, is the director responsible for
the procurement planning and manufacturing management of
diamonds of the Group. Mr. Wong has over 35 years of experience
in the jewellery industry.

Mr. Cheng Ming-Chi, Tony

Aged 51, joined the Group in 1994, is the director responsible for
the procurement planning and management of gemstones such as
jadeite, colour stones and pearls for the Group. Mr. Cheng has over
25 years of experience in the jewellery industry.

Mr. Tam Chun-Wah, Daniel

Aged 60, joined the Group in 2011, is the assistant general
manager responsible for manufacturing technology transformation
of the Group. Mr. Tam has over 30 years of experience in jewellery
manufacturing and over 15 years of experience in gold inventory

management.
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Mr. Lam Hung-Shing, Max

Aged 40, joined the Group in 2011,
responsible for the creative design and development of jewellery

is the general manager

products. Mr. Lam holds an MA in Design, Innovation & Brand
Management from University for the Creative Arts, United
Kingdom. He has almost 20 years of experience in the jewellery
industry, specializing in jewellery design and strategic product
innovation. Mr. Lam was awarded Hong Kong Ten Outstanding
Designer Award and was conferred Fellowship and Chartered
Manager by the Canadian Chartered Institute of Business
Administration. He has been a committee member of the
International Jewellery Designer Association since 2017.

Mr. Wong-Tang, Alex

Aged 64, joined the Group in 2000, is the general manager
responsible for managing the Hong Kong and Macau Management
Centre and Chow Tai Fook Fei Cui Testing Centre of the Group.
Mr. Wong has over 45 years of experience in the jewellery
industry. He holds an Executive Master's degree in Business
Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is
also a Graduate Gemologist of the Gemological Institute of America
and a Certified Gemmologist (Fei Cui) of the Gemmological
Association of Hong Kong.

Ms. Yuan Jie

Aged 46, joined the Group in 2002, is the executive general
manager responsible for managing the Mainland China
Management Center of the Group, orchestrating the overall
enterprise management in the Mainland China. Ms. Yuan has over
20 years of experience in change management, process efficiency
optimisation, risk control, corporate culture building and talent
development.

Ms. Yang Xiao-Lin

Aged 43, joined the Group in 2004, is the general manager responsible
for the Group's financial management and strategic finance. Ms. Yang
has over 20 years of experiences in auditing, accounting, financial
management and risk management. Ms. Yang is a member of the

Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEXERKS

OUR “4T” FOR CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance provides a framework within which the Board
forms their decisions and builds the Group's businesses. Our “4T"
principles for corporate governance guide the development of our
corporate governance practices, supporting the Group in better

HAEEES 4TI RA

TEEAREFGHERRMARNEREBNER -

BPMERER M4T] RABECEE AERNER
TRHAREEZEENRBERER KR HEER
MER -

achieving our strategic objectives towards sustainable growth and

development.

Transparent
BMER KERAA

Implement transparent disclosures and constructive dialogues to foster genuine
mutual understanding with stakeholders

BREANMNKEMEREYEE HERERASOENEETHE

Thoughtful
FHEE EATR

Embrace leaders with independent mindset, versatile expertise and business
acumen who steer our long-term pursuit for sustainable business growth and
attainment of common values with stakeholders
HEABY DM  HEEXEMNEEMBMEERMA AR
*BERVNERFOHENABREER

TREMRMERTFEN

Truthful
HEEE EHRAE

Uphold long-established culture of integrity to safeguard the fundamental
interests of stakeholders and build trusting relationships with them
BERABINAG L  RESHENELRFZRBELELEEER

Traceable

HERRE BRAS

Enhance accountability via institutionalised structures and measures to drive
better utilisation of resources and fulfilment of stakeholders’ interests

BRGIE(CHRBNERNEEE  UBEMERERNERENENF

OUR BOARD GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

ESEEARES

Board Structure

EE-E

Board Composition

EEEEm

e Board of directors e Responsibilities and main tasks
=g BEMEFETIE
e Board committees
BExZEg
Board diversity Continuing professional development
E=g%lt BHEEERR
Board refreshment Remuneration
EE@EN ol
Director roles and functions
E=MAETEEE

Board Operations
EETEES

Board independence
EFgBE LT
Communication and information support

BBINE SR

Compliance and accountability
ERMEE
Evaluation

#H

Shareholder Communications

ELiRREYEE

Interactive engagement

EADER]LA

Shareholder rights and other information

35 B )R LAt 2 Y
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BOARD STRUCTURE

The Board

4

Nomination Remuneration Audit Sustainability Trs;:iZ:z?:\:;:n
Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee
REEEE FMESE BERZZEEE HEEREEE ERANEESE
- b =
Board of Directors EEE

Responsible for steering the sustainable success of the Group
by overseeing the overall strategic direction, risk appetite and
directing and supervising its affairs.

Sets the Group’s core values, corporate culture and adopts
proper standards to ensure that the Company operates with
integrity and being responsible to our shareholders and other
stakeholders for the Group's performance.

Establishes board committees to undertake governance duties
as specified in their respective terms of reference.

Sets out the list of reserved matters that are significant to
interests of the shareholders for the Board’s review and/ or
decision, such as approving results and dividends, transactions
over a specified threshold limit or which are subject to
compliance with the Listing Rules, matters involving conflict of
interest related to certain directors or which require to obtain
shareholders’ consent.

Nomination Committee

Responsible for board nomination, diversity, succession plan,
independence assessment and continuing professional
development.

Conducts performance evaluation of the Board and the

directors.

Remuneration Committee

Determines remuneration for directors and senior management;
oversight on the Group's remuneration policy and structure,
incentive mechanisms and share schemes.

Advises on strategic issues related to organisation structure,
corporate culture, people development and succession pipeline.

Governance
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Audit Committee

e QOversight on financial statements, financial reporting systems,
corporate reports; and the appointment of auditor.

e QOversight on risk management and internal control systems,
internal audit function, cyber-security and data governance;
compliance with Corporate Governance Code.

Sustainability Committee

e Formulates sustainability goals and strategies; oversight on
management policies and incentives.

e FEvaluates sustainability performance and oversight on
sustainability reporting.

Strategy and Transformation Committee

e Assumes leadership and monitoring responsibilities in strategy
and corporate reforms, business operations, financial
performance, investment projects, corporate administration and
compliance.

e Being delegated with all the powers to act like a standing
committee of the Board to make decisions and report back to
the Board, except for matters reserved for the Board's decision
or other board committees which require INEDs' oversight.
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Main tasks of the Board of Directors EEEMNEETE

Area of focus FY2023
DEHE (Number of meetings: 4) (E:&/XE] : 4) Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
Strategy planning and e Discuss on the medium to long-term goals and strategies v
execution FwmT I E R B R
RESIRBIFIFNAT e Comment on the current corporate plan and financial budget v v
T B AT R R EIME BTAE
e Receive the reports from the Strategy and Transformation v v v
Committee

ERREMNREZEEN®RE

Business and financial
performance

EBMPBERS

Approve annual results and report, and recommend final dividend v
HEFEEENREARBERRARE

Approve interim results and report, and interim dividend v

OB AR EA B TR E DA K BAAR 2

Regular review on the dividend policy v
TE BpR AT AR BBUR

Review recent business development, industry trends and v v v v
market outlook

BT EEBER (TEBENTISAIR

Receive the investor feedback report v
ERREENRERS

Corporate governance

DEER

Receive the reports from the Nomination Committee, v v v
Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and
Sustainability Committee
EIREZES  HNEEE FEZRZESGNRBEERZESN
®E
Approve changes in board committee and board positions v v
HEESZZESREFERBNEY
Approve continuing connected transactions v
HEREEERS
Review sustainability performance and approve the report v
B IS TR R IR ANROE R RS
Approve the proposed resolutions to put forward to the annual v
general meeting and the publication of related circular
HERZ TREAFASNEZREENTIZ BB
Private meeting between Board chairman and INEDs v
EESTREBUFNTEENHAMGE

During the year, the Board has increased attention on: FRNEFEERBEITATEE:

e Business resilience and cost optimisation amid the o EBIUMEABIABRBE TS E O TEEN -
market uncertainties.
e Rationalisation of internal management and work processes to o NMERRIERBAENL ARAEREVRE

build a robust foundation for long-term growth. o

e Integrated approach to corporate planning, risk management e MEBITLAE  REREERKPIIERZR  NEH
and KPI metrics to drive long-term performance. REBEEM -

Governance Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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Main tasks of the Nomination Committee

Area of focus

FY2023
(Number of meetings: 3) (2 X% : 3)

REEZESEHEETHE

Q1 Qa3 Q4

Board performance
assessment

BERGRBANMAE

Evaluate on the structure, delegation and memberships of

Board committees

FIMHEREZESMAER BES T EHEMK

Evaluate on the roles, functions and performance of executive directors
FERITESNAG  BEEREXN

Determine on the status, delegation and composition of Strategy and
Transformation Committee

EERBENREZE SN - BE S TMAEK

Assess and confirm on the independence and time commitment

of INEDs

ST AR IE L FEBNTTE B AV IE LRI AR

Review and monitor the training and continuing professional development
of directors and senior management
BANEREENEREEABNEIRBESEERE

Review the implementation of the mechanism to ensure independent
views are available to the Board

RRRESSEIB BT HERESNERER

Board composition
review

EEemERRE

Discuss on the board mix of competence and diversity in perspectives
required by future strategic needs
HAERREBREENHRETEMRTNERNESNZ TR

Review the current board matrix, diversity objectives, and progress
BETEATWEESEK - 2B EMEE

Board refreshment or
succession

EReEMRET

Consider the planning for board refreshment with respect to INEDs
BRI TEEERESTSENTE

Review and discuss on executive directors’ future development and
succession plans

LA R I TE FR R R E R AT 2

Determine on the rotation and re-appointment of directors

REEFHNMEMENZ(E

Directors’ nomination
and appointment
EENREBEREE

Nomination and selection of directors and recommendation on the
relevant appointment or change in board positions
RENBEEZRERERETALEEES

Plan for induction programme for new directors

MERREHEEGE

During the year, the Nomination Committee has increased

attention on:

FR - REZEGERBIUTEIER

e Board independence and gender diversity. o FEEHMMMRZITIE o
e Management succession and INEDs refreshment plan. o BIREBMEENBIIEMITESTEMNE -

e Establishment of the Strategy and Transformation Committee o NUEBIANEZESURBAETERESLEE -

and revamp of the management committees structure.
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Main tasks of the Remuneration Committee FNEEENTETE

Area of focus FY2023
BEEE (Number of meetings: 2) (8 X% : 2) Q1 Q4
Performance and e Assess on the linkage between Company's performance and remuneration level for v
rewards for executive executive directors and senior management
directors and FHMEAR AR EERNTESNSREIEA S FHOKT 2 a0 B
senior management e Determine the remuneration packages and annual adjustments for executive directors v
HITESEREREEA and senior management with reference to the Group’s performance, remuneration
BHRIFIIEE) strategy and market competitiveness

SEREEEE  FWNEBETEEFIUETNTEERSREEASNFHHEFBAN

FEAE

* Review the rewards under long-term incentive plan v

mE REEE 8 2 TR RE

Remuneration policy e Determine and supervise on the remuneration policy and structure respectively for v
and strategy directors and employees
37 M IR 2R D B EEREEESNESNHFMBEENER
* Review the proposals for share award scheme and the amendments in the Listing v v

Rules regulating all share schemes
et Bty BB AT By R E MR E A IR aT 8180 TR RIEVEET

e Re-visit the mechanism and metrics for short-term and long-term incentives v
BIER G R R B RS R
e Endorse the annual pay rise budget for frontline and back office staff with reference v

to market salary survey, the Company’s performance and incentive strategy
2EMSHEMNAS ARAFRBNEBHER  BREINKLEHEINFEINFEE

Strategic development e Supervise on human resources strategies and action plans v
KEEHERE EBANEREREITEEE

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has increased FAN - FMEEGERBIATER
attention on:

e Mechanism and metrics for both short-term and long-term o MHIRRAIEEMMSIERIEER IR B TR -
incentives to enhance staff motivation.

e Corporate culture, talent development and pipeline building. o EIYL - AAER R B IRBEK o
e Share award scheme proposals to reward and retain corporate o RinHENFFEIMBEZE TR - NEEMIEREMEEM
leaders for the promotion of the Group's long-term success. AT REREEERRERD -
94 Governance Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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Main tasks of the Audit Committee

Area of focus

BEHE

FY2023
(Number of meetings: 3) (2 X & : 3)

BEZESEMNEETHE

Q1

Qa3

Q4

Financial statements

R

Receive the management’s analysis on the business and financial review
TEHVE IR E XM SR B DT

Review subsidiary governance on accounting and auditing issues
ERMBERARG LEAFTENER

Review the presentation and disclosures of the financial statements for
the Group's interim and annual results

BEAREED AR FEXEVHRROZBNRE

External auditor

S BB ZREm

Comment on the annual audit plan

HEEEZTEREHER

Receive auditor’s audit report, or interim review report, including the key
audit matters

ENZBMNETRERTHAENRE  EETESHTFE

Private meeting with auditor

EAZ BRI RITERAM g &

Review on the independence and objectivity, performance and fees of
auditor, and recommend on their re-appointment
ERZEMOBYENTEE RBENER  UAREBZEREE
Review and determine on the policy to regulate non-assurance services
provided by external auditor

BRI TE BUR AR E S BRI SR B O A S EE R AR TS

Risk management and
controls

[0 ' HE AN 22 )

Receive reports from Risk Management Committee
ENREREEEZESMNRE

Receive internal audit reports

ERABEZRES

Receive anti-fraud reports

PR ERRE
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Area of focus FY2023

DEEE (Number of meetings: 3) (& X # : 3) Q1 Q3 Q4
Corporate governance e Annual review on the effectiveness of risk management and internal v
TEER control systems, reporting processes, and external and internal audit
FREBNAREEMABEZZFOHARE  BEEF - ARINIEA
ez
e Annual review on the continuing connected transactions v
BRFEANNBEBRERLS
e Review the compliance with the Corporate Governance Code v
R EERTARETER
e Annual review on the implementation and effectiveness of the v

shareholders’ communication policy
FRBNRFBRBENE R RE RN

e Review the disclosures in the results announcements, interim and annual v v
reports (including Corporate Governance Report therein)

BMUEENS  PHHERFR(BEETOOEEARE) WIE

Strategic alignment e Evaluate the performance and management of franchise business from v
REERE strategic risk perspective
HEBER AET A MBEBNRE RERE
e Qversee IT and data governance for the purpose to support the digital v v

transformation roadmap
EEEAREEREERES  UXHEEENKERE
e Comment on the internal audit plan and adequacy of resources v v
supporting the internal audit function
ERABEZTENMEFADETRENERES TR
e Comment on the structure, work plans and resources of finance and v v
governance functions for the purpose to support corporate planning cycle
and achievement of strategies and KPIs
BRI RERBAE MR - TIEETEIREIR - A HETE AL
B R RBARETIER

During the year, the Audit Committee has increased attention on: FN BREZEEERAEINATEIEA:

e Performance and risk management of the franchise business in MEBEBEANERER 2 THREEERERE -

view of the significant expansion.

¢ Crisis management, cybersecurity and business continuity plans. o BIKEIR MBLENEBKIFEERE -
e Application of technology and data analytics in forecasting and o ERTEAREZEFEMBEMEIESN - AERE
benchmarking to monitor the operational risks in the extensive AT EEARM S ERR o

POS frontlines.

96 Governance Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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Main tasks of the Sustainability Committee OHERRESEMNEETE

Area of focus FY2023
BEEE (Number of meeting: 1) (€2 X& : 1) Q1
Strategy and goals e Discuss on the sustainability strategic roadmap and action plans v
S L E AR BEEESE B A= E

e Agree on sustainability key issues and the approach to sustainability risk management v

BYAHBEERAREARIIFEERRARERTE

Performance review e Review on the current status of the Group's sustainability development in “Craftsmanship, v
FIA A Innovation & Technology”, “Responsible Sourcing”, “People Focused” and “Resource

Efficiency & Carbon Reduction”
BIEAREEE [EAEF]  [EERE] [AARK] R [RENE] W HEEREN
e Review the benchmarking assessments in relation to sustainability best practices and the v
Group's existing operational standards, independent certifications and external audits
R EHABEERFEEINRAEERASERE B UMRERINBEFHOEEIT

Reporting e Review the sustainability report, key metrics and the compliance with statutory requirements v
HE R A RERRRS  BRERIOERNETER

Accountability for e Configure an appropriate management structure with adequate resources and incentives to v
execution facilitate the effective execution of sustainability strategy

BITEE BRIGHEEEAR  IRHARERMEEEE - B A8 R R A RT

=

During the year, the Sustainability Committee has increased FRAIREERZESERMIATEER

attention on:

e Social purpose that brings enduring benefits to the society by ~ ® ZEBAREEFEXT - ALERH & B RFAFEN
conducting the Group's business. HERRE-
e Integration between operational practices and sustainability ¢ EEEEFHZEEREASEZRRERS

strategy altogether along our value chain.
e Knowledge and opportunity about net zero emission as a hot ~ ® BAROFFT PGS EAMIME & FHREAM A LS -

social topic.
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RENNEZESENEETHE

Main tasks of the Strategy and Transformation
Committee

Area of focus

Strategy Competition and market development strategy Supply chain strategy
o T T 35 B R SR e 58 3R S
Customer strategy and business model People and IT strategy
BERRBEAMEBERX AA FE AR R S
Execution Business targets and progress tracking Organisation and management system
BT ¥BBIE#EEEY BRI E
Goals and reward system for the management Investment budget and appraisal
EBABHEBRMERGIE REREMTE
Monitoring Business alignment with risk appetite Compliance with laws and regulations
B ¥BBRRESRABREARE BPREIER

Efficiency in operations and use of resources
EEME R AR

Financial performance

B AE R

Accountability
B&

Governance policy and practices
BB TG R

Investors’ perspectives
KREENAE

Social and environmental impacts
HEMRRTE

Corporate culture and ethics
EXEMBER

e Formulate market driven and customer focused strategies to o MMIZEEBMUK ARSI ERE - UERE

achieve performance targets and strategic goals endorsed by

the Board.

ATEAE R B IZFN SRR 4 B AZ -

e Organise broad-based engagement activities to align strategic o MHBMEZHESZETSA —HKES  WHEBBMHOF

vision and encourage collaborations across functions through
clear annual plans and co-owned KPIs.

Hold monthly meetings to review the performance reports,
monitor the progress of strategy and reforms implementation,
financial budget and make timely adaptations.

Supervise on critical aspects of the business operations such as
strategic prioritisation, resources allocation and performance
measurement, as well as aligning various strategies on talent,
reward, culture, risk appetite and controls.

Set up and supervise on the sub-committees, which assist in
the implementation of corporate reforms, such as branding,
product supply chain, people development and digitalisation.
Report back to the Board on the performance of the Group.

EFEIRARBENERER  HBBEZRNE
e

BRETEH  UBRKRARES  EERMMALE
HITHER - MR E - WEERREE -

BEXKLENBREE  fIMKEOELER
BERDEMERE - ARSEAT - FHBH - 3YE -

R AT EME R EREBERA -

MEZMELGNEZES  BEBREENE &
PEERE - EmRERE - AT BRMEFL -

MEEGERLTEENRR -

overnance ow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limite
G Chow Tai Fook J llery G Limited
&R BAREBHREEBEBERAF



BOARD COMPOSITION EESEM

Independence Age
B Fir

INED % 57 Average age
BUKTES 6% T EE
— —
INED B HHITES 35-50
I I
ED H{TES 51-65
—
60% over 65
HBiB655%
21%
Board tenure Gender
Exeal % Bl
13%
~ Average years of service Female directors
TG BRAS F 5 LHES
13%
— —
0-3 years F Female Z
|
79, 4-6years & —
— Male 5
7-9 years &
67% —

10 years or more Fa{ L £

e The Board consists of 15 directors. During the year, Ms. Fung o EEEHISRESTMAN - T BKEL T IMAE
Wing-Yee, Sabrina joined and Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor and g MBBELHE L LR S L AT -
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong left the Board.

e The Board has been orderly refreshed in the last couple of years o EREENBEIEFEFMEN  AIIFAEERK
to bring new skills and perspectives to support the Group's RERRRFE B HFIEL R, -
strategy and governance.

e The Board considers that the current composition is suitable in s EXCRABHNESSREAEMNES EFSMHH

view of the balanced mix of board tenure and age group, and MERBRDMIIE  BUFRTESMLMES
also an appropriate level of INED and female representation. BBl B & B KTE o
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Our Board diversity policy

e Appropriate combination of competency and diversity of
perspectives in order to achieve the Company's long-term goal
and strategy.

e Thorough considerations in board decision-making leverage on
broader insights and risk intelligence, as well as better
understanding on customers and stakeholders.

e A broad concept of diversity attributable to various attributes:

— Personal skills and professional knowledge
— Regional and industry experience, reach to stakeholders
— Gender, age, length of service and other qualities

Our current board mix of knowledge and experience
Broad business exposures

e Typical industries: retailing, manufacturing, property development
e Emerging sectors serving for customers' lifestyle and enjoyments
e Worldwide market: China, Europe and the United States

e Connections with public bodies and community groups

Diverse professional knowledge

e Retail, jewellery and brand development

e Technology and data analytics

e Corporate strategies and listed company governance
e Capital market, finance and risk management

Our diversity objectives for the future Board

e A broad spectrum of connections and intelligence across
multiple commercial fields.

e Together contribute to high standards of corporate governance
and stakeholders' interests.

e A balanced mix of age group and board tenure.

e Gender balance with at least 3 female directors as an immediate
target and minimum 20% representation by 2025. This target
will be reviewed on an annual basis by the Board and the
Nomination Committee.

As at 31 March 2023, the ratio of female to male in the senior
management was 42%:58% while in the overall workforce was
79%:21%. The Group's recruitment and promotion policy is
underpinned by the principle of appointment of the right person for
the right position, in order to achieve employee diversity. The
Board considers that the current gender ratio of the workforce of
the Group is appropriate for its operations.

Governance
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Board refreshment

Board nomination

EEEEMN
EEERA

Nomination policy and process

Status update

REBKRNER 18R E
Stage 1 Look into future challenges, opportunities, business model and Reviewed in FY2023
Preparation strategic goals 2023 B EE KT
E—EER RETARRAPREL - B - EBRAMKH BT ¢ Retail and China experience
Taf Identify desirable perspectives and experience an optimal Board requires TEMPHER
HAREEEERENRTNLER e Technology and data
Evaluate the strengths and weaknesses of the current Board composition application
AR EESSEMREIEIE B MERER
Set out requirements and objectives in searching for potential candidate(s) * Finance and governance
FlEMEEEREANEKRMEZ Mg RER
Propose the timeline for Board refreshment * Gender and age diversity
HEREFSEMNNREEK MRIFFE Z T
Stage 2 Invite nomination of candidates from Board members or professional consultants Nomination in FY2023
Nomination BEEFENENEEBREREHEEA 2023 E R4
F R Consider a broad range of candidates who are in or outside of the e Search for INED candidates
’E Board's circle either excel in China retail industry
BZEREZGETRIMNIEEA or with financial expertise
Meet with the shortlisted candidates and then evaluate on the suitability e EEPREE XS KE
EARREAGHETNEEESESHE FHEMEIIFMITERNE
Put forward the recommendation to the Board, including the role and e Approached some
function, and committee membership candidates and received
MESSRIEBRS  BEACTRE  URZEEKESH their feedbacks
HES NEEB I EREER
Stage 3 The Board considers the recommendation and decides on the appointment ~ FY2023 appointed Ms. Fung

Appointment
e

=1t

EXETERARTMAREERME

Determine the communication and transition plan, as well as

induction activities

EEABEMAERY - AREEED

Publish an announcement, fulfil statutory filing requirements and issue
letter of appointment

HBERE  TRCEERBILHEHEZER

Propose the re-election of the newly appointed director in the next general
meeting and make adequate disclosure on the respective nomination process
ET—EARRASEZERNZTES  URABREEFEL RS EE

Wing-Yee, Sabrina
2023 E R/ kEL L

Appointment letters
ZT K

Onboard and re-election
EEMER

Induction activities
RUEES

Management succession planning

e Enrich the roles played by young management by allocating .
challenging assignments for the achievement of the Group's

EEEEETE

sustainable development.

e Create strategic task force and career advancement °

opportunities for them.

ZRAKBENERGEFEEEAL  NEKREAE
EMAHEERTAEEANEE -

BRI KRR PDENBE TS -

e Provide comprehensive training and development programmes. o IREEMIBIIFEREE -
¢ Design attractive incentive schemes to reward outstanding performance. o RETERS| Ny ERENE B LURE A RIR
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Director roles and functions

EEA B REE

Number of directors INED Executive directors

EEHAE BIKGITES HITES

Board of Directors =& 15 40% 60%
Nomination Committee 22 ZE & 7 71% 29%
Remuneration Committee $iBiZ &€ 7 71% 29%
Audit Committee FZZE® 4 100% 0%
Sustainability Committee AJ & #EZE S 6 33% 67%
Strategy and Transformation Committee 5 0% 100%

I e

The profile, role and function of each director, their relationship
with each other and the membership of the board committees are

set out on p.70 - 84.

Executive directors

e Chairman and Managing Director are Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
and Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent respectively. This segregation
ensures a balance of power and authority.

e (Chairman provides leadership for the Board and ensures that
the Board works effectively and sound corporate governance
practices and procedures are established.

e Vice-chairmen Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy and Ms. Cheng
Chi-Man, Sonia are delegated by the Chairman to assist in
leading the Group’s strategic direction and driving the corporate
transformation.

e Managing Director leads the management team to execute the
strategy agreed by the Board and is responsible for the overall
business and operations of the Group.

Independent non-executive directors

e Bring strategic insights to the Board driving for long-term value.

e Exercise independent judgement on the strategy, performance
and risks of the Group.

e Balance the interests of the Company, shareholders and stakeholders.

e [NEDs act as chairmen or members of major Board committees
and undertake detailed governance work under the respective
terms of reference.

e Being appointed for a term of not more than three years,
subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles.

’I 02 Governance
E /Cl

FREFEE BB LBE R HOBERARES
ZEENKEHNETOESLE -

#ﬁ§$
s IFREFMEEHMBRAB T REBELLE
#E BN R T A AT REAR 35 0 RO AR ) 48 -

s RIXTFEBEBAENBEZELLHIFERE  HH
BEAREENKBE S RS EERNE -

s BEREURKBAGEREFRNTESSRBMRME
WEEAEENEREBNEE

BIEPITES
o REFGHICREE AR RAMEME -
o WARLBMEME « FKIMEM (FH LI -

o FEHARRE - PERRFHEZMOME -
e BUNTEEZLEATEEEZTZE TN TN
8§ WRESENBESEETERNERTE-

\
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Annual review on INEDs’ independence

Based on the Nomination Committee’s review of a number of factors:

e Business relationship and transactions with the Group

e Offices held in other companies, organisations and other
significant commitments

e Cross-directorships or significant links with other directors
through involvement in other companies or bodies

e FEach INED's annual confirmation of independence received by
the Company

e Years of service as INED

The Board is of the view that all INEDs are independent, free from
any business or other relationship which could materially interfere
with the exercise of their judgement. Detailed elaboration on the
Board’'s assessment are made in the circular to shareholders in
respect of the INEDs to be re-elected in the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

Although Ms. Fung Wing-Yee, Sabrina does not meet one of the
independence guideline set out in 3.13 of the Listing Rules
because her father Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor was a former INED
retired within 2 years prior to her appointment date, the Nomination
Committee believes that this fact should not be perceived to have
a negative impact on the independence of Ms. Fung given her
attributes and Dr. Fung’s satisfaction of all independence criteria
under 3.13 of the Listing Rules throughout his tenure as an INED.
The Company has written to and the Stock Exchange has also
agreed with the Company's point of view on the independence of
Ms. Fung prior to her appointment.

Annual Report 2023
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Directors’ time commitment EEMFEEA

Based on assessment with reference to a number of factors: ERNH AT ZHEE =

e Directors’ confirmation o EHEMER

e Meeting attendance rate o FHRMFEX

e Preparation for and degree of participation in meetings o TEHMEFENMSHE

e Participation in continuing professional development to keep o RURPEBEEXHRUBES B IBENIE

abreast of knowledge relevant to the directors’ duties

The Nomination Committee is of the view that all directors, REZECRA PRES(BEBIIIENTES)E
including INEDs, have given sufficient time and attention to the HARBMESLH TR BMERE -
Company's affairs.

Executive Directors BrEE
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry BREE+ n 414 33 212 - - v
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy gEEEE n 4/4 n - - 0/0 v
Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia gEZEL+ n 414 - 1" - 0/0 v
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent HAELE n 4/4 212 n - n v
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian BEREL 1”1 4/4 - - - - v/
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson HELE i 4/4 - - - - v/
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton AMBSLE i 4/4 - - - - v
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter REREE n 4/4 - - - n v
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby BRAEE n A/4 - - - 1 v
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong’ [ Su=Fi 11 444 - n - 10 -
Independent Non-executive BIAERTES
Directors
Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon BEarE i 4/4 - 2/2 3/3 - v
Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey W EE n 4/4 33 1” 33 - v
Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond FEREET n Al4 3/3 2/2 3/3 - v
Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily gzBat 1 4/4 33 2/2 - n v/
Mr. Chia Pun-Kok, Herbert BmBEE N 4/4 33 - 3/3 A v
Ms. Fung Wing-Yee, Sabrina* EkEL LTt - 2/2 il " - - v/
Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor" BEEEL n 212 17 n - - -
Note: B 5
v All incumbent directors have submitted their training records for the year, showing that each of v AERAEFEERIAFEMNSIRG  HPBEISALERAADEN
them has fulfilled the training requirement by participating in the activities on p.105 organised by the F105BEEES EEITHEINIERK -
%ggzﬁmnmswmwme%mﬂmw1Mmmzma . B202343A31 AEETEF B
#  Appointed to the Board with effect from 1 December 2022 # B20224 12 A1 AR EZTEFERE
" Retired from the Board upon the conclusion of the annual general meeting held on 27 July 2022 Y H2022%7 A7 ARATMBRASAGERE A EEGRA
’I 04 Governance Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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Continuing professional development

Align knowledge and experience acquisition with a view to
driving performance towards our strategic goals and exercising
critical oversight on risk and performance.

Sharpen the strategic vision and competency in embracing the
era of innovation and disruption.

Foster a Board culture of ongoing learning and knowledge sharing.

Our approach to ongoing learning

Organise Board seminars, management forums and workshops
on themes relevant for propelling the business priorities, where
our leaders can interact with inspirational guest speakers.
Arrange on-site visits to explore on the competitive edges of
other advanced organisations.

Custom-made newsletters sharing articles and videos related to
the Board’s hot topics.

Conduct surveys for the Nomination Committee to understand
learning needs of each director and analyse the directors’
training records to prioritise the Board education activities.

Onboarding induction

Assist incoming directors to have proper understanding on the
business and operations, strategies and competitive
environment of the Group, and directors’ duties.

Help the new directors to get an understanding of the Board
culture and corporate culture.

Efficient and tailor-made on needs, depending on their Board
roles, their expertise and experience, enabling them to make
contributions as early as possible to the Board, particularly on
providing advice on the strategies.

Induction activities guide

Briefing sessions.

Networking luncheon with other Board members and management
presentation on selected topic relating to potential contribution
expected from the new director.

Meet with our management teams and visit our facilities to
understand the Group's existing plans and needs.

Online resources centre for directors:

— Business model and strategies

— Industry trends and market profiles

— Business and financial performance

— Statutory duties and responsibilities of directors

— Corporate governance policies

Invite the new director to share on selected topic relating to his/ her
expertise topic in a Board and management seminar.
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Remuneration

Put in place a well-designed incentive system to attract, motivate
and retain talented corporate leaders in order to support the
achievement of long- and short-term strategic goals of the Group
as well as to promote value creation for the benefit of
the shareholders.

Offer fair and competitive reward levels to ensure comparability
with companies listed in Hong Kong competing for talents with
similar leadership qualities.

?@N
AR EN R - AR ARME AT
M EEAS - TR AR B R AR
R 1T M&ﬁh%%ﬂéﬁ@@ﬁ%%o

s REAXFTMEAZS HHER - ﬁﬁ%ﬁ—[éﬁiﬁﬁtéﬁéi
MAAAAL - ARSI B AEHEE RGNS -

Executive directors BITES
Fixed portion e Salaries, benefits and pension
BEIEL 5 EXFH &  BRFEKRE
e Director's fee
ik
Variable portion e Discretionary bonus linked with the Company’s performance as follows:
FENIER S — the current year's profitability

— the increase in share price of the Company in a period of time over the benchmark

BN FRBEABHREELLT

- ZRFEENRTE

- R—REEA - ARREEIERRENEE

Incentive-based, with a significant portion of the variable portion
correlated with the short term profitability and long-term value
of the Company.

Alignment of their rewards with the performance of the
Company and interests of its shareholders.

Determined by the Remuneration Committee.

Independent non-executive directors

s BEASA  BHEBLANTZSHIDEANTMEH
BRI MR AEERS -

o (PR HEIED B AN X B 2R 3R AN R B s H 68
o AMFMEZEEERE -

BIAERITES

Fixed portion e Director's fee

BE#B 5 = ik

(Remark: Starting from FY2023, the remuneration of INEDs comprised fixed portion only in order to strengthen the independent roles of INEDs.)

(3% : B2023 M RFERE - RINBBIUFATESNELAC  BUFNTEENHFMRILZEEHDS )

Offer appropriate level of remuneration to attract and retain high
calibre directors with sufficient governance experience and
independence in thinking so that their views carry weight in the Board.
Proportionate to the time commitment and workloads of Board
committees they serve.

Benchmarked against market practice, according to their roles,
responsibilities and time commitment.

Determined by the Board, after discussions in the

Remuneration Committee.

More details on directors’ remuneration for FY2023, p.197.

Governance

E/u

s RESENHMESINBETZABRD EARKERNE
VBENEBAES GHEERHEZESAEYEN -

s HMHRKEZTZREENHEKAMITFEEKIEL -

s RREAG BEENEERAETISEM ALY -

BREEN 2023 BEENFME -5 - F2H
FI197 8

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
ARAEHREEEERAR



BOARD OPERATIONS
Board Independence

EFEEE
ESEHIM

The Board has established the following mechanisms to enhance EEONVIATHEIERBIIERTEENAE I
the role of INEDs in order to obtain independent views from them. TERH BB o

Composition of the Board and
board committees

EEehEEL MK

INEDs represents at least 1/3 of the Board
BUATERIEEFEE L =2 —

INEDs are appointed to board committees as far as practicable
BAREZEBEIIFNTEEMAEZEELFEZESY

Independence assessment upon
nomination and annual reviews

TRREH B IR
R FERA

Strictly adhere to the nomination policy and the independence assessment
criteria with regard to the nomination and appointment of INEDs

BRI ETEERE REEE L IFNTE SR A BOR KB FT A ER

Assess suitability of director candidates objectively based on their qualification
and time commitment, the Board's composition, skill matrix, the list of selection
criteria, nomination policy and the board diversity policy
BEEENENERRRARR  EEgMEK  Ritdse  TELAFE  RBERER
EEELUEBE  BFENGEZSAZRESAE

Assess annually by the Nomination Committee on the independence of all
INEDs to ensure that they can continually exercise independent judgement, and
also each director’s time commitment to the Company's affairs
REZEGEFTEMEBUFNTESNE LI - BRBE A FHETEE L AE - A
REEFSHARRAEFHNERIEA

INEDs' remuneration

B ERITESHE

INEDs receive fixed fees for their role, no equity-based remuneration with
performance-related elements will be granted to INEDs as this may lead to bias
in their decision-making and compromise their objectivity and independence
BUIEAITEEREBBKIMETR S - A& M AR T 545 BUHE 7 ) AR E R E T 5B
T AEREBHHEARRETZEETEERBE T

Remuneration of INEDs is determined by the Board and subject to a regular
review mechanism to commensurate with their responsibilities and workload

BIYFRTEENFMbBESSE T - AAT s UREREMT(EEBHE

Board decision making

BEFEERE

INEDs are entitled to seek further information and documentation from the
management on the matters to be discussed at board meetings. To facilitate
proper discharge of their duties, they are entitled to seek assistance from the
Company Secretary and, where necessary, independent advice from external
professional advisers at the Company's expense
BUFRTESERANEFEEZ LB TIRNFERNEEERIVE - EHRX
e RARZERITERE  REMAAMNESRKBE RN ERFRINIEEBEMI K
BUER  BRBARQFIRE

The chairman of the Board annually hold meetings with INEDs without the
presence of other directors to discuss major issues and any concerns
EEeIREFREEAMESIESNBERTEBLFNTEFRITEE  UIWEES
18 R AE (] 5E 8

Conflict management
BREE

Declaration of any actual and potential conflicts between their personal interests
and duties as an INED

BREANGEERBE L FRITESNRE 2 HNERER REEHR

Abstain from voting on any board resolution approving any contract or
arrangement in which such director or any of his/her close associates has a
material interest
MEBMAEZESHTMNEETRBARBEEARENTMNEOXTHENEANESSA

2 e AN=:5]
EERE
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Communication and information support

Board communication

e Focus the Board's time and dialogues on key aspects of
strategy, risk and performance.

e Enable meeting efficiency with high quality information.

e Make sure the questions raised or matters arising from
meetings are followed up.

e Arrange private session between Board chairman and INEDs.

e Provide prompt assistance and advice by the company secretary.

Meeting schedule and agenda planning

e Schedule meeting dates and provisional agenda one year in
advance, in line with the annual corporate planning and reporting
cycle, particularly for items requiring Board approval.

e Coordinate the Board and committee meetings to pursue the
strategic goals altogether and reflect on the forward meeting plans.

e Reallocate the Board's time between strategy, operational
performance and governance and compliance matters according
to the Board priorities changing over time.

e |nclude outward and forward looking agenda items for the Board

to chart the course ahead, encourage interactions and insights.

Board paper preparation

e Search for broad-based information that is most relevant and
valuable to the current decision or action that need to be taken
by the Board.

e Being concise and focused on priorities, objective and the
analytics based on facts.

e Set out relevant considerations and implications in the meeting
papers that the Board should be aware of.

e Make it clear on what action or input is needed from the Board.

e Distribute Board papers early enough for directors to consider
the matters thoroughly before the meetings.

e Provide access to the current and the past Board papers and
minutes record via Board meeting apps.

’I 08 Governance
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Information updates between Board meetings
* Monthly updates include:
- Consolidated financial summary against budget
- Media reports about the economic trends, peers, industry,
consumer behaviour, etc.
- Corporate bulletin about our key events, milestones
or achievements
e Quarterly updates on the operational performance with
management analysis.
e Knowledge about the future of our business and market,
emerging strategic, risk and governance issues, more details on
p.105 about the “continuing professional development”.

Compliance and accountability

The Board is responsible for reviewing and monitoring the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, primarily the Listing Rules, the Companies
Ordinance and the Securities and Futures Ordinance; and for
developing, reviewing and monitoring the Company's policies and
practices on corporate governance, the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to directors and employees.

Corporate Governance Code

The Company's corporate governance practices are discussed in
this “Corporate Governance Report”. During the year ended
31 March 2023, the Company was in full compliance with all
applicable principles and code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the "CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules.

Model Code and relevant employees

The Company has adopted a code of conduct on terms no less
exacting than the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “"Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules regarding the securities
transactions by all the directors and those employees who are
likely to come across inside information because of their duties.
Having made specific enquiry of all our directors and relevant
employees, they confirmed that they had complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code and the Company’s
code of conduct during FY2023.
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Inside information disclosure
The Company has established its policy for inside information
disclosures as well as its internal controls on the reporting and

monitoring systems.

Formal escalation path of material information

e Material matters concerning the business, finance and
operations are escalated to the Strategy and Transformation
Committee in a timely manner for them to judge whether inside
information exists and an announcement is required.

e |nvestor Relations and Corporate Communications Department
assists the Board to monitor market signals, including investors’
feedback, share price movements, media and analyst reports,
etc. to see whether a material gap exists between the market
expectation and the Company's real situation.

Controls on the sources of information and the

communication channels

e |nformation used for investor meetings and conferences should be
consistent with published corporate announcements and reports.

e Only designated executive directors, the investor relations and
corporate communications team and authorised personnels are
authorised to speak to or hold meetings with investors or media
on behalf of the Company.

e Code of practices for investor communications:

- Set out a quiet period to refrain from investor relations
activities before results announcement

- Prepare scripts and Q&As to manage the information
released to the public

- Obtain approval from the Board on the results presentation materials

- Keep meeting or conference attendance notes and call logs
for future reference

Financial reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Company and the Group. The
directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Please see the
section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on p.158 - 165.
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Risk management and internal control

Risk is defined as a potential action, event or circumstance that
could impact the Company’s ability, favourably or unfavourably, to
meet its strategic goals. The Group adopts a holistic risk
management and internal control framework to proactively manage
risks, in line with the commitment to deliver sustainable value. The
Audit Committee has reviewed and was satisfied with the
effectiveness and adequacy of our risk management and internal
control systems. Further details are included under the section
headed "“Risk Management Report” on p.120 - 142 in this annual
report.

Independence of external auditor

The Audit Committee has reviewed and was satisfied with the
external auditor’s independence, objectivity and effectiveness of
the audit process. The external auditor may provide certain non-
audit services to the Group given that these do not involve any
management or decision making functions for and on behalf of the
Group; do not perform any self-assessments; and do not act in an
advocacy role for the Group and all approved non-audit services
shall be approved by the Audit Committee.

Remuneration of external auditor

During FY2023, the total fee paid/ payable in relation to audit and
related services provided to the Group amounted to HK$16.1
million, of which a sum of HK$7.0 million was paid/ payable to our
principal auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, and the remaining was
mainly paid/ payable to other auditors performing audit work for the
Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China which were subject to
local statutory requirements. The remuneration paid to
PricewaterhouseCoopers and its affiliated firms for services
rendered is listed as follows:

L B TR 0 o 5D B 4

REEERAEEANRBERARKERNENESL
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FY2022 FY2023

Types of services HK$’000 HK$’'000
RiEER FET FET
Audit and related services! = MABRED 6,573 6,976
Non-audit services®? FEZRTE 3,777 2,476
10,350 9,452

(1) Audit related services comprise review services on interim results, continuing connected
transactions and preliminary announcement and tax compliance service.

(2) Non-audit services comprise cybersecurity and security operations centre service, cloud
transformation and other IT related services provided to the Group. None of these services
provided compromises the independence as auditor, in terms of the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, and were reviewed and
approved by the Audit Committee.
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Evaluation

Area of focus

Purpose and approach

WA

Information source

BREEHE BB =R EHRRR
Board process e Get the right information for the Board, and make the best use of its time e Survey
EELRT AREEGWEABEAN  TEAERR BESHIES

Obtain feedbacks for the company secretary to improve on the information
support, meeting agenda setting and time allocation
ARFAWEENREER URSEAXE  HAREXELKESE
Comprehensive review to be carried out when there are major changes in
strategy and risk landscape, or Board composition

ERBEFARMKRT  HEFSEMEIRRAEHRETEER

Ongoing review based on observation and feedback for the last meeting
ER R EHNBRNREERFERS

Board structure
EEQLE

Appropriate allocation of responsibilities between the Board and various board e
committees to oversee all critical areas of governance

FEFENEEEZEQ HRENDRERE  UEBMBBERNE S8R
Well-defined delegation and reporting obligation between the Board and the management
PRATEFGHERE RNRERBRERLT

Annual review by the Nomination Committee

mitRZ e gFma

Benchmarking
HIEE

Board composition
ExglX

Appropriate board mix of competency and diversity of perspectives in order to e
achieve the Company's long-term goal and strategy
EXSAEMENTMZERANK  UERAEERRE B EFMER .
Annual review by the Nomination Committee

mitRZ B 8FMmy

Survey
SEEIE=
Benchmarking
HIZTH R

Director performance

BERR

Performance of executive directors in the achievement of strategic goals, o
performance targets and financial returns

WITEFEEERB T BREEMPEERIKE

INEDs' time commitment, contribution and independence

B IEMITESHNRERA - ERAE I

Annual review by the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee

mEFHEZEeNERZEegFme

Benchmarking
$IZ

Director development
BEEER

Continuously refresh the knowledge and vision of directors to make sure that e
they stay ahead in the changing environment and challenges in the market
FHETNEFENHMENMRE  BRETHEBEZNRBNTSUBT T TRE

Review the knowledge needs of directors and design appropriate training programmes
R ERM AT ZNR S EEEE

Annual review by the Nomination Committee

HRREZESTFRE

Survey
SESHES

Board leadership and e Private session held at least once a year between INEDs and chairman of e [NEDs' feedback
strategies the Board B IEMITEENRE
EEgMEERENN BURITESHREEE TR IFHIBIT—AHMIEE 2R
ZRRE e QOpen agenda discussion on matters of concern of the Group

HARKEEBETEEETIHERBZEREN R

e May cover a wide range of topics, such as the Group’s strategies, leadership

of the Board, performance of the management, etc.

REEZOEE  PINASENRE ZEFSNEEE)  ERENKERSE
Governance Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATIONS

A shareholders communication policy, which is available on the
Group website, sets out the key principles and practices for an
effective communication and engagement with shareholders and
the investment community for them to make an informed
investment decisions and exercise shareholders’ rights in an

informed manner.

We endeavour to ensure that shareholders and the investment
community are provided with two-way communication channels to
understand the Group’s performance, strategies and prospects;
and also to express their views to our management and the Board
on various matters affecting the Group.

The Audit Committee reviewed and was satisfied with the
implementation and effectiveness of the shareholders communication
policy during the year after the annual assessment based on a
number of factors:

e Quality and timeliness of disclosures

e Frequency of two-way investors communication

e Convenience of communication channels or information
platforms

e Participation of the seasoned and well-trained management

e Clarity of investors' understanding on the Group's strategies
and prospects

e Reliability of performance guidance set by the management

e Management's responses to the propositions of investors,
especially about corporate governance issues or protection of
minority’s interests

e Compliance with obligations to handle or disclose inside

information

Annual Report 2023
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Interactive engagement

e \We adhere to the principles of providing timely, transparent and

effective disclosures with the aim of keeping the market
regularly informed of the Group’s performance and prospects.
We welcome a two-way dialogue with capital market
stakeholders which include our valued shareholders to learn of
market’'s views, correct misperceptions, if any, and allow us an
opportunity to share a comprehensive overview of our business
through management’s perspectives. This includes our views
and approaches towards growth and development as well as
market outlook. Our dedicated Investor Relations team is fully
committed to maintaining an open and constructive dialogue
with our stakeholders.

Our Corporate Communications team develops and executes
effective communication strategies to promote our Group's
reputation. Through these strategies, we aim to deliver timely
corporate information to a diverse range of stakeholders,
including investors and media.

With the shift in pandemic-control measures globally, we have
resumed physical engagement with our global stakeholders
since late 2022. For instance, we hosted post-results offline
roadshows, physically attended investor conferences and
organised store and production site visits. These engagements
helped facilitate the market's understanding about our latest
strategic direction, on-ground business trends as well as our
competitive strengths built over the years.

EmEHAE

BMRF R EAMERORERA
SR EHAERENEBRRRAR

BRE™

HAREBREATSOFNE (BERBMHR)
ETEREE RTHMSEAE A ERME

(WE) TERMEHSBBREEENAENZE
BEBORE - CEERMNYEREREZRNE

ERTA - UEMERE - KRENERREERE
BB EBEMIOFOERERAREERIENE
i o

SEMNCEENEGARERBEEERINIAITHE
MEBBERR EEERERECEEATEZNG
& BEREENEHK-

BEERRMRERNFHE KB 2022F KA
WETHRR2HRFNENERES - fla0 - HAIER
TREREGTRE RELEREESZL R
EEAEREMBES RSB AEPNTISE TER
PR ROBITVRETT [~ B E BB L AR A
LERBINHEFEE -

Investor tour at Shunde Ingenuity Centre
BREEDIBIREE LS ES O

Analyst visit to stores in the Mainland

SITENLBAHPIIE

Governance Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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We value feedback from the investment community. Our
multiple channels of communication and engagement help
deepen our understanding of their concerns and drive effective
communications. Key investors' concerns included the rationale
of our quality expansion strategy, impact from macro-economic
uncertainties, progress and goals of our five strategic priorities, etc.
As part of best practice, we are continuously reviewing the
depth and breadth of our disclosure to enhance the quality and
content across our investor relations collaterals. This will help
with educating the investment community to better appreciate
our corporate narratives and investment proposition. Our
commitment to investor relations best practices and guidelines
is also demonstrated through our pledge to the Hong Kong
Investor Relations Association IR Pledge Program since 2021.
We are delighted that the Group has been included in Hang
Seng Index and MSCI China Index during FY2023. These
supported diversification of our shareholder base and improved
trading liquidity. The number of institutional shareholders
increased promisingly as of March 2023 comparing to a year
ago. The average daily trading volume surged by high double-
digit percentage post announcement of index inclusion versus
the pre-announcement period in FY2023.

In 2023, the Group was granted and upgraded rating of A (on a
scale of AAA-CCC) in the MSCI ESG Ratings assessment. This
recognises our efforts in the ESG perspective.

In FY2023, the Group received various accolades in recognition
of our relentless effort in corporate governance and investor
relations. Please refer to Major Awards and Recognitions on
p.8-11.

MSCI

ESG RATINGS

[ccc] B

| BB [ BBB | [ AA [AAA]|

BHMERRERANRE - RABBZRENBBE
EBHEMBFMRT BRENETIEE  XRER
BB - REEMINIZFEBERMETSE
EXBMERMOER ZELETEERRNOR
2 BMOAEBIHNERKBES -

ERREENN - - RASERIBRENRE
HEE - AmaRMREEREERBANEES
NE - ERAPRRERTHHIERRMOLER
A E R EEE - HPIARB I RTREERE
B SEEN - TE2021FR2EFBREEBE
WhE IR E & B REAGERTE o

FAPIIR = B 52 [ 70 2023 B F E R A A B 4R
BEMSCIm B - AR T HMBRERNS
e YIRE TR SRE M - R202343 /K © #
BRRNBAREFHEZRLER - 2023 HRFEA -
BEERERSENSMNAEBRREMAINIES
ELADL -

120234 - AEBAEMSCl ESGRF B T B
ABRAAAECCCH) - ERDBE T HRIMAER
FoHgRARERLENE S -

2023 BEE - AEBEERZERE  RERME
EEERMREEBRETENTHE N - FLHE
8RN AEEEANSER -

PLEDGE
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Meetings by investor event in FY2023
2023 B EEER (RREFEHIEH)

Summary of investor relations activities in FY2023

2023 MBI EIREEFAREHME

271 68%

One-on-one and group meetings  C-level participation rate"

f— —Y-REEEE BEEEESHEE
Meeting and conference call

EHEREEEE

o 16 16
Investor conference

REEMTS
Non-deal roadshows

— 2% B ok
Non-deal roadshow FRBRR

FRZHBA

16%

Investor conferences

REEWNE

(1) Ininvestor conference and non-deal roadshow meetings
RREEFH G RIRHERTNSE

Major investor conferences that we participated in FY2023 are set MR2023BFELEMRAGEESH

out below:

June 2022
2022%6 A

Nomura Investment
Forum Asia 2022
FANEE AR

DBS Vickers 2022 Pulse
of Asia Mini-Conference
ERBEEME

Morgan Stanley Virtual
Asia BEST Conference
ERTAFREERS

July 2022
2022%7AH

BOCI China Consumer
Corporate Day
FIRERRE B

August 2022
2022%8A

Nomura Virtual China
Investor Forum 2022

BHEEMRTE

BofA China Luxury &
Consumer Investor Fieldtrip

KIRBREERN S

’I ’I 6 Governance

BA

September 2022
2022%9 A8

34 Annual
Jefferies Asia Forum
BinitEEMNTE

29" Annual CITIC CLSA
Flagship Investors’ Forum
PEESREERNE

November 2022
2022118

J.P. Morgan’s Asia
Consumer 1x1 Forum 2022
ERABRE SRS

December 2022
2022%F12A8

Changjiang
Securities Conference

RIBEFREENTE

Guotai Junan
Securities Conference
BERBERREEMT S

January 2023
2023%1A

Citi's Consumer
Corporate Day 2023
KR EEMTE

Morgan Stanley Virtual China
Opportunity Conference

ERTARREERTE

UBS Greater China
Conference 2023
iR E & E

February 2023
2023%2A

Daiwa Investment Conference
Tokyo 2023
AN EEH 2

March 2023
2023%3A

GF Securities Conference
BEIAFIREER NS

26" Credit Suisse Asian
Investment Conference
InfsiREEMFE

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AREBHREEEER DA



Multiple channels of communication and engagement

SRENBEHEEE

Channels £

Analyst results
conferences

SITEEGE

Annual general meeting

(“AGM")
RERBEXE

Active engagement

with analysts
and media

B 43 T B R SR B
BB EE)

Corporate
reporting

EERE

Investor meetings,
conferences

and non-deal
roadshows
BEEEHR

et &R SRR

Group website
B

Electronic
communication
E¥iEH

Annual Report 2023
2023 F#§

Held analyst conferences for interim and annual results. Under the pandemic, events were
conducted through live webcasts instead of physical meetings during the financial year
BITHERZFEBENINEENE - ERBEZET  MFEARTHRMS AR L EERRER SR VET
Hosted conference calls on announcements of quarterly key operational data
BITHEFEIELLHEBELEHMANEESE

Announcements, presentations and webcasts are available on the Group website

FEAE BHRAGHREFRESBE AL

Maintained face-to-face communication with shareholders in 2022 AGM, under pandemic
precautionary measures

EE MG T - #RFERRE 2022 FIRFBERNGHHR S 0

The Board and external auditors presented to answer the questions raised by shareholders
B g RIMBZEEN K FE & % AR AR AR

Detailed explanation for each proposed resolution in the circular, with high approval rate on
resolutions passed

REBEHAHBIERERAD  RERES BB

Resumed organising visits to our production facilities and POS for investors in FY2023
FE2023 B FEMERFIREE DD RMNEERERTER

Arranged small group or one-on-one gatherings with prominent media in FY2023
FE20230 B E e HE Bl & B EIR(E NS — S — B

Handled over 170 investors' enquires, around 50 media interviews and enquiries
RIFBEBI70EIREEE A - H50EKEHRER

Over 20 research analysts cover our Company in their reports on a regular basis
B20EMADITERARAEPERRE

Announcements, annual and interim reports, results presentations and press releases
NE S 2ERPHRE  FEHRTTER

Quarterly voluntary announcements of key operational data

BREAMEENEELEHE

Stayed connected with investors around the world through both virtual and physical events
in FY2023

M 2023 BT 25 B4R £ KRG T /EB Bt R Z 0 H)1R 8 HRISHE

Executive directors responsible for different business areas attended meetings to address
investors' concerns

BETRERSEBNRTESHR SR ABEREEMINEIR

Updated on results, quarterly announcements and corporate activities
EHAEE EONEE  FEASREEEZHAEM

Enriched content to demonstrate the Group's business initiatives
CENREERNAUE RSB ERRE

Email alert service

BEIRTRE

Email to Investor Relations and Corporate Communications team: ir@chowtaifook.com (for
investors); media@chowtaifook.com(for media)

BEEBRRECESNEKNE S EEH

ir@chowtaifook.com (3% & %) ; media@chowtaifook.com ({5#)

Corporate Governance Report
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Shareholder rights and other information
Shareholder(s) are entitled by the Articles and are also encouraged
to participate in the Company's general meetings or appoint
proxies to attend and vote.

Request to convene a general meeting and put
forward proposals

Shareholder(s) holding not less than 10% of the Company’s paid-
up capital may request the Board to convene an extraordinary
general meeting and put forward proposals. The objectives of the
meeting must be stated in the related requisition signed and
deposited with our company secretary at the Company's
headquarters at 33/F, New World Tower, 16-18 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong.

Nomination of director for election

If a shareholder wishes to nominate a person for election as
director in a general meeting, the particulars of the candidate must
be stated in a nomination notice signed by such shareholder and
deposited together with a notice of willingness signed by the
candidate to our company secretary at the Company's
headquarters or at our Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar (Tricor
Investor Services Limited, 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16
Harcourt Road, Hong Kong) of the Company. The notice should be
given at least seven days prior to the date of such general meeting.

Making enquiries
e Email to Investor Relations and Corporate Communications
Department and the Board at ir@chowtaifook.com.

Dividend policy
e Strikes a balance between making an efficient use of capital to
strengthen our business development and rewarding our
shareholders with a participation in the Company's profits.
¢ No pre-determined dividend payout ratio.
e Factors considered by the Board in determining the amount and
form of dividend:
- the Group's cash flows and financial position
- its earnings capacity and the economic outlook
- its business development plans and capital requirements etc.
e Usually declares dividends twice a year, in the absence of

special circumstances.

Governance
E /Cl

I RENFIH th E
RARMANE T IR R R AR R hHBRESEK
FAE  ABRRRBBLRREAS LTS -
BERBARRAERIZE2HH

FENLPRARF 0% BB AR ERESE
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RDR @B R BELREAET 16-185H tt 7
RE334# -
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Full year dividend payout ratio” ZEREE
For the year ended 31 March #iZ3A31H L FE

100.0%

90.0% 82.7%

76.59
80.0% ./°/0
70.0%

60.0%

66.4%/.
°

50.0%
40.0%
30.0%
20.0%
10.0%

0.0%

92.9%

74'5/

——
Full year dividend payout ratio
2EREE

2019 2020 2021 2022

(1) Special dividend excluded

Constitutional documents

The memorandum and articles of association of the Company were
amended during the year in order to (i) conform to the uniform set
of 14 core standards for shareholder protections as set out in the
amended Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules and (ii) to facilitate the
conduct of general meetings in a hybrid mode via attendance by
electronic means in addition to a physical meeting or in wholly
virtual mode via electronic means. The Company adopted the new
memorandum and articles of association that was approved by the
shareholders of the Company at the annual general meeting held
on 27 July 2022. The new memorandum and articles of association
is available on both the Company’'s website and the Stock
Exchange’'s website. Details of the major and other changes
brought about by the adoption of the new memorandum and
articles of association are set out in the circular of the Company
dated 16 June 2022.

Market capitalisation

Approximately HK$155.8 billion as at 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022:
HK$142.6 billion), based on the total number of 10,000,000,000
issued shares and the closing price of HK$15.58 per share.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of this annual report, the prescribed public float of
not less than 10.7% has been maintained, which is a lower minimum
percentage of public float accepted at the discretion of the Stock
Exchange. On the basis that Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited held
approximately 72.4% of the total issued shares in the Company (as
shown in the disclosure of interests on the Stock Exchange’s website
as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual
report), the public float amounted to not more than approximately
27.6% of the total number of issued shares in the Company.

Annual Report 2023
2023 F ik

(1) NEERHIES

HEERXH
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EEMARBFKRE
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NAEREREEMM  AAREFEIMNEE
MOBEZIABEREESETDLN10.7% 1%
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited B A2 72 #178%
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RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT

RiEEERS

The Board acknowledges the importance of adequate and effective
risk management and internal control systems which assist them
in understanding the Group's risk profile, allocating resources to
manage key risks and making risk-reward optimised business
decisions for business planning.

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT (“ERM”)
FRAMEWORK

ERM is a much-needed core competency and essential tool that
helps the Group continually creates, sustains, and delivers
stakeholder value. We believe a structured approach and
framework around ERM-related processes and governance are
critical to the success of our ERM. During the financial year, we
have refined our ERM framework which is tailored to the
circumstances and business context of the Group. Our ERM
framework comprises the following elements:

SRESHIE

7. Risk Capability
Building
[B\ e TR
CEAL:: 3E

6. Emergency

5. Effectiveness and
Performance Tracking

FREEANZR I 8 M

Governance
E /El

1. Business Objective
and Strategy Setting

S EIEA

ERM Framework
Oversight

Risk Culture & Risk Strategy
Risk Governance Model

ﬁ%ﬂ%”ﬁi%ﬁg

Preparedness SR Evaluation
. B A b B B N
REE H&Emﬁm [R\ B E

4. Risk Mitigation

Exerfine  AUANEAREERABERERGZ
EE2YN ZFEERADMBOHBAEENE RN
DEERAEBEIZRAMBURBEBREELELR
PR m R SRR -

ERE IR EEELR

TtERRERET - BLFTNRORINEETA  F§
BYAREE B RiF0H & A - RS RER - M
HiE REERREBHBREMERTE AR
HFEMER D RERBEZEKINO AR - R IBEF
ER- ZMETECERBERESR  ZERDIRE
REBNBAMEBEREHEE - RFIWEERR
ERIERBATEREN :

2. Risk

Identification
e 4l

3. Risk

and Control

% 8 S AN
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ERM FRAMEWORK OVERSIGHT
Risk culture & risk strategy

Our risk culture and risk strategy provide the overall direction and
consistent practices within the Group to achieve ERM objectives:

e Balance business risks and returns and support risk-based
decision-making.

e Facilitate the achievements of the Group's strategic goals through
better identification of sustainability-related opportunities
and threats.

e Develop a common understanding of risk across different
business functions to manage risk cost-effectively on an
enterprise-wide basis.

e Commit to integrity, business ethics, and legal compliance.

During FY20283, in order to reinforce the common understanding of
risk management and the direction for risk evaluation and
management across the Group, we define our risk appetite in a
qualitative manner covering the key considerations of the Group’s
senior management regarding sustainable development, as well as
the expectations of our external stakeholders. To this end, our risk
appetite statement includes considerations in dimensions of legal
and compliance, reputation and image, financial impact, operational
impact, health and safety, and environmental protection.

We recognise a strong risk culture is shaped by leadership,
effective communication, and proper policies and standards. We
have therefore adopted the following practices to sustain our risk
culture:

TEEBEREREE

JERL B 3 1 b 522 o B SR B

BMEOER AR EREMCEARTENE
BEMAEHEBABER  UEHOEEREE
O

o TEIEBREMRMEE - a5 ARG ASERN
REE -

s BBNNMBAIHELRRAENKENEE  BIK
EEERERIERRE -

o TRMESRAEEAFT 2 MK E R HFIBE -
NERECEEBERETHERANGENERER -

o HARNMIE - BRERMETIEM -

RS iRE S — AR EIRIER R EERE B2 AR
FHEEEIRRES R > SEER 2023 BFENREMET
AEHFEERMORARRLY - REEREFEERE
TEENSSEHARSEERNEZZEEAEZRE
BN NENRE  BEERRAR BETER
BBTE EEFE RBEAREUNRERELE
tmEs -

HMRBRBEOERXCT ARG - BRUEE
BEBRMERNEEMAK - FHUt HAIRBIATER -
SEBEREMOER X

Leadership °

BERED business meeting agenda

Involve sustainability considerations and operational risk management topics in business plans and

REBTENEBSRAREP N LEIREERNEERREREERREESEHE
e Review and validate the ERM Framework regularly and lead by example to demonstrate the

right tone at the top

EHEENBICERMERER - WASIER - RPN REEES

Internal communication e

Conduct workshops and issue regular information letters to promote the risk culture

W ESEIE B S I EME R - UHEERR XL
e Set clear escalation procedure for reporting risk issues
FERR = B I E AR ERIE
e Set up grievance and whistleblowing channels for our staff to report suspected fraud and
misconduct
BETRVHFRBRRE  UWERREBRELERTETA
Policies and standards e Establish Code of Conduct, Anti-Fraud Policy, Whistleblowing Policy, Anti-Money Laundering
BURFZER) Policy, and Best Practice Principles for Suppliers to reinforce our expected ethical values and
conduct
HIE4LERFRI - REBHECR - BIIRBUR - ROAEBUR R ER & ESEIEE - DOt RMTEERER
ks
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Risk governance model

Our risk governance model is designed to assist the Board of
Directors and Board Committees to carry out ongoing oversight
and monitoring on the effectiveness of our ERM system. The
model defines clear risk roles and structure to reinforce the risk-
related accountability and transparency across the Group.

We believe a well-coordinated and integrated collection of all the
resources and expertise necessary to support the governance,
assurance of performance, risk, and compliance activities is critical
for the Group to meet its business objectives in the ever-changing
business environment and regulatory landscape. An integrated
approach is adopted among resources from 3 lines of defence
within the Group to manage and enhance risk management
initiatives with adequate facilitation and coordination.

Board of Directors

B EaRE
RPNAREARLSERYEFENESZAEH
EEENERRMEEEARERRANRY - REE
SRR AR UNBFEERRRE
RN EE REAE -

BPEEHRANESREXRED  BRURE - Bk
REFRTEHER LB ERNH - 668 B E T B #
WERREERFPENEBBEE - HAUGEEFR
RENI=ZEHROEIR - WiE BT D KR E R
T N5 2 B T 3B T4 o

Report &

Strategy and

Transformation Committee

RN EESE

Report &

ExgE

Assurance {3 &

Audit Committee
BZEEE

Report &

Group Risk Management Committee (“GRMC")

Report %

KRERBEEZESE

-

First Line
of Defence Facilitation

H—ES R

Risk
Owners
BB E

BEA

Governance
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E/El

\

Report #e&

Second Line of Defence Third Line
EESR o of Defence
Group level EE: COO;}%‘%E’UO” E=EMR
Corporate Governance Department i Int(::rnal
TR I Audit and
Whistleblowi
Segment level $3EmHT : lsofiic:rwmg
Executive Office PEBEIL R
1THBUER EipEE
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Roles
AR

Responsibilities
B

Board of Directors

)

Evaluate and determine the Group's risk appetite in achieving its strategic objectives
A REEAREBERKRE B ZRNRBREZE

Ensure that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems
BRAEEZINEFCBERERNRAREERABEZE RS

Review the adequacy & effectiveness of the risk management and internal

control systems

BE R EIE R AR RS 2 7R RERIE

Strategy and Transformation
Committee
RKENNELZES

Review risk and control issues through regular reviews and GRMC reports
BRTHREIENEERREEZESRE  RRAKBREKAREEE
Suggest the priority of risk management efforts at group level
REEEmAKRERELAFIREES

Drive risk-conscious culture and promote control environment

B R PR B A b R AEIRE

Audit Committee
EBEZEEE

Oversee the internal audit function and the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems on behalf of the Board
REEZGEENITETBERRAREERAPEE RS2 ERERE

Group Risk Management Committee
("GRMC")
SERKREREZES

Maintain the ERM framework and drive improvement for the processes
HELERREBER  RESHRENZCE
Confirm the results of the Group's annual principal risk assessment, and to arrange and
implement mitigation measures for high-risk issues in collaboration with the relevant
business units

REFEEFZREBTEAER - RiGEEBEBHFISE SRR FELE R E iR LEE
Monitor the implementation of risk management plans and oversee the effectiveness
of process controls
EREREEGTEHNETER  EBREFEENKR

First Line of Defence — Risk Owners
F-ENE - RREESEA

Manage, monitor, and report key risks in line with applicable policies and procedures
REBEANBREANER 512 BERMRESHREER

Accountable for the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control
HAPER AR REREER
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2023 F ik
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Roles Responsibilities

AR BHiE
Second Line of Defence — Corporate ® Support GRMC on the risk and control functions
Governance Department TREERREREZERITRR KRB
—EMR - DEERE e Provide guidance to establish, refine and monitor critical group policies, procedures, and

standards to reinforce risk management and internal control systems
RETE  NERERSENRBECK  BFREL - URRBRERERANPELERFR
55l

e Facilitate internal and external communication on the Group's risk management, and
report effectively and regularly to the Group management on the progress and
effectiveness of the risk management initiatives
REEERBEET/ENABRINGER  TASMEHNEEEEEEREERRER
TAVE#E B

e (Coordinate and monitor governance, risk and compliance activities in collaboration with
risk owners

HERAEREASIE  BAMEEER  RBRMNARED

Second Line of Defence — Executive e Coordinate, drive and monitor the implementation of risk management and internal

Office control initiatives in business segments in accordance with the Group's strategy
FBMER - TEE BEEERE %A HHUERTREHBPIRNTRBREIRE R ADEERE

e Allocate resources to business segments for risk mitigation initiatives; provide guidance
and support to Risk Owners; and coordinate with business units to meet the Group’s
risk management reporting requirements
HEBIPFINERESEEETERAR  YRARKBEESEEARRESINZE - KiH#A
EBHBPIEAEERBRERERT R

Third Line of Defence — Internal Audit e Internal Audit — Validate the effectiveness of risk controls through internal audit and

and Whistleblowing Officer identify improvement opportunities as appropriate
FE-ER - NHERMBREE NEEZ - FBANBEZREFERETNERE - UHANGENERLS

e \Whistleblowing Officer - Manage and investigate misconduct and fraud cases, and
review the effectiveness of remedial actions
BREE - ERBRFAETETRARERRM - W HKITERR

’I 24 Governance Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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1.BUSINESS OBJECTIVE AND STRATEGY
SETTING

Risks are inherent in our business activities and can relate to
strategic goals and business performance. We aim at integrating
risk management into the strategic planning and monitoring
process, resulting in a practical and continuous process.

Strategy planning and monitoring process

1. %% B EF R 5 E

BMNEBEDFEEARR  EAERIEIEE R
MELARE - RMEESRREERARERSIME
ERIE - MK ENFENRIE -

RIEHREIFIRERAE

e The Strategy and Transformation Committee establishes business objectives and
strategies to achieve performance targets and strategic goals endorsed by the Board
Business RESFRNEZ B HIE 2B BIEMNRE  LEREESRUNEREZMREE T

objectives and
strategies setting

15 252 BRI RS * These objectives and strategies are cascaded to our operational units through
broad-based engagement activities, ensuring alignment across the Group
BBETHEHEY  KZEFEENRKEEELESR L URREASENEE

v

e QOperational units are responsible for identifying the internal and external issues and

Risk and
opportunities
identification

events affecting our ability to achieve established objectives and strategies
EEEN B EHRIRZERMESRE BRI A DR SNB R AN F

£ 2 2 B RIS e Corporate Governance Department and Executive Offices in business segments
assist and facilitate the risk identification process

R EEA B R BRI IRGAT TERED i B AN (2 HE [

e il

v
e GRMC assesses the identified risks and opportunities and sets the reasonable
expectation on the amount of risk of achieving such business objectives and
. strategies
L SERREEESSTEMEIINRREME RS EHRIEAERORRIZE T
review and AJETEH
- =] R7
evaluation
BB R i e The possibility of the strategies not aligning with the Group’s objectives and the
implications from the strategies chosen will also be evaluated at this stage
TE UL P ER I AT Ak SR G B4R [ B S T A O AT RE 1 I T SRR O 2 28
v
e Operational units are accountable for executing the chosen strategies
EIB BN BT RITATR R
e The Strategy and Transformation Committee reviews and monitors the progress of
Strategy strategy implementation and risk mitigation through regular meetings
execution and RSN EZ B RA T NSRS MEERE iR B0 E e e a0 &
monitoring
RIBRITRER e Management Committees are set up to supervise the attainment of the Group's

objectives for relevant areas, such as business innovation and transformation,
intellectual capital enhancement, brand positioning, and marketing strategy
R EBREEE  BEASEESUEEEE BIEMIEN  fIanETEaIRT e 8 HEREH

AR RETE (L AN 85 SR B
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2.RISK IDENTIFICATION 2. & ek Bl
Precise risk identification allows us to manage the risk inventory BrEEEMERMEE SR EIERREE T
more effectively and understand its relationship with the business RE SR - BIZFMRBNBER -
strategies, objectives, and performance.
RISK IDENTIFICATION PURPOSE J& &8 53l B Y
Immerse in business context and goals to manage risk inventory effectively

RATREBEESNER AREERREE

RISK IDENTIFICATION CHANNELS & %z Bl i& 18

Strategic Internal & Risk
Planning External Brainstorming
Process Audit Workshops

REEREEF RERE: ShEB RSB TS

Stakeholder

Data Whistleblowing Process Research & Seminars &

Tracking Mechanism Review Benchmarking Workshops Ez‘g?i?/ietir;]::t
B | = B RAE R BEER] TEY .
HiEEH IR BFme WM R 5% B TS, $hin 2 B ER TR
Internal Risks Emerging Risks ESG-related Risks
BB /L B R R AR R AR

L J

Risk Inventory JE gi&EE

( RISK INVENTORY CATEGORIES 355! w
Governance,
Strategic Products & Operational Financial Compliance and
Risks Services Risks Risks Risks Sustainability Risks
REEERER Em B R L EEERRE gy VN BB AER
AHERRERRE

* More details of our stakeholder engagement activities are included in our Sustainability Report. Please scan the
following QR code to access our report:
EREBNEZEEINEE NERTFERRBER - BHREUT ZEBUEGEERS

E44E
i3
=]

’I 26 Governance Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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Main features of the risk identification

framework

| Bk Bl 2 SR Y B A B

Diversified risk
identification channels
Z ALK R B B R

To ensure the completeness of our risk inventory, we have established diversified risk identification
channels and with ongoing optimisation in our top-down and bottom-up risk management approach
to identify internal, emerging, and changing risks that might affect the achievement of our business
objectives and strategies

ARREREENTEN  RMBLZHECHERZRE  THEBCEME LM TRE TN EAE
BMEEHR - USRI AT BERES B IR AR A NS0 - BT EATE b e R b

Portfolio view of risks
EpEEE

To ensure we are well-positioned to determine whether the residual risk profile aligns with the
overall risk appetite, our risk inventory is categorised to facilitate the formation of a portfolio view
of risk, allowing us to consider the type, severity, and interdependencies of common

risks collectively

ARREMEANTHERSGRARKAZEHEERNAREZE KMBERBEESE  EREKBHES
B FERMA-rEEARNRREL  REREMELEER

During FY2023, we took into account the latest situation of the Group and classified the risks faced
by the Group into five major categories, namely strategic, product and service, operational, financial
and governance, compliance and sustainability risks, and subdivided them into different risk items
with enhanced risk descriptions to help define the risk events

2023 BUEERN - KMEASENSEFERER LEEDHARMEEFESARE  Emnl
Ri% - &8 WMBENER AERIBEERAAERR  WHSETRREKER RE(CEBE
gt DA B E & ELRR S

Risk inventory
management
E BB EE

We will perform a periodic review on the risk inventory in centralised approach to ensure the

existing risks are still applicable and relevant and also identify the changes to the existing risks
BB THRRSEHRBIBE - URRRBRRDAERMEEH - WHHIHRERRNEL

Our risk inventory is also informed by the results of internal risk assessments and risk assurance
works, as well as insights from various industry sources

HPOREBRBEENRZZERNBRBIFEMAREE TIENER  URREZERALHNRR

To ensure our ERM Framework incorporates the evolving risk landscape appropriately, our risk
inventory also addresses hot topics in risk management like ESG-related risks and cybersecurity risks
RERBMANCERREEEREEHMATEZNRRAR  BANRREETELSERERN
HPIFERE - PlnA B RAFRRMNAE 2 2 EAR
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3.RISK EVALUATION 3. JE b e 1

The risk evaluation framework enables us to understand the BB EIERBHEMTHAR 2B AIEFENHEE
interdependencies that may exist among risks and to inform the R WAEERRESRBEREKE -
selection of risk response.

RISK EVALUATION PURPOSE E&:F{&EiY

Identify the root causes and interdependencies among risks and inform the selection of risk response
B R R VAR AN R AR B BE 2 - 0 A B IR R PR T HE e 1R AR IR

RISK EVALUATION METHODOLOGIES & TOOLS E & &HERIE

1 )

Qualitative Assessment Quantitative Assessment
AR % RS
Interviews Workshops Surveys Sensitiv_ity Financial Cost—Ben_efit
i THELS mEEE Analysis Models \AnLaIy/sm
BURE DM IR R AT BRAMEE DT

L )

RISK ASSESSMENT &

Operational Level Entity Level Assessment
Assessment Assessment Result Review
BERBETME EEETL HEERER

L | )

Risk Heat Map
SER R AR

Governance Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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Main features of the risk evaluation framework B PEsE L EZR ) EE SR

Holistic risk assessment
2E KRS

The severity of risks is assessed at multiple levels by risk owners, Corporate Governance
Department, and GRMC to ensure comprehensive risk assessment

FERAEE  CEELHNEERREEZEERZEBETARARNEEN  UBRRE2ENER
b

Risk owners in operational units are responsible to assess the risks individually at least once a year
and the operational assessment result will be escalated to the Corporate Governance Department
for entity level assessment

CEBUMERAEESEASBTEZLEFEMTERR R WEEETEER FROEE ABET
EERETH

The focus of the entity level assessment is to assess the risk interaction, in which the Corporate
Governance Department will consider those severe risks identified at the operational level and
group common risks across operational units and assess the risk level collectively
CEEETENERSTGHARNEERE  HheEEal8EEASELEREANERERR -
Wi g EEMMHERARBRSAE - — Ok R R & R K T

The final assessment result is depicted on the risk heat map, which will be reviewed by GRMC
RETEAEREERNEEBRERRARE  VHEERAREREEZESHE

Relevant and appropriate
risk evaluation criteria
HBEAREE 1 R R R

Evaluation criteria including the impact to business and likelihood of occurrence are used to

assess the severity of risks
MATEER (AEHEBOTZEMBEEN AL T E R REN

During the period, we continue to refine our risk assessment tools to establish multi-
dimensional risk consequence rating profiles against the Group’s risk appetite focus to help
facilitate comprehensive risk assessment

HA - ZMHEECARTGIA  SREBEERFETEIAM - B 2EFNERRERBR - BB
EE2EA RS

In addition to the evaluation criteria that we would use for evaluating operational risks, we also
use “importance to stakeholders” as one of the criteria to prioritise the ESG-related risks. We
engage both internal and external stakeholders to identify and evaluate ESG-related risks
which may have significant impacts to our stakeholders

B—MRARFELCERBROEZRI  BFTE EFHENEZE | ERAFGAIHERREHRR
BERERFERIZ — BERNBAMINBIFHEL2EBRNTE IS MEEERATENAFE
R AR AR
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4. RISK MITIGATION AND CONTROL

The risk mitigation and internal control framework deals primarily
with risk reduction. The structure of our risk mitigation and control
framework is informed by principles outlined by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission's
("COSO") integrated framework for effective internal controls.

4. [3 Bz FE 4 F0 422

[A\fp EE A AR B 2R = 2 B R ERE R - T
179 8 3 B FE A0 B R AE R 2 H 2 R 7 Committee
of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway
Commission ([COSOJ) 2z A #BEE 1 4R & 1E SR &) R A
if i 5E

RISK MITIGATION PURPOSE [E[&FEEB1E

Reduce the likelihood or impact of the risk
R AR R A&

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM A#BBsiE R4

-

CONTROL ENVIRONMENT

\

CONTROL INFORMATION & COMMUNICATION

IR RIEEERBR
. . . . Quality
Commitment to integrity Risk . . Internal External
. Information with L .
and ethical values Governance Model data analytics Communication Communication
R nep (o T yae /s g H'.:A::A“u Hes _;L -‘E‘;%
& ERBEEEE ERREAER HE AN RBEES AERER INERER
CONTROL ACTIVITIES Eif=igs)
Preventive Detective Corrective
Controls Controls Controls
FERL BRIt R T A ETEIEHE

L |

)

INTERNAL CONTROL ASSESSMENT AZBEs =Tt

Operational units
self-assessment
EEEVNEERTE

’I 30 Governance

RN
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Internal Audit

independent assessment
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Main features of the risk mitigation and control  E[§FEEH RiZFIIERM T EISE

framework

Strong control °
environment

BEEHIRE

Promote honesty and integrity among our staff on a day-to-day basis
ERREERE THEENE RAEXE

Foster an environment in which our people are knowledgeable and committed to carrying out

internal control across the Group
BEEETANRYB N EAEEEFHITASEETIENRE

Put into place policies and standards, such as Anti-Fraud Policy, Code of Conduct, Whistleblowing
Policy, Anti-Money Laundering Policy, to enhance our commitment to integrity and ethical values
HERERBEE  LAETH  BHRBEERREEBRSBREER - #EANEK MY REREEEE
BN A

Effective risk & control

communication
BXERREZEER

Quality Information with data analytics — We are dedicated to exercise deeper application of data
analytics techniques to convert data to risk management information in order to identify control
weakness and evaluate the effectiveness of risk responses

HEINMREEER - RMBNREEREBE RN - #BBEE(CARRERER - AHRIEZES
B0 AT A 3B FE T O B AR

Internal communication — We adopt both top-down and bottom-up approaches to ensure
management and risk owners are aware of risks that fall into their area of responsibility and risk
responses are consistently implemented. Top-down communication includes regular training and
town hall meetings. Bottom-up communication includes regular Strategy and Transformation
Committee meetings and quarterly GRMC meetings

NERER - BAAEREGE Ef FAE T Ef A% BREEEMNRREREEMEEABEGERNNRE -
WHEREMEITRRELRERE - B LM FABBRIEEREIIN2ESE - B M EAEBBETEHN
KENNEZEGEANEGTFENEEAREREZEERR

External communication — We perform risk assessments, scans, and surveys with external risk
experts to identify external events that might affect the achievement of the Group’s objectives
SNEDIE B - BRI R BERETREAR TG - FEMAM - HBIFT e B EBAEEB ZHH
BHEM

Internal control .
assessment
P RBEE AT 1

Operational units are responsible to perform an annual self-assessment to assess their

performance in promoting effective control practices
BEBEMARNTFEARTE  AFFEEREGRERERFEMNRR

Internal audit is responsible to perform independent assessments of key control activities to

ensure compliance and conformity of internal control to pre-determined standards
AMBEZABEB UM EAREREED  UIRRADEERE RETHETEE
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FY2023 PRINCIPAL RISKS

Through the application of the above business and strategy setting,
identification, evaluation, and mitigation and control framework, we
have identified and responded to the following principal risks in

2023 BB B E EE b

FEBER L EBREEGIE MR AEREY
Ay HIEZR - FAPIR 2023 B B E # R 3 B E AT
E2ER

FY2023:

Risk
Business strategies Risks Controls & mitigation trend
EBRE -1 ERREHEE Rz

Leverage franchisee
model to deepen
market penetration
ERmEmER - DUR
femiz2Ex

Risk of poor franchisee
management

MEEEERENRR

Nurture relationship with franchisees and retail partners by
dedicated teams through continuous dialogues
HEEEGENBEERTERHFEYFEEEBBE
Establish clear selection and assessment mechanism,
including conducting thorough background checks on

key franchisees

FTSL0E WPk FORT (A ) -
FE

Implement a “White Paper for Franchisees” with a list of
red lines in our Mainland franchise business to enhance
franchisee awareness of violations through punishment
execution

Wi MMBEBTISEMR T [MBEEAKE] - JIRBRAKE
RGBT - IR N R R B R B

Reinforce our monitoring on franchisees through
whistleblowing mechanism, special audit programme and
data analytics in franchised POS

FABRmES - MBETEHNFIEZ B RBESN - R
MRS

BESEHMEAGETIRENES

Expand our retail
network to gain market
share

BRE
B

EMH AL KT

Risk of inventory loss in
stores

ERFEELRR

Optimise store inspection mechanism continuously,
including product sampling rules, and enhance the expertise
of inspectors to ensure inventory protection
FHEECPIEEERS  BREERBERMIURRS - BARES
ABWMHBEKE BREFEFIRE

Implement data analytics to assess risk levels of stores,
including to identify abnormal inventory movements and
predict inventory loss exposure, and gradually extend the
application to all segments of the Group
FRBEST A ERKRFIEERRRRE  BEEEFEED
WHRFEEEANER  TESERERESREER
Reinforce a culture of ethics and integrity in workplace and
enhance the risk awareness of staff through regular sharing
of cases and business abnormal information
e TEZmaEEEEEX  WEBTEHRS
AERELREURABIRBRER

EX S

E

Risk level increased during FY2023
2023 B B = A LB KT B 7

Governance
E /Cl

Risk level remained broadly the same
as FY2022

Risk level decreased during FY2023
2023 B B JE A AL Bk 7 T B

822022 T F VR BK T IRE
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Business strategies

RIS

Risks
R B%

Controls & mitigation
EH R FE S

Risk
trend
RzEs

Understand customer
preferences and
purchase behaviour
THRERENRESE
15

Risk of customer privacy e

breach
EPALBERRR

Establish the Privacy Governance Committee and formally
appoint a Data Protection Officer responsible for privacy-
related tasks, including formulating privacy management
policy documents

B RBROAEZE S  WEAZHHEBRRETEERLEEL
15 BIEERILERBR T

Observe the impact of latest changes in the Mainland’s
privacy protection regulations on our operations and conduct
rectification for high-risk areas
TRAMGEHNLBRELZFAZHHERSRBEENTE
S 3 e R B B3R B 1T BB

Design and implement corresponding system security
control in accordance with compliance requirements
RERERJE REEAEEN R G 25

Raise staff awareness of personal data and privacy
protection through privacy training

RPRBALFEEEI - R B THREAAEHNEBLLEH

=N

Offer curated retail
experiences to enrich
our product offerings
and differentiation
RESEAHHENT
ER% - UEERMY
EmEENERERNE

Risk of intellectual
property (“IP")
infringement

RILABE R E

Manage the registration of trademarks and commodity IP
rights through an intellectual property management system
FRABEREEERREEEEN ST LA M A HERTR
Monitor and analyse the actual or possible infringement
cases of our IP rights continuously and take action to
address them
BEEERSMERNKAIERILMBERNORNG - WIELEE
178

Enhance brand awareness and market influence to combat
infringement

RAGBBAZERTEZENMTERETA

Provide regular training for our staff to raise their awareness
of the protection of IP rights and avoid infringement
RETHEIEINRSEIHRENSREROEZLERE
TR

Risk level increased during FY2023
2023 B B = A LB KT B
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2023 F ik

Risk level remained broadly the same

as FY2022
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2022 R FE BRI T ARE
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Risk

Business strategies Risks Controls & mitigation trend
EBRR BB ERREHEE RIES
Apply technology Risk of technology e Develop and update cybersecurity policies and procedures

solutions to enhance disruption or cyber threats (including incident response plans, disaster recovery plans

operational efficiency B4l o B sk AR 4% B O R B and business continuity plans) to enhance overall

in daily operations cybersecurity protection and contingency capabilities

RBE & ERERRI BIEFEBR L2 EER REF (RIEE e ERTE - KE#RE

R RAR A EE FHEl R EBFHE T EE)  RARRERRREREZEN

e e Engage an external service provider to adopt different

protective technologies to detect and monitor cyber threats
FEFEINFARISIRAE RS « ST IRE RSB KBRS BB

e QObtain security standard certification for critical systems and
conduct regular penetration testing
AERZFRISEEREREREHETZE NG

e Provide regular and tailored cybersecurity training for our
staff
BETIRHTEARE S EHNAKZEE

Risk of misalignment of ® Review the enterprise architecture and data strategy

enterprise architecture regularly by the dedicated management team to align with
("EA") and data strategy business objectives

with business strategy EEEEESTEHERCELREREURRE  RISHEEKEE
T GRME R BRSBTS B — 0t

RET—BHRR ¢ Design and complete a common data platform with

progressive improvement of key operational data quality to
support business decisions
RETRTHBRABBETS  UERSRALERREEEE - A
SEFERER

e Understand and analyse key technology trends in the
industry constantly in order to design a forward-thinking
enterprise architecture
TE TR D IMITEBERIEE - R L ETE O

S
Risk level increased during FY2023 Risk level remained broadly the same Risk level decreased during FY2023
2023 Bf B E AR R £ as FY2022 2023 M BUF E AR KE TR

822022 T F VR BK T IRE
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Business strategies

RIS

Risks
BB

Risk
Controls & mitigation trend
ERREHER RzEs

Foster a culture of
corporate integrity to
uphold corporate values
and ethical business
practices

HEREBEBE A%
HEEEBEREHEST

Unethical employee
behaviours
TEENBEINTA

e Uphold a culture of integrity for all employees through
continuous education
FRBEXREZEREMAEIHEXE

e Review and update policies and guidelines, such as Anti-
Fraud Policy, Whistleblowing Policy, and other
internal guidelines
BET RERBERFIES - OISR BER) - (BRBEK) - &
HabR#p=rRliES %

e Reinforce our identification of potential fraudulent activities
and control deficiencies through enhancement of

whistleblowing mechanism

RIS EE B - BB A EEELTRREERIZHR

Integrate sustainability
into business strategy
AIRFEERIESMAZE
T B

Risk of inadequate

e Optimise dedicated committee to strengthen the Board's

understanding of material leadership and oversight of sustainability issues

ESG issues

BILARAZERZESUNBRESTSH A HATRNESM

HEARE HEWAEHR =g

BEETEORR

e Conduct ongoing stakeholder engagement activities and
materiality assessment to identify and evaluate the
sustainability issues
REETRHNESRF REEMTME - AEHBIAT AR FE
ERERE

e Strengthen coordination and communication of the Group's
sustainability messages with a focus on optimising data and
creating data visualisation to help understand the progress
and effectiveness of sustainability efforts
Wb HBARBEESENIHFELERFEE  BTECEBRKET
HEARL - BYTRIOFEEETIFEERKK

Risk level increased during FY2023
2023 B B = A LB KT B

Annual Report 2023
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Risk level remained broadly the same Risk level decreased during FY2023
as FY2022 2023 M BUF E AR KE TR

B 2022 IR EFE A REBROK TS
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Management for Climate Change Risk

On climate change issues, as a responsible global citizen, we will
not only support a low-carbon future, but also work with the
international community to support climate change mitigation and
adaptation efforts. To this end, we adopt the integrated risk
management approach to climate change and are focused on
improving transparency. From 2020 onwards, we set our climate-
related disclosures according to the recommendations of the Task
Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures (“TCFD"). The key
highlights are as below:

GOVERNANCE &i&

The Board of Directors has the highest
responsibility for climate-related issues
and the Sustainability Committee is
delegated for overseeing and
managing ESG matters.
EEERAERHREEERENESE
T UBBARKERREZEESEED
ESG=E o

p=ui)
juls
|

RISK MANAGEMENT

EpREE

Conduct regular materiality
assessments to analyse stakeholders'
views on climate-related issues and
determine possible management
approaches.
EHETEEZETGEUIMENELHRIR
HERENRE  WREATHEERRE

the QR code)

RiE2LEMYER

EREREHEL RMEAARENERAR T
EXHERERAR EeRARLERTHER
MEERERENTHE. Al RARBELRRE

MIERE - B 2020 F R M2 EREABYBERR
BTHEA(TCFDD MmEAEREL RIRARE SR
B AEEHET

STRATEGY X

Regularly analyse climate-related
physical and transition risks and
opportunities and assess their
financial impacts.

TEH D AT E R AR ARRE Y B B B E Rk
MEB - RAEEHPBEE -

METRICS AND TARGETS

EENEE

Set a 10-year sustainability strategy

and work plan and committed to reduce
GHG emissions intensity by 15% by 2029,
and will continue to report on our
performance and review.

AV TFAHERERE R T(ET &
AGEE2029F R ERBHMBERE15%
WEHEERKMORRERBTERE -

Please refer to Our Response to TCFD Recommendations on Climate Change for more details. (please scan

AEFEH2HOETCFD RIRB(CIRRIEE (FiFM —4#1)

We will also continue to monitor updates to the climate-related disclosure requirements and review the current gaps in a
timely manner to ensure compliance and actively follow up on the implementation of enhancement measures.
BMMEHERIRGHEENRREEREN  TERRERAEZE  BREF - WEGRREECERNEEBR
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5.EFFECTIVENESS AND PERFORMANCE
TRACKING

The Board acknowledges it is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. On
behalf of the Board, the Audit Committee oversees the internal
audit function and reviews the adequacy and continued
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control
systems and the effectiveness of the internal audit function. The
Board and the Audit Committee acknowledge that our risk
management and internal control systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

To support the effective review, GRMC, Internal Audit, and
Whistleblowing Officer will capture and align information at a level
that is consistent with Audit Committee’s oversight responsibilities
and use standard templates to support consistent presentation and
structure of information over time as illustrated below:

Process used to review our risk management
and internal control system and the
effectiveness of the internal audit function

Board of Directors

=
=

5. A 2 F1 R IR 1B B

E=eAREAHRAREELAMERRGAE X
FEARSZENENERNL - ERZEERERES
SEENIEFRE RN ARBERREERABE
ERGRABENBESTEANKEFN -EFg
REZZEGRY ARERRANEZRREEE
EmMIFERAEERSEEZBERNAR  MAR
ERTEEEANKRERA KL BRIELAEMIER
HERE ©

BTXHRBERNE - TEHARERREREZES
NHEZIEREEREEEREZEEEERAE X
MEmRERERER  UERRENRSER R
BEMZY BN I

et EREERABERERRRABE
stERER MR AREF

Report on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system
MEREEMAIEZ RGN ERIEELRE

@ 3 times or more per year

sE3RFUL
|

Audit Committee
EREES

Report on cases of misconduct
and fraudulent behaviour
RAETAMBERTHAERFELRE
@ 3 times or more per year
SEIRFUL
\

Whistleblowing Officer

HE8

§$3b"tﬁl«1i

Internal Audit
AR %

Annual Report 2023
2023 F#§

Report on significant audit
_findings and control deficiencies
REAERERNEERE ZRIEHRE

@ 3 times or more per year

Report on principal risks and the approach
_ to address risk and control deficiencies
REBRBANELERMREEERE T EELRE
@ 3 times or more per year
SEIRFULE
|

GRMC
SERREEEES

Report on progress and effectiveness of
risk management practices at operational level

MEEREAMBERE TENEERRMELRSE
@ Annually
\

Management in
operational units
EEENEERE

Risk Management Report
[\ b BB ],
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Those who enforce the review of our risk Bsl R EERNBEERAE RIS
management and internal control system and sTEERER HMIMITAE
the effectiveness of the internal audit function

Audit Committee e As part of the Audit Committee's oversight responsibilities with regard to the effectiveness of the
BERZEEE internal audit function, the Audit Committee will:
EABEZZESHNIETREAUENEBETN—HD FRZEEH -
— Review the annual audit plan
EHFEEZTE
— Receive periodic reports on the results of the Internal Audit's work
BEWEEABEZ TIEERNTEBRRS
— Monitor management’s responsiveness to the Internal Audit's findings and recommendations
EREBEBHANIEZERTNEZNEE
— Review the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, and training programmes of
the internal audit function
RN APEANBENER BEIEENLERURAEZNEIIRENTRE

Internal Audit ¢ Internal Audit plays a crucial role in monitoring the internal governance of the Group
A £ NEERAEERANEENILE S LB A BB

e To provide an independent and objective assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system, Internal Audit:
ARERERNANEIZERAES T EMANEXNRHBIETENRE - NEEZ -

— Has unfettered access to all necessary information, people, records, and outsourced operations
across the Group, focusing on reviewing the effectiveness of the governance, risk management,
and control processes that management has put into place
AR BERHINER TERREENTENENER ZHEABAL  REMINIEE  UEITRIE
BERTHER  ERERREERF 2R

— Adopts a risk-based approach, ensuring that key concerns and significant risks are considered within
the scope of the audit
HmERER T  BRABEZHEENZERIEENEIFENERER

— Engages an independent consulting firm to assist the internal audit service to further strengthen the

flexibility and independence of the internal audit function
ZEBYERARHHABEZRY - E— L MEBRNBDET RN LB LT

GRMC e GRMC assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities with regard to the Group's risk

RERREEZRE appetite, the Group’s ERM Framework, and the governance model that supports it
SERKREEZEeRPEZSRITAHASERBATE AEECERARERIERMIFZELNER
RAMEERE

e As part of the GRMC's oversight responsibilities, GRMC will:

EREERKREEZEQEEREN —Hy  SERARERZESH -

— Review and approve the significant risk management policies and associated frameworks
A I B B A AR B IR BUR AR ES

— Review significant risk exposures and the steps that management has taken to identify, measure,
monitor, control, and report such exposures
B ERRBUARERERHEMN 58 - BER - 5 MM S F &R ATERERE 2 5B

— Review significant risk and compliance issues as well as material internal control defects identified,
together with management’s responses and follow-up to these reports
BRANEARRMABEHEBENPELRRL  UREEEH N ERENEEMBRETS

— Review the scope of planned risk management and compliance activities
FHREAWEAREEME REEH TEEE

’I 38 Governance Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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Tools used to review our risk management and
internal control system and the effectiveness of

the internal audit function

et EREERABEERRRABE
stRRER R MERMA TR

Frequency

RE

Content covered during FY2023
R2023 M BFERENAR

Audit Committee
Reports
EREEERE

3 times or more
per year
HFFIIRNFA L

e Assurance on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal

control system
HAN R B AR B NP ESIE R AR UE R F

Whistleblowing
Reports
HERBIRE

3 times or more
per year
FFEIRIA L

e Cases of gross misconduct and fraudulent behaviour and the measures
undertaken by the management
BETE RFELRTANER  AREERBEIMNEKE

e Anti-fraud culture building programme and training
REEE LR 8 R

Internal Audit
Reports
RBEFZRE

3 times or more
per year
FFEIRIA L

e Significant audit findings and control deficiencies
BAMEHRMEERK

e Progress of remedial measures implemented by management
EIRBHMITHRGE M EE

e Review on the effectiveness of the Group’s processes for financial reporting

and compliance with prevailing regulations
B AR EEM B RERRTFHORSUARBITERARER

GRMC Reports

3 times or more

e Principal risks identified at the corporate level and the related mitigation

SERBEEZSESE peryear measures, including the approach to resolve material internal control defects
w& BEIRIAL LA A T B 60 B AR A R AR R YHE iE - BIERRERE R MR R A TR
e Review on the resources, staff qualifications and experience and training
programmes of the accounting, and internal audit, financial reporting functions
ERGH  NHFERLMBRERENER - ETERRER - UARFIIEE
Control self- Annually e Scope and quality of the management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and the
assessment and B internal control system

management
confirmation
A=
EEERASE

ERERESEBERBURABERZGHBERE X

e Management's compliance with applicable regulatory requirements and the
Group's policies including the Code of Conduct, Anti-Fraud Policy, and Anti-
Money Laundering Policy
EREETERERIAEERRNEN  SERXBELETH  REEERER
RS

As a result of the above review, the Audit Committee, on behalf of
the Board, confirmed that there was no significant issue that would
have an adverse impact on the effectiveness and adequacy of the

ERZBRER bittes KREESHR 2023 K
FEREFEANEER Y AL E R EIE R AEE
RGBT R ML -

risk management and internal control systems of the Group

for FY2023.

Annual Report 2023
2023 F#§

Risk Management Report
[\ b BB ],
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6. EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS

By their nature, most crises are unpredictable, but we believe it is
possible to determine activities and areas that may be particularly
prone to crises. We believe advance planning for these areas is key
to ensure our resilience against crises, reduce the impact of
adverse events, aid recovery and support business continuity. Set
out below are the pre-crisis measures that help us maintain an

6- %lb\ 'u.\"%i%

EREARE EREZENN - ERABER LA EH
FREZBARKEESDIEE - RMRBRITHZS
RIEEFRERBERSBRAE  ERAIABREME
mERENRES REINEFERMANTE A
BRI B X EBRHEER - TXHIIRMHER
KRR - BB PFIFEGURE R

appropriate level of preparedness to respond to crises:

Crisis Management
Team (“CMT")

1 44 T 222 [ B

Composition e The core team is led by executive directors and staffed with senior executives
e from executive office, legal, investor relations, and human resources
BOBEFKERTESERE  HKEBERETHR - =2 - REEBREAS
BREEMITHAE
e QOther personnel from varying disciplines and regions would be identified on
an as-needed basis
FENTEVEEMEXHBENMENASMA
Functions e |dentify areas of concern
B ge HANFEFINGE

Assess the impact of the identified concerns

M ETEENE

Devise strategies and response plans to overcome crises
] E 52 W& A0 P ST 51 B LABR IR i

Crisis Management
Manual and Response
Plans

eI F it I eI 5 B

Crisis Management
Manual
fEEREF M

Provide an overall coordinated approach and guidelines for crisis response
and provide a consistent crisis management process across the Group
REGRACHEENERFH &GS - REERE—NEHEIEREF

Set out the definition of a crisis and trigger events, categorisation of crises,
the activation guideline, the composition and roles of the Crisis Management
Team, and the crisis communication and reporting protocol
HIEMRBREHNTR RS E  RBIES - EREEEBKOEE KB
745 LA R fE 1 380 SRR P SR AR 72

Tailored response plan
and playbooks

E I T ET R A E B
F

Identify critical crisis situations, with step-by-step instructions for responding
to specific crises
B EZEREIBERN  FIPARASEEENBELRIETR

Crisis Management
Training and
Simulation

fE B I 5 )| B R AR

Instruction-based
training
BEEAEI

Aim to increase staff’s capability in recognising crisis warning signs and
enhance staff’s ability of comprehensive and effective assessment and
management before, during and after a crisis
EERABIFHANCHERRNERE LN - B - BERIEZEMA XK THE
RERZ B

Provide our staff an initial introduction of crisis management and our crisis
management infrastructure and resources

METREEHEEBN UREKEEEREZBERER

Workshop-based
simulation

TEG AR E
EIlEA

Aim to validate the crisis management plan and the capability of our CMT
B RSB E R A 2 BRI /et & 12 B X A A

Allow the CMT to rehearse their assigned duties and responsibilities during
a crisis scenario

EEWEBREBKENEHISS THREEERNBHEMET
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7.RISK CAPABILITY BUILDING

We continuously review and enhance our risk management
framework by embedding an appropriate capability development
plan to ensure effective and efficient support to the GRMC and the
Board to perform risk oversight and sustain business resilience. We

7. B ERENEE

BfBERE NN EERREEERBBRAE
BB BREE  ARRA DN S B EE R
SEEZBCHESTSETRAREE MERETIE -
BPIEAERIE A TRENIRTTER - RIEABNXE

identified the following capability enhancement focuses in prior year,
covering the areas of people and culture, process, systems and

information. The enhancement plan is carried out by phases and set

out below is the summary of the achievements for this year.

MiE - AMAEREEE - BRI BSREET - N
TRAFENBREE

Capability
enhancement area

BN B ER

Targets for enhancements
BLLEE

FY23 tasks and achievements

2023 N F N TER AR

Risk governance and
collaboration
Rz E e KRR

e Strengthen awareness and promote common
understanding across all the Group on risk
management to meet stakeholders’ expectations
BEERBETHRRBEENERR —BUERE UM
RREHOENRE

e QOptimise risk governance model continuously
with clear role and responsibility defined
SEECERE ORI RARATEACRE T

e Enhance consistently the commitment to

integrity and ethical values
NER Anag (S MBI B E M AGE

e Defined Group's risk appetite in a qualitative
manner with considerations of the key internal
and external stakeholders' concerns
NEUEFTRENTEREERARFKET - ERREEE
A~ ONER R 2 BB B

e Updated Group's risk management governance
structure with highlights on collaboration among
risk management resources among the Group
EHEENRREERERAREENRREEE
TR TR R T VEBR

¢ Reinforced desirable ethical values and conduct
by revising group policies and standards including
Anti-Fraud Policy and Whistleblowing Policy
FBETEEBRAIEE - BIERERMEBRBUR -
LAnns&IE 8 e iE R EEERTA

Risk management
process and standard
[E B E R AR L E A

e Maintain an aligned and centralised management
approach in risk management practices and crisis

preparedness
BRF—NEFHORREEMAEKELR A

e Refined Group's risk assessment criteria and
established multi-dimensional risk consequence
rating profiles based on the Group's risk appetite
focus to help facilitate comprehensive risk
assessment
TESERRTEEE  BEREBRRRBIERE
UHHEENRBBREESFR - ABRHE R ENER
e

e Enhanced Group's crisis management framework
with crisis definition and identification of key
triggering events to set for business continuity
plan preparation
RASEGHERES HERETTESR I
HAEREEES - REKEEESEIHIEIE
B

Annual Report 2023
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Capability
enhancement area

BEN B LEERE

Targets for enhancements

BLLER

FY23 tasks and achievements

2023 I FENTHERKR

Risk management
tools and technologies
EBRE R T B R BT

e Harness technology advances and data analytics

to support the risk management process
ERAIRIEREBES MU FRBEERET

Deployed big data and data analytics with risk
dashboards to monitor POS risk levels
HEMNARBERBES A KRR ERIREE
5P L A KT

Risk information and
communication
RkREBERED

e Facilitate and encourage the capture, analysis,
and delivery of predictive and timely
risk information
RN SR BN SR - 30T M BB A ELTERI M D K% B ) L

N
CEENSN

Initiated review of Group's overall risk landscape
in preparation of subsequent development
precise risk monitoring and control
enhancement measures
MEBEEEERARERER  ABEEGITEHEENR
B BRI RO ) 58 L 15 M 1
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DIRECTORS REPORT
EETHRS

The Board is pleased to present the annual report of the Company
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for FY2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the business of manufacturing and selling of
jewellery products, including gem-set, platinum and k-gold
jewellery and gold jewellery and products, as well as the
distribution of various watch brands. The activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial

statements.

The Group’s revenue is derived from business activities conducted
in Mainland China, Hong Kong & Macau of China and other
markets. The segment information of the Group’s operation is set
out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for FY2023 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on p.166.

The directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.28 per share and a special dividend of HK$0.72 per share for
FY2023, amounting to approximately HK$10,000 million (FY2022: a
final dividend of HK$0.28 per share, amounting to approximately
HK$2,800 million). Such payment of dividends will be subject to
the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 7 July 2023 and is
payable to shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company at the close of business on Friday, 14
July 2023. Together with the interim dividend of HK$0.22 per share
paid in December 2022, the total distribution of dividend by the
Company for FY2023 will be HK$1.22 per share (FY2022: HK$0.50
per share). The payment date of the final and special dividends is
expected to be on or about 31 July 2023.

Annual Report 2023
2023 F 5
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’'s business and operations for the year, an
analysis using financial key performance indicators as well as a
discussion on the likely future developments, are provided
throughout this annual report, particularly in the following sections:

e “Chairman’s Statement”, p.12 - 14
e “Strategic Report”, p.15- 25

e “Management Discussion and Analysis”, p.26 - 67

Further discussion on the Group's principal risks and uncertainties:
e "Risk Management Report”, p.120 - 142
Compliance with the relevant laws and regulations:

e "Corporate Governance Report”, p.89- 119

e "Independent Auditor's Report”, p.158 - 165

e "“Sustainability Report”, on our Group website accessible via the
QR code on p.2

Environmental policies and performance and key relationships with
its stakeholders:

e “Sustainability Report”, on our Group website accessible via the
QR code on p.2

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on p.263.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements. There was no movement in the
share capital during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2023 amounted
to approximately HK$104 million (31 March 2022: HK$908 million).
Details of the Company’s reserves are set out in the note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on p.169.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the laws of the Cayman Islands.

Governance
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities during the year.

DIRECTORS

The directors during the year and up to the date of this annual

report are:

Executive Directors
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy
Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia

Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent

Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby

Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong (resigned with effect from 31 March 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon

Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey

Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond

Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily

Mr. Chia Pun-Kok, Herbert

Ms. Fung Wing-Yee, Sabrina (appointed with effect from
1 December 2022)

Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor (retired upon the conclusion of the
annual general meeting held on 27 July 2022)

In accordance with Articles 83 and 84 of the Articles, Dr. Cheng
Kar-Shun, Henry, Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson, Mr. Suen Chi-Keung,
Peter, Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon and Ms. Fung Wing-Yee,
Sabrina will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,

being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong resigned with effect from 31 March 2023 as
an executive Director and Managing Director, Mainland China of
the Company. Mr. Chan confirmed that he had no disagreement
with the Board and there were no other matters relating to his
resignation that need to be brought to the attention of the

shareholders of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which any of the Company’s subsidiaries,
fellow subsidiaries or parent companies was a party and in which a

EFREEY

BEEFAARARAREEAHBRARTLNAR—FA
BAXMEMEEE OXERHERIN) ML LERRBEL

EFNXS RHREHPHER

BAFMAPEESIN  ARANHBAR - ARNE
RAIXBRBRRFRIFRNERERE - WETHER
HAEEEBMEBEABEARARFESTHEFTNHNE
ATREFREEEAER (THERXIMEINZ S

director of the Company or the director's connected party had a THEREHR °
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the

end of the year or at any time during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has certain ongoing transactions carried on with
connected persons with expected annual transaction amounts SeEBBREHREKT RAERE TR E'J”"
exceeding the “de minimis” exemption threshold and therefore 14AEE#H 2023 ﬁﬁﬁﬁ(if?ﬂﬂ’]%ﬁ#?ﬁ?ﬂt
the Company reports these non-exempt continuing connected 5 ZERGTEHENYMEREUREERBEEER
transactions during FY2023 under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. MR - BEEBEEATHERNSENFE149E - ZFER
These transactions are mainly related to lease of premises and sale SRFEHIN T -

and purchase of goods and services. Information about the

connected persons is shown on p.149. Details of these

transactions are set out in the tables below.

FEMEX S
$%@Eﬁ@@Aiﬁﬁ%?wEx%'ﬁ%¢§§

Lease of premises MEHS
Name of counterparties CTFE NWD NWDS
REHFEHE AXEs%E HHRER TitREE

Concessionaire counters
operated in department
stores in Mainland China

Offices and standalone
retail shops in Hong Kong

Main purposes of the leases Standalone retail shops,
residential and office uses

in Hong Kong

HEXERE REANBITEE - REBHRAERBUTEE RPERMAEELTRXEE
FERBRAERR
Master/ framework agreement date 28/11/2011 28/4/2020 22/3/2012
Fa ERBHEBH
Next renewal date 31/3/2026 30/6/2023 30/6/2023
TREEAH
Annual cap approved and actual amount incurred for FY2023 (HK$ million)
2023 MFENEHAFE LREEREASBE(ARET)
Annual cap 70 203 107
FE LR
Amount incurred 0.2 95 36
ERELESHE
Annual cap approved for subsequent financial year (HK$ million)
HieMBFEEneEsEE FR(EEET)
FY2024 188 217 85
FY2025 189 217 98
FY2026 189 217 108
146 Governance Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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Sale and purchase of goods and services

Name of counterparties

RHHHEE

NCE

ESRMRE

NWD
it 57 3% R

Major types of goods and services

Polishing, processing and
handling of gemstones
for the Group, and provision
of related technology,
related assets and other
ancillary services, products
and devices

Collaboration on and marketing of
customer loyalty programmes,
including distribution of loyalty
points to and redemption of
loyalty points from customers
of the Group in respect of
such customer
loyalty programmes

EmkRBHEEESR RAEEBERAWY - NI BFEgERETENEEAEREH
BRI - IRHARRA RN BEEEEGERETEIP -
HHREE EMH AL ERTS - MRS B % PR s B & P i
EmkIA SEREED
Master/ framework agreement date 29/1/2016 8/6/2021
Fa/ ERBHEBH
Next renewal date 31/3/2024 31/3/2024
TREEBE
Annual cap approved and actual amount incurred for
FY2023 (HK$ million)
2023 FEREIEFE FREREREASE(BEST)
Annual cap 122 380
FE LR
Amount incurred 104 24
ERBELESHE
Annual cap approved for subsequent financial years
(HKS$ million)
HEVBFENEHEFE LR (BEET)
FY2024 155 450

These transactions are governed by respective master or
framework agreements which have an initial term of not more than
3 years and, subject to compliance with the Listing Rules, will be
renewed automatically for another 3 years upon expiry unless
terminated earlier in accordance with the relevant master or

iz, =AN
HERHGXEEFE

FHTBE=F "
b5 FEEsF B
=F - ZEFHFAXK

framework agreements. The initial agreement date and the next

renewal date of these master or framework agreements are set

out in the tables above.
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The Group’s pricing policy and internal control
on continuing connected transactions

The Company has entered into master agreements or framework
agreements to set out the principles governing the above
continuing connected transactions. The Group maintains a pricing
policy which serves as a guidance for the negotiation with
counterparties regarding the respective definitive agreements
under the continuing connected transaction arrangements of the
Group.

(a) For rental of premises, prevailing market rates around the time
of entering into the respective tenancy agreements will be
followed. The Group will obtain comparison from relevant
market information from the market or independent valuers
and with rental rates of premises in similar locations leased by
the Group.

(b) For sale of goods and services, retail or wholesale prices (as
the case maybe) and discretionary discounts which the Group
offers or is willing to offer to independent customers around
the time of transaction will apply.

(c) For purchase of goods, services and other assets, prevailing
market prices around the time of transaction will apply. The
Group will obtain quotations or tenders from independent third
parties for goods, services or assets with similarities to
compare with the prices and terms offered in the market. If
there is no sufficient comparable in the market, the Group will
make reference to the reasonable costs for developing or
providing such goods, services or assets plus a reasonable
profit margin that commensurates with industry practices.

The Group will monitor industry practices and market trends on a
regular basis to ensure the terms offered to the Group are either
equivalent to or better than the prevailing market prices.
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Relationships between counterparties

The counterparties to the continuing connected transactions

mentioned above are connected persons of the Company mainly

due to direct or indirect shareholding held by the Company’s

substantial shareholder, CTF Capital, in these counterparties.

Shareholding relationships among the Company, CTFE, NWD,
NWDS and NCE are illustrated in the simplified chart below:

W32 5 KB &

ERFEBERSNR P T ERADFOBEAL
EBRBNARAEBRRCTF Capital H i RRE
EZSHFHRE AR BAREE  FHERE
B #E R A EENCE MR E AN TEEE

CTF Capital®

72.4% [

The Company
AATF

40.0% ‘

NCE®

Notes:

)

3

=

5
6

)
)
)
)
)

Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited

Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited

Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited

New World Development Company Limited (stock code: 17)

New World Department Store China Limited (stock code: 825)

New Cutting Edge Limited, an associate of CTF Capital under Rule 14A.14 of the Listing Rules

The approximate percentages of shareholding, directly or indirectly held, are shown for reference
only to illustrate the relationships between the connected parties. The information shown in the
chart above is sourced from the Disclosure of Interests published on the Stock Exchange website
as at the date of this annual report, which however may not be updated or correct.
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Annual review of the continuing connected
transactions

At the end of each financial year, the management will prepare a
summary of the pricing and other relevant terms of those non-
exempt continuing connected transactions for the review of the
Executive Committee to ensure that those transactions are entered
into in the ordinary and usual course of business, on normal
commercial terms or better and in accordance with the relevant
agreements on terms which are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of our shareholders as a whole, pursuant to Rule 14A.55
of the Listing Rules. Our internal audit team will further select
samples from those transactions and compare them with similar
types of transactions entered into by the Group with independent
third parties during that financial year.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
engaged the Company's auditor to perform certain review
procedures in order to report on the Group's continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’'s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group in this annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The results of the review procedures performed by each of the
Strategy and Transformation Committee, the internal audit team
and the auditor of the Company were reported to the independent
non-executive directors in the Audit Committee meeting. After
review by the Audit Committee, the independent non-executive
directors confirmed that the continuing connected transactions
were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group; (ii) either on normal commercial terms or better; and
(iii) according to the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.
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Announcements were published regarding the Group’s non-
exempt continuing connected transactions. The directors confirm
that the Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in so far as
they are applicable.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year set out in note 38 to the financial statements
include transactions that constitute connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions for which the disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have been
complied with.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, less than 30.0% of the Group's revenue was
attributed to the Group's five largest customers. Besides, 82.3%
of the Group's total purchases were attributed to the Group's five
largest suppliers and 73.0% of the Group's total purchases were
attributed to the Group's largest supplier. To the best of the
directors’ knowledge, none of the directors, their respective close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) and any shareholder
who to the knowledge of the directors owned more than 5% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2023
held any interest in any of the five largest suppliers or customers
of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN THE SHARES, EENEAAT MG - HERG R
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES BHEENER
OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2023, the interests and short positions of the MR20283F3A31H ARARIEZRERITBRAEBRA
directors and the chief executives of the Company in the shares, NAEIHHE AR EZE (EEREFHFMPEKAEXV
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its )RR, - HERG RERES EEREESLS
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) BEROIEXVEHETRESHHEME AR T KA AT
which have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange RS KRR - RN IBIRE S RBAE KM 352
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were BREEATFEFENELCMRAMERERR » iBHE -
recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section TR RIBT &% 10 FTE AR ESFRIZA AN E AR D &) KRB A2 AT
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the HIER KRBT ¢

Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out in Appendix

10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

Long position in shares RRGHETE
Number of shares Approximate
BRHHE % of
Personal Spouse Corporate shareholding
interests interests interests Total AR
BAER BB EE R At ERaaA

The Company (ordinary shares AT (SREE

of HK$1 each) 1BTHEER)
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry ERATE LT 420,000 420,000 0.00%
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent ERESE 12,000 12,000 0.00%
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong? [Ritt & 54 @ 12,000 12,000 0.00%
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian BRI E L 20,000 20,000 0.00%
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton BRI ER S A 4,800 4,800 0.00%
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter BREEAEE 23,600 23,600 0.00%
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby BiRA%EE 12,000 12,000 0.00%
Notes: B E
(1) These shares are beneficially owned by a company, which in turn is wholly-owned by (1) ZEROEBENMEL2EREN—RARIEEHES

Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian

(2) Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong resigned as an executive director and Managing Director, Mainland China, of (2) BRUEELEERERARFANTESRESLEE(REAM) - 82023434
the Company with effect from 31 March 2023 31 BRAEM
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2023, the following persons (not being directors or

FERRNEFHER

20233 A31H - RIEFEH K HAEIKHIF 336 15E
FENEDMACEOUTALT(EIERARARESKE
BITHA B) BT A A2 AR RABBIAR 15 r i 25 50k
BT

chief executives of the Company) had the following interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336
of the SFO:

BB eIFe

Long position in shares

Number of shares Approximate

ROHE % of

Beneficial Corporate shareholding

Name interests interests Total TSRS
8B BREER EERER At B
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited 7,239,320,185  7,239,320,185 72.39%
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings Il) Limited 7,239,320,185  7,239,320,185 72.39%
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited 7,239,320,185 7,239,320,185 72.39%
Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart & 338 402,000 506,860,572 507,262,572 5.07%
Cheng Yu Wai EIRE 506,541,354 506,541,354 5.07%
Yueford Corporation 506,541,354 506,541,354 5.07%

Notes: B E

1. Asat 31 March 2023, Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited and Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings
1) Limited held approximately 48.98% and 46.65% interest in Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited
respectively, and accordingly each of Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited and Cheng Yu Tung
Family (Holdings Il) Limited is deemed to have an interest in the shares of the Company held by
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited. Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited held 7,239,320,185 shares of the
Company directly as at 31 March 2023.

2. Asat 31 March 2023, Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart held more than one-third of the total shares in
each of Yueford Corporation and Manor Investment Holdings Ltd. and accordingly he is deemed to
have an interest in the 506,541,354 shares of the Company held by Yueford Corporation and the
319,218 shares of the Company held by Manor Investment Holdings Ltd. Together with the
402,000 shares of the Company directly held by him, Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart had an
aggregate interest in 507,262,572 shares of the Company as at 31 March 2023.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “2021 Option Scheme") valid for 10
years was adopted by the passing of a shareholders’ resolution at
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 28 July 2021.
The 2021 Option Scheme replaced the previous share option
scheme adopted on 17 November 2011 (the “2011 Option"”), and
the 2011 Option Scheme was terminated with effect from
28 July 2021.

No options have been granted, exercised or cancelled under the
2011 Option Scheme or the 2021 Option Scheme since their
respective adoption up to the date of this annual report.
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The purpose of the 2021 Option Scheme is to attract skilled and
experienced personnel, incentivise them to remain with the Group
and motivate them to strive for the future development and
expansion of the Group by providing them with the opportunity to
acquire equity interests in the Company. The Board may, at its
discretion, grant options pursuant to the 2021 Option Scheme to
the directors of the Company (including executive directors, non-
executive directors and independent non-executive directors), the
directors of the Company’s subsidiaries, the employees of the
Group and any consultants engaged by any member of the Group
who the Board considers, in its absolute discretion, have
contributed or will contribute to the Group.

The total number of ordinary shares in respect of which options
may be granted pursuant to the 2021 Option Scheme and any
other share schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the
ordinary shares of the Company in issue on the date of adoption of
the 2021 Option Scheme, i.e. 28 July 2021, being 1,000,000,000
ordinary shares (“Scheme Mandate Limit"), which represented
10% of the ordinary shares of the Company as at the date of this
annual report. The Company may renew the Scheme Mandate
Limit with shareholders’ approval in accordance with Chapter 17 of
the Listing Rules.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in the manner as
required under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, the maximum
number of ordinary shares underlying the options granted to each
eligible participant (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
ordinary shares of the Company in issue for the time being.
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The period during which an option may be exercised by a grantee
(the "Option Period”) shall be determined and notified by the
Board to the grantee at the time of such grant, which shall not
expire later than 10 years from the grant date.

Subject to any applicable restrictions or requirements under the
Listing Rules, an option may be exercised in whole or in part by the
grantee at any time during the Option Period in accordance with
the terms of the 2021 Option Scheme and the terms on which the
option was granted.

No amount is payable by the grantee upon acceptance of an option.

The exercise price shall be determined by the Board but in any
event shall not be less than the highest of: (a) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by the
Stock Exchange on the grant date, which must be a business day;
(b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the grant date; and (c) the
nominal value of the ordinary shares of the Company.

The 2021 Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10
years after its date of adoption, i.e. 28 July 2021.

With effect from 1 January 2023, Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules
has been amended to govern both share option schemes and
share award schemes involving the issue of new shares. To enable
the Company to grant share awards as part of its incentives and
rewards to participants for the growth and development of the
Group, the Board proposed to adopt a new share award scheme
("2023 Award Scheme") with terms in compliance with Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules and terminate the 2021 Option Scheme with
effect from the adoption of 2023 Award Scheme. Please refer to
the circular of the Company dated 15 June 2023 for details.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company's Articles provides that every director is entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company against all
losses, damages and liabilities which he/ she may sustain or incur in
or about the execution of duties of his/ her office or otherwise in
relation thereto provided that such indemnity shall not extend to any
matter in respect of fraud or dishonesty which may attach to
any director.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance throughout the year, which provides appropriate cover
for the directors.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$47.7 million (FY2022: HK$54.8 million).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the Company
or by the Group after 31 March 2023 and up to the date of this
annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public Accountants
and Registered PIE Auditor, who will retire and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
Chairman

Hong Kong, China, 8 June 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

18 3 12 BLRT S

-
pwc

To the Members of
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

The consolidated financial statements of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”),
which are set out on p.166 to 262, comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023;

e the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended,;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) issued by the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (“IESBA Code"), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the IESBA Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to existence and

valuation of inventories.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conTinuED)

FASETEIE @

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EPWESNAHERETBRETEE

Existence and valuation of inventories

FEZFEMREGE

Refer to note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

The carrying value of inventories of the Group was HK$59,290.4
million as at 31 March 2023 which mainly comprised of gem-set,
platinum and k-gold jewellery, gold jewellery and products and
watches. Valuation of inventories was stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Significant portion of inventory cost includes cost
of gold, platinum and gemstones, which are subject to the risk of
changes in market value. The assessment of net realisable value of
inventories was based on significant estimates and judgements made
by management in respect of, amongst others, the economic
conditions, marketability of products and the forecast market price of
gold, platinum and gemstones used to make the jewellery products.

B2HERA M MARMTE23 -

20233 A31H - EXEEMNFEREERDSI 2904888 T *
EZERREER AT RKSEH ECEMHMERNRER - FED
HERKAENBERFEMER CREE - FERAPT RO AE
T HERBERZERA  XMSEEEDRRTE - EIREAM (K
TEE)EERR ERNXEBERERARBEREERNESD
HEREAMRATISERELERNGE KA - UFEFERE
WFE

We understood and evaluated management's key
controls over inventory existence and valuation.

We obtained an understanding of the management'’s
internal control and assessment process of impairment
of inventories and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors such
as complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility
to management bias or fraud.

We validated management’s controls over existence by
attending cycle physical counts at selected points-of-
sale ("POS") throughout the year to observe the count
procedures at POS. We also inspected a selection of
daily physical count reports and the reconciliation to
daily ending inventories record in the inventory system.

Furthermore, we attended the annual physical inventory
count at year end date and performed sample count
procedures at selected POS, manufacturing facilities
and logistics and distribution centres.

B TREMGEEEHFEZFEERMEENRR

B4 o

BMTHEEERFERENAAREE M HBE -
BRERMGATEEENEEARELMMES RREER
B7KF - PlansEsElE - THIE BB EEERE
o SEBK ) GURNME - FHEEARERNES Rk o

HMZEEREEFELEENT ERNFAREETE
TEH2EBHREYRE  UBENTEHNRERE
FeBfTieEBo BRENRHENS TEFER
FARENE BT BRI

o HPRFHEBZ2ERLDTER  EERERD
MAMBER LR FEEYFERE R MEEE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conTinuED)

FASETEIE @

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RAPWESFNAHERETBEETERE

Existence and valuation of inventories (Continued)
FEZHFEMRIGE (&)

We selected samples of gem-set jewellery products,
comprising items of different nature, for the
gemmological appraisal carried out by the independent
professional gemmologist engaged by management to
verify their authenticity and to assess their condition
and valuation. We evaluated the competence,
capabilities and objectivity of the independent
professional gemmologist, understood their scope of
work and observed their examination process. We have
assessed whether the selected gem-set jewellery
products were recorded at the lower of cost and net
realisable value by comparing the results of
gemmological appraisal reports and their costs.

We evaluated the net realisable values of inventories
assessed by management with reference to, amongst
others, the market price movement of the materials
and the subsequent selling prices of similar products,
on a sample basis.

We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures related
to impairment of inventories in the context of IFRSs
disclosure requirements.

Based on the procedures performed, we found that the
existence and valuation of inventories to be supportable
by the available evidence.

HMBERT O REEHER(MERBRETRNR
A HEREZRENBEVELRIETIREN G U
REEREEMRFGERRALMGEE RACHBILE
AERNARE  EAORFEMEELNG L THEET
TEBEMBREFEBRE - HAHRTAEERAN
BYRENEREERBIRERAETLE - AT
PRcsEmBEEARK AL R FEMEPHRE
EAN -

BA2R(EF R MEm S EREEH R FREmRD
HZEE METEEEETHNEE#RFE -

PR RER I RS LR R ERE T EFER
BEERNEERERD °

BRBHRMETHRERF  HMRAERHAAFSERS
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Financials
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continueD)

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves

fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

Financials
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continuED)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheng Woon Yin Michael.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

8 June 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GEoEmkEMEE R R

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #(Z= 202343 A31 HIEFE

2023 2022
Notes HK$ million HK$ million
B &E BEER BEET
Revenue - 4 94,684.4 98,937.7
Cost of goods sold FHE KA (73,512.9) (76,598.0)
Gross profit ER 21,1715 22,339.7
Other income HAb A 5 733.3 793.2
Selling and distribution costs HE N D HER AN (9,974.3) (10,522.1)
General and administrative expenses —RRRITHE X (3,721.4) (3,441.9)
Other gains and losses H b Y2k K 518 6 (317.8) 170.8
Other expenses HAanpAsz 7 (87.5) (94.6)
Share of profits of associates DAGEEE N F] 2 % T 0.3 5.8
Interest income F B WA 8 227.8 69.8
Finance costs BB A 8 (585.4) (337.7)
Profit before taxation R B4 A% F 9 7,446.5 8,983.0
Taxation THIE 11 (1,957.0) (2,103.1)
Profit for the year FERF 5,489.5 6,879.9
Other comprehensive income/ (expense) Hitp2mEbiE/ (BX)
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: T & E#H S EEEwb)ER -
— remeasurement of defined benefit scheme - BEEtE AN & 51.5 (4.5)
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to FEE Ak B EF R
profit or loss: BmmEE -
— exchange differences arising on translation - BREIBINETSFTEA Z (1,726.7) 779.9
of foreign operations N ZERE
Other comprehensive (expense)/ income FEHME2ME (BAX)/ Wi (1,675.2) 775.4
for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year FEXEKZAE 3,814.3 7,655.3
Profit for the year attributable to: UT&FEEFEERT :
Shareholders of the Company AR FIPRE 5,384.4 6,712.3
Non-controlling interests e = 105.1 167.6
5,489.5 6,879.9
Total comprehensive income for the year UTE&FEGMEEZERZE
attributable to: HEE
Shareholders of the Company NN =) 3,778.1 7,452.2
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR M 36.2 203.1
3,814.3 7,655.3

Earnings per share — Basic and Diluted

BREN - EFXREHE

12 HK53.8 cents &1l HK67.1 cents &1l

Financials
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

A MBARR R

At 31 March 2023 7202343 A31H

2023 2022
Notes HK$ million HK$ million
i HEBT HEAT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMRE 14 5,144.4 5,038.8
Right-of-use assets FRBREE 15 1,696.4 1,678.7
Investment properties BEME 16 323.1 203.7
Other intangible assets H b\ A 17 66.3 109.0
Jewellery collectibles KRELE 18 1,520.1 1,520.1
Prepayment and deposits ENRERENZES 19 346.3 285.8
Financial assets at fair value through AR EFFAEBFRN 64.6 29.9
profit or loss SREE

Investments in associates REEERRZIRE 20 69.5 77.5
Amounts due from associates & U Bt N B FRIE 20 41.6 46.7
Loan receivables UL E X 21 8.5 10.5
Deferred tax assets BEFIBEE 22 792.9 611.0
10,073.7 9,611.7

Current assets REBEE
Inventories 7E 23 59,290.4 57,254.0
Trade and other receivables B 5 N H At e W k8 19 6,192.9 5,914.0
Amounts due from associates & Y Bt s N B FRIE 20 1.4 4.9
Loan receivables AEEE N 21 2.0 2.1
Taxation recoverable A [B] 7 1H 36.3 8.4
Short-term bank deposits HHIRITIF 24 38.8 =
Cash and cash equivalents BE MRS EEY 24 11,695.0 14,942.2
77,266.8 78,125.6

Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMhENFIE 25 30,088.9 25,166.1
Amounts due to non-controlling FE AT B A B SR AR AR R 26 52.4 63.8

shareholders of subsidiaries RIA
Taxation payable FEN TR 825.1 736.0
Bank borrowings RITERK 27 4,366.8 7,275.7
Gold loans "EEE 28 15,085.6 15,720.6
Lease liabilities HEAaE 15 602.7 667.2
51,021.5 49,629.4
Net current assets REEEZRSH 26,245.3 28,496.2
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAE 36,319.0 38,107.9
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2023 2022

Notes HK$ million HK$ million
i HEBT HEBT

Non-current liabilities FEREBEE
Bank borrowings BITER 27 1,488.1 1,788.8
Lease liabilities HERRE 15 563.0 627.3
Retirement benefit obligations RARAE R EHE 36 185.2 239.1
Deferred tax liabilities RIET IR B E 22 645.2 918.2
Other liabilities Hib B & 77.7 79.8
2,959.2 3,5653.2
Net assets BEEFHR 33,359.8 34,554.7
Share capital &S 29 10,000.0 10,000.0
Reserves & 22,397.4 23,619.3
Equity attributable to shareholders of AATRRELES 32,397.4 33,619.3

the Company

Non-controlling interests FEERES 962.4 935.4
33,359.8 34,554.7

The consolidated financial statements on p.166 to 262 were BEEEN2023F6ASH AT RETIEHNRE
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 8 166 2262 B 2R EMIETHREK * WAHNMTRERES
June 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton
BRAE L EREXE ERIR R
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
BF BE BF
’I 68 Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CHANGES IN EQUITY
) &

= Al s =%
;%/\IZI EJ/IEL

#E4
=

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z= 202343 A31 HIEFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

ERAARFEEL
Statutory Non-
Share Share Special surplus  Translation Retained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
TS KiyaE RHBE AERBEE BEGE REER gt FERER it
HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HKS million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HKS million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HKS million
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT L) BERT BEAT BEAT
Notes (note a) (note b)
Kzt (KEa) (H3tb)
At 1 April 2021 R202154 18 10,000.0 5,498.7 24995 1,457.1 169.6 11,142.2 30,767.1 800.5 31,567.6
Profit for the year ERRA - - - - - 6,7123 6,712.3 1676 6,879.9
Other comprehensive ERENZE - - - - 7444 (45) 7399 3.5 7754
income/ (expense) for the year s/ (B137)
Total comprehensive EERANGEE = = = = 7444 6,707.8 7,462.2 2031 7,656.3
income for the year
Capital contribution from —FHBAF - - - - - - - 208 208
anon-controlling FERRRLE
shareholder of a subsidiary
Deregistration of subsidiaries ~ FE#HBAT = = - (0.2) 0.1 0.1 = = =
Transfers ap - - - 395.6 - (395.6) - - -
Dividends RE 13 - 4,600.0) - = = - (4,600.0 (89.0) 4,689.0)
At 31 March 2022 R2022%3A31H 10,000.0 898.7 24995 18525 914.1 174545 33,6193 9354 345547
Profit for the year ERRH - - - - - 5,384.4 5,384.4 105.1 5,489.5
Qther comprehensive EEENZE - - - - (1,657.8) 515 (1,606.3) (689)  (1,675.2)
(expense)/income for the year () / lzs
Total comprehensive ERRE(F%)/ & - - - - (16578 54359 3,718.1 362 38143
(expensel/ income for the year 4%
Capital contribution from WEAE - - - - - - - 68.6 68.6
non-controlling FERRRLE
shareholders of subsidiaries
Deregistration of subsidiaries s #5HB 2 A - - - - (1.3) 13 - 16 16
Transfers Ep - - - 3306 - (330.6) - - -
Dividends & 13 - (898.7) - - - (4,101.3) (5,000.0) (79.4) (5,079.4)
At 31 March 2023 "2023%3A31H 10,000.0 - 2,4995 2,183.1 (745.0) 18,459.8 32,3974 962.4 33,359.8
Notes: Bt 3% -
(a) Special reserve represents (i) the accumulated contribution from the Macau jewellery business and (a) HRIEERE(VRPIKEEL 2 2B R () D ERBEARZETSHEBA

BB E(E AR IR 2011 S AN R B E AR 05 WOIB X R T T & Bl S Y
ZHRERBEZEE-

(i) the difference between the nominal value of the shares of various subsidiaries under common

control, and cash consideration payable arising from acquisition of these subsidiaries under

common control pursuant to the Group reorganisation in 2011.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment enterprises in Mainland (b)
China, the Company's subsidiaries in Mainland China are required to maintain a statutory surplus

reserve fund. Appropriation to such reserve is made out of net profit after taxation as reflected in

the statutory financial statements of the subsidiaries in Mainland China in accordance with the

relevant laws and regulations applicable to enterprises in Mainland China. The statutory surplus

reserve fund can be used to make up prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion into

capital by means of capitalisation issue.

(b

ZAEBHEALINEDENEBEERER - ARF M F B AHLHE A F
BARBELAERBFAES - ARG BIIIRE T B AR R R #E
TR B RE REHE RSB A NARARRARGR) MBORBEK
BAFE  AFRABRBEEESTANEHBEFENBR(0E) WA
BERMeBITZARNERBEAR -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
mEHEETMER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #(Z= 202343 A31 HIEFE

2023 2022
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEET
Operating activities RESE
Profit before taxation ¥R 750 A s A 7,446.5 8,983.0
Adjustments for: HTISEELAE
Interest income F B WA (301.2) (124.1)
Interest expenses F B 52 585.4 337.7
Loss allowance written back on trade and B 5 RHEMEYRIBEBEEE 2 (1.9) (159.2)
other receivables #[o]
Recognition/ (reversal) of allowance on inventories FERBERER/ (BE) 14.4 (57.0)
Write off of inventories 17 & 4.6 3.1
Fair value change of gold loans BEEEEN AR EE 1,546.0 1,021.2
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BENEREITE 1,271.7 1,148.4
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHEEENE 886.1 816.3
Depreciation of investment properties KEYERE 19.8 12.0
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hofth T A R G 427 49.0
Share of profits of an associate ME—REEE R R Z2EF (0.3) (5.8)
Reversal of impairment of property, plant and ME - RE N RERERD (0.3) -
equipment
Reversal of impairment of right-of-use assets FREEERERR (15.0) -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWME  BEKXENEE 435 .5
Gain on surrender of right-of-use assets EEFRAEEENKE (14.9) (5.8)
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary FHE—RKMB AR EE 2.7 -
Provision for defined benefit obligations TE AR IR A8 P A FE RS 8.9 7.1
Net exchange difference [ER =535 80.5 (77.2)
Operating cash flows before movements in BEESEFH 2 11,619.2 11,984.2
working capital KEBERE
Increase in inventories FE#MN (5,346.5) (3,673.5)
(Increase)/ decrease in deposits and trade ReME 5 K& H e U GRIE (704.7) 660.2
and other receivables (&) / wd
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 I E At FE A I8 N 6,705.0 7,075.7
Defined benefits paid B3 E R KB T (11.3) (11.3)
Cash generated from operations BEFRBHR® 12,261.7 16,035.3
Interest received B FI B 73.0 53.2
Income tax paid: BAETER
— Hong Kong Profits Tax - BENEH (381.3) (253.9)
— Enterprise Income Tax and withholding tax - PR A ERTIS R X (1,845.7) (1,891.6)
in Mainland China TENEL
— Macau complementary tax - RIS R (31.6) (0.1)
— Taxation in other jurisdictions - Hfb A&t @ 2 FLIE (10.2) (4.7)
Net cash generated from operating activities RETHMBELSTE 10,065.9 13,938.2

Financials
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2023 2022
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEBER
Investing activities RETH
Interest received B FI 8 228.0 70.9
Placement of short-term bank deposits GFERERITER (38.8) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE  BEMKR (1,879.3) (1,458.2)
Prepayment for acquisition of property, BEYE  WENMREEMNZE (102.3) (72.5)
plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BERREMERE 40.9 43.0
plant and equipment
Receipts of loan receivables B4 H FE U E SR 1.6 8.4
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value W AR EFABENEREE (36.1) (7.2)
through profit or loss
Acquisition of an associate U B — KB & 1N A - (49.8)
(Advance to)/ repayment from associates (B R RIEFR) [ B & R RIERK (2.3) 4.7
Dividend received from an associate Bl —REt & A RR RS 6.0 3.0
Net cash used in investing activities REZTEFTARESFEAE (1,782.3) (1,457.7)
Financing activities BMETH
Interest paid 2ARH A (600.5) (289.4)
Bank borrowings raised BEEERITER 7,890.3 7,963.6
Repayment of bank borrowings EBRITER (11,106.0) (5,323.0)
Repayment of gold loans HEEEEE (957.1) (489.9)
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities TNEEEERS Y (913.9) (980.8)
Capital contribution from non-controlling Bt B A Bl FEE AR & 68.6 20.8
shareholders of subsidiaries
Repayment to non-controlling BETHEBAR (6.7) (4.9)
shareholders of subsidiaries FEIE AR AR R B R
Dividends paid BERERE (5,079.4) (4,689.0)
Net cash used in financing activities METHMARES FHE (10,704.7) (3,792.6)
Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash REeERASZEYORLD)/ E (2,421.1) 8,687.9
equivalents B
Cash and cash equivalents FYNBEERBLZEY 14,942.2 6,031.9
at the beginning of the year
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ERESF AT E (826.1) 222.4
Cash and cash equivalents ERNBEESRRLEEY 11,695.0 14,942.2

at the end of the year

Annual Report 2023 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows ’I 7 ’]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=
N

CRIEE Y

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #(Z= 202343 A31 HIEFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (the “Company”,
and its subsidiaries collectively referred to as the “Group”)
was incorporated as an exempted company in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands on 20 July 2011. Its shares were listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) since 15 December 2011. Its
immediate holding company and its ultimate holding
company are Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 39. The address of registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman lIslands. The address of principal place of
business is 33/F, New World Tower, 16-18 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS"”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") and
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
Cap. 622. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain
assets and liabilities, which are measured at fair values.

Financials
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—R&EH
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise their judgement in the
process of applying the Group's accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are especially significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in note 3.

(a) New and amended standards adopted
by the Group
The Group has applied the following standards
and amendments which are first effective for
their annual reporting period commencing 1 April
2022.

Annual Improvement
Projects 2018-2020 Cycle
IAS 16 (Amendments)

Annual Improvements

Proceeds before Intended
Use

IAS 37 (Amendments) Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract

IFRS 3 (Amendments) Reference to the

Conceptual Framework

The application of the above new and amended
[FRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group's financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/ or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

Annual Report 2023
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)

2.1 Statement of compliance and basis of
preparation (Continued)

Financials

B %

(b)

New standards and interpretations not
yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards and
interpretations have been published that are not
mandatory for 31 March 2023 reporting period
and have not been early adopted by the Group.
These standards are not expected to have a
material impact on the entity in the current or
future reporting periods and on foreseeable
future transactions.

New standards, amendments and
improvements to existing standards

IAS 1 (Amendments) " Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-Current
IAS 1 (Amendments) "  Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants
IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Disclosure of Accounting Policies
Statement 2
(Amendments) ¢
IAS 8 (Amendments) Definition of Accounting Estimates
IAS 12 (Amendments) " Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets

(Amendments) between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture
IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
(Amendments) Leaseback
IFRS 17 0 Insurance Contracts

(i) Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
(i)  Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

(i) The original effective date of 1 January 2016 has been postponed until
future announcement by the IASB
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)

(a)

Annual Report 2023
2023 F ik

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control.

The Group controls an entity when the Group:

e has power over the entity;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns

from its involvement with the entity; and

® has the ability to affect those returns through
its power to direct the activities of the entity.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an entity if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the
voting rights of an entity, it has power over the
entity when the voting rights are sufficient to give
it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the entity unilaterally. The Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
entity are sufficient to give it power, including:

e the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings
of the other vote holders;

e potential voting rights held by the Group,
other vote holders or other parties;

e rights arising from other contractual

arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances that
indicate that the Group has, or does not have,
the current ability to direct the relevant
activities at the time that decisions need to be
made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)

Financials

B 7%

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group
(refer to note 2.3).

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity
of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of financial position respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the
Group holds between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights.
accounted for using the equity method of

Investments in associates are

accounting (see (c) below), after initially being
recognised at cost.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)

(c)

Annual Report 2023
2023 F ik

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of
the investee in profit or loss, and the Group's
share of movements in other comprehensive
income of the investee in other comprehensive
income. Dividends received or receivable from
associates are recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group's share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its
interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf
of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
equity-accounted investees have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the

policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in note 2.6.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)

Financials

B 7%

(d)

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result in a loss of
control as transactions with equity owners of the
Group. A change in ownership interest results in
an adjustment between the carrying amounts of
the controlling and non-controlling interests to
reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests and any
consideration paid or received is recognised in a
separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control or significant influence, any retained
interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair
value with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value
becomes the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/ permitted by applicable
IFRSs.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless of
whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

e fair values of the assets transferred

e liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business

e equity interests issued by the Group

e fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a

contingent consideration arrangement; and

e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions, measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’'s net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Annual Report 2023

2023 F#

2. EXEFABREE@

PBEBEENKBEEAK  &H
PrfiEE mEm TAREMEE - WE—
FB AR MEENKERRE :

s MBRBEENARE

s FNBEBEANEEAELENAR

o AEEBITHIBME

s IAREBRPELNTAEERRED
RNRME R

s EREAMGFENMERRKENR
SfE -

BRARGISMERSN  REBE GHUEER A
BRI BEEARAENABRIABENS
BREER SN AR ETE - REEREE
R U BB 32 5 1 A 0 (B 3k S 422 RO A o P 15 4
Us B T B8 1] 58RI B B FHE Y BL I BE SR A
Yo B8 7 B8 0 (E (] FEARE AR 25

Yo BB AR B A AR A S AR B S 3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RAMBMAME

179



2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)

The excess of the:

e consideration transferred;

e amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity; and

e acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are
less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of
the business acquired, the difference is recognised
directly in profit or loss as a gain on acquisition of
subsidiaries.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions. Contingent consideration is classified either
as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a
financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the company on the basis of dividend

received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee's net assets

including goodwvill.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)

(a)

(b)

Annual Report 2023
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Functional and presentation currency
I[tems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the
functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar
(HK$), which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end
exchange rates are generally recognised in profit
or loss. Foreign exchange gains and losses that
relate to borrowings are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, within
finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on a net basis within

other gains and losses.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
exchange rates at the date when fair value was
determined. Translation differences on assets
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as
part of the fair value gain or loss. For example,
translation differences on non-monetary assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or
loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and
translation differences on non-monetary assets
such as equities classified as fair value through
other comprehensive income are recognised in

other comprehensive income.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)

Financials

B 7%

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency

as follows:

e assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of the reporting period;

e income and expenses for each statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions);
and

e all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities and of borrowings are recognised
in other comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is sold or any borrowings forming part
of the net investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to profit or
loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the closing rate.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and

partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the currency translation
differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the
company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not
result in the Group losing control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences is re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and is not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial
disposals (that is, reductions in the Group's
ownership interest in an associate that do not
result in the Group losing significant influence) the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
the end of each reporting period.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the statement of financial position
where the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The Group has
also entered into arrangements that do not meet the
criteria for offsetting but still allow for the related
amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such
as bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the Group
will comply all attached conditions and the grants will
be received.

Government grants related to costs are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that the grants are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of
property, plant and equipment are included in non-
current liabilities as other liabilities and are credited to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected
lives of the related assets. Note 5 provides further
information on how the Group accounts for
government grants.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they become

receivable.

For other accounting policies are included in accompanying
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of
accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal
the actual results. Management also needs to exercise

judgement in applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Estimates are continually evaluated. They are based on
historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial
impact on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable

under the circumstances.

The estimates and assumptions that carry a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities are listed below with references in the
notes to the financial statements.

Critical Accounting Estimates Notes

(@) Impairment of property, plant and equipmentand 14 and
right-of-use assets 15
(b)  Valuation of inventories 23
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4.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating

decision maker.

The board of the Company has appointed Executive
Committee which assesses the financial performance and
position of the Group, and makes strategic decisions.
Executive Committee, which has been identified as being
the chief operating decision maker, consists of executive
directors of the Company.

Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable
for goods sold and services provided less returns and net of
trade discounts.

For the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, information reported to the chief operating
decision maker (the “CODM"), which comprises executive
directors of the Company, mainly focuses on the location of
management. Revenue derived from each location of
management is further analysed into those from retail and
wholesale markets when reviewed by the CODM. The
Group's reportable and operating segments for the years
ended 31 March 2023 and 2022 included two segments,
namely (i) business in the Mainland China and (ii) business in
Hong Kong & Macau of China and other markets.

Financials
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (conTinueb)

(a) Analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable segment

For the year ended 31 March

4. BEHERERDHBER @

(a) $ETT2 M5 8E A EEE

EMREEDH
BEIANALEE

Hong Kong & Macau of China

Mainland China and other markets Total
A ity TEES  PERMAREMTHE st
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
HK$ million  HK$ million  HKS$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million
BEET BEET BEBET BBET BBET BBET
Revenue =t
External sales INREHE
— Retail - ZTE 37,228.5 43,794.2 11,565.5 10,114.2 48,794.0 53,908.4
—Wholesale (note i) — BEEE (BTN 44,394.5 43,137.5 1,495.9 1,891.8 45,890.4 45,029.3
Segment/ Group revenue DE EE R 81,623.0 86,931.7 13,061.4 12,006.0 94,684.4 98,937.7
Inter-segment sales (note i) o ZBFE 4 E (MFEii) - - 3,274.0 5,435.1 3,274.0 5,435.1
81,623.0 86,931.7 16,335.4 17,4411 97,958.4 104,372.8
Adjusted gross profit KREEF 19,039.6 20,090.2 3,683.6 3,617.4 22,723.2 23,707.6
(before elimination) (MR AT)
Inter-segment eliminations 7 B FE) B £ - - (321.8) (534.9) (321.8) (534.9)
Adjusted gross profit KABERN 19,039.6  20,090.2 3,361.8 3,0825 22,4014 23,1727
Other income Hhlg A 559.2 682.9 174.1 110.3 733.3 793.2
Selling and distribution costs  $4% & 7 $EAK A B2 (10,811.8) (11,189.5) (2,883.9) (2,774.5)  (13,695.7) (13,964.0)
and general and —MRRITEAX
administrative expenses
Core operating profit FEEEHR 8,787.0 9,5683.6 652.0 418.3 9,439.0 10,001.9
(segment result) (DEPERE)
Unrealised loss on gold ESAEEER (1,229.9) (833.0)
(note iii) (B3 iii)
Others (note iv) HAb (FiaEiv) (405.0) 82.0
Interest income AEWA 227.8 69.8
Finance costs RbE A (585.4) (337.7)
Profit before taxation R~ 352 B o ) 7,446.5 8,983.0
Other segment information A ELE
included in measurement of  SEF| (5 EELE)
core operating profit TR EM
(segment result): DEEF :
Concessionaire fees HED K 1,874.4 2,365.4 11.2 10.56 1,885.6 2,375.9
Operating lease rentals in ARG ELE 159.3 236.6 188.9 212.0 348.2 448.6
respect of rented premises ~ HEHE
Staff costs 8 TR A 3,938.1 4,113.1 1,337.1 1,192.2 5,275.2 5,305.3
Depreciation and amortisation 47 & I # £ 1,500.1 1,226.3 720.2 799.4 2,220.3 2,025.7
Notes: BREE -

()  Wholesale revenue represents revenue from jewellery trading, sales to
franchisees and retailers and provision of services to franchisees.

(i) Inter-segment sales are charged at a price mutually agreed by both parties.

(iii) A fair value loss arising from gold loans of HK$1,546.0 million (2022: fair value
loss of HK$1,021.2 million) was recorded, as disclosed in Note 9 of which fair
value loss of HK$1,229.9 million (2022: fair value loss of HK$833.0 million) has
not yet been realised due to timing difference in the recognition of the impact of
changes in gold price between gold loans (short position) and gold inventories

(long position).

(iv) Others represent other gains and losses, other expenses and share of profits of

an associate.
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 4. BEBRTHBEH =
INFORMATION (continuep)
(a) Analysis of the Group’s revenue and (a) MU 2R BEIPTHWEAEEZE
results by reportable segment (continued) EEREED T @
The accounting policies of the reportable segments are AI2®D ST BRE ERT AR ER
the same as the Group's accounting policies described KEETHRAER - KAREFIBERDE
above. Adjusted gross profit represents the gross profit meARFHE(BE) KRS oMBAESE
generated from each segment without allocation of BWEF - FERERBABERDEES K
unrealised (loss)/ gain on gold. Core operating profit HIH(EE) ke HtWEkEE - E
represents the profit generated from each segment X - SiE—REEE AR - FEUK
without allocation of unrealised (loss)/ gain on gold, ARBEKAR S D EAEERNE o I
other gains and losses, other expenses, share of profits RAEELERKEERAEE RSB R
of an associate, interest income and finance costs. R EETEELE o
This is the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment.
(b) Analysis of the Group’s assets and (b) IR Z2H P WME DB EREE
liabilities by reportable segment SERBEDH
As at 31 March M3H31H
Segment assets SBEE
Hong Kong & Macau of China
Mainland China and other markets Total
A it TEEE  FERMAREMATE @t
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
HKS$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HKS$ million  HK$ million
HEET BEER BHEET BE#ER HEET BE#ER
Property, plant and equipment  #)% &= k& E 4,316.0 4,131.7 828.4 907.1 5,144.4 5,038.8
Right-of-use assets ERERE 7743 623.0 922.1 1,055.7 1,696.4 1,678.7
Investment properties REME 148.0 17.5 175.1 186.2 3231 203.7
Other intangible assets HEMEREE 49.8 80.8 16.5 26.9 66.3 107.7
Jewellery collectibles KELR - - 1,520.1 1,520.1 1,520.1 1,520.1
Prepayment and deposits ARFERE MRS 224.1 162.0 122.2 123.8 346.3 285.8
Inventories FE 40,158.6 39,868.0 19,131.8 17,386.0 59,290.4 57,254.0
Trade and other receivables B REMBERIE 5,640.9 5,224.1 552.0 689.9 6,192.9 5,914.0
Taxation recoverable AT U [e] 75 18 - - 36.3 8.4 36.3 8.4
Short-term bank deposits RHRITER - - 38.8 = 38.8 =
Cash and cash equivalents B RBEEZEY 8,288.1 10,937.7 3,406.9 4,004.5 11,695.0 14,942.2
Total segment assets BAOBEE 59,599.8 61,044.8 26,750.2 25,908.6 86,350.0 86,953.4
Unallocated: Ao
Other intangible assets HihmpaE - 1.3
Financial assets at fair value BRAREFABRD 64.6 29.9
through profit or loss CREE
Investments in associates REEE DR ZIRE 1225 129.1
and amounts due from YN
associates I
Loan receivables FEUE K 10.5 12.6
Deferred tax assets BREHREE 792.9 611.0
Total assets HmEE 87,3405 87,737.3
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 4., BE£EERDBEH @
INFORMATION (conTinueb)

(b) Analysis of the Group’s assets and (b) IR Z2H P MEN I AEREE
liabilities by reportable segment BERBET @
(Continued)
As at 31 March MR3A31H8
Segment liabilities SEHERE

Hong Kong & Macau of China

Mainland China and other markets Total
i HEES  PERMREMT S st
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

HKS$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million
BEET BEBET BEET BBERT BBET BBET

Trade and other payables Do REMEMZE  (28542.8) (23,7146)  (1,546.1)  (1,451.5) (30,088.9) (25,166.1)
Taxation payables FEfT R IE (688.5) (568.1) (136.6) (167.9) (825.1) (736.0)
Bank borrowings BITER - - (5,854.9) (9,064.5) (5,854.9) (9,064.5)
Gold loans =oEE (12,737.7) (12,587.0) (2,347.9) (3,133.6) (15,085.6) (15,720.6)
Lease liabilities AERE (639.3) (471.1) (526.4) (723.4)  (1,165.7)  (1,194.5)
Total segment liabilities o IeEE (42,608.3) (37,340.8) (10,411.9) (14,540.9) (53,020.2) (51,881.7)
Unallocated: ROHEL

Amount due to non-controlling  FEF B 2 T 3EHE AR (52.4) (63.8)
shareholders of subsidiaries BRI
Retirement benefits BRI AR (185.2) (239.1)
obligations
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIEEE (645.2) (918.2)
Other liabilities Hib g & (77.7) (79.8)
Total liabilities Bam (53,980.7)  (63,182.6)
(c) Analysis of the Group’s assets by (c) RMEBHBETHWEEESEE
geographical area S
The Group's non-current assets, excluding loan i EE D AREBIEREEE(T
receivables, deposits, amounts due from associates, BREEBRER  BEffiEe  EUKEE2AQA
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and FIEBRAABERFABENESREERE
deferred tax assets, by geographical areas are as ERMEEE) DT ¢
follows:
As at 31 March A3 A31H
2023 2022
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEERT
Mainland China A B b 5,739.6 5,393.4
Hong Kong & Macau of China and other markets A EZ&HS « R BRI R HE TS5 3,224.7 8,879
8,964.3 8,731.3
Annual Report 2023 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ‘ ’I 89
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (conTinueb)

Financials
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Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sales of
goods and the provision of services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred or provided to the customer,
at the amount of promised consideration to which the
Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

(a) Sales of goods - Retail
The Group operates a chain of retail stores
selling jewellery products and watches.
Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised
when the product is transferred to the
customer who takes delivery in store.

Payment of the transaction price is due from
retail customers immediately. The payment is
usually settled in cash, by credit cards, by
means of electronic payments or settled
indirectly through retail malls.

(b) Sales of goods - Customers loyalty

programme

Sales of goods that result in award credits for
customers, under the Group's customer loyalty
programme, are accounted for as multiple
element revenue transactions and the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable is
allocated between the products supplied and
the award credits granted. Revenue is not
recognised at the time of the initial sale
transaction — but is deferred and recognised as
revenue when the cash coupons or points are
redeemed and the Group's obligations have
been fulfilled.
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (conTinueb)

(b)

(c)

Annual Report 2023
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Sales of goods — Customers loyalty
programme (Continued)

Accumulated experience is used to estimate
the forfeiture of award credits as breakage
which is recognised as contract liabilities. The
expected breakage amount is recognised as
revenue in proportion to the pattern of rights
exercised by the customers or when the
likelihood of the customer exercising its rights

becomes remote.

Sales of goods — Wholesale to
franchisees/ retailers and Jewellery
trading

The Group manufactures and sells a range of
jewellery products in the wholesale market.
Sales are recognised when control of the
products is transferred to franchisees/ retailers
and jewellery trading customers. The
franchisees/ retailers and jewellery trading
customers have full discretion over the channel
and price to sell the products, and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
franchisees’/ retailers’ and jewellery trading
customers’ acceptance of the products. Control
is transferred when the risks of obsolescence
and loss have been transferred to the
franchisees/ retailers and jewellery trading
customers, and either the franchisees/ retailers
and jewellery trading customers have accepted
the products in accordance with the sales
contract, the acceptance provisions have
lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence
that all criteria for acceptance have been
satisfied.

A contract liability is also recognised when the
franchisees/ retailers pay deposits before the
Group transfers control of the products to the
franchisees/ retailers.
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (conTinueb)

(d)

Service income from franchisees

The Group provides services to franchisees
under fixed-price contracts. Revenue from
providing services is recognised in the
accounting period in which the services are
rendered.

Revenue is recognised based on the actual
service provided to the end of the reporting
period as a proportion of the total services to
be provided because the customer receives
and uses the benefits simultaneously.

The customer pays the fixed amount based on
a payment schedule. If the services rendered
by the Group exceed the payment, a contract
asset is recognised. If the payments exceed
the services rendered, a contract liability is
recognised.

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods

and services at a point in time and over time in the

following major product categories:

For the year ended 31 March

4.
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BE3H31BLEE

2023 2022
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEBT
At a point in time RE—RE

Retail sales TEHE 48,794.0 53,908.4
Wholesale to franchisees/ retailers MR/ 5 R 44,934.5 43,890.4
Jewellery trading KEZSH 360.2 659.4

Over time R—BEER
Service income from franchisees A INBEEH R A 595.7 479.5
94,684.4 98,937.7

Financials

B 7%

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited

192
AARKEEBERAF



4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 4.
INFORMATION (conTinueb)

The following are the major product categories of the
Group's revenue excluding jewellery trading and

service income from franchisees:

For the year ended 31 March

EBEERTBER @

UTHAEEL2XR(FTERREES R
KA MBEEARBEWA) N ERERBES

BEIABBLFE

2023 2022

HK$ million HK$ million

BEBT BEET

Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery KEER AL RKEEH 16,705.3 19,915.6
Gold jewellery and products HeyHiRER 72,094.0 72,062.7
Watches F4 74 4,929.2 5,820.5
93,728.5 97,798.8

No individual customer contributed over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group in both years.

MEFER  SBEENBEFEAEEEE

¥510% A ko

5. OTHER INCOME 5. HualkA

2023 2022
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEET
Commission income EEI@N 1245 139.3
Government grants (note) BT 48 B (P &) 202.4 311.0
Other income from franchisees PIERNEEREECR= RPN 195.0 172.0
Rental income AL WA 37.0 35.4
Interest income from trade receivables Z 5 W IE R F S U 73.0 53.2
Interest income from loan receivables EREZRFE WA 0.4 1.1
Others Efb 101.0 81.2
733.3 793.2

Note:  Under Anti-Epidemic Fund launched by the Hong Kong SAR government, wage M : REEFBHFEBNHELA (HENEES ] B#ZE2023F3 4

subsidies of HK$27.7 million (2022: nil) related to the Employment Support Scheme
were recognised in the year ended 31 March 2023.

Government subsidies of HK$174.5 million (2022: HK$298.6 million) granted to
subsidiaries in Mainland China and government subsidies of HK$0.2 million (2022:
HK$12.4 million) granted to subsidiaries in other jurisdictions were recognised in the
year ended 31 March 2023.
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6. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 6. HithhzmRE51E

2023 2022
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEBAET
Net foreign exchange (loss)/ gain FE (E18)/ W F58 (328.3) 138.1
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  MERERENER (43.5) (35.5)
plant and equipment
Gain on surrender of right-of-use assets REFAEEENKZ 14.9 5.8
COVID-19-related rent concession 2019 BMRmESHREENHEHSES 32.8 61.4
Reversal of impairment of property, W - BB RRERERE (ME14) 0.3 -
plant and equipment (note 14)
Reversal of impairment of right-of-use assets FREEEMERD (M:E15) 15.0 -
(note 15)
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary HHE KRB AR EIE (2.7) =
Others Hih (6.3) 1.0
(317.8) 170.8
7. OTHER EXPENSES 7. HibfX
2023 2022
HK$ million HK$ million
BEERT BEAT
Donation B3 47.7 54.8
Amortisation of other intangible asset Hith 2 728 6 39.8 39.8
875 94.6
194 Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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8.

INTEREST INCOME AND FINANCE

COSTS

Interest income
Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included in
the net fair value gains and losses on these assets.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost
calculated using the effective interest method is recognised
in the profit or loss as part of other income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is
earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes. Any other interest income is
included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the
effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount
of the financial assets (after deduction of the loss
allowance).

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time
that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

FIB W &Rl & A A

FIBWA
KERAABEFABRSNSEEENNERA
FPAZFEEM AR E RS RERFET -

BREBHEK AT ENEREENNSBAERE
AR E - REBEERREMUEA -

FERSEEREN SR EERRAMS KA
o ASWAE 25 AEE WA o Ef]E A7)
SHABIGFFAEAMEA -

MNBRARERNXERESHEERTAE
AESH  ERRHREEBENSREER
She MEERESREE H BERMEEARE
BMEEFREECGIREBERRER) -

BERE

BERREWE BERLEAEREEN K
MEERERAR TR R ERBEEAMEERE
R HEMTREABERNE - SEREER
FEAERHBENMERTERERHEENEE -

ERERFABEREREEXHAZERIRE
PR BN ARABBERNCZER
RS IR o

HitpfE ERANEEE 2 BEANH ©

2023 2022
HK$ million HK$ million
BEAR BAEAT
Interest income from FLEWA
— banks — $R1T 227.8 69.8
Finance costs on Bl & B AR
—gold loans -E=2fEE 251.9 233.9
— bank borrowings —RITEX 294.3 67.6
— lease liabilities -HEaE 39.2 36.2
585.4 337.7
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9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9. BeBimiiizFl
2023 2022
HKS$ million HK$ million
BEET BEBAET
Profit before taxation has been arrived at BREATEFER/ (GTA) -
after charging/ (crediting):
Directors’ remuneration (note 10) ZE5M< (HE10) 197.0 198.9
Staff's retirement benefits B TR FIFTEI 43K 793.1 729.1
scheme contributions
Staff costs BITKA 4,285.1 4,377.3
5,275.2 5,305.3
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses FERAERERS 68,965.4 74,036.9
Concessionaire fees HED K 1,885.6 2,375.9
Operating lease rentals in respect of REAYELERERS 348.2 448.6
rented premises
Depreciation of property, plant ME - BERKEITE 1,271.7 1,148.4
and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 886.1 816.3
Depreciation of investment properties WEMERE 19.8 12.0
Amortisation of other intangible assets (note) Hth 72 A (P EE) 42.7 49.0
Recognition/ (reversal) of allowances on FERERER/ (BE) 14.4 (57.0)
inventories (included in cost of goods sold) (GFABEERAR)
Loss allowance written back on trade and B 5 RHEMEWRIEREBEEZ (1.9) (159.2)
other receivables Bl
Fair value loss arising from gold loans HEeBENARERBRE 1,546.0 1,021.2
(included in cost of goods sold) (GTASHEKARA)
Donations (included in other expenses) BRGIAEMREXZA) 47.7 54.8
Auditors’ remuneration for the Company's IZERT B © F A A RIAZEAD
auditor
—audit and related services — ZE AR 7.0 6.6
- non-audit services - FERBRTS 25 3.8
Auditor’s remuneration for other auditors % SR B & 7 H At A% ZRAT
—audit and related services — ZE AR 9.1 4.9

Note:

Amortisation of HK$39.8 million (2022: HK$39.8 million) related to HEARTS ON FIRE

was included in note 7 “Other Expenses” and the remaining amount of HK$2.9
million (2022: HK$9.2 million) was included in general and administrative expenses.

Ffi#E : EBEHEARTS ON FIREF B8 &) # $439.8 8 & /& 7t (20224 :
39.8EEBI) A A7 EMbFX ] MerE298EET

(20224 : 9.2 BEB L) AT A —RRITRAX °

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’' AND 10. EFE - ReTHAERESNE
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

2023 2022

HK$ million HK$ million

BEBT BEBT

Directors’ fees = Yok 6.7 4.7
Other emoluments to directors BEEMNEMME

— salaries and other benefits -He NEMER 40.1 36.4

— performance-based bonus - EWAEAT 143.2 150.4

— retirement benefits scheme contributions — BRI AFF B R 7.0 7.4

197.0 198.9

Financials
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10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND
EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS (conTinueb)

Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors and

10. ES - RETHRAEREENE

(#8)

AEBRARAEZRERTRABX NN

the chief executives of the Company are as follows: FIFAT :
2023 2022
Retirement Retirement
Salaries benefits Salaries benefits
Director's and other  Performance scheme Director's and other  Performance scheme
fee benefits  based bonus contributions Total fee benefits  based bonus  contributions Total
HER RAERA ik BAERA
EzHhe Hit A EREA A act Ezhe HpER EUEA AR @t
HKS million ~ HKS million ~ HKS million ~ HK$ million ~ HKS million ~ HKS million ~ HKS million ~ HK$ million ~ HKS million  HKS million
BEET BEERT BEER BEER BEER BE#R BBAR BEAT BE#ER BE#R
(note i) (note i)
(MH&Ei) (W)
Executive directors: HITES:
Dr.Cheng Kar-Shun, Heny B0 @18+ 02 65 1656 07 2.0 02 63 219 06 290
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Comroy B8 4 02 36 104 13 155 02 33 125 15 175
Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia Rty an 0.2 30 11 0.5 114 0.2 12 29 0.1 44
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent EREREE 0.2 63 165 0.6 236 02 6.3 233 06 304
Dr. Cheng Chiong, Adrian 1=l + 02 27 82 1.1 122 02 26 121 15 164
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson ~ B3812 % 4 0.2 23 5.9 0.1 85 02 22 8.1 01 10.8
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton ~ E3{E8 4 4 0.2 3.7 121 16 176 02 36 165 20 23
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter Redrht 0.2 34 94 03 133 02 33 127 03 165
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby BiRBRE 0.2 32 94 0.3 131 0.2 3.1 133 03 16.9
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong note i) Bttt & % 4 (Hiz i) 0.2 54 39.1 05 452 02 45 195 04 26
Independent non-executive  BUFHTES :
directors:
Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon B34 48 0.9 - 14 - 23 06 = 1.2 = 18
Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey WREBEE 0.8 - 14 - 22 04 - 12 - 16
Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond fERELT 0.8 - 14 - 22 04 - 12 - 16
Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily HsBat 0.8 - 13 - 21 04 - 12 - 16
Mr. Chia Pun-Kok, Herbert BRERE 08 - 1.0 - 18 04 = = = 04
Ms. Fung Wing-Yee, Sabrina & 3kig &+ (HtsTiii) 03 - - - 03 - - - - -
(note iii)
Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor BEEEL (v 03 - 14 - 17 04 = 12 - 16
(note iv)
Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul BRIt E - - - - - 0.1 - 1.6 - 17
(note v) (Mizv)
Total et 6.7 401 1432 70 197.0 47 364 1504 74 1989
Notes: B E
(i) The performance-based bonus is discretionary based on the Group's financial results (i) BREATDBEARAFHEESRAKBNMBEERES
and directors’ performance decided by the remuneration committee of the Company. REAMIEEE °
(ii) Resigned with effect from 31 March 2023. (ii) B 20234 3 A 31 B#BEHE -
(iii) Appointed with effect from 1 December 2022. (iii) H20225F12 A1 ARBERT -
(iv) Retired upon the conclusion of the annual general meeting held on 27 July 2022. (iv) 1202267 A 27 ARITHRRAFERGHEREBRE -
(v) Retired upon the conclusion of the annual general meeting held on 28 July 2021. (v) 1202147 A28 BEITHRFAF KRG HERERE -

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
emoluments of the non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors shown above were mainly for their
services as directors of the Company.
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10.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’' AND
EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS (conTinueb)

The five highest paid individuals included five directors (2022:
five) of the Company, details of whose emoluments are
included above.

During the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors and the
chief executives of the Company or the five highest paid
individuals (including directors, the chief executives and
employees) as compensation for loss of office and as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group. None of the
directors have waived any emoluments during the years
ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.

Other than the emoluments of directors and five highest paid
individuals disclosed above, the emoluments of the senior
management whose profiles are included in “Profile of
Directors and Senior Management"” section fell within the

following bands:

10. E¥ - RETHAERESNE

(48)

hEa&EaMe AT BEARRNARAESE(2022
F A7) BEFHFBHNR L -

EZE20234F3 31 A &20229F3A31 A LEE -
REBEWERNAARNEERGSTHRASRAS
EaMe AT (BEEE  HRTBABRES)
SAAME - AERBE TR &Y% E R IR S| 5 N
AL E DA SR B B ) 28D o &L= 202343 A 31
HX%20223 A3 HILFE - WERERERNE
RIS o

BRraBEERAAERMEALTHOMEIN S
ERAB(BEHEN EZRESRERABHN]
— &) BE TN F T HIEE

Number of individuals

BE®E
2023 2022
HK$nil - HK$1,000,000 THTE 1,000,000 7T 2 -
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 & 7L = 2,000,000 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 % 7T % 2,500,000 % 7T 1 2
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 % 7T % 3,000,000 % 7T 3 3
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 % 7T % 3,500,000 % 7T 5 5
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 #7T % 4,000,000 % 7T - 2
12 12

Financials
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11. TAXATION

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted
by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable
to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries and associates operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and considers whether it is probable that a taxation
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group
measures its tax balances either based on the most likely
amount or the expected value, depending on which method
provides a better prediction of the resolution of the
uncertainty.

11. $IE

ANERZ TS T 32 H s o 2 AR B R AR B MR A IR
BRBEER HERFENENHRIE  LEH
R B 4 22 R A R B R 2 TR S 1R A R AR T

B R PR 1S Bt

BIEAPRIS B e HRIBA AR - E M B A7) K i
ERABENELRRTRANB RN ®RE B
RERMABEEABGORBEPIFE - EEE
S8 B R OE DI 2 B AR IR A 1500 TE AT i 3R
BRI - WE BRI HEE DA A EER
REEENTRKTE - ARBERERE A
RS RAAMEECGR T A5 L= EmRETRR
THEEAZNBATRME)  SAEEHRK
FRER ©

2023 2022
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEER
The taxation charge comprises: BIERS e
Current tax: BREARRIE -
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") in B b RIS 1,319.9 1,503.9
Mainland China
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBEREH 253.5 267.0
Macau complementary tax BPFTS M T 29.3 40.0
Taxation in other jurisdictions EH A RSE MR 2 B8 12.7 6.1
1,615.4 1,817.0
Under/ (over) provision in prior years: BAEFEREGIR/ (BEEE)
EIT in Mainland China B A SEETE R 86.3 285
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBERMEH 25.8 2.5
Macau complementary tax SBPS TS/ TR - 0.1
Taxation in other jurisdictions E M RIE MR 2 BiIR - (0.3)
112.1 30.8
Deferred tax charge (note 22) EEMIER S (M3E22) 36.4 50.9
Withholding tax* FEHFR * 193.1 204.4
1,957.0 2,103.1

*  Withholding tax mainly represents withholding tax on intra-group licence income from

Mainland China subsidiaries.
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11. TAXATION (conTinueD)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law (the “EIT Law") of the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC") and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the subsidiaries in
Mainland China is 25.0% for both years.

For certain subsidiaries of the Company in Mainland China,
they are entitled to the tax incentives in connection with the
development of the western part of Mainland China. The
applicable tax rate is 15.0% for both years.

Macau complementary tax is calculated at the maximum
progressive rate of 12.0% on the estimated assessable profit
for both years.

Taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or

11. HIE @)

MEFEA - BEF G DIRG T EREOREAIE
16.5% XA E o

REPEARLME([HE]) EEMREHER
HEmMAA - B EAMHE QRN EMREFES
7425.0% °

AAREBETHBEANMWK B R AELSBEHEA
AHERNBEES MEFENERR XS
515.0% °

MIEFE A - RPIFTS 7B IR A5 ER T &
FiEmm RERE12.0%H ©

£ OBIE % A A A FR 2 OIR TH A i I B
o -

loss as follows:

2023 2022
HK$ million HK$ million
BEERT BEERT
Profit before taxation B4 T Al s A 7,446.5 8,983.0
Tax at the applicable income tax rate: REAMEHETEMNTFHE - 1,648.9 1,953.4
(Mainland China: 25.0%; Hong Kong, China: (RE A : 25.0% : FEZES : 16.56%
16.5%; Macau, China: 12.0%) R © 12.0%)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AR N TR 2 27.9 18.5
tax purposes
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERBTBRARNRBZE (12.9) (156.8)
tax purposes
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KRR IBE RN RIS 2 29.5 16.2
Utilisation of tax losses previously A LR AR TIEEE (12.1) (17.7)
not recognised
Tax effect of temporary differences AERL R EZEARIETE (34.9) (69.8)
not recognised
Tax effect of tax exemptions and incentives ETHEANHEBARFRERE R (48.2) (82.0)
granted to certain subsidiaries in BENOBBZE
Mainland China
Withholding tax on undistributed profits of FP B ) b B BB A B R 90K g A T A0 AR 215.4 234.3
subsidiaries in Mainland China
Under provision in prior years BAFEREBETR 112.1 30.8
Withholding tax* FEIF * 193.1 204.4
Tax credit B (171.7) (175.5)
Others HAitb 9.3 6.3
Taxation charge for the year FRHIBESZ 1,957.0 2,103.1
*  Withholding tax mainly represents withholding tax on intra-group licence income from * ENMBEEERPEANERRKRE O E®AA R BRERA

Mainland China subsidiaries.

Financials

B 7%

IR

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
BAAEHREEEER QA



12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

(b)

profit attributable to shareholders of the Company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than
ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during
the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in

the determination of basic earnings per share to take

into account:

the after-income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares; and

the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.

The calculation of the basic earnings per share for the year is

based on the consolidated profit attributable to shareholders

of the Company for the year and on the number of
10,000,000,000 (2022: 10,000,000,000) shares in issue

during the

year.

Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per

share as there was no potential ordinary shares dilution

during both years.
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13. DIVIDENDS

13. kB

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, MRMEH R Z BB EIRERIRE HRIL K
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the DIERZEMKRESHE(ELEERERBTH
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the EREIBRE) MEL#E -

reporting period but not distributed at the end of the

reporting period.

2023 2022
HK cents per HK cents per
share HK$ million share HK$ million
FRABW BEEBT FRAN BEAER
Dividends paid and recognised RERZ RERED IR
as distribution during the year BB
For current year: REE :
— Interim dividends - RHIRR B 22.0 2,200.0 22.0 2,200.0
For prior year: EFE:
— Final dividends - REAR B 28.0 2,800.0 24.0 2,400.0
5,000.0 4,600.0
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final RBEERE - NRAREFTEREMEE 202343
dividend of HK28.0 cents (2022: HK28.0 cents) per share and A31 B IEFEIRMNARER S E28.07%1(1L(2022
a special dividend of HK72.0 cents (2022: nil) per share, F :28.0781l) BRI E T 72.0 1L (2022
totalling HK$10,000.0 million (2022: HK$2,800.0 million) in F: F) 4 #£10,000.08 8 & £ (2022F :
respect of the year ended 31 March 2023 have been 2,800.0 B&BT) - HAFRFEREERRBSF
proposed by the directors of the Company and are subject to ANEEBESSHEE -

approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual

general meeting.
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings
held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes (other than
properties under construction in progress) are stated at
historical cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Land Over the lease term
Buildings 5%
Plant and machinery 10%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%-33'/,%
Over the lease term

or 20%,
whichever is shorter

Motor vehicles 25%

Leasehold improvements

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Properties which comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or for
administration purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately (or leased out separately under a finance lease),
the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions could not be sold separately, the property is
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes.

Construction in progress is carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences when
the assets are ready for their intended use.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Financials
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations or fair value
less costs to sell. These calculations require the use of
judgements and estimates. Management judgement is
required in the area of asset impairment particularly in
assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that may
indicate that the related asset values may not be
recoverable; (i) whether the carrying value of asset can be
supported by its recoverable amount, being the higher of
fair value less costs to sell and the net present value of
future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset in the business; and (iii) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management in
assessing impairment, including the discount rates or the
growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value used in the
impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s reported
financial condition and results of operations. If there is a
significant adverse change in the projected performance
and resulting future cash flow projections, it may be
necessary to take an impairment charge to the consolidated
income statement.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, after reviewing the
business environment as well as the Group's strategies and
past performance of its cash-generating units, management
concluded that there was reversal of impairment of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of
HK$0.3 million (2022: nil) and HK$15.0 million (2022: nil)
respectively. Management believe that any reasonably
possible changes in the assumptions used in the
impairment reviews would not affect management'’s view
on impairment at 31 March 2023. A discount rate of 18.0%
(2022: 14.0%) has been applied.
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

14. Y% - BERRE @

Furniture, Leasehold
Land and Plant and fixtures and improve- Motor Construction
building hinery uif ments vehicles in progress Total
B HE
THREF BEREE RERRE VES S AR EEIR E
HKS million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HKS million
BEER BBER BBER BEER BEER BEART BEER
Cost BA
At 1 April 2021 2021 F4A1H 4,161.0 533.6 32024 34222 57.6 64.9 11,4417
Currency realignment EEHE 155.8 230 66.6 139.8 19 36 390.7
Additions NE - 471 749.0 576.4 1.3 93.6 1,477.4
Transfer R 26.6 8.7 1.8 5.3 - (42.4) -
Disposals HE (1.1) (3.7) (245.0) (110.6) (6.0) (0.5) (366.9)
At 31 March 2022 M202243A31R 4,342.3 608.7 37748 4,033.1 64.8 119.2 12,942.9
Currency realignment EHRE (284.1) (44.4) (142.5) (280.2) (3.4) (9.3) (763.9)
Additions NE 11 313 741.2 736.9 4.2 409.9 1,936.6
Transfer K 164.8 15.7 0.4 8.7 - (189.6) -
Disposals HE - (12.1) (299.4) (153.4) (2.4) (10.5) (477.8)
Net transferred to investment BESTRENE (318.4) - - - - - (318.4)
properties
At 31 March 2023 ®202353A31H 39117 599.2 4,080.5 4,345.1 63.2 319.7 13,3194
Accumulated depreciation R FERAEE
and impairment
At 1 April 2021 202164 A1H 13114 240.2 2,419.2 2,8103 46.0 - 6,827.1
Currency realignment EHRE 53.0 108 37.1 1147 14 = 217.0
Depreciation provided for the year 4 47 & &/ 2116 56.3 461.1 4124 7.0 = 1,148.4
Eliminated on disposals HERE 0.7) (1.9 (181.5) (98.9) (5.4) - (288.4)
At 31 March 2022 R2022%3A31 R 1,575.3 305.4 2,735.9 3,2385 49.0 - 7,904.1
Currency realignment BHRE (104.9) (22.1) (76.3) (223.8) (25) - (429.6)
Depreciation provided for the year 4 A7 & # & 197.9 54.0 573.8 439.6 6.4 - 1,211.7
Impairment reversed for the year 4 A1) {E [l (0.3) - - - - - (0.3)
Eliminated on disposals HERE - (6.6) (246.5) (138.3) (2.0) - (393.4)
Transferred to investment BRI B (177.5) - - - - - (177.5)
properties
At 31 March 2023 202353 A 314 1,490.5 330.7 2,986.9 3.316.0 50.9 - 8,175.0
Carrying values IREE
At 31 March 2023 M2023%3A31H 2,421.2 268.5 1,093.6 1,029.1 123 319.7 5,144.4
At 31 March 2022 12022437311 2,767.0 3033 1,038.9 794.6 15.8 119.2 5,038.8

The carrying values of the Group's properties (including AEBYE (REEEIRE)MEEES AT :

construction in progress) are analysed as follows:

2023 2022

HK$ million HK$ million

BEET BEER

In Mainland China AR B At 2,439.9 2,561.4
In Hong Kong, China R EEE 301.0 324.8
2,740.9 2,886.2

Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

LIABILITIES

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset
is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real
estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to
separate lease and non-lease components and instead
accounts for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the

commencement date;

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee's incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay
to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic

environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
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15.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (conTinueD)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since
third party financing was received;

e uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by
the subsidiaries of the Group, which does not have
recent third party financing; and

e makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received;

e any initial direct costs; and
® restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over
the lease term (note 5). Initial direct costs incurred in
obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the underlying asset and recognised as expense
over the lease term on the same basis as lease income.
The respective leased assets are included in the balance
sheet based on their nature.

Financials

B 7%
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (conTinueD)

An amendment to IFRS 16 “COVID-19-related rent
concessions” was issued in June 2020 and is effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.
This amendment allows a lessee to elect not to assess
whether a rent concession occurring as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic is a lease
modification. Such practical expedient has been applied to
all rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of
the COVID-19 pandemic, only if all of the following
conditions are met:

e The change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same
as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

e Any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2022; and

e There is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

The Group reviews right-of-use assets for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the related carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
Determining whether an impairment has occurred typically
requires various estimates and assumptions, for details,
please refer to critical accounting estimate in note 14.
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (conTinueD)

The consolidated statement of financial position shows
the following amounts relating to leases:

15. FHESEREEER @

FAEMBEIRRBREHE GRS T

Leasehold land/
land use rights

A Office,
(note i) warehouse and
HELh/ others
Right-of-use assets 1A Retail stores WAR - AE Total
EREEE (PFF=E) ZEE REM st
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEER BEART BEAT
At 1 April 2021 ®2021F4A1H 582.4 1,131.9 78.5 1,792.8
Currency realignment B AR 6.7 19.5 0.9 27.1
Additions NE - 635.4 59.7 695.1
Depreciation provided for the year & N#7T & B & (M) (20.0) (739.4) (56.9) (816.3)
(note ii)
Surrender RE - (20.0) - (20.0)
At 31 March 2022 ®2022%3 A31H 569.1 1,027.4 82.2 1,678.7
Currency realignment B AR (11.9) (34.3) (1.8) (48.0)
Additions NE - 925.7 721 997.8
Depreciation provided for the year 4 A7 & & #5 (Kt aEii) (20.2) (811.1) (54.8) (886.1)
(note ii)
Impairment reversed for the year — 4F A& 2 [ (Bt 3E i) 14.3 0.7 - 15.0
(note iii)
Surrender RE - (28.7) (0.6) (29.3)
Modification (EH) - (31.7) - (31.7)
At 31 March 2023 "®2023F3 A31H 551.3 1,048.0 97.1 1,696.4
Lease liabilities HK$ million
HESE BEET
At 1 April 2021 R2021F4H1H 1,496.0
Currency realignment B 20.4
Lease payment HEFRIE (1,017.0)
Interest expenses AERX 36.2
Additions NE 684.5
Surrender BE (25.6)
At 31 March 2022 1®202243 A31H 1,194.5
Currency realignment Itk (35.2)
Lease payment HERIE (953.1)
Interest expenses B 39.2
Additions NE 996.2
Surrender RE (44.2)
Modification ES (31.7)
At 31 March 2023 M®2023F3A31H 1,165.7

Financials
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (conTinueD)

15. FRHESERBHEAEREwW

At 31 March 2023 At 31 March 2022
M2023%63A31H R202243H831H
HK$ million HK$ million
HEBT HEBT

Lease liabilities HEaE
Current k) 602.7 667.2
Non-current JERE 563.0 527.3
1,165.7 1,194.5

Notes:
() The Group has land lease arrangement with Mainland China government and
leasehold land in Hong Kong.

(i) The amount was charged to selling and distribution costs and general and
administrative expenses.

(i) The amount was recognised in other gains and losses.

The Group considers each individual retail store as a
separately identifiable cash-generating unit.
Management performed impairment assessments for
the retail stores that had impairment indicator. The
carrying amount of the retail store asset is written
down to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is in excess of its estimated recoverable
amount. The estimates of the recoverable amounts
were based on value-in-use calculations using
discounted cash flow projections based on the
management’s forecasts covering the remaining
tenure of the lease, with major assumptions such as
change in revenue, change in operating cost and
change in gross profit.

The change in revenue is dependent on the timing of
easing of the various travel restriction and quarantine
measures for COVID-19 pandemic, with the
assumption that tourist traffic and customer spending
would start to gradually recover from the second half
of the year ended 31 March 2023 onwards in Hong
Kong & Macau of China and other markets.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group has
reversed an impairment loss of property, plant and
equipment and right of-use assets of HK$0.3 million
(2022: nil) and HK$15.0 million (2022: nil), respectively
in other gains and losses (as shown in note 6).
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (conTinueD)

The consolidated statement of profit or loss shows the
following amounts relating to the leases which are not
capitalised in accordance with IFRS 16:

15. FRHESERBHEAEREwW

FEBEaRBNEAEARM AR ZER
MBMELF16RENCHEEMT

2023 2022
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEERT
Expense relating to short-term leases mEHHE R AR 348.2 448.6
(included in selling and distribution costs (FTASHE KD $HAA LA K
and general and administrative —MRERITHAX)
expenses)
Expense relating to variable lease WIAAREEERZEHHEE 1,885.6 2,375.9
payments not included in lease liabilities 3B BRXT
(included in selling and distribution costs) (GFASHE K7 )
2,233.8 2,824.5

Financials

B 7%

The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended
31 March 2023 was HK$3,186.9 million (2022:
HK$3,841.5 million).

The Group mainly leases various retail stores, offices
and warehouses. Rental contracts are typically entered
for fixed periods of six months to five years, but may
have extension options as described below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

Some property leases contain variable payment terms
that are linked to sales generated from a store. Variable
payment terms are used for a variety of reasons,
including minimising the fixed costs base for newly
established stores. Variable lease payments that
depend on sales are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which the condition that triggers those
payments occurs.
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (conTinueD)

Extension and termination options are included in a
number of property leases across the Group. These are
used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of
managing the assets used in the Group's operations.
The majority of extension and termination options held
are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor. In determining the lease term,
management considers all facts and circumstances
that create an economic incentive to exercise an
extension option, or not exercise a termination option.
Extension options (or periods after termination options)
are only included in the lease term if the lease is
reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are properties held for long-term
rental yields and are not occupied by the Group.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

If there is a transfer from investment property to owner-
occupied property evidenced by the commencement of
owner's occupation, the property shall be measured at its
carrying amount at the date of change in use for
subsequent accounting.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
investment properties over their estimated useful lives and
after taking into account their estimated residual value,
using the straight-line basis over 20 years for building
element or lease term for land element.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continuep) 16. HEMR @

2023 2022
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEAR
Cost B A
At 1 April n481H 305.7 304.9
Currency realignment B AR (1.9) 0.8
Net transferred from property, plant and FEEAYE  BENKRE 138.0 -
equipment
At 31 March M®3A31H 441.8 305.7
Accumulated depreciation E-S ik
At 1 April R4/81H 102.0 90.0
Currency realignment Bl AR (0.2) -
Depreciation provided for the year FNFTERE 19.8 12.0
Transferred to property, plant and equipment EEEYE - BER&E (2.9) =
At 31 March M3 HA31H 118.7 102.0
Carrying values BREE
At 31 March W3 A31H 323.1 203.7
2023 2022
HK$ million HKS$ million
BEEBT BEER
Rental income from operating leases KeHERT WA 20.6 15.3
Direct operating expenses from property EXHSBANMEL 19.3 14.3
that generated rental income HEEERAX
Direct operating expenses from property BEEEHSWANYEZ 3.5 -
that not generated rental income HEEERAX
The fair value measurement of the Group’s investment REBRBEHARKEMEN AL B =
properties at the end of the reporting period have been ENAE=EARESHR(MHE34) - AAE
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy FFENERSBEELSEMERMFTER
(note 34). The level into which a fair value MEABRNITBEREREEZHEET -
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique.
2 'I 4 Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited

B 7% ARBHREEEFR QA



16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continuep) 16. IEYE @)
Details of the Group's investment properties and AEBREREHRNEEDEFBRE
information about the fair value hierarchy at the end of AARESRNERTT :
each reporting period are as follows:
Fair value h|erarchy Fair value
AR ARE
2023 2022
HK$ million HK$ million
BHEBT BEBER
At 31 March M3H31TH
Industrial property units R BEEBHTE Level 3 410.3 402.8
located in Hong Kong, China Y BRL B=H,
Commercial property units 2 P HR B ) 3 ) 7 3 Level 3 242.4 N/A
located in Mainland China LI 3-Liv) E=4 TiE A

The Group policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels at the end of
the reporting period.

There were no transfers between level 1, 2 and 3
during the period (2022: nil).

The Group engages external, independent and qualified
valuers to determine the fair value of the Group's
investment properties at the end of every financial
year. As at 31 March 2023, the fair values of the
investment properties located in Mainland China and
Hong Kong have been determined by Shenzhen
Zhonghengxin Asset Appraisal Co., Ltd. and Knight
Frank Petty Limited respectively.

The fair value was determined based on the income
approach, where the market rentals of all lettable units
of the properties are assessed and capitalised at the
market yield expected by investors for this type of
properties. The market rentals are assessed by
reference to the rentals achieved in the lettable units
of the properties as well as other lettings of similar
properties in the neighbourhood. The capitalisation rate
is determined by reference to the yields derived from
analysing the sales transactions of similar properties in
the same location and adjusted to take into account
the market expectation from property investors to
reflect factors specific to the Group's investment
properties.

Fair value was determined by applying the market
approach by making reference to the comparable sales
transactions as available in the markets, where
comparison was made based on prices realised on actual
sales and/ or asking prices of comparable properties.
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continuep)

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use.

16. HFHEYE @

RIS
BERELE

ENARER  ZEMEZ
BRREBAIBE °

Valuation Range of inputs Relationship of unobservable
Description techniques Unobservable inputs (probability-weighted average) inputs to fair value
FUBRBARER
it ER® FIBRERAUE BAMBEE(HE - METY) DREZBRE
2023 2022
Industrial property units Income approach  Capitalisation rate 3.8% 3.8%  The higher the capitalisation rate,
- Hong Kong, China the lower the fair value
TEMESN - FEER WA BALE BALERES  RAESE
Monthly market HK$11.3 p.s.f. HK$10.9 p.s.f.  The higher the price per
rent square feet, the higher
the fair value
gAMSHS BY¥AR BYAR  BIARERYS AAEHES
N3%ET 109587
Commercial property units Income approach  Capitalisation rate 5.3% N/A  The higher the capitalisation rate,
- Mainland China the lower the fair value
BEMEEN - PEAM W NE BALE TER  BEXMMeEEE AAESE
Monthly market HK$389.9 p.s.m. N/A  The higher the price per
rent square feet, the higher
the fair value
gAMSHS BEHK TER  BTARERER AAEES
389.97 T
Commercial property units Market approach Market sale rate HK$38,838.9 p.s.m. N/A  The higher the market price,
- Mainland China per square meter, the higher the fair value
taking into
account of
individual factors
such as location
and size, etc.
BEMEEN - PEAM [iR 27 BYHARTHER SRR TEBR  WMHBERYES AAEES
(At RALE A 38,838.978 7

ANEERIER)

The investment properties are leased to tenants under
operating leases with rentals payable monthly.

Although the Group is exposed to changes in the
residual value at the end of the current leases, the
Group typically enters into new operating leases and
therefore will not immediately realise any reduction in
residual value at the end of these leases. Expectations

REMFRKEEELATES SA7

e ES
BEAEER A R AR E
BE - HARE—RE T IEEEE

ftfE-

about the future residual values are reflected in the fair

value of the properties.

For minimum lease payments receivable on leases of

investment properties, refer to note 30.

Financials
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FRREMFEHENSEBUEE R -

FH2HMEES0 -
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17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. Hh B EE
Intangible assets other than goodwill are measured initially R BN B B EVRIRKAGT 2 - SR
at cost or, if acquired in a business combination, fair value A Gh U AR UKEE B HiIR A o E S
at the acquisition date. An intangible asset with a finite = AERAFERAFHENEFEEREAI{EA
useful life is amortised on a straight-line basis over its FEARNAEGEE S - W B IR AR R 5T 8
useful life and carried at cost less accumulated amortisation k2 BEERYE -
and accumulated impairment losses.
2023 2022
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEBT
Cost 5%
At 1 April and 31 March R4R1BX3A31H 472.9 472.9
Accumulated amortisation Rty
At 1 April n481H 363.9 314.9
Amortisation provided for the year F B B 42.7 49.0
At 31 March M3 A31H 406.6 363.9
Carrying values IREE
At 31 March M3 A31H 66.3 109.0
The other intangible assets are comprised mainly the ZEHEMEFREEETZE R KEHEARTS ON
brandname and trademarks identified in the acquisition of FIREERMN @REEEREZE KA FEHFH6
HEARTS ON FIRE, amortised with useful life of 6 to 15 years. E15FH#H -
18. JEWELLERY COLLECTIBLES 18. BB R

Jewellery collectibles are those unique treasures with
extremely high-value and are designated not for sale.

Jewellery collectibles are classified as non-current assets at
cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any. Jewellery
collectibles are derecognised upon disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the profit or loss
in the period in which the item is derecognised.

The amounts represent the aggregate cost of gem-set
jewellery collectibles held by the Group which are designated
not for sale. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the recoverable amounts of the jewellery collectibles are at
least equivalent to their carrying amounts as at the end of

the reporting period.
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

INCLUDING PREPAYMENT AND
DEPOSITS

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. They are generally due for settlement between
30 and 180 days and therefore all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. See
note 33 for a description of the Group's impairment

19.

ESRHhEKRIESETE R
IHREfiRE

BHRUGRIRERR —REBBIETHERER
KRR MK T F 2508 - B 5K IA
—RNB0EE180 A ZM&N - Rt = HH R
ASENER -

B S RYGARNZEGERERR BRI
TESERBERD  ARAAERR - A&
Bl A E 5 REFEN B M AKREA HORER
2 B ERUABEBRFZORRBHKAGE -
BERASERERRNGHA - F2HMEES3 -

policies.

2023 2022

HK$ million HK$ million

BHEBT BEER

Trade receivables g S EEIE 3,228.0 3,130.8

Less: Loss allowance B B IR (14.6) (68.5)
3,213.4 3,062.3

Prepayments to suppliers ) L FE P FELA5F R B 610.9 338.0
Deposits BffiES 416.2 4421
Other tax recoverables (note) Hoth B Wi @] B TE (B EE) 2,210.1 2,236.9
Others Efb 88.6 120.5
6,539.2 6,199.8

2023 2022

HK$ million HK$ million

HEBRT HEBT

Non-current portion JEmENEL 346.3 285.8
Current portion TRENE D 6,192.9 5,914.0
6,539.2 6,199.8

Note:

Financials
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Other tax recoverables mainly refer to Value Added Tax (“VAT") levied at the Group's
sales in Mainland China. Input VAT on purchases can be deducted from output VAT
payable. The VAT recoverable is the net difference between output VAT and
deductible input VAT.

MizE: HerREREIZEATBEAMEEMBKNEET - KB
TR E B AT B A SR E B P R - RIS ER R
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

INCLUDING PREPAYMENT AND
DEPOSITS (conTinueb)

As at 31 March 2023, trade receivables of HK$21.7 million
(2022: HK$28.8 million) are due from entities in which certain
directors of the Company, who are also shareholders of the
Company, have beneficial interests in those entities.

The Group's sales to retail customers are mainly cash sales
and credit card sales. Sales to certain customers are on
credit with credit period up to 6 months. For sales through
concessionaire counters, the Group usually allows 30 days
credit period to these receivables.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
presented based on the invoice dates at the end of the

reporting period:

19. ESRHEMEWRIERETFR AR

BEEfFfZEE@

20233 A31H BZEWHKIE21.7TAEE
Je(20224F : 288 ABET) KEARAETE
EMBARARRFEERER 2B -

AEEHTERTNHENRSHERERRH
EhT MAETERENHSIARELX &
EHRZR6MEA -  REBOBEEMS - AKE
—RUZFREFRLE T30 ANEER -

NTREEEFEMZEY RRERRNESE
WK BRER DT

2023 2022

HK$ million HK$ million

BEET BEER

0 to 30 days 0Z30H 3,027.9 2,861.3
31 to 90 days 31290 H 144.4 150.6
91 to 180 days 912180 H 243 35.1
Over 180 days 180 HMA k£ 31.4 83.8
3,228.0 3,130.8

As at 31 March 2023, included in the trade receivable
balances are receivables of HK$1,110.7 million (2022:
HK$1,015.9 million) carrying a fixed interest rate ranging from
6.9% t0 9.4% (2022: 7.8% to 9.4%) per annum.

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss

allowance for all trade receivables.

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the
Group monitors change in the credit quality of the trade
receivables since the credit was granted and up to the
reporting date.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, a loss allowance of
HK$1.9 million is written back (2022: HK$159.2 million)
based on expected credit loss. During the year ended 31
March 2023, a loss allowance of HK$47.1 million is written
off (2022: nil). Information about the impairment of trade
receivables and the Group’s exposure to credit risk are set

out in note 33.
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20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES/ 20. ABtEATIZIE/ EUE =
AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES ATIRIE
2023 2022
HK$ million HK$ million
HEET HEBT
At 1 April A = 775 23.8
Currency realignment BT (2.3) 1.1
Acquisition A - 49.8
Share of profits i epiagal 0.3 5.8
Dividends received EYARE (6.0) (3.0)
At 31 March M3 A31H 69.5 77.5
Details of the associates of the Group are as follows: AEEME S AR FBEHIWT -
Place of incorporation/ Proportion of Proportion of
establishment and ownership interest voting rights held
Name of companies principal place of operation held by the Group by the Group Principal activities
HMAY/ RIBER rEBFEREE EEBATE
DAER TEEENY B hl BRERELH TEEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
Beijing Wolafei Jewellery Mainland China 35.0% 35.0% 40.0% 40.0% Manufacturing of jewellery
Company Limited RE A products
T REREEHERAA KEEREE
Group Program Limited British Virgin Islands 33.0% 33.0% 33.3% 33.3%  Operating a customer
("BVI") loyalty scheme in
EBERREE Hong Kong and
Mainland China
W& R FEAEE
ZERAEE
New Cutting Edge Limited BVI 40.0% 40.0% 40.0% 40.0% R&D and production of
(note) KEEBARES all jewellery-related
(i3] business
ERERBEGHEREE
Shenzhen Qianhai Chow Tai Fook Mainland China 30.0% 30.0% 28.6% 28.6% Operating a shopping
Hong Kong Goods Centre B Ay complex in Mainland China
Company Limited AR B 3 AT i RE D R 0
FFERAREERLERAR
Shenzhen Yungi Xingchen Mainland China 9.2% 9.2% 11.1% 11.1% Data analytics platform
Technology Company Limited HRE A, YRR
RITERERSHRHE
BREEAR
220 Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited

B 7% ARBHREEEFR QA



20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES/
AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

(CONTINUED)

Note:  The Group acquired 40.0% of the Ordinary Shares of New Cutting Edge
Limited which was established in BVl on 31 December 2021 at a
consideration of HK$49.8 million. New Cutting Edge Limited is engaged in
R&D and production of all jewellery-related businesses in Hong Kong.

The Group is able to exercise significant influence over New Cutting Edge
Limited because it has the power to appoint two out of five directors of
New Cutting Edge Limited under the provisions stated in the Articles of
Association of New Cutting Edge Limited, representing 40.0% of voting
rights held by the Group as at 31 March 2023 and 2022.

20. REEBE AT ZIRE/ BKEE
AT)RIE @)

fiEE: M20214F12A8318 - AEEHE498EBETH
E New Cutting Edge Limited £140.0% ¥ i A% *
New Cutting Edge Limited £ % & # B R BF &KL ©
New Cutting Edge Limited £ & BN E A KR E R
BARRE R EEET o

7 %5 [@ 7] ¥ New Cutting Edge Limited 17 {£ &
27 RE AR ENew Cutting Edge Limited #9148
BT RAMBIFTHEIE - AEEBEZENew Cutting
Edge Limited AR FEFHHIME - 1hAKE R 2023
FR% 20223 A31 BT FIRE#EE40.0% °

Each individual associate does not have a significant BEBBENAWENANEBMNES K
financial impact on the Group's results and financial BRABREATETZE - BRI TBEKX
position. Aggregate financial information of associates MEtE AR HEEREETT ¢
that are individually immaterial is as follows:
2023 2022
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEAET
Aggregate carrying amount of 18 517~ B2 K O Bt ) ) 69.5 77.5
individually immaterial associates ZERmEAEE
Aggregate amounts of the Group's AEBEFTE TS IBRMARE
share of:
Profit from continuing operations B R TR T 0.3 5.8
Other comprehensive (expense)/ income HEem(FEx)/ W (2.3) 1.1
Total comprehensive (expense)/ income 2HE(FX)/ WsEsE (2.0) 6.9

The Group had discontinued recognising its share of
losses of associates because its cumulative share of
losses in the associates had exceeded the investment
cost less subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
The Group will not resume recognition of its share of
any future profits in the associates until its share of
such profits equals the cumulative share of losses not
recognised in past years.
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20.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES/
AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

(CONTINUED)

20 Rt EBEATIZIRE/ FEWEZ
ASIFIE @)

The amounts of unrecognised share of losses of the FARZFAHREREEHEERAREERES
associates for the year and cumulatively, are as follows: B
2023 2022
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEER
Unrecognised share of losses AMERE(REE &S N AEE 48.0 19.9
of associates
Accumulated unrecognised share of Rt REREGE S AR ER 156.2 108.2

losses of associates

21.

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying value of amounts
due from associates is HK$53.0 million (2022: HK$51.6
million) of which HK$40.0 million (2022: HK$40.0
million) is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed
repayment terms and of HK$13.0 million (2022:
HK$11.6 million) which bears interest at 4.2% to 7.8%
per annum will be repaid to the Group by instalments
until 30 September 2024.

LOAN RECEIVABLES

Loan receivables represent loans to staff. Loan receivables
are classified as current or non-current assets based on
contractual terms and taking into account the timing of
recovery as expected by the management. There was no
amount due but unpaid, nor any loss allowance made against
the principal amount of HK$10.5 million (2022: HK$12.6
million) or interest on these loans at 31 March 2023
and 2022.

All loan receivables from staff were secured over certain
properties, the fair value of which exceeds the carrying
amount of the related loan on an individual basis.

Financials

B 7%

202343 A31H © EUHEE A B RIEA
RAREEAB3.0E BB (20224 1 51.6
BEBT)  BF40.0885(20224F ¢
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3081t~

21. B &

R EREE TER - RREFRES OER R
Z 58 1% [ IH A IR A0 AT 4R @ B R AR 0 SRR
BN IEREE E - H2023F % 202243 A 31
B BECRSMERNOFE  TEEBERER
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22. DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the
company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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22. DEFERRED TAXATION (conTinuep)

The followings are the major deferred tax (assets)/ liabilities
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the
current and prior years:

22. BEHIE @)

NTARAFERBAFEASECEREZER
EHIE (BE)/ ARAREEE

Deferred tax assets Deferred tax liabilities
BEHEEE BEHERE
Withholding
Unrealised taxon
fair value undistributed
change of profits of
Unrealised ~ Amortisation gold loans Others  subsidiaries ~ Amortisation Others
profit on and  in Mainland deferred tax  in Mainland and  deferred tax
inventories  depreciation China Tax losses assets China  depreciation liabilities Total
hEAEES Ef SEREHE Ay
FE2 REZRER BERE  ARARDK BERE
FEREN  BERNE  AAEEE HEESR BE ERZRAB  BERFE af @it

HKS million HKS$ million HKS million
BEER AEER BEER

HKS million HKS$ million HKS million HKS million HK$ miIIio}l HKS million
BEER BEER BEER BEER BEER BEER

At 1 April 2021 "2021%4R1H (154.6) (125.9) 60.7 (0.2) (145.6) 540.6 1425 202 337.7

Currency realignment e (5.0) 0.1) 0.1 - (5.9) 25.1 7.2 04 278

Charge/ (credit) to profit or N/ GIA) B& (111.4) 353 (147.5) - (10.9) 234.3* ni (20.6) 509
loss (note 11) (BzE11)

Utilised during the year FRER = - = - - (103.2) - - (103.2)

At 31 March 2022 ®2022%3A31R (271.0) (90.7) (86.7) (02) (162.4) 696.8 214 - 307.2

Currency realignment EERE 105 0.1 6.7 - 98 (505) (16.4) - (39.8)

Charge/ (credit) to profit or MeR/ GrA) B (49.4) 16.0 (127.3) - (483) 215.4* 30.0 - 36.4
loss (note 11) (KizE11)

Utilised during the year ERER - - - - - (451.5) - - (451.5)

At 31 March 2023 ®2023%3A31R (309.9) (74.6) (207.3) (02) (200.9) 410.2 235.0 - (142.7)

*  Under the EIT Law of PRC, a 10% withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared to
foreign investors in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards.

Pursuant to approvals from the relevant PRC government obtained by certain

subsidiaries of the Group and reassessment of dividend distribution plan, certain of these
subsidiaries should be entitled to a withholding tax at the rate of 5% for dividend payments.

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

* REPECEMSHE - B2008F1 818 - At EMHE
RERBEEMARIMEEE T RIS - 9BEBUK10% 2 F/HH -

RRAKEE THBARRSGTBEMBMOERERRES

MBI BT %S D F A AR R 5% AR AT A S
Z IR -

VAT A& 5t BF 75 3R & P ik P 4 HOR SE T IR A
DT

2023 2022
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEET
Deferred tax assets ERER IR & B (792.9) (611.0)
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIBERE 645.2 918.2
(147.7) 307.2
Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
Br % AXBHEEERRAA



22. DEFERRED TAXATION (conTinuep)

At 31 March 2023, the Group had tax losses of HK$1,224.1
million (2022: HK$1,181.3 million) not recognised as deferred
tax assets. Tax effect of such tax losses as at 31 March 2023
was HK$251.2 million (2022: HK$242.6 million).

The aging of unrecognised tax losses by expiry date is as follows:

22. BEHIE @)

202343 A31H » REBARERRELNIEA
BEMNBIABER1,2241 885 (2022%F -
1,181.3B&ET) - *HEEIEN 202353 A
BB E R/251.28 &8 (20224 ¢
2426 BEBHEIT) °

BB BB RERTIBEBEOERRNT

2023 2022

HK$ million HK$ million

BEBAER BEER

0-5 years 0-54F 139.8 137.3
11-15 years 11-154F 352.5 384.7
Unlimited RBEFR 731.8 659.3
1,224.1 1,181.3

At 31 March 2023, the Group had deductible temporary
differences of HK$13.8 million (2022: HK$14.3 million) not
recognised as deferred tax assets. Tax effect of such
deductible temporary differences as at 31 March 2023 was
HK$2.3 million (2022: HK$2.4 million).

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax of 5.0%
(2022: 5.0%) is imposed on dividends declared in respect of
profits earned by subsidiaries in Mainland China from 1
January 2008 onwards. Based on the dividend distribution
plan of the management, retained profits as at 31 March
2023 amounting to HK$8,203.2 million (2022: HK$13,936.4
million) will be distributed as dividend in the foreseeable
future, while the remaining retained profits amounting to
HK$1,519.3 million (2022: HK$2,173.2 million) has been set
aside for local operation and business development.
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23. INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead
expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of
normal operating capacity. Cost is calculated using specific
identification basis for gem-set jewellery, platinum and
k-gold jewellery (finished goods), gold jewellery and
products selling at fixed price and watches; and weighted
average for other inventories. Costs of purchased inventory
are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Net realisable value of inventories is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal. It is the Group's policy
to review the net realisable value of inventories periodically
with reference to current market situation and conditions of
the items. The assessment of net realisable value of
inventories was based on economic conditions,
marketability of products and the forecast market price of
gold, platinum and gemstones used to make the jewellery
products. The Group’'s management also engaged an
independent professional gemmologist to perform valuation
and assess conditions of certain items based on gemstone
testing for gem-set jewellery with reference to international
diamond prices, its expertise and the current market
situation. The Group reassessed the estimation at the end
of each reporting period. As at 31 March 2023, the carrying
amount of inventories was HK$59,290.4 million (net of
allowances of HK$112.7 million) (2022: carrying amount of
HK$57,254.0 million (net of allowances of HK$100.6
million)). Allowances on inventories of HK$14.4 million
(2022: reversal of HK$57.0 million) were charged in
consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year
ended 31 March 2023.

Financials
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23. INVENTORIES (continueD) 23. 585w

2023 2022
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEAT

Raw materials for: EENTEmORME
Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery HEER  HERKESEH 12,240.2 9,332.9
Gold jewellery and products =S EMNREM 2,503.8 3,029.1
14,744.0 12,362.0

Finished goods: BIRK ¢

Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery HKEER  HERKESEHH 19,521.8 20,453.0
Gold jewellery and products HE EMNEM 23,248.3 22,596.8
Watches Bk 1,657.9 1,661.5
44,428.0 44,7113
Packaging materials [2k=3 7k 118.4 180.7
59,290.4 57,254.0

Inventories recognised as cost of goods sold during the year
ended 31 March 2023 amounted to HK$68,965.4 million

(2022: HK$74,036.9 million).

Write-downs of inventories to net realisable value amounted
to HK$14.4 million (2022: reversed HK$57.0 million). These

were included in “cost of goods sold” in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss during the years ended 31 March

2023 and 2022.
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24.

SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS/ CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, bank deposits with
maturities of three months or less carry interest at the
prevailing market rate ranging from 0.01% to 5.00% (2022:
0.01% to 3.50%) per annum.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, bank deposits with
maturities of more than three months carry interest at the
prevailing market rate from 1.45% to 5.09% per annum.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
and short-term bank deposits denominated in RMB were
HK$8,451.7 million (2022: HK$11,878.1 million) in which
HK$8,318.2 million (2022: HK$11,121.2 million) were held by
the Company's subsidiaries in Mainland China. The RMB is
not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations in Mainland
China and the Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
authorised banks to conduct business in foreign currency.

Financials
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25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. B R HMEFFRIE
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services ZECHREVRFEARIAERHE FAER
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year 54 a%u‘:' LRBHRENEE ZESELAER
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are B o APERRAEABRTIREISORALI(T
usually paid between 7 and 180 days of recognition. Trade HEHREMENRBZIARBDEE  BIEF
and other payables are presented as current liabilities RAIER R EERAR12EA AEE - ERERE
unless payment is not due within 12 months after the N EER R EEE R ERAN SRR EH AR
reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair & o
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
2023 2022
HK$ million HKS$ million
BEET BEET
Trade payables Z 5 RN IE 992.6 1,155.1
Contract liabilities aRaE 2,138.4 2,178.1
Deposits received from franchisees and BMNERMEZEWERNIZS 24,567.8 19,898.2
customers
Accruals st E 1,108.3 783.0
Accrued staff costs FEEFB IR 629.2 677.3
Other tax payables Hith fE S B 18 488.8 327.5
Interest payables FERFI B 68.9 90.1
Others HAitb 94.9 56.8
30,088.9 25,166.1

Deposits received from franchisees and customers mainly
represent deposits made by franchisees in Mainland China
for the consigned products. The amounts are unsecured and

interest-free.

The Group normally receives credit terms of 7 to 180 days
from its suppliers. The following is an aged analysis of trade
payables presented based on the invoice date at the end of

each reporting period:

BINER kBT REA RS T 2EHE AL ISR
BERRFEEMRAMNZES - ZFAR/ER
ARRE -

AEE-REEHEFRSNEERAN TR
£180BTE - AT AREEZERHAZINN SR
EHARNE H RN FIRN R DT -

2023 2022

HK$ million HK$ million

BEET AEAT

0 to 30 days 0Z30H 984.1 1,113.1
31 to 90 days 31E90H 34 40.2
91 to 180 days 91%£180H 2.0 0.9
Over 180 days 180 HM k£ 3.1 0.9
992.6 1,155.1
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25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continuep)

The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to

contracts with customers:

25. ESRHEMEMSRIE @

AEECHERTIEHETAINEE :

2023 2022
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEERT
Contract liabilities: AHEE
Customer loyalty programme RERABEE 360.0 335.4
Receipts in advance T RIE 1,778.4 1,842.7
2,138.4 2,178.1
The following table shows the amount of unsatisfied TREFIREKBHETSHE
performance obligations:
2023 2022
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEET
Expected to be recognised within one year TAHIR —F R 1,854.4 1,790.2
Expected to be recognised after one year TAHAR —F 18 TR 284.0 387.9
2,138.4 2,178.1

The following table shows the amount of the revenue
recognised in the current reporting period relating to contract
liabilities at the beginning of the year and the amount relating to
performance obligations that were satisfied in previous years:

TREJEFPNENEEEEARE BRERNZ
EESBEARNBEFECERNENE ISR -

2023 2022

HK$ million HK$ million

BEET BEET

Revenue recognised that was included in SFAFVEYNEECHEREER
the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year:

— Customer loyalty programme - BPEHRER 3354 249.1

— Receipts in advance — FEU A 1,538.4 1,174.2

1,873.8 1,423.3

26. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable

on demand.

Financials
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27. BANK BORROWINGS 27. SRITER

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of ERERDDBRALEHBREEENRSHKA)
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently TR - BRHBREHEKAGTE RS
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the MAZENFSREREDELE =% ©
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption RERBARNANERFEEZRIBERANER - £ 8
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the FREA DK BIRIABERT » &L
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid EXRMEXNNERANERAERRFHA -
on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as FEUHERT ZEABELRIENERELE
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable B EWEDRBTRZERBREAEDIXE
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this EIREMBAT ZEBERBEXTEREARTE
case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To ERBHOTEMNFKIE - WA EEEAREREANT
the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some DA% 8K o

or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement EANTHETENEEHEE  BUNSE MR 0 &
of financial position when the obligation specified in the BERGETBHRART IR - EEBREES
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference S AMecREENEHEEE ZNRE(R
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has HEEENEMIIER S EENRFARENERE)
been extinguished or transferred to another party and the ZHENERE  EEREFTERBMERRE -
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or
loss as finance costs.
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the ERDBEARDEE  EAKBYER EE
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the FMrAaEaBEz EEREEREHERZRIS =
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. A BIBRIN o
2023 2022
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEBT
Unsecured bank loans EIKFRITER
The carrying amounts are repayable* BEE{EIR N5 HAPR (B & *
Within one year —F R 4,366.8 7,275.7
More than one year, but not exceeding —FLAE - BREBBRE 188.2 1,788.8
two years
More than two years, but not exceeding MFENAE  BTHBBRSE 1,299.9 -
five years
5,854.9 9,064.5
*  The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. * BIEAFRIATH LA B SRR A B AT BIE AR B B AR -
The bank borrowings carry variable interest rates ranging RITEFIRZHFANEGTE - ERNERABBRT
from 0.6% to 0.8% (2022: 0.6% to 0.9%) over Hong Kong REHFRBMNF0.6% E0.8% (20224 : 0.6%
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") per annum. £0.9%) °
Annual Report 2023 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 23 ’]

2023 F# RA B HRRN E



27. BANK BORROWINGS (conTinuED) 27. RITER @
As at 31 March 2023, the range of interest rates on the bank M2023463 A31H - EARTEROFEFR =X
borrowings were 3.8% to 4.2% (2022: 0.9% to 1.2%) F3.8%%E4.2% (2022F : 0.9% £1.2%) °
per annum.
The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings are RITEFREEZRA TNTEEE :
denominated in the following currency:
2023 2022
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEAT
HK$ BT 5,854.9 9,064.5
28. GOLD LOANS 28. E&fEE
Gold loans to be repaid by cash are designated as financial BB SEENESEEBNIRARET AL
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss as the gold loans mHcREeE BAESEEAKRE S —Ek
form part of a contract containing one or more embedded ZEBRARNTETLAZENBD - HUAEER
derivatives. Gold loans to be repaid by physical gold are SEENESEESEAE AR ETABEN
classified as liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. BfE -
Gain or losses on gold loans are recognised in the EeEENREREERGEIBERARER

consolidated statement of profit or loss, except for the
gains or losses arising from the Group’s own credit risk
relating financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
which are presented in other comprehensive income with
no subsequent reclassification to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
does not include any interest charged on these liabilities.

BRSRAABHABENSRAEEIEE
SR EEREL RS SE BRI AL 2

EHELY) - EFEEHH/BEEHRABER
RESERRERN R [ERERERFEL

TERFBEEANGRLEZEENTE -

Gold loans are borrowed to reduce the impact of fluctuations ERECEEENERNREESFERERER
in gold prices on gold inventories. The amounts represent KBV E » % FIRTHIRIRITER - MENFIR
borrowing from banks and the amounts payable are pegged HE S BRI
to gold prices.
2023 2022
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEAR
Financial liabilities at fair value RAMREBEFABEZENSREE
through profit or loss
Gold loans to be repaid by cash AR SEENESEERE 2,347.9 3,133.6
Liabilities at fair value through BRARBEFABENERE
profit or loss
Gold loans to be repaid by physical gold BAERESEENESIEE 12,737.7 12,5687.0
15,085.6 15,720.6

Financials

232 oo

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited

AR RE K

EEEARAA



28. GOLD LOANS (continuED) 28. HE2iEEw

As at 31 March 2023, the gold loans carried fixed interest #2023 3A31H 24 BERFFE08%
rates of 0.8% to 1.9% (2022: 0.8% to 2.0%) per annum, £1.9% (20224 : 0.8% £2.0%) &) & £ F) =
with original maturity of 2 to 6 months (2022: 1 to 6 months) TR REIBIA AR BER2E6MEA (20224 ¢
from date of inception. 1Z26fEA) -

The fair value of the gold loans are denominated in the ESEBEARBERATEEE

following currencies:

2023 2022
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEER
USs$ ESVW 2,347.9 3,133.6
RMB AR 12,737.7 12,587.0
15,085.6 15,720.6
29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. IgK
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs BT T KB Al e o BB BT AT AR SR AR
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are FES| B2 BT K AR EREZS R % BT BB 2R
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. D (R FRIA) °
2023 2022
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEAT
Authorised: JERE
50,000,000,000 ordinary shares 50,000,000,000 f& & HE & 50,000.0 50,000.0
of HK$1 each 18Tz LBk
Issued and fully paid: BEITRHAR
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares 10,000,000,000 & & R HEE 10,000.0 10,000.0
of HK$1 each 18Tz LBk
There was no change in the Company'’s authorised, issued MEFERN @ ARBIZETE » BBITRARKA
and fully paid capital in both years. Lo 8 o
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30. LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group mainly leases various retail stores, offices and
warehouses under non-cancellable operating leases expiring
within six months to five years. The leases have varying
terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal,

the terms of the leases are renegotiated.

30. A& IR

AEERBIARENKEEMETZRNEZRT
BE MAZERAE  BEHERANEAZRFREE
e ZEMERTRMGT - MBKRRER
- EEER  HERREENER

o

2023 2022
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEBT BEER
Minimum lease payments under AR BEmERERE AL EYE
non-cancellable operating leases of RIBNATREHGCEHER
rented premises not recognised in HEHEENTOT :
the financial statements are as follows:
Within one year —FR 31.6 47.3

The investment properties are leased to tenants under leases
with rentals payable monthly. For details of the leasing

arrangements, refer to note 16.

REWERBEASHETES - &8 7 WHAE
& o BRBERNFE - F2HME16 -

2023 2022
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEBT BAEAT
Minimum lease payments receivable HEREMENREERBEMFTAOT :
on leases of investment properties
are as follows:
Within one year —FR 19.2 14.7
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFAF(BREEERE) 24.0 30.6
43.2 453
31. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 31. EXKRIE
2023 2022
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEBT
Capital expenditure contracted but not HUEBYE - BEREHEETOER 137.0 146.2

provided for the acquisition of property, BB E AN
plant and equipment
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32. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the group
entities will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the

optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank
borrowings, gold loans and equity attributable to
shareholders of the Company, comprising share capital,
reserves and retained profits as disclosed in the consolidated

financial statements.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
regularly. The Group considers the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital, and will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as the raising of bank borrowings

and gold loans.

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income
("OCI") or through profit or loss); and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at
fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI).

Debt investments are reclassified when and only
when the Group's business model for managing
those assets changes.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTinuED)

(b)

(c)

Financials

B 7%

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit
or loss.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of
the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other
income when the Group's right to receive payments
is established. Changes in the fair value of financial
assets at FVPL are recognised in other gains and
losses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
as applicable.

33. @t THm@m

(b)

(c)

f#s? R 4R Ik SR

EREENEHBARLE ARK S
B AREEARBARBNEZEES

FIERAR - EAKENZETEREE
WERIR &M E RN E 2 R E R EE
RASEEKEBRTRNBAED R
BMEHRER - MERIERZETDR

iR
REHERE  AREREBEENR
SLESMN (W R IR A BT ABRAY
TREE) EERBNKEZSREEN
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BMEERHRARBEH

ERITHR
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTinuED)

(c)

Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. There are three measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

e Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented
in other gains and losses together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

e FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’' cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
income and foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in other gains and losses. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in other gains and losses and
impairment expenses are presented as separate
line item in the statement of profit or loss.

e FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A
gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in
profit or loss and presented net within other gains
and losses in the period in which it arises.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTinuED)

(d)

Financials

B 7%

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires lifetime
expected credit losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables.

For all other financial assets measured at amortised
cost, the Group recognises a loss allowance equal to
12-month expected credit loss unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which case the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to

lifetime expected credit losses.

When there is a significant increase in credit risk or
the proceeds receivables are not settled in
accordance with the terms stipulated in the
agreements, management considers these
receivables as underperforming or non-performing
and impairment is measured as lifetime expected
credit loss.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuep)

The Group holds the following financial instruments:

33. £ THmw
AEEHENTEMIA

Financial assets/

Financial assets/

(liabilities) at (liabilities) at
amortised cost fair value Total
R R AT B BAREEN
LWMEE/ (BFE) LWMEE/ (BFE) Foh
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BHEBAT BEBT HEBAT
As 31 March 2023 "2023F3H31H
Financial assets ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ
Financial assets at fair value RAREFABENEREE - 64.6 64.6
through profit and loss
Amounts due from associates JE Y Bt A B B8 53.0 - 53.0
Loan receivables FEWE T 105 - 10.5
Deposits Eftizse 201.8 - 201.8
Trade and other receivables 5 K E b e G IE 3,516.4 - 3,516.4
Short-term bank deposits EMHIRITER 38.8 - 38.8
Cash and cash equivalents BHERBESEEY 11,695.0 - 11,695.0
Total financial assets PREELE 15,515.5 64.6 15,580.1
Financial liabilities cWMEas
Trade and other payables B S REMENFKREA (25,724.2) - (25,724.2)
Amounts due to non-controlling FEAS BT B A B FE1E AR AR BR TN IE (52.4) - (52.4)
shareholders of subsidiaries
Bank borrowings BITER (5,854.9) - (5,854.9)
Gold loans to be repaid by cash BABELEENESEE - (2,347.9) (2,347.9)
Lease liabilities HEARE (1,165.7) - (1,165.7)
Total financial liabilities CRIEERE (32,797.2) (2,347.9) (35,145.1)
Financial assets/ Financial assets/
(liabilities) at (liabilities) at
amortised cost fair value Total
R B BAREEN
EREE/ (BR) SRMEE/ (BF) @at
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
HEBET HEBT HEBET
As 31 March 2022 ®2022F3H31H
Financial assets SRMEE
Financial assets at fair value BRARESFABREHEREE = 29.9 29.9
through profit and loss
Amounts due from associates FE L Bé 5 B 3R I8 51.6 - 51.6
Loan receivables EUE R 12.6 - 12.6
Deposits BffiES 182.3 - 182.3
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk E M EWRIA 3,442.6 - 3,442.6
Cash and cash equivalents HERHREEEY 14,942.2 - 14,942.2
Total financial assets TREERE 18,631.3 29.9 18,661.2
Financial liabilities cWMEE
Trade and other payables B 5 N EMENFIE (21,200.2) - (21,200.2)
Amounts due to non-controlling FEAS T A B FEE R AR R0 IR (63.8) = (63.8)
shareholders of subsidiaries
Bank borrowings IRITER (9,064.5) - (9,064.5)
Gold loans to be repaid by cash BURSRENESHEER - (3,133.6) (3,133.6)
Lease liabilities HEBE (1,194.5) = (1,194.5)
Total financial liabilities CRAERE (31,5623.0) (3,133.6) (34,656.6)
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33.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuep)

The Group's major financial instruments include financial
assets at FVPL, amounts due from associates, loan
receivables, trade and other receivables, deposits, cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other payables, amounts due to
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries, bank
borrowings, gold loans to be repaid by cash and lease
liabilities. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in the respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (interest rate risk,
currency risk and commodity price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate loan receivables, certain trade receivables, gold
loans and lease liabilities. The Group currently does not have
any instruments to hedge against the fair value interest rate risk.

Also, the Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
through the impact of rate changes on interest bearing
financial assets and liabilities, mainly bank balances and bank
borrowings at variable interest rates. The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging policy. However, the
management will consider hedging significant interest rate
risk should the need arise.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair value
interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk are
considered insignificant and therefore no sensitivity analysis
is presented.

Currency risk

Certain Group entities have sales and purchases which are
denominated in currency other than their respective functional
currencies, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the foreign
currency risk is insignificant considering the related sales and
purchases to the total sales and purchases of the Group. The
majority of the Group's foreign currency denominated
monetary items are cash and cash equivalents denominated in
RMB, which are held by Group entities whose functional
currencies are not RMB, with carrying amounts of HK$133.5
million (2022: HK$756.9 million). In addition, certain Group
entities whose functional currency is HK$, have intra-group
advances to their subsidiaries, denominated in RMB.

Financials

B 7%
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTinuED)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

The Group mainly exposes to currency of United States
dollars (“US$") and RMB, which are arising from relevant
Group entities’ foreign currency denominated monetary
assets and liabilities for the Group’s operating activities.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy to eliminate the currency exposures.
However, the management monitors the related foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposures should the need arise.
At 31 March 2023, the Group's entities with functional
currency of HK$ had aggregate RMB net monetary assets of
HK$1,117.7 million (2022: HK$1,129.7 million). If HK$ had
strengthened/ weakened by 5% (2022: 5%) against RMB
with all other variables unchanged, the Group's profit before
taxation would have been HK$55.9 million (2022: HK$56.5
million) lower/ higher.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the currency
risk of US$ is considered insignificant.

Commodity price risk

The Group is engaged in the sales of jewellery including gold
products. The gold market is influenced by global as well as
regional supply and demand conditions. A significant decline
in prices of gold could adversely affect the Group’s financial
performance. In order to reduce the commaodity price risk,
the Group uses gold loans to reduce its exposure to
fluctuations in the gold price on gold inventory. Should the
gold price go up, the Group would charge a loss representing
the increase in gold price compared to the contract price, and
largely net against the increase in revenue of gold products
as a result of gold price increase. Gold loans are settled at
maturity which is usually in 1 to 6 months from date of
inception and any fair value change is immediately

recognised in profit or loss.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTinuED)

Market risk (continued)

Commodity price risk (Continued)

As at 31 March 2023, if the market price of gold had been
higher or lower by 10%, profit after taxation for the year
would decrease or increase by approximately HK$1,469.8
million (2022: HK$1,520.4 million) due to changes in fair
values of gold loans. On the other hand, the gold inventory
would not be revalued at market price as it is measured at
weighted average cost, unless an impairment indicator
exists. The changes in fair value of gold loans would be partly
offset by the realised gain or loss impact on gold inventory in
future sales.

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties failure to perform their obligations at the
end of the reporting period in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts.

The Group has two types of financial assets that are subject
to the expected credit loss model:

e trade receivable for sales of inventory and from the

provision of service; and

e debt investments carried at amortised cost, including
other receivables, amounts due from associates and loan

receivables

While cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank
deposits are also subject to the impairment requirements of
IFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was immaterial as
such amounts are placed in banks with good reputation.

Financials
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTinuED)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables
have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the aging of gross
trade receivables over a period of 12 month before 31 March
2023 or 31 March 2022 respectively and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors,
including significant changes in external market indicators,
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.
The Group has identified the most relevant factors, and
accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on expected
changes in these factors for trade receivables.

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 March 2023 and
31 March 2022 was determined as follows:

33.

2T H @

EEEE @)

=Y ENLE

7 2 [ B A R S B A SRS R RSSO 57 2 B ML O 0%
HEEHEEEER  REPCEEBEE2HED
EERERNMEE S EKZE -

REERBAEEEE  BZRUFAECRIERZR
EERBREERE B BETOMAE -

BHEREDRE D HN2023F3A31 A %
202243 A31 B ZA112 @ A HE & 5 YA
HRENERRMNAACENEERELEEBRS
B BEBEREEREARRYZEBETFENE
WHIRRE DM ZBRER R (BRI TISER
MEAEE) 2B RATELEER  AEERE
ZRWFIAE B K REENER - BREZER
EMEMEHARBEBEE -

i - 202343 A31H k202243 A31H
RE IR BT

Aging analysis
REAT
0 to 30 days 31 to 90 days 91 to 180 days Over 180 days Total
0Z30H 31Z90A 91Z180H BiB180 A @it
HKS$ million HKS$ million HK$ million HK$ million HKS$ million
BEET BE#ET BE#T BE#T BEET
As of 31 March 2023 R2023F3A31H
Expected loss rate FEHE R R 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 46.5%
Gross carrying amount FmeE 3,027.9 144.4 24.3 314 3,228.0
Loss allowance EREE - - - 14.6 14.6
As of 31 March 2022 R2022%3A31H
Expected loss rate TREEEX 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 81.7%
Gross carrying amount FmeE 2,861.3 150.6 35.1 83.8 3,130.8
Loss allowance BEEE - - - 68.5 68.5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RAMBMAME

Annual Report 2023
2023 F ik

243



244

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuED) 33. &R T Hm
Credit risk (Continued) EE R (@)
Trade receivables (Continued) B S ERRIE (4)
The loss allowances for trade receivables as at 31 March are 3 A31 HE S EWGFIAEE R Y EERE
reconciled to the opening loss allowances as follows: ROSETERAA T -
2023 2022
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BAEAT
At 1 April R481H 68.5 221.2
Currency realignment B (4.9) 6.5
Loss allowance written back BB B 2 B ol (1.9) (159.2)
Loss allowance written off ESIE B 2 M SH (47.1) -
At 31 March M3 A31H 14.6 68.5

Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others,
the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with
the Group.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented as net
impairment losses within operating profit. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

Debt investments

All of the Group's debt investments at amortised cost are
considered to have low credit risk, and the loss allowance
recognised during the period was limited to 12 months,
expected losses unless significant increase in credit risk.
Debt investments are considered to be low credit risk where
they have a low risk of default and the counterparty has a
strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations

in the near term.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in
trade and loan receivables, with exposure spread over a

number of counterparties.

Financials
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuep)

Liquidity risk

The management of the Group has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management of
the Group's short and medium-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk
by maintaining banking facilities and by continuously
monitoring forecasted and actual cash flows and the maturity
profiles of its financial liabilities.

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up to reflect the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.

33. @t THm@m

i ENE & B PR
AEEEREEASKENEHRPREASUR
RBESERRTRLEENADESARER
ER - AEEFEBRBBOIREURSEERR
ARERRSRERASRAEZDMER &
BRBHECEAR -

TRAAEEZEMEERTANIHA 25
B RRBRBEAKEUTREZ LI NEBMEBZ
REAHGRE  URREBABZRBREDR
B ZRXREBEFERAEHERE

o

Weighted ~ On demand or Total
average less than 3 months to undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 1year 1to 5 years Over 5 years cash flows amount
RERKE FERRS

MEFHRIE AR 3fAZ1E 1255 5Ez# HEEHE REE
% HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million
BEAT LV HEBTL BEAT HERT HEBTL

At 31 March 2023 R2023%3F318
Trade and other payables B3 REMERTE - 25,724.2 - - - 25,724.2 25,724.2
Amounts due to non-controlling AN INGE 3 - 524 - - - 52.4 524

shareholders of subsidiaries REZE

Bank borrowings BITER 4.0% 3,389.6 1,019.6 1,613.9 - 6,023.1 5,854.9
Gold loans to be repaid by cash BUBRLEENELEE 1.0% 2,350.5 - - - 2,350.5 2,341.9
Lease liabilities HEERE 3.2% 158.3 49 580.4 04 1,211.0 1,165.7
31,675.0 14915 2,194.3 04 35,361.2 35,145.1

At 31 March 2022 R2022%3A31A
Trade and other payables 2 REMERNFE = 21,2002 = = = 21,2002 21,2002
Amounts due to non-controlling e B R AFEER - 63.8 - - - 63.8 63.8

shareholders of subsidiaries RRZE

Bank borrowings RITER 1.0% 5,482.5 1,809.3 18174 - 9,109.2 9,064.5
Gold loans to be repaid by cash BUBSEENESEE 0.9% 3,137.0 = = = 3,137.0 31336
Lease liabilities HEaR 2.9% 191.7 4956 536.5 54 1,229.2 1,1945
30,075.2 2,304.9 2,353.9 5.4 34,7394 34,656.6

Notes:

(i) The amounts included in above for variable rate bank borrowings are subject to
change if changes in variable interest rates differ from those estimates of interest

rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

(ii) The amounts of gold loans are determined with reference to quoted market bid price
of gold traded in active liquid markets.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuep) 33. &I Hmw

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities subject
to offsetting and enforceable netting
arrangements or similar agreements

The following tables set out the carrying amounts of
recognised financial assets and recognised financial
liabilities that:

(1) are offset in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position; or

(2) are subject to an enforceable master netting
arrangements or similar agreements that covers similar
financial instruments, irrespective of whether they are
offset in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position.

ErlEIEEEE R RBIR

ZOHE  EE T EE RS
BpSEMSARNEMEERSMAR

TRINEHEHERZEREEREBABGBZIE
HE KESREERSBREE:

(1) REBSGEMBARRKEE X

(2) XBEEEUSRIANAIRGNITRES
Bt E R BB LR TR R (N2
ERNEEGZRSMBARRNREH) -

b
o=
=

Related amounts not offset in the consolidated
statement of financial position

BREGEUBRRREH 2 HBLE
Gross  Net amounts
Gross amounts presented
amounts offset in the in the
of recognised consolidated consolidated Cash
fi ial tat: of 1t Financial collateral
assets/ financial of financial assets/ pledged/
(liabilities) position position (liabilities) (received) Net amount
BRZz RERE 2IRGEE 2EA/
SREE/ BN R BHES RN R SRMEE/ (BWE) 2
(BE) 288 Yzl 2R (BfE) REBEAR B
HK$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million HK$ million
BHEER BEER HEBER HEER BEER BHEER
As 31 March 2023 202338310
Financial assets SRMEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E fth U R IE 1,126.5 (1,126.5) - - - -
Financial liabilities SREE
Trade and other payables BHREMEMTE (3,509.8) 1,126.5 (2,383.3) - - (2,383.3)
As 31 March 2022 R2022%3A31H
Financial assets SREE
Trade and other receivables Z 5 & E fth e U TR IE 938.2 (937.9) 0.3 - - 0.3
Financial liabilities SHEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENFIEA (4,002.7) 937.9 (3,064.8) - - (3,064.8)

The Group has enforceable right and intends to offset the
trade receivables against deposits received from franchisees.

Financials
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34. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The following table presents the Group's assets and
liabilities measured at the end of the reporting period
at fair value, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value

measurement is classified is determined with

34. AREFE

TRINTTAEERRERRAAR B
ENEERBE YEREBRMBREE
AE13R [ AREFE] AREN=ER
REBEIE - AREFENERNER
ESZT O ERM T ERNEABR S
AEEENERHRETEN

reference to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

F—F  GARBNEBRAEARE
BHIGR ARGHERNEERBRZR

e |evel 1: inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in .
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

FR MABBIE - RZBEN
ARBEEEIEEBEREENAEMNF
HZB AR Rk

e |evel 2: inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices °
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3: inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset o E=R I WABBIOWIFATREERE
or liability. EXBEMSL 2@ ASE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-8 E=8 B=g @i
Notes HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
FfaE HEBR HEERT BHEBR HEBR
Recurring fair value measurement KEMQAAENE
At 31 March 2023 "R2023F3A31H
Asset BE
Financial assets at fair value BRARBEFABRE - - 64.6 64.6
through profit or loss CRIEE
Liabilities =R
Gold loans to be repaid by cash BURESEBNESEE 28 - 2,347.9 - 2,347.9
Gold loans to be repaid BABRESEEN 28 - 12,737.7 - 12,737.7
by physical gold =eEE
At 31 March 2022 202263 A31H
Asset BE
Financial assets at fair value RAREF ABZEE 0.4 - 29.5 29.9
through profit or loss CREE
Liabilities afE
Gold loans to be repaid by cash BURSEENESEER 28 - 3,133.6 — 3,133.6
Gold loans to be repaid BUERSSEEN 28 - 12,587.0 - 12,587.0
by physical gold =HeEE

During the year ended 31 March 2023, there were no HE2023F3A3MBLEFE F—HK

transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2022: nil).

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the
reporting period.

Annual Report 2023

2023 F#

F_MHEWREESR  HREBARE
HE=RMNBER (2022 F : &) -

AEENBRENREARERQNE
Rz FONEALE -

&l

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RAMBMAME

247



248

34. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (conTinueb)

The fair value of gold loans is determined using
discounted cash flow valuation technique reference to
quoted market bid price of gold traded in active liquid
markets as a key input.

The following table presents the changes in Level 3
items for the periods ended 31 March 2023 and
31 March 2022:

TR BIER A B EHNEZE 20234F 3
HA31HK&202263 31 RHILEME =&
Igaz*i

2023 2022
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEBER

Unlisted equity securities FETRERS
At 1 April ®4 /818 29.5 22.0
Currency realignment B (1.0) 0.3
Acquisitions e BE 36.1 7.2
At 31 March M®3A31H 64.6 29.5

Financials

B 7%

The fair value of financial assets that are grouped under
Level 3 is determined using valuation techniques
including discounted cash flow analysis. In determining
the fair value, specific valuation techniques are used
with reference to inputs such as profit forecast,
dividend stream and other specific input relevant to
those particular financial assets.

The fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities is determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.

RE=ZGHANEREEANBEERAMGE
BO(AEURRESRENNT)ETE - B
NAER - EARFEMERT - 2REF
TEA - R ERE B A BUR & A M B2 F 4
TeREERMNETH AR -

ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ&ﬁ ﬁ/%migﬁﬂ
ERE

ARBEZRE  NREWBRRIREE
ﬁiﬂikﬁﬁﬂﬁéﬁﬂ’ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁz,ﬂﬁﬁﬁ
HARERE -

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
ARAERHREEEER AR



35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

35.

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities

arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-

cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are

those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be

classified in the Group's consolidated statement of cash

flows from financing activities.

MEZHELMBRYHER

TRAAEERETHAEEANEERY X
TEERENFREEY BERDELENERE
BERASRECK(IAKRAERERE) VA

SE®

= A
o8

mEZBIE -

RengRNDBRBMEBHFERS

Dividends Interest
Amounts payable payables
due to non- (included (included
controlling in trade in trade
Bank shareholders and other and other Lease
borrowings Gold loans  of subsidiaries payables) payables) liabilities Total
ENRE ERRS
ERHEAR [GoN-t (FtAE5
FER REf REf
RITEX Eofrl RRZE EARER) EARER) HESE @zt
Note 27 Note 28 Note 26 Note 25 Note 25 Note 15
fizE27 f &t 28 fii 26 K& 25 fitzE 25 K&k 15
HKS$ million  HKS$ million HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ Million ~ HKS$ million  HK$ million
BEER BBER BEER BEER BEERT BEER BEER
At 1 April 2021 R20215481A 6,417.9 5,725.4 66.0 - 478 14960  13,753.1
Financing cash flows BERETE 2,640.6 (489.9) (49 (4,689.0) (253.2)  (1,017.00  (3,813.4)
Interest expenses FERX - - - - 3015 36.2 3377
Foreign exchange translation SNEBRE - 290.7 2.7 - - 204 313.8
Dividends declared ERKRE - - - 4,689.0 - - 4,689.0
Fair value loss of gold loans BLEEARERE - 1,021.2 - - - - 1,021.2
Other non-cash movements HEthEHe 2% 6.0 91732 - - (6.0) 658.9 9,832.1
At 31 March 2022 R2022%3A31H 9,0645  15,720.6 63.8 - 90.1 11945 26,1335
Financing cash flows BERSTE (3,215.7) (957.1) (6.7)  (5,079.4) (561.3) (953.1)  (10,773.3)
Interest expenses FlEmx - - - - 546.2 39.2 585.4
Foreign exchange translation INEBRE - (928.7) (4.7) - - (35.2) (968.6)
Dividends declared SRRE - - - 5,079.4 - - 5,079.4
Fair value loss of gold loans HEEEANEER - 1,546.0 - - - - 1,546.0
Other non-cash movements HityER e e 6.1 (295.2) - - (6.1) 920.3 625.1
At 31 March 2023 R2023%3 7318 58549  15,085.6 52.4 - 68.9 1,165.7 22,2275
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36. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Post-employment obligations

The Group operates various post-employment schemes,
including both defined benefit and defined contribution
pension plans.

The liability or asset recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit
pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by independent actuaries using the
projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate
bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the
benefits will be paid, and that have terms approximating
the terms of the related obligation. In countries where there
is no deep market in such bonds, the market rates on
government bonds are used.

Service cost and net interest cost on the net defined
benefit liability are recognised in profit or loss and allocated
by function as part of “selling and distribution costs” or
“general and administrative expenses”. Current service
cost is measured as the increase in the present value of the
defined benefit obligation resulting from employee service
in the current period. The net interest cost is calculated by
applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in
other comprehensive income. They are included in retained
earnings in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments
are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service
costs.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions
to publicly or privately administered pension insurance
plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense when they are
due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.

Financials
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36. BAREFIRIE

EESRERETE
AEBEES EESREREATE - 2
7 B e B FRIRFTE o

RER & MR KR M E RRAME RS B HER
MEBEEREEDEEBNEENHRENEER
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36. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 36. BHRBERIHE @

(CONTINUED)

Certain subsidiaries of the Company provide defined pension Zli A& T B A A [ 5 1995 4 gl 10 A 5% S Kt
benefits to the employees, who joined to these subsidiaries RAINEEBREEHERKRSEN o R FHRIEE
before 1995. The amount payable is dependent on the /?%)5’\ EERENE S RIREFE - AEBWER
employees’ final salary and years of services. The Group FRMEENZ N @RE -

does not set aside any assets to fund such obligations.

Under the scheme, the employees are entitled to a pension BiEZT S EERF/E65RERTFERMEN
between 25% and 40% of final salary for each year of BRARESHRBIEN FREFE25% £40% F
pensionable service at an age of 65. No other post-retirement BRARE - AKEVEREEMRAKEREF - &
benefits are provided. The most recent actuarial valuations of MR EREBAARREREHETIN20234F3
the present value of the defined benefit obligations were AEBUVAEREEGEMESBERTHERA

carried out in March 2023 by Roma Appraisals Limited ET(M&%J)PKFH?E?%EEEE% T - BEME
(“Roma"), an independent qualified professional valuer, using DRI AR BETEEFFE 1395 R g
the projected unit credit method. The principal place of ANE22E - HHEAEREFEAZENRBRKDME
business of Roma is 22/F, China Overseas Building, 139 T RIKFE - AEX - FRTEXRFSHIE -

Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The assumptions
which have the most significant effect on the results of the
valuation are discount rate, retirement age, turnover rate,

mortality rate and the rate of increase in salaries.

The main actuarial assumptions used are as follows: FIfE M EEREBRNOT :
2023 2022
Discount rate BhI8 =R 3.1% 2.1%
Expected rate of salary increase TEHA%T 38 Ntk = 2.0% 2.0%
Turnover rate FEE =R 0.0% 0.0%
Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of profit *fﬁgﬂgﬂﬁi\ N A EXEREM TR
or loss and other comprehensive income in respect of the RERIEMT ¢

defined benefit scheme are as follows:

2023 2022
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BAEBT
Current service cost 35 B AR 765 Ak AN 1.6 2.2
Interest on obligation RIER T B 7.3 4.9
Components of defined benefits RIBRETER N TRER T 8.9 7.1
recognised in profit or loss
Remeasurement on defined benefit REMEEKEERN TR
scheme recognised in other BRETEIENEE :
comprehensive income:
Actuarial (gain)/ loss arising from changes B BRNEMEANRE (51.5) 4.5
in financial assumptions (Uez)/ E18
Total k) (42.6) 11.6
Annual Report 2023 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 2 5’]
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36. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 36. BRR@EFIRE @
(CONTINUED)
The current service costs and interest on obligation for the HZE2023F % 202293 A31 8 IEFEMIRRR
years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022 are included in “selling B RAEEOF SRS B /EB BT A [ 88
and distribution costs” and “general and administrative ERDHEERA] R [—MRITHEAS | IE -
expenses” depending on the respective employee’s function.
The remeasurement of the defined benefit scheme for the BE2023F K%2022F 3 A31 HILFERNTHER
years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022 is included in other MetElEFt 2t AE 2 mUkes -
comprehensive income.
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit ERBAAEREZLSHMOT
obligations are as follows:
2023 2022
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET AEBT
At 1 April R4H1H 239.1 238.8
Service costs AR 75 B A 1.6 2.2
Interest costs | B A 7.3 4.9
Actuarial (gain)/ loss BE (=) / BB (51.5) 4.5
Benefits paid B @A (11.3) (11.3)
At 31 March M3 A31H 185.2 239.1

The Group participates in defined contribution schemes
which are registered under the Hong Kong Occupational
Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and a
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme")
established under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the schemes
are held separately from those of the Group, in funds under
the control of independent trustees. Employees who were
members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of
the MPF Scheme were offered a choice of staying within the
ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas
all new employees joining the Group on or after 1 December
2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme.

Financials
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AEE D 2B REE B BRI BEHI M #
JE R ARG 3 ([ B R ARG 8GR BIET 81 ) R
20004 12 AR BB B 38 6l 1 D8 2 1R PIZH
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ERASENEESHERE  ABLIFTEAES
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36. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(CONTINUED)

The retirement benefit cost charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
represents contributions payable to the funds by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the schemes. Where there
are employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions, the contributions payable by the
Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5%
of relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, which contribution
is matched by the employee. The maximum monthly amount of
contribution is limited to HK$1,500 per employee.

The eligible employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in
Mainland China and Macau are members of pension
schemes operated by local government of Mainland China
and the Macau government, respectively. The subsidiaries in
Mainland China are required to contribute a certain
percentage of the relevant cost of the payroll of these
employees to the pension schemes to fund the benefits. The
subsidiary in Macau is required to pay a monthly fixed
contribution to the retirement benefits schemes to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit schemes is to make the required
contribution under the schemes.

Annual Report 2023
2023 F ik
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37.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to a resolution which were passed on 28 July 2021,
the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme") for the purpose of attracting skilled and
experienced personnel, to incentivise them to remain with
the Group and to motivate them to strive for the future
development and expansion of the Group by providing them
with the opportunity to acquire equity interests in the
Company. Under the Share Option Scheme, the directors of
the Company may grant options to directors (including
executive directors, non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors), the directors of the subsidiaries and
the employees of the Group and any other persons (including
consultants or advisers) who the directors of the Company
consider, in its absolute discretion, have contributed or will
contribute to the Group (the “Participants”).

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years commencing on 28 July 2021. An offer of
the grant of an option shall be made to a Participant by a
notice of grant requiring the Participant to undertake to hold
the option on the terms on which it is to be granted (which
may include a minimum period for which the option must be
held before it can be exercised and a performance target that
must be reached before the option can be exercised in whole
or in part) and to be bound by the terms of the Share Option
Scheme. An offer of the grant of an option is deemed to be
accepted by the Participant (the “Grantee"”) when the
Company receives from the Grantee the duplicate notice of
grant duly signed by the Grantee. An offer may be accepted
or deemed to have been accepted in respect of less than the
number of shares in respect of which it is offered, provided
that it is accepted in respect of a board lot or an integral
multiple thereof. No amount is payable by the Grantee upon
acceptance of an offer of an option. The offer shall remain
open for acceptance for such time to be determined by the
directors of the Company, provided that no such offer shall
be open for acceptance after the expiry of the Share Option
Scheme or after the termination of the Share Option Scheme
in accordance with its terms or after the Participant to whom
the offer is made has ceased to be a Participant. To the
extent that the offer is not accepted within the time period
and in the manner specified in the offer, the offer will be

deemed to have been irrevocably declined.

Financials
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (conminueb)

The exercise price shall be determined by the directors of
the Company, and shall not be less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant;
(ii) the average closing price of the shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company's share on the date of grant.

During the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, no share
options were granted by the Company nor were there any

share options of the Company outstanding.

The Company issued to the directors and certain employees
share appreciation rights (the “SARs"”) that the Company
would pay the intrinsic value of the SARs in cash to the
directors and certain employees as part of the discretionary
bonus. The Group recorded a total expense of HK$125.4 million
(2022: HK$236.8 million) during the year ended 31 March 2023.
The amount payable will be determined based on the earnings
per shares and share price of the Company. The rights must be
exercised on vesting date and will expire if not exercised on
that date. There were 21,830,000 units (2022: 21,240,000
units) of SAR granted and 16,926,000 units (2022: 14,280,000
units) were vested during the year.

The fair value of the SARs was determined using the Black-
Scholes model and the following inputs as at 31 March 2023
and 2022:

37.

AR RERT &l ()

TEEABARAERETE @ WA HERNTER
= ()R BHARR B RO AOMTIE ;i) B
RH B AERS ARG FHETE : i)
i BHARBRGEEE

HE2023F %2022 3A31HILEE - KRR
I R ARE - INEER S RITENERRD
AR ARAE -

RRATAESRE TIEEBEITROGERE ([IRH
BEE])  AAREURSREERETEESX
RGO IR EREONEEE  (ERBIEAN—B
5o BE2023F3 A3 B ILEE - AEEBEE
B B125.4 8 BB 0 (20224 1 236.8 F &5
7T) c BN SBEAARBGREF KRB IET
H o RipgERNBEERBRITE  WREZB
HASRATHE » BRDISERE R - RRBIRFERE
% ¥ 21,830,000 f& (2022 4 : 21,240,000 f&) f& {5
HE#EN - RE 5B 16,926,000 (2022 F :
14,280,000 f&l) B fn 15 B HE B AL

R 2023 202243 A31 8 IR EEENA
Je{BE(#F FABlack-Scholest&EHY & A T8 ABUREE E -

At 31 March 2023
R2023F3A31H

At 31 March 2022
R2022%3HA31H

Share price at measurement date

Expected volatility
Dividend yield

Risk-free interest rate
Carrying amount of liability — included in

other payables

HERRE HK$15.58 HK$14.26
15.58 3 7T 14.26 77T

T8 2R B K 34.209% 47.547%
iR B e 3.357% 3.079%
42 [ B 1| 2 2.713% 0.026%
BEMNERESE - sSTAREMERRIEA HK$219.6 million HK$215.8 million
2196 HEB T 215.8 B BT
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had entered into the following related party
transactions during the year:

38. FBEA X H

BEEHBRENEMBTRBENR S R
B#S - RREERERT I TS
%5

2023 2022
Relationship Nature of transactions HK$ million HK$ million
&R XEME BEER BEBER
Entities in which certain Concessionaire fees in department stores 36.1 64.6
directors* of the Company BEATIEES K
have beneficial interests Right-of-use assets 70.0 56.2
ARBETES* HEER FREEE
BENER Lease expenses 25.3 23.0
HER
Purchase of goods and commission expenses 5.5 0.2
BEEmRASMX
Purchase of equipment 20.1 0.9
HBERBE
Marking fee 83.4 171
LB
Service fees and income from customer 23.8 84.8
loyalty programmes
B EBE R E RIWA
Non-controlling shareholders Concessionaire fees in department stores 3.2 4.3
of subsidiaries BERREEDK
B8 A Bl FEFE AR AR R Franchise sales 115.5 95.1
IEEERS
Entities in which a close Engineering services fee 7.7 12.8
family member of certain TIERBE
directors* of the Company Purchase of equipment - 15.2
has control BERME
ARAETESE*NERRE Marking fee - 52.0
REHEETIENER 2R ER
& The directors also have beneficial interests in the Company. J W 2o R NG ol §:5 £

Financials

B 7%

Apart from the aforementioned transactions, no other
significant transactions, arrangements and contracts to
which the Company was a party and in which a director
of the Company had, directly or indirectly, a material
interest at any time during the year.

Remuneration paid for key management personnel
includes the directors and the chief executives of the
Company as disclosed in note 10.

The remuneration of the directors and the chief
executives of the Company is determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

B Bt 32 o0 - RR R F A E A
M YERITEMARAESTEEPER
LHEZFAEERNGEZEEZRS  BH K
a# -

SN TFEEEERABNME BIEHME 105
BOARREERFSTHA

g o

ARAEZRRSTRASNHERER
FHEZESRBEENALTHNRERTSB
BMETE
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end of

the reporting period are set out below:

39. AAFEXEME AT

THRRMERARRNR B EZME

AFZEHE -

Place and date of
incorporation/

Issued and fully paid
share capital/ registered

Proportion of

ownership interest held

Principal place

Name of subsidiaries establishment capital/ quota capital by the Company Principal activities of operation
HMRL/ BRI ERTRERRE/ RRARFEEEE
HEARAE RBH EfELR/ BEEX 5340 TEEH TEEENEY
2023 2022
Highrise Achiever Limited* BVI Share 100% 100% Investment holding Hong Kong
BRERAR 20 June 2011 US$1 REER Bt
HBEARKS FRAR
201146 A20AH 1%L
Bentley Trading Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100% Trading of diamond Hong Kong
BHBSERAR 10 January 2008 HK$10,000 EREE 0
EE TRA
200841 A 108 10,0007 7T
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products Hong Kong
Company Limited 6 March 1961 HK$350,000,000 KEERHE aE
BABHRELTARAR BB TR
196143 A6 H 350,000,000 7% 7T
CTF Jewellery Overseas Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products Hong Kong
BARBHKE (85N BRAR 21 March 2018 HK$1 and provision of services &/
0 L@ARA to franchisees
201853 A21H 18T KREEMEE RIEH
R % T o0 B2 7S
CTF Watch (HK) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100% Sales of watches Hong Kong
BREER (BE)BERAA 7 February 2011 HKS$1 HEERHEE EE
EE LN
2011%2A7H 1%7T
Techni Development Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100% Procurement of gemstones,  Hong Kong
Investment Limited 26 May 2005 HK$5,000,000 sales of jewellery products &/
EFSEERERRAR 0 LEARA and investment holding
200565A26H 5,000,000/ 7T RBER KEEM
HEARREER
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery and Watch Macau Quota capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products Macau
Company (Macau) Limited 17 March 2009 MOP5,000,000 KEERHE P
BARBHREER(RP) BRAR R REEAR
200943 A17H 5,000,00052F 7t
Hearts On Fire Company, LLC The United States Capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products The United States
of America US$74,468,737 KEBEERHEE of America
14 May 2001 X EJ5
X8 74,468,737 % T
2001454148
Beijing Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products PRC
Company Limited 13 November 2006 US$30,000,000 and provision of services HE
T RAXBHREETTERAR R AR to franchisees
20064118138 30,000,000 T KREEMME RIRH
BR& TN
Chongging Chow Tai Fook Watch PRC~ Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of watches PRC
Marketing Company Limited 25 December 2008 RMB10,000,000 HERHE 2
BEERAAGERHEARAT FE- &R
20084 12A25H  AK®10,000,0007T
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COMPANY (conTinuED)

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

39. AXABFEMBAS @

Place and date of
incorporation/

Issued and fully paid
share capital/ registered

Proportion of
ownership interest held

Principal place

Name of subsidiaries establishment capital/ quota capital by the Company Principal activities of operation
HMRL/ RILHE ERTRERRE/ RRARFEEEE
HEAREE RBH EMELR/ BEEX 5340 TEEB TEEENEY
2023 2022
Chongging Flamingo Watches PRC~ Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of watches PRC
Company Limited 25 December 2008 RMB1,000,000 BEERIHE H
EEERARERARAR - GailE-%N
200812 A258  AR¥1,000,0007T
Chongging Xinhuang Watch PRC* Registered capital 51% 51% Sales of watches PRC
Company Limited 2 August 2013 RMB10,000,000 ERHE H
BEEMASRERRAR - EailE-wN
20134 8A2H AR#10,000,0007T
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products PRC
(Chongging) Company Limited 23 December 2008 US$30,000,000 and provision of services H
BABKRERT(EE)ARAR " AR to franchisees
2008412 823H 30,000,000 7T KEERHER
MRS T N
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery (Shenyang) PRC- Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products PRC
Company Limited 2 January 2014 RMB20,000,000 and provision of services H
AAEKRERTT(8G) ARAR - HEA to franchisees
2014%1A82H AR #20,000,0007T KEERHER
REBRB T MER
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery (Shenzhen) PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Manufacturing and sales of PRC
Company Limited 2 April 2002 US$500,000,000 jewellery products H
BARBHRELT (R ARAF e GailE-%N KREEREERHEE
200264 A28 500,000,000 % ¢
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery (Suzhou) PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products PRC
Company Limited 11 January 2006 US$30,000,000 and provision of services H
BAABKRERT (M) ARAR E" HEA to franchisees
200617118 30,000,000% 7T KEERHER
RERS T MER
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery (Wuhan) PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products PRC
Company Limited 29 January 2008 US$30,000,000 and provision of services H
BAABRERT(RE)ARAA e AR to franchisees
20081 A29R 30,000,000 T KEERHER
REMRE T MERS
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Culture PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Manufacturing of jewellery PRC
Industrial Park (Wuhan) 16 August 2012 US$140,000,000 products &
Company Limited e HER KEEMEE
AAERE X EXR (RE) 201248816 H 140,000,000 % T
BRAR
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC- Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products PRC
Zhangjiagang Baoshui 21 April 2010 RMB65,723,500 KEERHE 2
Company Limited - HER

BAABAREETRRERHE
BRAA

2010F4A21H

AR 65,723,500 7T

Financials

B %

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (conTinuED)

39. AXABFEMBAS @

Place and date of
incorporation/

Issued and fully paid
share capital/ registered

Proportion of
ownership interest held

Principal place

Name of subsidiaries establishment capital/ quota capital by the Company Principal activities of operation
HMRL/ RILHE ERTREBRRE/ RRARFEEEE
HEAREE RBH EMELR/ BEEX 3340 TEEB TEEENEY
2023 2022
Foshan Shunde Yuda Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Manufacturing of jewellery PRC
Manufacturing Company Limited 14 March 2007 US$10,639,400 products H
BT EE R ERE A R " GailE-eN REEMEE
BRARE 200743 A 148 10,639,400 % T
Foshan Yushunfu Jewellery and PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Manufacturing of jewellery PRC
Diamond Company Limited 9 November 1988 US$18,000,000 products H
BLRIEEEHEARRA R R ERilE-wN KEEMEE
1988411 A9H 18,000,000 % 7T
Guangdong Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products PRC
Company Limited 10 December 2007 US$30,000,000 and provision of services H
BRAXGHRESTARAR RE" AR to franchisees
2007412 A108  30,000,000% T KEERHER
RERE T MERS
Guangdong Shunde Chow Tai Fook PRC- Registered capital 100% 100% Manufacturing of jewellery PRC
Jewellery Manufacturing 30 July 2014 RMB60,000,000 products H
Company Limited - HER KREERLEE
BRIEEANBRELERRAR 201447 A30H AR #60,000,0007C
Jinan Fudonglin Jewellery PRC~ Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products PRC
Company Limited 2 September 2005 RMB2,000,000 and provision of services H
EEERGERESTARAR - AR to franchisees
2005%9A2H AR 2,000,000 7T KREEMHE RIRH
BRi& T IR
Shanghai Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products PRC
Company Limited 26 February 2013 HK$60,000,000 and provision of services H
FEAREHREEHARAR RE" HEA to franchisees
201342 A26H 60,000,000 % 7T KEEMHER
REBRBTMER
Shanghai Fulong Chow Tai Fook PRC* Registered capital 60% 60% Sales of jewellery products PRC
Jewellery Company Limited 5 January 2000 RMB10,000,000 KEERHEE H
LBREAABREARAR A GailE-eN
200061 A5H AR #10,000,000 7T
Shenzhen Qianhai Chow Tai Fook PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products PRC
Jewellery Company Limited 31 October 2016 US$10,000,000 KEERHE H
RIBEARBRESITAERAT R EailE-wN
20164108318 10,000,000
Shenzhen Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC~ Registered capital 100% 100% Manufacturing of jewellery PRC
Manufacturing Company Limited 5 March 2012 RMB50,000,000 products 2
RITEARBHREREBRAF - &R KEEMEE
201243 A5H AR #50,000,0007C
Shenzhen Chow Tai Fook Online PRC~ Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products PRC
Media Company Limited 5 January 2017 RMB5,000,000 KEERHE 2
R EARBEREEERAA FE- &R
201741 A5H AK# 5,000,000 7
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COMPANY (conTinuED)

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

39. AXABFEMBAS @

Place and date of
incorporation/

Issued and fully paid
share capital/ registered

Proportion of
ownership interest held

Principal place

Name of subsidiaries establishment capital/ quota capital by the Company Principal activities of operation
HMRL/ RILHE ERTRERRE/ RRARFEEEE
HEAREE RBH EMELR/ BEEX 5340 TEEB TEEENEY
2023 2022
Shenzhen CTF Watch PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of watches PRC
Company Limited 27 June 2011 HK$300,000,000 BEERIHE H
R EAREEERERAA e GailE-%N
201156 A27H 300,000,000 % 7T
Shenzhen Shenfu Jewellery PRC* Registered capital 50%* 50%* Sales of jewellery products PRC
Company Limited 19 April 2007 RMBS,000,000 KEERHE H
AITRERESTAERAA - EailE-wN
200744 A19H AR# 8,000,000 7T
Wuhan Hanfu Jewellery PRC* Registered capital 70% 70% Sales of jewellery products PRC
Company Limited 26 November 2003 RMB90,000,000 KEEMHE F
REERKESTARARA - &R
2003411 H26H  AR®90,000,0007T
Zhangjiagang Baoshui Dade Xinfu PRC* Registered capital 50%* 50%* Sales of jewellery products PRC
Jewellery Company Limited 3 December 2010 RMB3,000,000 KEERHEE 2
RRBRGEABMBREST R A& AR
BRDA 2010%12A3H AR # 3,000,000 7
Zhangjiagang Baoshui Dehui PRC~ Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products PRC
Jewellery Company Limited 24 September 2012 RMB94,567,500 KEERHEE H
RRBRVBEERESTERAR  HE- GailE-%N
20124597241 AR# 94,567,500 T
Zhangjiagang Baoshui Zhaofu PRC* Registered capital 51% 51% Sales of jewellery products PRC
Jewellery Company Limited 17 November 2011 RMB70,000,000 KEERHE H
RRBRVEERARBESTERAR  HE* ERilE-wN
20115118178 AK#70,000,0007T
* Directly held by the Company. @ ARBEERE °
& Pursuant to the relevant agreements entered into among shareholders of these # BREZSEENRREZHETCABEBGE  AEEAREE

entities, the Group has power to direct the relevant activities of these entities since
their respective date of establishment/ acquisition, and hence these entities are
classified as subsidiaries of the Company.

fBE B AL/ Wi B AR B R S R S ERMEMES - |
It S ERBRAARTNMBEAR -

+ Being a co-operative joint venture establishment in the PRC. + ABFBRRIMAEAELE -
Being a wholly foreign owned enterprise. " RINEBERE -
Being a wholly owned enterprise in the PRC. BRERIOBERE -
Note: P % :
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors, FRINHEERATI B EREANEEREENETATIMB AR

principally affect the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries which
are mainly inactive or engaged in investment holding would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

BIEGEZEFEXINBRAZROMBR R ZFE  ERAR
REYHFBEBRITE -

Financials

B %

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited

260
AAEHEEBERAF



40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

. RATMBRARRFEELES

COMPANY
2023 2022
HK$ million HK$ million
BHEBT BEERT
Non-current assets M EE
Investment in a subsidiary R—ERBARZEE 15,387.3 15,387.3
Amount due from a subsidiary FE U — BB A Rl 5RIE 1,488.1 1,788.8
16,875.4 17,176.1
Current assets MEVEE
Amount due from a subsidiary FE U — R B A RI5RIE 1,444.2 5,950.8
Cash and cash equivalents BHekReEFEY 5.6 1.6
1,449.8 5,952.4
Current liabilities mEEE
Other payables ot A5 FE 18.8 22.4
Bank borrowings IRITEXK 4,366.8 7,275.7
Gold loans "5eEE 2,347.9 3,133.6
6,733.5 10,431.7
Net current liabilities MENE BT (5,283.7) (4,479.3)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTBAR 11,591.7 12,696.8
Non-current liability IFmBAaRE
Bank borrowings RITER 1,488.1 1,788.8
10,103.6 10,908.0
Capital and reserves AR R f#EE
Share capital i 10,000.0 10,000.0
Reserves &t 103.6 908.0
10,103.6 10,908.0
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 40. KATIMBRAREFEEEH @
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (conTinuED)

Reserves
fEE
Share Share Retained
capital premium profits Total
&N RO EE R EF st
HK$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million HK$ million
HEET HEET BHEET BEBET
At 31 March 2021 7K20213A31H 10,000.0 5,498.7 9.0 15,507.7
Profit and total comprehensive FRRMNREHE WS LE = - 0.3 0.3
income for the year
Dividends %8 = (4,600.0) = (4,600.0)
At 31 March 2022 71202243 A31H 10,000.0 898.7 9.3 10,908.0
Profit and total comprehensive FRRMNEREEW S BT - - 4,195.6 4,195.6
income for the year
Dividends %2 - (898.7) (4,101.3) (5,000.0)
At 31 March 2023 7K 202343 A31H 10,000.0 - 103.6 10,103.6
262 Financials Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A1 75 B2

The following is a summary of the published results and assets and

liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years. The financial

information are extracted from the consolidated financial

statements in the annual reports.

UTRAEEBERBEMBRFECHREAEAREE

HEEHRE - YHEHBREFROGEMBEHRE -

For the year ended 31 March

HBE3A3MALEE

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BAEET E-Y v BEET BEET AEBT
Revenue B 66,660.9 56,750.8 70,163.8 98,937.7 94,684.4
Gross profit EF 18,601.8 16,096.2 20,074.7 22,339.7 21,1715
Profit for the year FE A 4,684.0 2,983.1 6,176.1 6,879.9 5,489.5

As at 31 March

R3HA31H

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
AEAT BEBT BAEBT BEAT BEBER
Total assets BERR 62,237.1 65,243.4 64,308.2 87,737.3 87,340.5
Total liabilities BfERE 30,834.1 38,252.6 32,740.6 53,182.6 53,980.7
Net assets BEFHE 31,403.0 26,990.8 31,567.6 34,654.7 33,359.8
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INFORI\/\ATION FOR INVESTORS

RE#&AEH

INVESTOR CALENDAR

REEHS

FY2023 annual results announcement
8 June 2023

AGM
7 July 2023

Proposed payment of final dividend and special dividend
on or about 31 July 2023

Closure of register of members (both days inclusive)

For ascertaining attendance and voting right at the AGM
4 to 7 July 2023

For ascertaining entitlement to proposed final dividend and
special dividend

2023 BIEEEFRENE
202346 A8H

IRFREFEXRE
202347 H7H

BRRERMBREERRS
202347 A 31 BHLAI&

TERERGEFELTFE(EEMRXBEBEAN)

MEETHERRBAFASTRE LIRE

20237 H4BZE7H

R AR B S R A B B A s 1

BRI

14 July 2023 202347 A14H
SHARE INFORMATION B &R
Company hame AT &8

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited

Listing
Hong Kong Stock Exchange

Stock code
1929

Listing date
15 December 2011

Board lot size
200 shares

Issued share capital as at 31 March 2023
10,000,000,000 shares

Index constituent

Hang Seng Index

Hang Seng Composite Index

Hang Seng Composite LargeCap Index

Hang Seng China (Hong Kong-listed) 100 Index

Hang Seng Stock Connect Greater Bay Area Composite Index

Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Index
Hang Seng ESG 50 Index
MSCI China Index

Additional Information

B hn & A

ARBHREEEER QA

i)
BB FT

Rz 3 155k
(1929

LtHEH
2011512 A 15H

BFEHEM
200 f%

22023 4£3 A31 HERTRA
10,000,000,000 A%

R 3 B

iﬁ/\Ta%(

fra RBIIE R

iqﬂ(%\%iﬁ)mo#ﬁk

ERREBRNEEBES IR
ERFEBEROEER
B4 ESGL0 1R &L
MSCI 1 Bl #5248

]
HF HF
o
bl

[l \ml W] Iml [

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AREBHREEEER DA



SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

B R AR FS

For matters relating to your shareholding such as transfer of
shares, change of name or address, and loss of share certificates,
please write to our Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar:

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2980-1333
Fax: (852) 2810-8185
e-mail: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

Shareholders can obtain the annual or interim report of the
Company by writing to our Hong Kong Branch Registrar, or access
the electronic version from our Group website.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

AW BTOHRREE mRGEE ERELR
S REKBE  BABESRBARMOEERG B
FERAR

BEEBRFELBRAR

BEBERE 165

BEREEAPLI17E

FiE 0 (852) 2980-1333

BEH: (852)2810-8185

EH :  is-enquiries@nhk.tricorglobal.com

BRERAEBEE I ABERMANTERNDBEERL S
BAEBRARBNFRAPHRE - INBANEE
MUPIEEFIR -

REER R

For more information about the Group, please visit
www.ctfjewellerygroup.com
or contact our Investor Relations and Corporate Communications at

38/F, New World Tower
16-18 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2524-3166
Fax: (852) 2526-9178
e-mail: ir@chowtaifook.com

GENERAL INFORMATION

BRAAREEFE  FAE

www.ctfiewellerygroup.com

HERPIIREE RO EE R -
B2 AET 16-185%
it SRAE 381

EiE 0 (852) 2524-3166
EE : (852) 2526-9178
F# :  ir@chowtaifook.com
— &

33/F, New World Tower
16-18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P. O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

Annual Report 2023
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SRR 3318

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P. O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman lIslands
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GLOSSARY
) &
;£;§t¥¢

2HFY
MBEETHF

Articles
4R

ASP
FiEH

Board
EFw
CIS
JEREE

Company/ Chow Tai Fook
RRTE BARE

Directors

o=

FY

MBFEE/ B

Gem-set Jewellery
RE ]

Gold jewellery and products

B A ME M

Group
SEH/AEH

Additional Information

B b0

the first half of the financial year, six months ending 30 September

BEE EFF - BE9A30HIEAAR

the second half of the financial year, six months ending 31 March

MBEET+E BE3A31BLEAREA

the articles of association of the Company (as amended or supplemented from time to
time)

ARRAEBERAR (B AEHERT M)

average selling price

FHHEER

the board of directors of the Company

ARAEERS

counter-in-shop in POS

REEHANEREE

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (stock code: 1929)
BARERESEER QG (RMHMRS : 1929)

directors of the Company

RRBEE

financial year, 1 April to 31 March
4A1HE3A HNTREE

jewellery products made with diamonds and gemstones

EfEAEONREONEMHEM

gold jewellery and products sold by weight or at fixed price. Fixed price gold products
include those with substantial amount of art work, delicate designs and licensed gold
products

RESYETERLENECEMNER TEELEMBERTRREN TR
B REHRETI AR K ENE S EM

the Company and its subsidiaries
PN/N SN o NC]

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
BAAEHREEEER QA



Hong Kong, China/ Hong Kong
hEEFE/ BE

Karat gold/ K-gold
K&

Listing Rules
Fm#RAl

Macau, China/ Macau

REDRM/RFT

Mainland China/ the Mainland
R B R/ A

Retail Sales Value/ RSV
TEE

Same Store

R &

Same Store Sales/ SSS
mEHE

Same Store Sales Growth/ SSSG
R S

Annual Report 2023
2023 F ik

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China
I A R HAEE B RIITE R

jewellery products made from gold alloy

&% BKH E HE S

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

BEMERSMAERARES LR

the Macao Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China

i AR HEMBEDRPIE RITTER R

the mainland of the People’s Republic of China

hEARAMBE AL

points of sale
EZEIEI = EES

the sales at the ending price (VAT inclusive, if any), in respective functional currencies,
of products sold to customers in the POS network and other channels
REEHAENMEMREAEENEEEFERETHEEMNRRTEE(
B mE)TE

iR

self-operated POS existing as at the end of the relevant financial period and which have
been operating since the beginning of the prior financial year

B —EMBRFEEVNCSREXRABYBHRARNDABENEETERN

“Same store sales” for FY2023 is the RSV from the self-operated POS of
CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY existing as at 31 March 2023 and which have been
opened prior to 1 April 2021. RSV from franchised POS and other channels are not
included

F2023HBERE [REHE | ™= - KA MR2021F4 81 BRI FE LR 2023F
SASNBNABENAREREESTEHNTEME  ETNEEMBTER R HME
BENTEE

a comparison between Same Store Sales of a particular period and sales from
comparable POS in the corresponding period in the previous financial year, measured
at constant exchange rates

PAERER LB EESRRNREHER E—MRFERPNAT L TEMHEE

Glossary
uji
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SFO
&7 RER RO

SIS
JERRE

Stock Exchange

Bt 32 P

Tier I, Il, 1ll, IV and other cities
— =8 mR
T E A 35 T

Additional Information

B b0

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BREGIE ST BEH REE KA

shop-in-shop in POS
REEEANERE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, unless otherwise specified

FRIERBIER  BRAIBEEERARZMERAR

for the list of cities, please refer to the city-tier ranking published by Yicai Global. New
first tier cities were grouped under Tier Il cities in our analysis. Please refer to the
ranking released on 1 June 2022
BRAMTFEFL2E(E - BMEVN T ERIE o 31— FH DR EFIH D 7
WA R &N - H202022946 A1 BAMAHES

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
ARAERHREEEER AR
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